EDUCATION AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES
CABINET COMMITTEE

Friday, 18th September, 2015

10.00 am

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall,
Maidstone

\_ /

Kent

County
Council

kent.gov.uk







Kent

County

Council

kent.gov.uk

AGENDA
EDUCATION AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES CABINET
COMMITTEE
Friday, 18 September 2015 at 10.00 am Ask for: Christine Singh
Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone: 03000 416687

Maidstone
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting

Membership (16)

Conservative (8): Mr L B Ridings, MBE (Chairman), Mrs P T Cole (Vice-Chairman),
Mr D L Brazier, Mrs M E Crabtree, Mr S C Manion, Mr M J Northey,
Mr J M Ozog and Mr C R Pearman

UKIP (2) Mr L Burgess and Mr T L Shonk

Labour (2) Mr G Cowan and Mr R Truelove

Liberal Democrat (1):  Mr M J Vye

Church Mr D Brunning, Mr Q Roper and Mr A Tear
Representatives (3)

Webcasting Notice

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site or by any member of the public or press present. The Chairman will
confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed. If you do not wish to have
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

A - Committee Business
A1 Introduction/Webcast announcement

A2 Apologies and Substitutes
To receive apologies for absence and notification of any substitutes present

A3 Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda



To receive any declarations of interest made by Members in relation to any
matter on the agenda. Members are reminded to specify the agenda item
number to which it refers and the nature of the interest being declared

A4  Future meeting dates 2016/17

The Education and Young People's Services Cabinet Committee is asked to
note the future meetings dates for 2016/17 as follows:

2016 2017

Thursday, 21 Janua
y i Wednesday, 1 February

Thursday, 17 March Thursday, 30 March
Wednesday, 11 May

Friday, 1 July
Thursday, 22 September
Wednesday, 23 November

A5 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 July 2015 (Pages 7 - 26)
To consider and approve the minutes as a correct record

A6 Verbal Updates (Pages 27 - 28)

To receive verbal updates by the relevant Cabinet Members and Corporate
Director for the Education and Young People’s Services Portfolio.

B - Key or Significant Cabinet/Cabinet Member Decision(s) for
Recommendation or Endorsement

B1 Procurement of SEN Transport provision for Phase 1 Schools (Pages 29 - 32)

To receive a report by the relevant Cabinet Member and Corporate Director for
Education and Young People’s Services to consider and endorse or make
recommendations on a decision.

B2 Early Help and Preventative Services Commissioning Intentions for 2016-17
(Pages 33 - 130)

To receive a report by the relevant Cabinet Committee Members and Corporate
Director for Education and Young People’s Services to consider and endorse or
make recommendations on a decision.

C - Other items for comment/recommendation to the Leader/Cabinet
Member/Cabinet or officers

C1 Performance of Early Help and Preventative Services (Pages 131 - 168)

To receive a report by the relevant Cabinet Members and the Corporate Director
for Education and Young People’s Services that sets out the progress made to
date in delivering an effective Early Help service, the current performance of the
service and the performance monitoring arrangements that have been
developed.



C2 Teacher Recruitment and Retention Activity for 2015 (Pages 169 - 178)

To receive the report by the Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform
and the Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services that
provides a general update on Teacher Recruitment and Retention Activity for
2015 and any key issues in relation to teacher recruitment and retention in Kent
schools.

C3 Active Travel Strategy (Pages 179 - 182)

To receive a report by the Cabinet Members for Environment & Transport and
Adult Social Care and Public Health on the proposal to develop an Active Travel
Strategy for Kent.

C4 Work Programme 2015/16 (Pages 183 - 192)

To receive a report by the Head of Democratic Services that gives details of the
proposed Work Programme 2015/16 for the Education and Young People’s
Services Cabinet Committee.

D - Monitoring of Performance

D1 Annual Equality and Diversity Report for Education and Young People's Services
2014-15 (Pages 193 - 260)

To receive a report by the Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform
and the Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services that sets
out a position statement for services within the Education and Young People’s
Service (EYPS) Directorate regarding equality and diversity work and provides
an update on progress in delivering Kent County Council's (KCC's) Equality
Objectives for the year 2014-15.

D2 Education and Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard (Pages 261 -
284)

To receive the report by the Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform
and the Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services that
reviews the performance Management Framework, a monitoring tool, for the
targets and the milestones for each year up to 2018 set out in the Strategic
Priority Statement and Service Business Plans.

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services
(01622) 694002



Thursday, 10 September 2015

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant
report.



75.

76.

77.

Agenda ltem A5

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

EDUCATION AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES CABINET
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Education and Young People's Services Cabinet
Committee held in the Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on
Wednesday, 8 July 2015.

PRESENT: MrL B Ridings, MBE (Chairman), Mrs P T Cole (Vice-Chairman),
Mr D L Brazier, Mr D Brunning, MrL Burgess, Mr G Cowan, Mrs M E Crabtree,
Mr S C Manion, Mr M J Northey, MrJ M Ozog, Mr C R Pearman, Mr R Truelove,
Mr T L Shonk, Mr A Tear and Mr M J Vye

ALSO PRESENT: Mr R W Gough, Mr P M Hill, OBE and Mr P J Oakford

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Leeson (Corporate Director Education and Young People
Services), Mr K Abbott (Director of Education Planning and Access), Ms G Cawley
(Director of Education, Quality and Standards), Mr D Adams (Area Education Officer
- South Kent), Mr J Nehra (Area Education Officer - West Kent), Mrs M White (Area
Education Officer - East Kent), Mr T Doran (Head Teacher of Looked After Children -
VSK), Ms S Dunn (Head of Skills and Employability), Mrs J Ely (Head of SEN
Assessment and Resources), Mr N Fenton (Interim Head of Kent Integrated Family
Support Service), Mr R Hallett (Head of Business Intelligence), Mrs C Jenden (FTC -
Review Team Manager), Mr| Watts (Area Education Officer — North Kent),
Mr D Weiss (Head of Public Private Partnerships and Property Team),
Mr N Wilkinson (Head of Youth Justice and Safer Young Kent) and Ms C A Singh
(Democratic Services Officer)

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS

Apologies and Substitutes
(Item A2)

Apologies were received from Mr Q Roper.

Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the Agenda
(Item A3)

No declarations of interest were received.

Minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2015
(Item A4)

RESOLVED that, subject to Mr Cowan’s declaration of interest as he is a foster

parent being noted in Minute 67 (1), the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2015
are correctly recorded and that they be signed by the Chairman.

Page 7



78.

Verbal Updates
(ltem A5)

1. The Cabinet Members, Mr Gough, Mr Oakford and Mr Hill; and the Corporate
Director, Mr Leeson, gave their verbal updates highlighting the following:-

2. Mr Gough spoke on Special School Developments, advising that he welcomed
the development on the Furness site and the work being carried out on the Ridge
View School, Tonbridge. There had been some objections; and issues raised by
Southern Water which lead to the decision to withdraw the planning application. An
alternative proposal had been drawn up for Ridge View and was being brought
forward for Ridge View to be on the Yeoman'’s field site, a playing field currently used
by the Judd School. [Judd school was accelerating its development of playing fields
which it had already bought] this was all subject to planning permission.

3. A small schools conference was held last week where speakers present
included; Mr Leeson and Mr Tear. Those present considered a piece of work by
Melanie Cox, former HMI looking at the issues on small schools; the challenges and
the advantages and how to build up federations between schools across a variety of
groupings to give them strength for a good future.

4. There had been much interest in the school funding since the recent general
election. The F40 Group, which KCC was a member of, consisted of the lowest
funded counties in the country. Kent was underfunded and was keen if there was
any debate on this issue that Kent’s voice was heard strongly. Mr Gough advised
that he had written to Kent MPs setting KCC’s position on key issues, particularly on
the £390m designed to support some of the lowest funded authorities. Kent did not
receive support from this funding pot and felt penalised for acting on what the
government was keen that local authorities should devolve as much money into
schools as possible; this lead to Kent schools appearing, on block, to be well-funded
resulting in Kent not receiving additional funding. Mr Gough was keen for Kent not to
be bypassed on issues regarding schools funding.

5. Mr Leeson advised that the provisional Key Stage 2 results had been received
for this summer. 80% of pupils received level 4 in reading, writing and mathematics
combined which was a 2% improvement on last year. Mr Leeson said that he
expected the validated result to show a slight increase by 1%.

6. The Cabinet Committee was advised that the Education and Adoption Bill had
been introduced which made provision for schools to be automatically sponsored by
an academy trust if they failed an Ofsted inspection.

7. Mr Leeson explained that the government had produced new definition of a
“coasting school”. He considered that a reasonable explanation of a coasting school
would be a school where even though the standards were high it was making less
than expected progress or some groups of pupils were making less than expected
progress. He advised that the new definition of a coasting school meant that a
school would be coasting if it was not making the expected progress for pupils and if
the school’s attainment in GCSEs was below 60% for a Secondary school and the
key Stage outcomes were below 85% of outcomes in Primary school. This would
mean on the attainment measures that nearly half of Primary schools in Kent would

Page 8



be coasting schools and 57 of Kent's Secondary schools would be coasting schools if
the progress measures were also not good enough.

8. Mr Leeson advised that 82% of Kent schools were now good or outstanding
which was in line with the national average. The improvement rate in Primary
schools was welcomed with 82% of Primary schools being good or outstanding
overall in Kent; that represented a significant amount of hard work and very good
leadership on the part of Primary school headteachers especially. Mr Leeson
concluded that 83% of pupils in Kent were now attending a good or outstanding
school, compared to 74% at the same time last year.

9. Mr Leeson referred to the new Common Inspection Framework that was being
introduced by Ofsted from September 2015. The Framework would be used across
Further Education, Early Years settings and independent and maintained schools,
Adult education and Skills etc. It would continue to judge on the overall
effectiveness, leadership and management, teaching and learning, and achievement
and progress. There were two important developments which Mr Leeson noted; (i) it
emphasised even more that pupil progress would be the key measure that inspectors
would look at rather than just published data around outcomes. Mr Leeson
welcomed this development, and (ii) a change to the inspection process. It would
now be a short inspection or visit for good schools every 3 years to validate whether
the school continued to be a good school. If there was an indication that the school
had slipped then there would be a full inspection brought forward and if there were
indications that the school had improved to outstanding there would also be a full
inspection. Mr Leeson welcomed this development too.

10. Mr Leeson concluded that there had been a change in how the Ofsted
inspectors were trained and recruited. It had brought this back in-house. All
inspectors were directly employed and trained directly by Ofsted and organised on a
regional basis therefore Ofsted was guaranteeing a better consistent quality of
inspection and would be able to monitor the inspection activity closely in the local
area.

11.  The new Early Help and Preventative Service had been in place since April
2014, the service was designed to support vulnerable children and families who fell
below the criteria for a referral to statutory Children Social Care. Kent’'s expectation
was to support more children in Kent so that they do not need to have the statutory
social care measures applied and that this would lead to a reduction in the number of
children in the statutory social care service. This was important for the families that
their needs do not escalate to specialist intervention and for Kent to use its resources
more effectively. The trend was monitored on a monthly basis. Mr Leeson reported
that the statistical trends from January to May this year indicated that referrals were
down from 28% to 22%. There was also a reduction in the number of cases stepped
up to Children’s Social Care from Early help from 15% to 8%. There was also an
increase in step down of cases from 22% to 27%. There was a significant increase in
the number of closed cases with positive outcomes for the children and the families
from 49% in January to 69% in May 2015. Cases were being tracked and monitored.

12. Mr Oakford advised that he had visited many children’s centres across the
county and welcomed the significant improvements that he observed. He made
reference to positive comments by the staff and users of the service on the
restructure of the children’s centres, in particular the leadership of the service. There

Page 9



was evidence of the children’s centres and Social Services working together and
improved relationships between the children centres and the schools. Mr Oakford
mentioned his attendance at a briefing session on children centres attended by Sue
Gregory an ex Ofsted inspector, staff and management, that he considered one of
the most beneficial meetings he had attended at a County Councillor.

13.  Mr Oakford advised that the Select Committee that been appointed to review
the role of Corporate Parenting within Kent County Council had sought an extension
of 2 months to carry out more in-depth research to produce a robust report.

14.  Mr Oakford referred to the Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)
that recently entered Kent. He advised that in June 2015, 85 new UASC were
brought into the care of KCC, and by 6 July, 42 additional UASC were brought in
Kent. Mr Oakford reminded Members that Millbank Reception Centre could
accommodate 50 young people to date there were 101 young people being
accommodated at Millbank, this meant there were mattresses on floors and 3 people
in a room. Measures were being taken to find an additional facility as a reception
facility. He advised that agency social workers were being employed to cover the
additional assessments and work with the UASC. Mr Oakford stated that there were
additional pressures on services including; the Virtual School Kent, housing,
education, health services; and the local community.

Mr Oakford said that discussions were going to take place with the Home Office and
Kent MPs on this issue.

15. Mr Hill advised Members on the current situation regarding Bewl Water
Outdoor Centre, Lamberhurst, a residential education centre facility. Mr Hill advised
that the sailing facility was in financial difficulty, although there was no direct impact
on the education centre, there was a concern regarding this as an important facility
used by children and adults of the centre, as this was a large and successful sailing
club. The situation would continue to be monitored.

16.  Mr Gough, Mr Oakford and Mr Leeson responded to questions by Members as
follows:

(a) Mr Oakford advised that the cost to Kent for the UASC was £3m before
the rise in number in the last six weeks. Colleagues in Finance and Social
Services were currently working on up to date data and statistics to aid the
discussions with the Home office and Kent MPs.

(b) Mr Oakford explained that the situation with the UASC in 2011 was
different to how it was at present. He advised that there had been a
decision to close Millbank Reception Centre because it was not being
utilised and it was fortunate that this did not happen. He explained that
there had been a 90% increase of UASC in the last few months.
Following these recent developments the Home Office would be meeting
with KCC this week to discuss the issue.

(c) Mr Leeson advised that the Early Help and Preventative Service was
designed to look at three ranges of services. (i) Children with multi
disadvantage issues in their lives who do not meet the criteria for children
in social care but have quite high areas of need were considered the most
important group. (ii) Children who need a targeted need, a single service
response in order to help address an issue and (iii) to provide a range of
universal access to services that would make a difference to the more

Page 10



79.

vulnerable eg Children Centres and Youth hubs etc. so that needs do not
escalate. Mr Leeson explained that there was an issue with managing
expectations. He said that some schools were doing a great deal to
support children that they recognised were vulnerable children and only
referred those children when its support had been exhausted and required
additional help to support a child and family. Work had been carried out by
the Early Help and Preventative Service with schools to manage their
expectations and sign posting the schools to the correct service they need,
this had helped to reduce the number of referrals.

(d) Mr Leeson explained that the number of children, presently 5500, being
supported by the Early Help and Preventative Services was considered
too high and some of their needs could be met elsewhere. The Service
needed to be carefully targeted. He advised that the Service was tracking
the referrals as part of its monthly data, and the response times were
ambitious but could be met. He advised that when a school made a
notification to Early Help it would hear back in two weeks with an
explanation of what was being done. If an Early Help notification went
forward to having an assessment and Early Help Plan this would take
place in four weeks. The latest number of notifications had risen to 69%,
which meant that nearly 70% of the work was happening within the
timescale. If a school had concerns they were advised to invite the Local
District Manager to the school and present them with the issues that
needed to be addressed. The Service was clear that it was to deliver good
outcomes. The Cabinet Committee noted that it would receive regular
progress reports and that monthly data was being produced and was
widely available.

(e) Mr Gough said that the pressures for school places in particular areas of
Kent were recognised. At present the UASC mentioned by Mr Oakford had
yet to enter the system to be allocated a school place. He advised that
some of the pressures on school places were due to the increase in the
birth rate, housing development and migration from both inside and outside
the UK. He considered that overall Kent was delivering good school
places in line with parental preferences.

17. RESOLVED that the information given in the verbal updates and the
responses to questions by Members be noted with thanks.

Expansion of Halfway Houses Primary School
(Item B1)

1. The Area Education Officer, East Kent, Mrs White and the Director of
Education Planning and Access, Mr Abbott, introduced a report that gave details on
the outcome of the public consultation on the proposal to permanently expand
Halfway Houses (Foundation) Primary School from 2FE to 3FE and the Governing
Body’s decision to expand the school, pending approval by the Cabinet Member for
Education and Health Reform to support this financially as set out in the
recommendation of the report.

2. The Cabinet Committee noted that Halfway Houses had already taken
additional pupils on a temporary basis into its current school buildings. As the school
is now being rebuilt under Priority School Build 1 on the former Danley site, this was
an opportunity to expand the school by an additional form of entry. A consultation

Page 11



80.

was carried out and 136 written responses were received by the governing body: 119
respondents supported the proposal; 6 objected to the proposal and 11 respondents
were undecided. Mrs White advised that the objections received were mainly
regarding the school becoming too large. In response parents were given the
assurance that the structure and family atmosphere of the primary school would not
be lost as the school was already a third of the way to the proposed cohort.

3. RESOLVED that the Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet
Committee endorsed the decision to be taken by the Cabinet Member for
Education and Health Reform to:

a) allocate £1,384,353.56 from the Education and Young People’s Services
Capital Budget, being Kent County Council’s contribution towards the
priority school building scheme which has been agreed with the Education
Funding Agency (EFA), subject to any necessary additional works or
necessary variations.

b) The Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services in
consultation with the Cabinet for Education and Health Reform be
authorised to negotiate with the EFA as to the necessity and cost of any
additional work or variations identified, to ensure that any further
contribution is minimised. Any agreements will not exceed current
approved financial limits; and

c) The Executive Scheme of Delegation for Officers set out in
Appendix 2 Part 4 of the Constitution (and the directorate schemes of sub-
delegation made thereunder) provides the governance pathway for the
implementation of this decision by officers. In this instance the Director of
Property and Infrastructure Support is expected to be the nominated
Authority Representative within the relevant agreements and to enter into
variations as envisaged under the contracts.

Capital Funding Approval
(Item B2)

(Mr Cowan made a declaration of interest as he is a foster parent of a child that
attends one of the schools)

1. The Area Education Officer, South Kent, Mr Adams, and the Director of
Education Planning and Access, Mr Abbott, introduced a report that sets out the
allocation of capital funding to a number of school projects and sought the Cabinet
Committees support for the proposed decisions to be taken by the Cabinet Member
for Education and Health Reform for various Capital Programme projects.

2. Mr Adams, Mrs White and Mr Abbott, responded to questions by Members
which included the following:

e Mrs White advised that the Highways works at Tunstall CE Primary School
would commence in 23 July. This would include further works to culverts,
highways lighting and a road crossing. The abnormal costs [a building term for
costs outside the normal budget] entail the drainage works and foundation
works for the school. Mrs White advised that the contractors were currently on

Page 12



81.

site and the expected completion date was 16 March 2016 [included in the
contract].

e Mr Adams advised that there were significant capital pressures within the

budgets and addressing the local community’s needs that came with those
expansions, such as perception on traffic and congestion, added to those
pressures. The Highways Authority was a consultee in the school expansion
process and had a view on what would need to happen to allow a
development to be considered suitable, sustainable and deliverable. Those
requirements had to be factored into the budget.
Mr Adams explained that a piece of work was being carried out, with
colleagues in Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate, looking at all
school estates to identify which schools could be expanded and what issues
there might be in terms of physical infrastructure etc in achieving the
expansions. This work would identify where highways works were required, so
these could be costed in at an earlier stage, and be factored into requests for
developer contributions where appropriate.

e Mr Adams agreed to look at the issue of funding for highways improvements at
Green Park Community Primary School, Dover and discuss the matter with Mr
Cowan.

RESOLVED that:-
(a) the responses to questions by Members be noted; and

(b) the Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee endorsed
the decision to be taken by the Cabinet Member for Education and Health
Reform to approve the following capital projects, and allocate funding, from
the Education and Young People’s Services Capital Budget, of the
following amounts in order that the proposals may go ahead:

(i)

A further £2.3m for Tunstall CE Primary School, Swale.

A further £2.2m for Kings Hill Academy, Tonbridge & Malling.
£9m to the rebuild and expansion of Portal House School, Dover.
£1.4m to the expansion of Green Park Primary School, Dover.
£6m to the building of Finberry School, Ashford.

£2.5m to the expansion of The Judd School, Tonbridge & Malling.

~0 o0 oD

(ii) To expand Portal House School by 20 places from 1 September
2015 as part of the project to rebuild the school on its current site.

(iii) The Executive Scheme of Delegation for Officers set out in
Appendix 2 Part 4 of the Constitution (and the directorate schemes of sub-
delegation made thereunder) provides the governance pathway for the
implementation of this decision by officers. In this instance, the Director of
Property and Infrastructure Support to be the nominated Authority Representative
with the relevant agreements and to enter into variation as envisaged under the
contracts.

The proposed amalgamation of Murston Infant and Junior schools
(ltem B3)

Page 13



82.

1. The Cabinet Committee considered a report on the proposal to amalgamate
Murston Infant School and Murston Junior School by closing the current Infant and
Junior Schools and establishing a 1.FE, single Community Primary School and
maintained Nursery unit for children aged 3 and 11 years.

2. The Area Education Officer, Mrs White, advised that the report was for
information as the consultation was still in process and would conclude on 15 July
2015 and gave Members the opportunity to comment on the proposal. Mrs White
explained that if following consideration of the responses to the consultation if the
Cabinet Member agreed to issue a public notice, it was planned that the four week
notice period would be 11 September to 8 October 2015. Following the end of the
notice period, details of the proposal together with the consultation information and
Cabinet Member recommendation, would be forwarded to the Schools Adjudicator for
a determination.

3. Mrs White advised that to date: 32 responses had been received and were in
support of the proposal [a breakdown of 21 in support from the Infant school and 11
in support from the Junior school]; 2 undecided; and no objections had been
received. The Local Member, Mr Bowles, had also expressed his support.

4. The Chairman advised that he had attended the public meeting and said that
the Infant school was very positive regarding the Junior School.

5. Mrs White advised that a 2 Form Entry was not required at the school at this
present time as there were vacancies but the position may change if a proposed
housing development was realised in the future.

6. RESOLVED that the Education and Young People’'s Services Cabinet
Committee endorsed the decision to be taken by the Cabinet Member for
Education and Health Reform to amalgamate Murston Infant and Junior
schools following consideration of the results of the outcome of the
consultation and to:

(i) Issue a public notice to discontinue Murston Infant School and Murston
Junior School and establish a 1.5FE, single Community Primary school
and maintained Nursery unit on 1 September 2016.

And, subject to no objections being received to the public notice

(i) make recommendations to the Schools Adjudicator for determination for
implementation on 1 September 2016.

Closure of Furness School and Expansion of Broomhill Bank
(Iltem B4)

1. The Cabinet Member, Mr Gough, introduced a report that provided an update
to the Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee regarding the
closure of Furness School and the expansion of Broomhill Bank Special School on
the same site. He highlighted the information in paragraphs 1.1 and 1.3 regarding
the aim to deliver better SEN school provision in West Kent in accordance with the
SEND Strategy and the Commissioning Plan for Education by proceeding with the
closure of Furness Special School and a consultation to be undertaken for Broomhill
Bank Foundation Special School to expand onto the Furness School site with effect

Page 14



83.

from 1 September. He advised that the governing body were unanimous with this
proposal.

2. Members congratulated the decision, which they considered would guarantee
continuity. It was noted that parents were happy with the proposal for the
consultation.

3. The Area Education Officer, North Kent, Mr Watts, advised that following a
parents meeting, held at Broomhill Bank special school, there had been 26 requests
and 26 offers made for places of which 12 were parents from the existing Furness
School.

4. RESOLVED that:-
(a) the comments by Members be noted; and

(b) the update and the progress achieved in developing provision for the
future on the Furness site for pupils with autistic spectrum disorder needs
be noted.

Proposed alternations to Five Acre Wood School and Holmesdale Technology
College
(Item B5)

1. The Area Education Officer, West Kent, Mr Nehra, introduced a report on the
results of the public consultation on the proposed changes to Five Acre Wood School
(Maidstone) and Holmesdale Technology College (Tonbridge and Malling).

2. Mr Nehra advised that physiotherapists were employees of the National Health
Service. Mr Leeson agreed to provide an update report that would also include the
issue of commissioning speech therapy and language therapy, in the Autumn.

3. RESOLVED that the Education and Young People’'s Services Cabinet
Committee endorsed the decision to be taken by the Cabinet Member for
Education and Health Reform to issue a public notice to:

(i)

o Increase the designated number of places offered at Five Acre
Wood School, Boughton Lane, Maidstone ME15 9QF from 275 to
330 places for 4 January 2016

o Establish a Satellite provision at Holmesdale Technology College,
Malling Road, Snodland MEG 5HS for 70 students with moderate
to severe learning difficulties for 4 January 2016.

. Alter the lower age range at Five Acre Wood School, Boughton
Lane, Maidstone ME15 9QF to include nursery provision for 1
September 2016.

And, subject to no objections to the public notice not already considered:
(ii) implement the proposals according to the dates identified above
(iii)  allocate £495,000 from the Basic Need Budget

Page 15



84.

85.

(iv)  Authorise the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support in
consultation with the Director of Law and Governance to enter into any
necessary contracts/ agreements on behalf of the County Council

(v)  Authorise the Director of Property and Infrastructure Support to be the
nominated Authority Representative within the relevant agreements and
to enter into variations as envisaged under the contracts

Facing the Challenge
(Item B6)

1. The Market Engagement Team Manager, Mrs Jenden, introduced a report that
provided a detailed account of the back office procurement process and documented
the journey of the Customers Services (Contact Point and Digital Communications),
Finance, HR, ICT and EduKent procurement project which is part of Phase 1 of
Facing the Challenge.

2. The Chairman confirmed that further update reports would be submitted to
each Cabinet Committee meeting and between meetings when necessary.

3. The Director of Transformation, Mr Hallett and the Market Engagement Team
Manager, Ms Jenden, advised that nothing had changed with the information set out
on page 75, in paragraph 2.5.6, of the report. Mr Hallett advised that comparing in-
house with outhouse there was an independent value for money judgement between
the bidders in terms of the lots that they were bidding for and the internal comparator
ie what would happen if the contract was not allowed. He advised that the process
was robust and there would be a further report when the process was completed.
Mrs Jenden added that there were 2 bidders remaining CGl for Lot 1 and Agilisys Lot
3.

4, RESOLVED that the Education and Young People’s Cabinet Committee noted
and endorsed the progress of the procurement process to date and the next
steps.

The Local Authority, Academies and the implications of the Education and
Adoption Bill
(ltem C1)

1. The Cabinet Member, Mr Gough, introduced a report that provided an update
on the current position of academies in Kent, the work that the Education and Young
People’s Services undertook in respect of academies and the potential implications of
the key academy related elements of the Education and Adoption Bill.

2. Mr Gough referred to section 4 of the report headed “School Improvement”
and explained that as the expansion of schools moved from Primary to Secondary
the local authority would continue to work with academies on their expansion plans.
Members were reminded that following the Academies Act 2010 the powers of
intervention were moved to the Department for Education (DfE) with academies.

Page 16



86.

3. Mr Gough referred to the new measure for Ofsted of “coasting” schools which
was wide ranging. He considered that the definition of “coasting” was critically
important.

4. Mr Gough responded to questions by Members as follows:-

e A suggestion was made that the Cabinet Committee should receive
separate reporting for schools that were not run by the local authority.
Mr Leeson advised that the local authority adopted the approach that it
had the responsibility for all the children in Kent. The local authority
worked constructively with all academies in Kent and when academies
did not do well the local authority was able to voice concerns to the DfE.

e Mr Tear advised that the diocese wanted to encourage the local
authority to continue to engage with academy trusts on school
improvement. Mr Leeson stated that there had been issues with
academies run by national chains where there had not been sufficient
improvement support given to those academies, he gave the example
of Hextable. He suggested the way forward was to have smaller local
academy trusts. Strong schools could affect other schools to bring
about rapid improvement; he gave the examples of Swale, Stour and
Coastal that had worked with other schools not in their Trust. He
stressed that transferring to academy status did not mean automatically
becoming a better school. Kent could not afford for another school to
close.

e |t was suggested that a way to foster good relationships with academies
was to appoint local authority governors, which many academies
already did.

e Mr Gough advised that he considered that it would be quite a while
before all schools became Free schools or academies, but it had to be
accepted that there would be an increase.

e A comment was made that it was concerning that there was no space
for the local authority to influence what was on the school’s curriculum.

5. RESOLVED that the responses to questions by Members and the current
position and the issues identified in the report be noted.

Community Learning and Skills Annual Performance Report 2013/14
(Item C2)

1. The Head of Skills and Employability, Mrs Dunn, introduced a report that
explained the Community Learning and Skills (CLS) Performance Management
Framework and provided an overview of the outcomes of the service for 2013/14.
The Cabinet Member, Mr Hill, advised that he fully supported the report at a time
when the local authority was becoming the commissioning authority.

2. The Corporate Director, Mr Leeson, and Mrs Dunn responded to questions by
Members as follows:

e Mrs Dunn explained that the reason for the higher percentage of
females to males in the data could be due to the types of services on
offer. The CLS carried out a lot of research and tried to put on
programmes for learners needs and what Kent communities ask for.

Page 17



87.

Mrs Dunn advised that for every £1 received from the government the
CLS had to raise £2. She suggested that another reason may be that
the CLS did not offer engineering and maths. Mr Leeson said that there
was a trend for girls and women to participate more, whereas boys and
young men tended to drop out of training more from secondary age
onwards.

¢ A Member was pleased with the apprenticeships figures detailed in the
report and thanked Mrs Dunn and her Team for all their work.

e Mrs Dunn confirmed that the CLS worked with the Jobcentre providing
English and mathematics courses.

3. RESOLVED that responses to questions by Members and the CLS financial
(2014/15) and operational (academic year 2013/14) performance outcomes
and future strategic direction be noted.

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Training for Schools
(ltem C3)

1. The Head of Youth Justice and Safer Young Kent, Early Help and
Preventative Services, Mr Wilkinson, introduced a report that outlined key national
and local developments concerning Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) and the
safeguarding children within Kent schools. Mr Wilkinson highlighted key points in the
report explaining that this was a national issue. There had been numerous reports
written with many recommendations including Alexis Jay’s regarding the CSE in
Rotherham; Ann Coffey published “Real Voices” and Louise Casey’s review into
Rotherham MBC. There had been media attention on those national reports and
earlier in the year the Prime Minister in a statement said that this was a national
threat on the same lines as the issues on counterterrorism.

2. Mr Wilkinson advised that there were CSE training courses available at
multiagency professionals. During 2014-15 staff from 22 schools attended the
training, including schools most affected by Operation Lakeland. CSE training was
mandatory for frontline Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS). Officers within
EHPS had been trained to conduct the KSCB CSE classroom training. Many schools
had engaged in this training.

3. Mr Wilkinson noted comments and responded to questions by Members as
follows:

e A comment was made that 22 schools attending the training was not many out
of the total number of schools in Kent. It was hoped that this small number of
schools attending was not due to people thinking that “it couldn’t happen
here”.

e A suggestion was made, regarding paragraph 3.2 of the report that highlighted
points from the Coffey report regarding the public attitudes and negative
stereotypes towards children whom were sexually exploited and to address
this, the whole community needed to be involved and a key player to bring this
about was the local police, in a leadership role.

e Members commented that this was a good report and would be taken
seriously.

e It was suggested that it was important that the training was far reaching to
include every culture and agreed that this issue should remain a top priority.

Page 18



88.

4. The Corporate Director, Mr Leeson, advised that the schools were required to
ensure that their safeguarding and child protection leads were trained on a regular
basis on a yearly cycle and this was monitored to ensure that they did meet that
expectation. In the last year more than 2000 teachers in schools attended
safeguarding training for which CSE would have been some part.

5. RESOLVED that:-

a) the comments and responses to questions by Members and the report be
noted; and

b) a further report be submitted to this Cabinet Committee later in the year in
relation to the lessons learnt and recommendations of the Operation Lakeland
multi-agency review and the impact of the introduction of the multi-agency
Child Sexual Exploitation Team in Kent.

Virtual School Kent Update
(Item C4)

1. The Headteacher, Virtual School Kent (VSK), Mr Doran, introduced a report
and highlighted the following data on children in care’s outcomes, the direction of
travel in level 4 plus reading writing and mathematics combined over the last 3 years
there had been a 9% improvement in attainment and a 3% narrowing of the gap of
national outcomes, Kent had a significantly larger cohort than most local authorities.
He broke this down as follows; 14% rise in mathematics and a reduction in the gap of
8%. There was an 11% improvement in attainment in reading and 7% reduction in
the gap; and a 15% improvement in attainment in writing and a reduction of 7% in the
gap. The Key Stage 4 outcomes, GCSE examinations, the picture was in two parts;
(i) was the direction of travel in 2010 2013 was an 8.6% in improvement in attainment
with 5A*-C including English and Mathematics and reduced the gap with the national
by 5.9%. (ii) 2014 results. He explained that The Office of Qualifications and
Examinations Regulation (Ofqual) wrote to all Headteachers to say that 2014 results
were not comparable to previous results for multiple reasons including vocational
qualification equivalencies were downgraded and those children were far more
successful with modular vocational qualifications. The shift in weighting of certain
key examinations eg English GCSE moved the weighting of the final examination to
60% before it was 60% on the course work. There was also the introduction of the
first entry county for the GCSE qualifications.

2. Kent had a 1.4% downturn to 13% achieving 5A*-C including English and
Mathematics looking at the first entry this dropped to 8%. The drop for best entry was
line national for Children in Care. Nationally 3% of Children in Care were from an
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) background, the vast majority
were in care for just over 12 months. The year 11s cohort, 20% were UASC, nearly
seven times the national average. In terms of their literacy and English as an
additional language it was not possible to achieve 5A*-C including English and
mathematics.

3. Mr Doran stated that if the weighting was applied with Kent's outcomes that

pulled Kent in line with the national outcomes of 3%, Kent would have exceeded the
national outcomes.

Page 19



4. Mr Doran explained that the identification of NEETS UASC enable the
strengthening of the destination offer.

5. There had been case studies on the Pupil Premium, which identified positive
work being carried out across Kent schools on a child by child basis. He gave the
example of Leigh Academy that were doing work on managing feelings and
emotions.

6. Mr Doran explained that his Teams area of work had increased in
commissioning to extend support to 16-18 year olds in care in Kent, working closely
with the Skills and Employability Team and other services within Education and
Young People’s Services Directorate.

7. Mr Doran responded to questions by Members as follows:

e Mr Doran explained that VSK took over the Education Assessment
Service three years ago. That service was set up to support UASC and
to carry out their initial education assessment. At their peak they were
commissioned to carry out 18 education assessments per calendar
month at the highest point they were delivering 38 education
assessments per calendar month. Since June 24 until 7 July there had
been 102 arrivals, four times higher than the Education Assessment
Service had experienced before.

e A Member commented that there were concerns in Ramsgate too.

e A request was made for a picture of where UASC under 16 years old
were in school and where all the remaining UASC were, 16 to 18 years
old and beyond, to show the spread of achievements across the county.
It was advised that the landscape was changing rapidly and so different
to how it looked before. They would arrive at Milbank to be process
and orientated and then they would be placed from there elsewhere in
the County.

e A Member commented that it was difficult to have comparison with
UASC as it took time for those children to be assessed and once
assessed it took at least a year for them to settle them into school. He
considered that the results of Children in Care were good as they came
with many issues.

8. RESOLVED that:-

a) the comments and responses to questions by Members be noted;

b) the validated position on 2014 performance outcomes for Kent’s children in
care be noted; and

c) the work of the Virtual School Kent (VSK) with particular reference  to
post 16 developments be noted.

Page 20



89.

Progress Implementing the Troubled Families Programme
(Iltem C5)

1. The Cabinet Member, Mr Hill, introduced a report explaining that this was a
very important issue and top of the corporate and political agenda. And had been
pleased with the results of Phase 1 of the programme. It had been a major
achievement to turn around 100% of the families in that cohort in a new area of work.
Mr Hill read a statement from Louise Casey, Head of Troubled Families Programme
giving praise to the achievements of the Kent Team. He highlighted that there were
new challenges with the new cohort to be delivered with less funding, but this would
be delivered.

2. The Head of the Troubled Families Programme, Mr Weiss, highlighted key
points from the report advising that this programme was jointly governed by KCC at a
county level, led by the Leader, Mr Carter, and the Cabinet Member, Mr Hill; and at a
local level by all the borough and district councils. The Trouble Families was in two
phases. Phase 1, which has been the last three years and Phase 2, which was the
next five years. For Phase 1 2560 families had been turned round. The criteria was
to get children back into school, to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour and to get
members of the family that were unemployed, back into work. Kent had the third
highest number of turn round families in the country and in terms of returning people
back to work Kent had the second highest in the country. Phase 2 would be more
challenging with three times more families to be turned round, 8960 families. The
criteria had also broadened with a separate section on domestic violence, trying to
encourage people to manage their health problems, engaging parents where children
need early help, children in need or child protection.

3. Mr Leeson and Mr Weiss noted comments and responded to questions by
Members as follows:-

e Members congratulated the Team for all the work carried out to achieve
this success.

e Mr Weiss advised that the vast amount of families were identified through
notifications to Early Help, this could be through schools, Community
Safety Teams, Police or someone from the local community. If families did
not come forward the Team would look through the data and try to identify
families that way. He stated that there were very few resistant families
which included families who in the past had not wanted to cooperate
through Social Care or Social workers but had accepted intervention
through a family project worker. He considered that it was the relationship
that had been forged with those families that had made the difference.

e Mr Weiss advised that in Phase1 there were not the tools to track families
once they were turned around but very few families returned to the Team.
He agreed that it was important to understand that this was sustainable
and was the change meaningful. In Phase 2 families would be tracked for
a year and if a family started to have problems we or another agency would
reengage at the earliest time. Mr Leeson explained that when a notification
was received a Triage Team would look at the data to identify whether the
child or the family had been helped in the past, so that it would be obvious
when an Early Help notification was made that a family had or had not
previously been supported by the Troubled Families Programme.

Page 21



90.

91.

92.

e Mr Wiess advised that there were good links with the Department for Work
and Pensions and Job Centre Plus that had seconded staff into the
Programme and helped families onto a path back to work.

4, RESOLVED that comments and responses to questions by Members and the
success of the Troubled Families Programme in Phase 1 and the approach to
delivering the Expanded Programme in Phase 2 be noted.

Work Programme 2015
(Iltem C6)

1. A request was made for a report on how the NHS worked with the Education
and Young People’s Services Directorate to include a list of the commissioned
services and how they are monitored.

2. RESOLVED that, subject to the request detailed above being included, the
Work Programme for 2015 be noted.

Education and Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard
(Item D1)

1. The Corporate Director, Mr Leeson, introduced a report that monitored targets
and the milestones for each year up to 2018, set out in the Strategic Priority
Statement, Vision and Priorities for Improvement, and service business plans.

2. RESOLVED that the new Education and Young People’s Services
performance scorecard which had been designed to reflect the expanded
scope of the work of the Directorate be noted.

Ofsted Inspection Outcomes Update
(ltem D2)

1. The Corporate Director, Mr Leeson, introduced the report that summarised the
performance of Kent Schools in Ofsted inspections from 1 September 2014 to
June 2015.

2. Mr Leeson introduced the newly appointed Director of Quality and Standards,
Ms Gillian Cawley. Ms Cawley said that it was good to bring a positive report to her
first meeting. Some of the outcomes in the report were now improved and the target
of 82% had been met for this year. The percentage of schools requiring
improvement was down to 16% and the figure of school in Ofsted category was
below national averages at 2.5%. In terms of comparison to September 2014, when
Kent had 29 schools in category there were now 13, a significant reduction which
meant that 12249 children were in good or better schools.

3. Ms Cawley advised that the rate of improvement for those academies that
were judge to require improvement would be monitored and suggested that many
may be on their way to being judged good.

4. RESOLVED that response to a question and the information in the report be
noted.

Page 22



93.

94.

Free Early Education for Two Years Olds: Take Up
(Item D3)

1. The Head of Early Help (West Kent, 0-5 County Lead), Mr Fenton introduced
a report highlighting that there were 7000 eligible 2 year olds to take up a Free Early
Education place for 2 year olds. There were 10,000 places available at present.
Although the challenge had been met to get providers, more work needed to be
carried out to improve the take up of those places to meet the 70-70% target, the
take up was currently 56%.

2. Mr Fenton responded to questions by Members as follows:

e Members thanked Ms Gamby and Mr Fenton and their Team for all the work
undertaken.

e Members noted that £150k had been identified for promoting the scheme.

e A suggestion was made that by providing quality preschool provision children
should do better at school, this should be tracked. Mr Leeson advised that
91% of children were accessing good or better placements. This would be
tracked through to Early Year Foundation stage. This was one of the
narrowest gaps between Children in Care (CiC).

3. RESOLVED that:-
a) the comments and responses to questions by Members be noted; and

b) the actions taken to date and the next steps in promoting and supporting
the take up of Free Early Education by eligible two year olds and the report be
noted.

Special Educational Needs & Disability Strategy 2013-2016
(Item D4)

1. The Cabinet Member, Mr Gough, introduced a report with a summary of
progress implementing Kent's SEN and Disability (SEND) Strategy. He highlighted
section 4.9 of the report that detailed the work that continued for extra capacity both
at Special schools and units with mainstream schools to cope with an expanding
need while seeking to reduce the number of out of County placements. He then
referred to the implementation of the Children and Families Act and the challenge of
the Education, Health and Care Plan detailed in paragraphs 3.5 and 3.6. The Head
of SEN Assessment and Resources, Mrs Ely, and her Team were working to raise
the quality of family and children’s engagement and would form an important part of
the Education and Young People’s Services Directorate.

2. The Corporate Director, Mr Leeson, advised that this was one of the key
strategies. The local authority had a major responsibility regarding this but this was a
multiagency strategy. There were joint commissioning arrangements with Health and
Social Care that had to be right.

3. Kent agreed to help Ofsted carry out a pilot inspection of their new Framework

by inspecting Kent's SEND arrangements. The feedback was mostly positive
regarding the quality of our strategy and our approach to the Health and Care

Page 23



95.

planning process. The feedback was particularly positive regarding the engagement
with parents and the needs of their children; and what was required in the future.

4. Mrs Ely highlighted the contribution that had been made by the Kent Special
Schools and the leading role that they had to deliver the strategy, the outreach and
local inclusion Forum Teams which was the way that schools were providing support
to each other to increase the level of expertise and drive forward the changes,
mentioned in 4.12 and 4.15. Mrs Ely advised that this was a 4 year process.

5. Mr Gough and Mr Leeson respond to comments and questions by Members
as follows:
6. Mrs Crabtree congratulated Mrs Ely and her Team and commented that the

report did not fully convey the extent of the work that Mrs Ely and her Team had
carried out over the past year and half to ensure its success. She listed some of the
projects that the Team had delivered including; the local offer and a website.

7. RESOLVED that the progress delivering the Special Educational Needs
Disability Strategy be noted as follows:

(i) Significantly more children and young people with SEN in Kent are
receiving a better quality education and provision to meet their needs has
increased; and

(i) Emerging effective joint commissioning is improving services and we must
maximise further opportunities to address inequalities in access to health
services.

Future Provision of Secondary Education in Kent
(Item D5)

1. The Cabinet Member, Mr Gough, introduced a report highlighting various
points. Paragraphs 4.9 and 4.10 detailed the standards and performance achieved
by maintained Secondary schools and academies. He advised that flat cash
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) settlement would continue. There would be a
gradual acceleration of expansions for year 7 at present but this would pick up in
2020s. There were issues with post 16 funding. Mr Gough referred to pressures
where secondary schools were underperforming and the support that vulnerable
secondary schools would continue to receive to avoid closures like Oasis Academy
School and Chaucer Technology School, which had a considerable cost to pupils and
school staff.

2. The Corporate Director, Mr Leeson, advised that there was a need to deliver a
significant number of secondary school places in the forthcoming years; 20 forms of
entry in the next two years and 60 forms of entry in the succeeding years. A number
of those schools that may need to expand were having financial difficulties and some
were underperforming. Mr Leeson highlighted that 11 secondary schools were
vulnerable and would need additional resources. [An inadequate rated school cannot
be expanded]. This issue was being raised with the Education Funding Agency, to
pursue the ability to have more flexibility in the funding formula and the ability to
respond to what is envisaged as a short term problem for most of the schools to get
over a two year period of where an increasing financial difficulty would hamper their

Page 24



96.

effort to bring about improvement that was needed, so that they could expand and
provide additional places in the next two to three years.

3. The Director of Planning and Access, Mr Abbott, advised that KCC was
working with academies. There had been discussions with one academy and the
Education Funding Agency (EFA) about options on the formula that could give back
some flexibility, which was lost through national changes 2013, at no cost to the
government. This would apply to both maintained and academy schools. The
financial difficulties needed to be addressed before they escalated.

4. RESOLVED that the necessary actions taken to support ‘vulnerable’
Secondary schools to increase Secondary school capacity to meet the
demands of a growing Secondary school population detailed in the report be
noted.

Review of the Kent Commissioning Plan for Education 2015-19
(Iltem D6)

1. The Cabinet Member, Mr Gough, introduced a report that reviewed the
progress made since November 2014 and the achievement was sufficient places for
the September 2015 intake of pupils in Primary and secondary schools.

2. The Area Education Officer, South Kent, Mr Adams, advised that there had
been temporary school expansion put in place to ensure that every child had a school
place. He highlighted that there was a struggle in the North West of the County
because of Oasis Academy, Hextable closing.

3. RESOLVED that the progress achieved and the issues identified for further

development that will feature in the next version of the Commissioning Plan in
autumn 2015 be noted.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem A6

By: Mr R W Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform
Mr P J Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s Services
Mr P M Hill, OBE, Cabinet Member for Community Services

Mr P Leeson, Corporate Director for the Education and Young
People’s Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee —
18 September 2015
Subject: Verbal updates by the Cabinet Members and Corporate Director for

the Education and Young People’s Services portfolio

Classification: Unrestricted

The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is invited to note verbal
updates on the following issues:-

Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform
e Provisional GCSE and A Level Results

Corporate Director for the Education and Young People’s Services

¢ An update on the plan to deliver the Commissioned Service option for Community
Learning and Skills

e Schools results, both Primary and Secondary, plus the Early Years Foundation
Stage.

e Update on the latest Ofsted outcomes

e School places for all children starting Primary and Secondary school in September
2015

Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s Services
e Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) Update

Cabinet Member for Community Services
No items for this meeting

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem B1

From: Mr Roger Gough, Cabinet Member — Education and Health
Reform

Mr Patrick Leeson — Corporate Director — Education and Young
People’s Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Commitee - 18
September 2015
Subiject: Procurement of SEN Transport provision for Phase 1 Schools

Key decision — Expenditure or savings of > £1m — including if over several phases.
Procurement for Phase 1 is expected to be over £1m, with total
procurement of all Phases approximately £20m.

Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: None

Future Pathway of Paper: Cabinet Member for Decision

Summary: There is an opportunity to improve the quality and experience of leaners
accessing Special schools whilst reducing the cost to the local authority. This report
seeks Cabinet Committee endorsement for the award of contracts for the provision of
Special Educational Needs (SEN) Transport into three schools (identified as Phase
1) following a competitive tender process and in accordance with chosen evaluation
methodology stated in published Invitation to Tender. The decision will encompass
both the award for the initial contract term of three years, and if required for any of
the two potential extensions that may be invoked.

Members are advised that there will be no changes to transport policy or the
entittement of individual students as a result to endorsing this approach to
procurement.

Recommendation:

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or make recommendations
to the Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform on the decision for the
award of contracts for SEN Transport Provision in Phase 1 following completion of
the procurement process for the provision of SEN Transport provision on a single
school basis.

1. Introduction

1.1 SEN Transport is currently procured on a route by route basis. This report
seeks to introduce whole school contract awards so quality and consistency can
be improved whilst generating cost savings as contracts centre around a single
school site.

Page 29



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

KCC provides home to school transport for students with special educational
needs (SEN). In 2015/15 the council spend circa £20m on the provision of such
transport, transporting 4000+ students to over 100 establishments, through the
letting of over 1300 contracts.

SEN Transport was selected as one of the Phase 2 reviews of the Facing The
Challenge Transformation programme. In May 2015, the Outline Business Case
presented a number of opportunities for consideration, and it was agreed (TAG
03/03/15) that a small number of schools (up to four) would be selected to pilot
the opportunities around route optimisation and procurement to test viability.

There is no intention to review transport policy or pupil eligibility assessments
as current policy reflects best practice nationally.

Three schools were identified and agreed, and have been working closely with
both Public Transport and EYPS to ensure the needs of their pupils continue to
be considered whilst delivering an improved service for children, parents and
schools.

Body of the report

SEN Transport is currently procured on a route by route basis, with the Eligibility
team within EYPS (Fair Access) passing on to Public Transport the requirement
for SEN pupil transport.

This procurement supports the existing SEN Transport Policy. There is no
change to any policy or eligibility criteria.

Route optimisation is assessed by the Transport Planning team on a four year
cycle (based on current route procurement). By using GIS and working
alongside the schools to ensure pupils needs continue to be met, new routes
have been identified into the three Phase 1 schools which reduce vehicle
numbers whilst maintaining (or reducing where possible) journey times. It is
important to note that route optimisation outputs are endorsed by the school, to
ensure that childrens needs are continued to be met.

The new procurement for Phase 1 will not be on a route by route basis but will
be based on a whole school network, with a single provider for each school.
This is a step change in the delivery of SEN Transport and the council is
seeking to work with the market, to develope new service standards and
improved value for money.

The project is seeking to achieve multiple benefits including potential financial
savings for the local authority, as well as improvements to service and
consistency for both schools and families by providing a single accountable
provider per school.

Contractual compliance will still be critical to any award, and Public Transport
will continue to monitor compliance during the life of the contract.

Page 30



2.7

2.8

2.9

This procurement includes a series of market briefings and engagement to
support local Kent business in continuing to engage our SEN Transport
provision

The schools in scope for Phase 1 are: St Nicholas School, Ifield School and
Grange Park School, including any associated colleges and units.

It is recognised that communication to parents and schools is critical in the
success of this project.

2.10 The headteachers at the schools in scope have been engaged, and are clear on

2.1

212

2.13

3.1

3.2

41

the project, its aims and the plan for delivery. The schools have been working
closely with Public Transport to ensure that route optimisation work takes into
account the needs of their pupils, and all have been asked to endorse any
changes made, to ensure that they are clear and supportive of changes made
to individual routes. A presentation has been given to the Kent Association of
Special Schools, and ongoing face to face meetings are planned with the
schools throughout the procurement process and to ensure that contract
mobilisation supports the schools through any changes to service provision.

Each school has also supported parent communications, with joint letters being
sent to all affected parents (distributed via the schools). A specific email
address and telephone number have been set up for parents to contact public
transport to discuss any changes to their provision. The schools have also
invited the Public Transport team to attend parents evenings, and the team
have attended summer parents evenings at the three schools. They will also be
attending parents evenings in September, and will be following up initial letters
with parents to ensure communication is consistent and constant throughout the
procurement process.

An extended mobilisation period has been allowed for in the implementation
plan, to ensure that new operators are given the opportunity to meet with both
schools and parents. The mobilisation plan will be worked up jointly with the
schools to ensure a joined up approach to managing the contractor.

It is envisaged that the new contract award will take place following the Easter
holidays, April 2016.

Financial Implications

The proposed contract spend across these three schools will be over £1m. The
current cost of SEN Transport provision into these schools is £2million. New
contracts will be awarded on a three year basis, with a two year extension
period.

There is potential to secure financial savings through these new contracts,
whilst improving the quality of service to families.

Legal implications

A transparent and accountable procurement process will be used to select the
providers. Legal will be engaged alongside the procurement team to support the

Page 31



contract award.

5. Equalities implications

5.1  Please refer to the EQIA initial assessment.

5.2 There is no change to any policy or eligibility criteria.

6. Other corporate implications

6.1  This procurement has implications on both EYPS in terms of any financial
impact it may have, and Growth, Environment & Transport in terms of service
delivery.

7. Governance

7.1 The Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services will be the
delegated officer under the Officer Scheme of Delegation.

8. Conclusions

8.1 A robust procurement process is being undertaken to identify providers for a
single provider school contract for SEN Transport provision. There is potential
to secure financial savings through the new contract and ensure that the
needs of vulnerable children continue to be met by the local authority.

9. Recommendation:

9.1 The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or make
recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform on
the decision for the award of contracts for SEN Transport Provision in Phase 1
following completion of the procurement process for the provision of SEN
Transport provision on a single school basis.

10. Background Documents
10.1 FED list submission

11. Contact details

Report Author: Penny Pemberton Relevant Director: Patrick Leeson

Delivery Manager, Growth Environment & | Corporate Director, Education and Young
Transprt People’s Services

Telephone number 03000 416561 Telephone number 03000 416384

Email address penny.pemberton@kent.gov.uk | Email address: Patrick.leeson@kent.gov.uk

Page 32




Agenda ltem B2

From: Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s Services
Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform
Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community Services

Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s
Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee —
18 September 2015

Subject: Early Help and Preventative Services Commissioning Intentions
for 2016-17

Future Pathway of Paper: Corporate Board - 28 September and Cabinet -12 October

Electoral Division: All

Summary: Early Help and Preventative Services hold a significant range of contractual
and grant arrangements which are being re-assessed to ensure a flexible and
integrated model of support is in place which achieves the best outcomes for children
and young people and the most efficient use of resources.

The report outlines the proposals for future commissioning intentions, central to which is
the alignment of approaches with Public Health to ensure the maximum utilisation of
resources and integrated approaches to service delivery.

Recommendation:

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or make recommendations to
the Cabinet Members for Specialist Children’s Services on the proposed decision to
proceed with the outlined commissioning intentions, and to re-commission Early Help
services in 2016.

1. Introduction and background

1.1 The role of Early Help and Preventative Services is to deliver effective early help
and prevention to achieve improved outcomes for vulnerable children and families
and reduce demand for social care services. The key outcomes we aim to address
are listed in the Education and Young People’s Services document Vision and
Priorities for Improvement. They are to:

¢ Reduce the need for statutory social care and provide more effective support for
children and young people on the edge of care so that there are fewer numbers
of children in care, child protection cases and children in need

e Increase the numbers of children and young people who are stepped down
safely from social care and who are not re-referred

Page 33



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Increase the use of the Kent Family Support Framework (KFSF), formerly the
CAF, and more successful outcomes as a result of KFSF interventions

Reduce the days lost to education through exclusions and absence, and in the
number of permanent exclusions and rates of persistent absence from school
Reduce youth crime, re-offending and anti-social behaviour

Reduce the number of young people who are NEET, (not in education,
employment or training) and improve their participation in learning and training to
age 18

Improve the readiness for school by vulnerable children at age 5

Improve participation in 14-19 vocational pathways including increased take up
on employment with training, apprenticeships and traineeships by vulnerable
groups

Reduce substance misuse and teenage pregnancy

Increase breast feeding and reductions in smoking by pregnant women and
mothers

Improve resilience and well-being for children and young people and reduce
mental and behavioural problems and the high levels of demand for CAMHS
services.

Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS) currently hold approximately 100
contractual and grant agreements with external providers to deliver services to
children, young people and their families, which include legacy arrangements
with a range of organisations.

EHPS play an important part in the support and recovery of children, young people
and families who have experienced adverse situations or who have needed to be
within statutory social care provision but are ready to move on with their lives with
support.

To ensure positive health, welfare and educational outcomes are achieved and
efficiencies are realised there is now a need to re-assess commissioning
arrangements. This will ensure a more flexible model of support, comprising both
in-house provision and support from the voluntary sector providers, which will
provide a holistic Early Help and Preventative Service offer to children and families
in Kent. The list of KCC'’s strategic outcomes is available as Appendix 1.

In order to inform future commissioning intentions a diagnostic report was
produced which summarises the findings of the EHPS commissioning analysis
phase. Itincludes needs analysis, the feedback from stakeholder workshops,
consultation with young people and wider data analysis. The key findings from the
diagnostic report underpin the recommendations for future commissioning
intentions contained within this report.

EHPS have a clear role to play in ensuring the delivery of KCC’s strategic
objectives as outlined in the KCC Vision. It is important to recognise the
strategic significance of the commissioning framework, the Care Act, the
Emotional Health and Well-being Strategy and the Early Help Three Year Plan in
achieving KCC'’s vision.

In order to respond to the challenge of how to efficiently and effectively

commission for Kent’s strategic outcomes for children, young people and families
this report sets out proposals to align our commissioning approaches for EHPS

Page 34



1.8

1.9

2.1

with Public Health. This is with a particular focus on Emotional Health and
Wellbeing provision. The needs analysis for the Emotional Health and Wellbeing
Strategy and the Early Help and Preventative Services diagnostic both highlighted
a need for additional resources to improve emotional health and wellbeing. In
addition, referral patterns indicate that Child and Family Emotional Health and
Wellbeing issues are key reasons for referrals across internal and external
services. Moreover, our current Emotional and Mental Health provision does not
provide sufficient support and advice to schools to assist them to manage
demand. In addition, children with higher level needs who do not have a
diagnosed mental health condition are currently unable to access lower level
support.

This report includes proposals for phased commissioning and outlines our current
commissioning arrangements, the need for change and proposals for future
commissioning.

There are no proposals to pool budgets with Public Health, but rather to align
commissioning practice to ensure services and process are more joined up and
able to work more efficiently to realise positive outcomes.

EHPS/Public Health

@
Specification

What

are we

aligning
Early Help and Preventative Services - Current Commissioning
Arrangements

The majority of existing contractual and grant arrangements date from 2012-2013
and predate the formation of the EHPS division. As such a number of contracts
duplicate each other, and duplicate with internal services, and were due to end at
different times. The original specifications do not reflect new referral pathway

Page 35



2.2

2.3

2.4

requirements and are over prescriptive about tiers of need rather than the needs of
the child and the outcomes we expect.

Contracts and performance have been evaluated as part of the commissioning
cycle. Where appropriate amendments have been made to ensure services are
accessible across the continuum and contract end dates are coherently aligned.
However, in order to better manage demand, whilst also supporting the families
receiving statutory social care, there is a clear need to change the existing
arrangements. We aim to ensure that we reach and support our most vulnerable
communities, and that targeted and intensive services can also be delivered in
universal settings, or the family home, and that a whole family approach is
available to the right families. A table of existing externally commissioned services
can be found in Appendix 2.

The proposed future commissioning intentions for Early Help and Preventative
Services have been informed by a diagnostic report. This report follows the
approach laid out in KCC’s Commissioning Framework and comprises needs
analysis, community profiling, feedback from stakeholder workshops, consultation
with young people and wider data analysis.

The full diagnostic report is attached as Appendix 3; the key findings are
summarised below:

A large proportion of the overall need is concentrated in specific
communities

Many high risk groups are concentrated within specific socially and economically
deprived communities, both geographic and demographic. Analysis shows that
many of these children and young people are known to more than one agency
and often come from the same families.

The key issue identified is the need to address emotional health and well-
being

Key characteristics of families requiring early help are (in no particular order)
behavioural difficulties, educational and developmental issues (including school
non-attendance), poor relationships within families, parenting issues, domestic
abuse (including child perpetrators), housing and financial issues and substance
misuse;

A large number of families are affected by two or more of these factors with some
co-occurring factors well evidenced (e.g. the “Toxic Trio” of domestic abuse,
mental ill health and substance misuse);

A holistic approach to identify underlying causal factors, not only the presenting
symptomatic problems is key to improving outcomes; and

Some parental factors (including substance misuse, mental iliness or disabilities)
can lead to children and young people becoming Young Carers.

These findings are consistent with a whole family approach to working with
children, young people and their families.
There is support for better utilising localised family and community

capacity in the wider preventative agenda, such as -:

Page 36



3.1

3.2

Community assets such as people, places and organisations like clubs, arts,
culture and sport;

Social enterprises, the wider Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) and local
businesses (particularly to remove any perceived stigma attached to statutory
services); and

Engaging users in the provision of services e.g. expanding the use of volunteers
and mentors within services, or enabling children to mentor at school.

This finding supports the current direction of travel to enable the role of
communities in creating positive outcomes and by using local knowledge to
inform local solutions. It suggests that local, smaller scale resources offering
social value be considered in the commissioning of external services, such as
through a localised commissioning approach.

Proposed future options — How we intend to do it

Building upon the findings from the diagnostic report we are proposing to
change the model of services to enable KCC’s vision and strategic outcomes
to be realised.

The diagnostic report revealed that the most prevalent characteristic is the need
to address emotional health and well-being needs. The commissioning model
proposed will align commissioning approaches much more closely with Public
Health to ensure an integrated approach to emotional health and well-being
provision.

3.3 Building upon the findings of the diagnostic exercise, proposals have been

developed to rationalise commissioning practice and commission services under
three categories. The table below illustrates how the proposed commissioning
model will differ to existing arrangements:

What will be different

How it is now

How it will be

Similar services delivering a similar offer-
e.g.

Family Intervention Project workers and
Intensive Family Support workers
Current model is not clear, with too many
low level ‘single’ need services and
therefore lots of changes and process for
the child/family. This is also inefficient
Most are focused on ‘intervention’ as a
first approach- which can encourage
dependency

Not enough focus is on supporting
engagement and retention to prevent our
most vulnerable children and young
people from disengaging

Micro and small VCS providers have
little opportunities to play a role

There is not a strategic approach to local
commissioning and local performance

New services will focus on the whole child
and whole family- recognising that issues
don’t occur in isolation

Expands approaches to building resilience
and reducing dependency

Focuses on the child’s need wherever
they are in the continuum of support
Using intelligence data, proactively focus
services around those families most at
risk from the outset, using open access
and community settings to deliver quality,
targeted services

Will have expectations that all providers
have the skills and experience to identify
and manage issues such as CSE, NEET,
DV, Substance misuse and EHWB
Prevent problems from escalating, provide
support to recover or tackle early signs of
relapse for those most vulnerable

Page 37




¢ Model is not flexible enough to support ¢ Adds value and capacity to existing and
all children regardless of status and planned Preventative services both within
across the continuum KCC and the districts

e Model is not responsive enough to e Provides local commissioning
changes in demand opportunities to explore innovation and

¢ Model does not encourage innovation support the micro and small VCS

e Does not have sufficient rigour around e Ensures good information sharing,
disengagement, relapse and recovery partnership work and a reduction in

duplication and waiting lists

4. The proposed model
4.1 The intention is to commission support aligned to the following four priorities:

a) Youth Offer for vulnerable communities and Young Carers. There is a clear
requirement to meet the statutory requirements for support for young carers as outlined
in the Care Act. It is also recognised that the youth offer has a critical role to play in
strengthening universal services and support for young people in order to better
manage demand and reduce escalation. Youth services deliver at a critical stage for
young people as they develop. At their core, youth services address the complex
personal and social needs for children and young people

b) Emotional Health and Well-being. The diagnostic report has revealed Emotional
Health and Well-being as the key issue to be addressed and the impact of family
emotional health issues upon the child is well evidenced. The intention is to commission
holistic services that are able to provide EHWB support, whilst easing the increasing
pressure for CAMHS resources. To do so, KCC will integrate Emotional Health and
Wellbeing services with Early Help and Preventative Services to provide a coherent and
collaborative approach

c) Family Support and Parenting (to include vulnerable adolescents, NEET and
Troubled Families). Based on the diagnostic report the rationale is that flexible,
innovative and holistic family focused responses will be required to ensure engagement
and to prevent risks escalating. Services commissioned will be responsive to Domestic
Abuse, CSE, Substance Misuse and NEETS. This category will support Phase two of
Kent's Troubled Families offer and build on the existing Family Intervention models in
place.

d) Embedded within these categories is the creation of a Local Grants programme,
which will enable local, smaller scale providers offering social value to be procured via a
local commissioning approach. It is hoped that these grants will be embedded within the
District Local Children’s partnership groups and aligned with key outcomes set out in
the Children and Young People’s plan. KCC is currently seeking to align existing
Troubled Families grants within this proposal. This would result in a £1 million local
grant offer. The implementation date proposed for this grant is April 2016.

4.2 The intention is to commission:

Service Value Number of separate Start Date | Phase
arrangements

Youth offgr for vulnerable | £1.2m 12 district Ipts April 2016 One

communities 1 county wide contract

Young Carers £400,000

Page 38




Emotional Health and 1 county wide arrangement October

. . £1.2m Two
Wellbeing service 2016
FIP plus ( Family and . October
Parenting) £3.6m 4 area contracts totalling £3.6m 2016 Two

12 grant programmes integrated | April 2016 One

Local Grants Programme | £1m with Troubled families

Total £7.4m

.....

Early Halp Notification Arpas

1 ] Kec pistrices

Wit : 4 Family & Parents Lots (EHN Arsas)
N worin 12 Youth Contrscts (Districts)
East 12 Grant Pots (Districts)
1 Young Carers Contract {Countywide)
Btk 1 Educational Heslth & Wellbeing Contract [Countywide) o s e B e i :.—'H
B r : S

4.3 The intention is that services would be commissioned for a three year period, with
an option to extend for a further year, if desirable. Grants would be awarded on a
yearly basis with opportunities throughout each year.

Page 39



The rationale for this approach is shown in the table below:

Youth offer for vulnerable | Emotional Health and | Family Support and
communities and Young | Well-being Parenting

Carers

One contract to ensure | One contract to ensure Four contracts able to flex to

consistent offer across county
and to ensure compliance with
the Care Act

district

Twelve contracts to

consistent offer across
county.

This contract would form
part of the new Emotional

meet varying need across
areas

Need to sustain commitment
to Troubled Families

enable youth support
flexibly commissioned to meet
district need

to be | Health & Wellbeing and
CAMHS model from

October 2016

Local Grant Programme

Provision of grant will enable
support for
voluntary sector organisations

micro and small
voluntary sector
organisations

Provision of grant will enable
support to micro and small

4.4

4.5

An emphasis on a whole family approach is central to these proposals and will
enable flexible use of resources to support emotional health and well-being and
family support.

To ensure consistency and a seamless transition to new services a phased
commissioning approach is being recommended. See appendix 4 for the proposed
phase procurement timeline. Phase one will focus on the commissioning of Youth
Services and Young Carers services and the grant process, Phase Two will focus
on emotional health and well-being provision and family support and parenting.

To enable this phased approach to commissioning to take place it will require
some existing commissioned services to be extended for a further 6 months from
April 2016 when their existing contracts expire.

4.6 The rationale for this is that Young Carers and Youth contracts are relatively

discrete and therefore KCC will be able to move forward with market engagement
and procurement within Phase one. A dynamic purchasing system is in place for
commissioning Youth Services and can be utilised swiftly for this exercise. In
addition there is a clear need to ensure compliance with the Care Act as this
places a requirement on local authorities to identify young carers and provides
young carers with an entitlement to a carer's assessment. It is critical that this is
factored in to the development of new service specifications as soon as possible.
In addition, a phased approach is likely to be welcomed by the market who will
need sufficient time to respond to this new approach.

4.7 Approximately 20% of the caseload of externally commissioned services is

comprised of step-down cases from social care. By adopting a phased approach
to commissioning, with contracts being extended for a 6 month period, it would
enable sufficient capacity to be in place to manage these levels of demand, while
the new Early Help external offer was being commissioned.

Page 40




5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

Implications
Financial Implications

It is proposed that the budget will reduce from £8.5 million to £7.4 million for
commissioning Early Help services for 2016-17. It is on this basis that we intend to
move forward with 3 year commissioning, informed by a review of impact,
outcomes and overall budget in 2016-17. A phased commissioning approach is
likely to necessitate the extension of some existing EHPS contracts until the end of
September 2016. This will incur financial costs which will need to be offset against
the commissioning budget for 2016-17.

Impact on existing services

Although grant funding is part of the overall framework and we are committed to
ensuring that the micro and small VCS providers are able to access wider
opportunities for local delivery, it is inevitable that some current arrangements may
cease in March 2016.

There are potential legal implications associated with these proposals. TUPE
may present as a factor to be addressed as part of the procurement process.
Commissioning processes will be open, transparent and fair and will adhere to
the KCC transparency code.

The 2008 Education and Skills Act (ESA 2008) gives local authorities the duty to
promote participation in education, employment and training (EET) for young
people. KCC intends to develop and strengthen the systemic response for young
people who are not in education, employment and training (NEET). This is
intended to ensure that there is ‘no wrong door’ for these vulnerable young people,
and to improve and enhance the ability to identify the needs of young people, set
realistic expectations and develop achievable goals. Research tells us that young
people who are NEET are likely to have other significant issues that would require
additional and intensive support as part of any participation work. Therefore, as
part of these commissioning intentions, and with particular reference to our work
with adolescents, we will expect that our new services have sufficient experience
and trained staff to provide participation support as part of a wider package of
support.

An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken on the proposed
changes to externally commissioned EHPS services. As EHPS will be in place
via the new “offer” it was considered that groups with protected characteristics
would not be adversely disadvantaged by the proposals.

The proposals outlined in this report have been welcomed by Public Health, as it
enables closer alignment between EHPS and Public Health to achieve shared
outcomes for children, young people and families.

There are implications for the County’s property portfolio within these intentions. A
small number of our current external youth arrangements have contracts which
link them to KCC property arrangements. These have been in place to provide a
complimentary offer to the internal youth hubs and to ensure that there is good
coverage of services. KCC envisions that some of these arrangements may need
to continue.

Page 41



5.8

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

to

6.6

6.7

It is likely that the Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s Services
and the Director for Early help and Preventative Services will inherit the main
delegations via the Officer Scheme of Delegation.

Conclusions

As current contractual and grant funding arrangements relating to existing
externally commissioned Early Help services are nearing their end date, the
opportunity has arisen to re-assess commissioning arrangements to ensure
efficiencies are achieved and positive outcomes are delivered for children, young
people and families.

The Early Help and Preventative Service commissioning intentions outlined within
this report are intended to complement existing KCC Early Help Service provision
and provide a holistic EHPS “offer” across the County. This will provide
appropriate support which is accessible across the tiers of need from universal
open access support, targeted support up to specialist support. Central to this is
the need to strengthen targeted services within Universal settings, enabling
additional, intensive and specialist services to be available at the right time and
place for the right families. Central to the proposed commissioning approach is the
closer alignment of Public Health and Early Help and Preventative Services to
ensure shared outcomes are realised.

The proposals build upon the key findings from the EHPS diagnostic report.

The proposed budget for externally commissioned EHPS for 2016/17 is £7.4
million.

It is recommended that services be commissioned for three years, with the option
extend for a further year.

Services are to be commissioned within four categories:

Youth offer for vulnerable communities and Young Carers Service - £1.8
million 2016/17 funding — 1 county wide young carers contract — 12 district youth
service contracts and contribution to a Local Grants Programme.

Emotional Health and Well-being - £1.2 million 2016/17 — 1 county wide contract

Family Support and Parenting - £3.8 million 2016/17 — 4 area contracts and
contribution to a Local Grants Programme.

Embedded within these categories is the creation of a Local Grants programme -
£1m, which will enable local, smaller scale providers offering social value to be
procured via a local commissioning approach. It is hoped that these grants will be
embedded within the local children’s partnership groups and aligned with key
outcomes set out in the Children and Young People’s plan.

A phased approach to commissioning is proposed; with Young Carers and Youth

Service provision forming Phase one. The intention is that these new services and
the local grant will be in place for April 2016

Page 42



6.8 Family Support and Parenting and Emotional Health and Well-being services
will form Phase two. The intention is that new services will be in place for October
2016.

6.9 As part of the phased approach permission is being sought to extend existing

EHPS externally commissioned service contracts (with the exception of Youth and

Young Carer contracts) for an additional 6 months until the end of September

2016. Permission is being sought to end existing grant funding arrangements at

the end of March 2016.

7. Recommendation

The Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and endorse or make recommendations to
the Cabinet Members for Specialist Children’s Services on the proposed decision to
proceed with the outlined commissioning intentions, and to re-commission Early Help

services in 2016.

8. Background Documents

8.1

Education and Young People’s Services Vision and Priorities for Improvement

Early Help and Preventative Services Prospectus
The way ahead-Kent's Emotional Wellbeing Strategy

Appendices

KCC'’s strategic outcomes (Appendix 1)
Existing EHPS contracts (Appendix 2)
Diagnostic report (Appendix 3)
Procurement timeline (Appendix 4)

9. Contact details

Report Author:
Name and title:

Telephone number:

Email address:

Relevant Director:
Name and title:

Telephone number:

Email address:

Relevant Director:
Name and title:

Telephone number:

Email address:

Jo Hook, Julie Street

Jo Hook, Commissioning Manager

Julie Street. Commissioning Officer

03000 416266 / 03000 416737
Joanna.Hook@kent.gov.uk Julie.Street@kent.gov.uk

Florence Kroll

Florence Kroll, Director of Early Help and Preventative Services
03000 416362

Florence.Kroll@kent.gov.uk

Patrick Leeson

Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director of Education and Young
People’s Services

03000 416384

Patrick.leeson@kent.gov.uk

Page 43



mailto:Joanna.Hook@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Julie.Street@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Gy obed

Dur Vision:

Our focus is on improving lives by casuring that every pound spent in Kent is
delivering better outcomes for Kent's residents, communities and businesses

Strotegic Outcome

Children and young people in
Kt get the beot start mn life

i,
Supporting Outcomes

- Kena's comumunities are resilient and
provide strong and safe ermdilonments
to successhully rmise chikdren and
young poople

=We keep vulnerable familes out
of crisis and more children amd young
people out of KOC care

= The attainment gap between
disadvantaged young people and
their PecTs Continues 1o close

= All children, inespective of
background, are ready for school
atage 5

=Childeen and young people hane
betmer physical and mental health

= Al children and young peopls are
engaged, thrive and achsave thew
potential theough academic and
vocationasl education

« Kent young people are confident
and ambitious with chobces and
access o work, education and
training oppoftunties

Strategic Dutconve

Kent commuinities feel the Senefits
of ecomormic growth by bein g
in-work, healtiny and enjoying

a good quality of liie

i,

Supporting Outcomes

= Pleysical and mental health is

improved by supporting people 1o
take more responsibility for their cwmn
health and wellbeing

= Kent business growth s susppporoed
by hawing access 1o a well skilled
local workioece with improved
transport, beaadband and necessary
infrastrsciun

= Al Kents comenunites benel Fom

eoonomac groswth and lower levels of
deprivation

= Kent residents enjoy a good guality
of life, and more people benefit fro
greater socal, cultural and sporting
oppartunities

=g wuppart well planned housing
growth o Kent residents can Fagfin
the horme of their choice

* Ko ph:.r::ﬁl and nil:l.ni|

Dur Pusiness Plan Priorities:
The cross cutting prirzdes that will help deliver the supporting outcomes

Our Approach:

Strategic Outcome
Olcder and vulnerable residents ane
safe and supported with chedees to

T independenthy

.
Supporting Outcomes

= Those with long-tenm conditicns
ae supported 1o manage their
conditions through acoess 1o good
quaality care and suppoart

= Peopie with mental health sues
and dementa are assessad and
treated earker and ane supported o
v vl

= Fasnalics and carers of vulnerable
ard nHl:'r pﬂ:lph: ]'lq'u-n acosss o
the adhace, information and
support they need
=Cider and vulneable residents
feel sodially induded

= Maone people receive qualisy care
at hame avoiding unnecesiary
admirssions to hospital snd care
homes

= The health and social care systemn
wearks together to deliver high
quality cormmamity services

= Residents hawve greater choice and

conittol over the health and soclal
cane servioes they receive

The way we want to work as a council to deliver these outcomes



Appendix 1

Keep all Children
and Young
People Safe

U

)

Q

l%omote the
RRalth and
Wellbeing of all
Children and
Young People

Raise the
Educational
Achievement of

Reduced need for statutory social care and more effective support for children
and young people on the edge of care so that there are reduced numbers of
children in care, child protection cases and children in need

Increased numbers of children and young people who are stepped down safely
from social care who are not re-referred

Increases use of the Kent Family Support Framework and more successful
outcomes as a result of KFSF interventions

Improved educational attainment outcomes and closing of attainment gaps at
all ages

Reductions in days lost to education through exclusions and absence and in the
number of permanent exclusions and rates of persistent absence from school
Reduction in youth crime, re-offending and anti-social behaviour

educations in substance misuse and teenage pregnancy

Reduced NEETs and improved participation in learning and training to age 18

Improved readiness for school aby vulnerable children at age 5

Public Health Advice on health of the
population
Increase levels of childhood vaccination

(NHS England lead responsibility — KCC supported)

Reduction in adult substance misuse
Reduce under 18 hospital admissions due
to alcohol

Reduce levels of drug taking and use of
legal highs

Reducing levels of self-harm and suicide
rates

Increasing emotional resilience in families
and young people

Increase levels of breastfeeding

Increase physical activity in young people
Reduce levels of tooth decay

Reduce smoking prevalence at age 15
Reduce smoking prevalence for women
smoking at time of delivery

Reduce levels of excess weight in children
Reduce levels of teenage pregnancy



Appendix 1

all Children and
Young People

Equip all Young
People To Take a
Positive Role in
Their
Community

Ly obed

Improved participation in 14-19 vocational pathways including increased take
up of employment with training, apprenticeships and traineeships by vulnerable
groups

Increase breast feeding and reductions in smoking by pregnant women and
mothers

Improved resilience and well-being for children and young people with reduced
mental and behavioural problems and
less demand for CAMHS services



This page is intentionally left blank



61 obed

Appendix 2

Name of Service

Targeting

15/16 Cost

Expiry Date

Intensive Family Support Workers

Working with families to significantly reduce the risks they face and enable them to thrive
with no/minimal ongoing support once the intervention has ended

£1,105,019.14

31 March 2016

Adolescent Support Workers

Working extensively with vulnerable young people to build protective factors and
increase their resilience through a personalised programme of support and challenge

£884,124.80

31 March 2016

Domestic Abuse

Working with children and young people to acknowledge and understand their
experiences of domestic abuse and help prevent them becoming perpetrators or victims
of domestic abuse in the future

£130,237.60

31 March 2016

* 0-25 Early Help Support

Families with complex needs living in challenging circumstances which make it difficult to
manage situations and relationships

£689,807.25

31 March 2016

Family Mediation

Working with families experiencing emotional and for relationship difficulties which are
negatively impacting on children and young people in the family. Have one or more
other risk factors (see criteria)

£227,333.32

31 March 2016

*Young Carers

Working with young carers and their families to provide individual support to young
carers that is geared towards meeting their individual needs and aspirations. Also
provision of a more generic offer to young carers requiring generalised support,
guidance and assistance with engaging local community activities and organisations

£319,038.50

31 March 2016

Parenting

Providing evidence based parenting programmes for mothers, fathers and carers which
specifically aim to help them develop “good enough” parenting skills

£449,966.20

31 March 2016

FIP

Provide a persistent, assertive and supportive approach for whole families. Offering
practical hands-on support with a focus on family function

£859,578.00

31 March 2016

FIP Light

Offering practical hands-on support with a focus on family function; with an assertive and
persistent approach

£734,412.00

31 March 2016

Promoting Participation

Promoting Participation services for young people at risk of becoming NEET (15-18
years) and those with Learning Disabilities (up to 25 years)

£1,105,001.00

31 March 2016

Youth Services*

Universal and open access.

£1,417,397.00

31 March 2016

* Not for extension, planned as part of phase 1 commissioning.




This page is intentionally left blank



Early Help & Preventative Services
(EHPS) Commissioning

Analyse Phase: Executive Summary
and Diagnostic Report

July 2015

pdditional

d\'{\O“a" needs mg
universal ang
cted serviceg

)
County e 4
Council

kent.gow. uk




Contents

EXECULIVE SUMMAIY ...t i e ettt e e e eae e e e PAQES V- X

(D= To T [0 1= A [odl o= o Yo o A 13
(R 1] 4 Lo 1V [o3 1T 1 o E PP P PP PP P PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPN 13
P = - Tod (o o101 s Lo oS PTTRSSRPP 13
3. Approach to ‘AnalySe’ PhaSe ... 16
v/ =10 o Fo 1=y S ToTo ] o 11 o o [P RUUPPPPPRTRR 17
5. Diagnostic report qUESTION SUMMAITES ......cooviiiiiiiiiiiee e eeeeeeiiie e e e e e 18

5.1 What are the challenges we are seeking t0 addreSS? .......ooouuiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 18
5.2  What are the needs of our residents and / or service users and how are these likely to

(o] 0 T= g [0 =P PP PTT TS PUTUUPRRTP 18
5.3  What are practitioners and service USers telliNg US? ........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 19
5.4  What other resources are being used to tackle similar issues and outcomes?.........ccccccevvvvvnnnn. 19
5.6 How is demand for these services likely to change and what will be the impact?...............cccoveeee. 20
5.8 What is the state of the current market and how is this likely to change?.........cccoovveeiiiiiiinnnn. 20
5.9 How can we join up resources and activities with other partners to maximise our impact?.......... 21

5.10 What are the outcomes we are seeking to achieve through this new commissioning exercise?.. 21

5.11 What Will SUCCESS 100K TTKE?.....ooiieieiiee e 21

6. Detailed needs and NUMDBDErS anNalySiS.......ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 22
S A I T o 1Y oo SO 23

6.2 Children iN EQUCALION .........viiiiiiiiee ittt ettt e e st e e st e e s e e e snbre e e e nnnneeas 25

8.3 NEET S ittt 28

6.4 Presenting and underlying NEEAS ..........uuiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e 29

G T o) (o I [« PP PP PP PPPPPPPPP 32

6.6 EQUAItY AN DIVEISILY ...ccoiieiiiiiieie ettt ettt e e e e e st r e e e e e e e e s bbbt e e e e e e e e e annraneeaaens 36

(A o8] [0 [ OF= T =] = S PP PP PP PP PPPPPPPPPP 39

6.8  Capturing the VIEWS Of YOUNQ PEOPIE.......ooi i 41

7.8 DeMANA fOF SEIVICES ....eiiiiiiiii ettt ettt et e e sn e e ne e e n e nn e e e nne e e nnnee e 45

7. Current Activities: In-house, externally commissioned and others....................... 49
7.1 EffEeCtiVENESS AN COSL.....oeiiiiiiiiiiiiii ettt ane e 49

4% | -V =1 8 0T 1S3 o ] o S 52

A - (= [ 0] (=T V7= ) 1T TS 1= (o S 55

S T 0] o [od 1V ] [0 ] 1= PRSP PUPPPPPPPTPP 57
Glossary, References and APPENAICES ......uuuiiiiiii i 59

_




9. GlOSSArY Of TOIMNS .. s 59

10, RETFEIEINCES ...ttt ettt ettt et s st e e s e nsseennene e e 61
Appendix 1: Questions which should be answered ..............ooevviiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiieeeee, 63
Appendix 2: Mosaic L, M. N, O profile SUMMaAries ............cuueeiimmiimiimieiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeneee 64
Appendix 3: External services referrals - EHN categories ..........ccccocoeviiiiiiiiiiiinnenn, 68
Appendix 4: Feedback from staff consultation events ..........ccccevvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 69
Appendix 5: ThematiC analySiS........uuiiiii i e e e e e e e e eeaaanne 70
AppeNndiX 6: EHPS INQICALOIS......ccvviiiiiii e eeeeeeeie e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e eeeennnnnns 75

_




Early Help & Preventative Services
(EHPS) Commissioning

Executive Summary and Diagnostic

Conclusions
July 2015




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. THE CHALLENGES FACING US

The Public Sector is currently facing significant financial challenges and it is critical that
KCC focuses its resources to ensure that our most vulnerable children, young people and
their families are identified and supported as early as possible to prevent escalation into
more complex and costly health and social care problems.

Whilst efficiencies are required we have seen changing patterns of referrals in the last
year originating largely from Universal settings especially GPs and Schools. EHPS is
facing a challenging picture. There are emerging requirements to offer an appropriate and
effective service to those families who need it (including Troubled Families) whilst
recognising that EHPS is not a blue light service and that Universal services need to be
supported to play a part in managing demand and early identification.

At the same time, EHPS plays an important part in the support and recovery of children,
young people and families who have experienced adverse situation or have needed to be
within statutory social care provision but are ready to move on with their lives with support.

Prevention Early Help/intervention Care & Recovery
Preventing harm before it Detecting and responding | Reducing the impact of an
occurs, equipping us to deal | to early signs of difficulty, | already strongly negative
with setbacks and seize forestalling problems situation
opportunities to flourish which could lead to more

Serious consequences.
Can happen before or
after a problem has
occurred, but before it has
become extremely serious

Working well away from
the cliff edge Working on or just over

| the cliff edge

Working far down the
,\bﬂttum of the cliff edge

Our existing external offer was put in place when there was little Early Help intensive
provision. Services were accessed mostly through CAF which resulted in some children
from across the continuum not being able to access an appropriate service despite having
high needs. In addition, the introduction of the Troubled Families programme and the
development of KCC's Early Help offer has changed the commissioning landscape and
service requirements.




As a result our existing external offer does not sufficiently enable us to meets the
challenges that face us and we are coming to the end of our existing arrangements. We
therefore have an exciting opportunity to re-design our priorities and approaches.

2. HOW WE WILL MEET THESE CHALLENGES

= Build community and family resilience to reduce dependency on high cost services for
those who are able to, by utilising community capital, creative and sporting
opportunities

= Ensure a wide range of transformational activities, which promote emotional well-being
available for the most vulnerable children and young people, including those known to
Specialist Children’s Services

= Build a holistic early help and preventative services workforce to reduce the number of
cases entering into statutory services and ensure a timely and effective step down
process of cases into EHPS

= Reduce the number , similarity and duplication of external arrangements

= Provide opportunities for locality based commissioning based on local needs and
innovation

= Ensure good utilisation of commissioned services including reduced waiting lists and
reduced bureaucracy to access services

= Lessen performance management processes whilst maintaining confidence in the
quality of the work through robust contract management

= Build upon social value and encourage the growth of micro and small organisations
within Kent.

= Deliver the budget savings required and ensure all commissioned services can
demonstrate value for money



3. APPROACH

This diagnostic report summarises the findings of the EHPS commissioning ‘Analyse’
phase, answering the 12 questions identified in the KCC commissioning framework.* It is
informed by a needs analysis, stakeholder workshops and data analysis. The evidence will
inform proposals for the redesign and re-commissioning of EHPS external services.

A diagram of the Analyse Phase methodology is shown below:

[ Analysis & Intelligence ] [ Analysis & Intelligence ] [ Analysis & Intelligence ]
Identify priority needs by district . .
MI District Summaries and age group Thematic Analysis
Insight Analysis Identify who is already meeting AnS\..Mer l:or.nmissioning
the needs and where Diagnostic Report

Sandbox Profile Analysis ;
¥ Identify the % unmet need by tier Llbeinis

l 1T 11

[ Stakeholder Workshop 1 [ Stakeholder Workshop 2

EHPS
Commissioning
Diagnostic Report

1. Link themes to strategic

1. Select cross county priority outcomas

needs — themes

2. Identify what works within

2. Provide ‘the problem’ and KCC and beyond

‘context’ with a logic model
for each theme

3. Scope innovative practices

[ Children and Young People Workshops ]

Practitioner

Capture what works
P Consultations

I
I EHPS

' n' 1 N _ |

1. Involve Young Inspectors in COI"I"II"I"IISS‘IOI"III"Ig |
future service planning | Intentions

and design 1 I

2. Capture significant issues I |

and needs | I

| I

1 I

PLAN PHASE

4. Identify gaps

Figure 1: Analyse phase methodology

The key commissioning priorities are also informed by the views of young people and
multiagency practitioners. In addition, existing performance monitoring and reviews of
current services has provided crucial insight that supports the proposals outlined.

! Questions have been extracted Kent County Council (2015) A commissioning framework for Kent County Council:
Delivering better outcomes for Kent residents through improved commissioning

Page vii




4. A brief summary of the diagnostic findings
i. Alarge proportion of the overall need is concentrated in specific communities

e Many high risk groups are concentrated within specific deprived communities.
Analysis shows that many of these children and young people are known to more
than one agency and often come from the same families;

e These specific communities are known and the population groups (as defined by
Mosaic) L, M, N and O make up 22% of Kent’s population. These groups often
have multiple needs which result in a disproportionate demand on preventative and
specialist services;

e The households of these communities tend to be in some housing estates as well
as lower cost privately rented areas. However, some families are more transient but
they have in common financial stress, low pay or unemployment, poorer health,
limited qualifications and areas of crime; and

e Some schools, academies and other settings have greater proportions of their
children and young people coming from these families and communities.

ii. The key issue raised is the need to address emotional health and well-being

e Key characteristics (in no particular order) are behavioural difficulties, education /
development issues (including school non-attendance), poor relationships within
families, parenting issues, domestic abuse (including child perpetrators), housing
and financial issues and substance misuse;

e A large number of families are affected by two or more of these factors with some
comorbidity well evidenced (e.g. the “Toxic Trio” of domestic abuse, mental ill
health and substance misuse);

e A holistic approach to identify underlying / causal factors, not only the presenting
symptomatic problems is key to improving outcomes; and

e Some parental factors (including substance misuse, mental illness or other
disabilities can lead to children and young people becoming Young Carers.

These findings are consistent with a whole family approach to working with children,

young people and their families

iii There is support for better utilising localised family and community capacity in
the wider preventative agenda — especially:

e Community assets such as people, places and organisations like clubs, arts,
culture and sport;

e Social enterprises, the wider Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) and local
businesses (particularly to remove any perceived stigma attached to statutory
services; and

e Engaging users in the provision of services e.g. expanding the use of volunteers
and mentors within services, or enabling children to mentor at school.



This finding supports the current direction of travel in transformation to enable the role of
communities in creating positive outcomes and by using local knowledge to inform local
solutions. It suggests that local, smaller scale resources offering social value be
considered in the commissioning of external services, such as through a localised
commissioning approach.

iv. An integrated evaluation approach should be undertake to measure performance
and ensure success
e Aligning the performance evaluation of services is critical to ensure that KCC can
identify the impact and compare impact of EHPS services.

e The development of an integrated evaluation framework would strengthen this
approach.




5. KEY COMMISSIONING PRIORITIES

As a result of the analyse phase the following three key priorities have been identified.

These collective priorities provide the platform for future commissioning.

Key
concern

Key
outcomes

What is
required?

Key
concern

Key
outcomes

What is
required?

1. Emotional Health and well-being

Emotional health and well-being is a signficant factor in demand for EHPS and in the
needs of many children and young people.

Parental low level mental health issues can be a factor in contributing to poor well-
being in children/young poeple.

Improved resilience and wellbeing
Reduced mental health and behavioural problems
Lower demnad for specialist CAMHS

Focused Family emotional wellbeing support to children,young people and their
families who are experiencing early signs of emotional and mental health difficulties,
at additional and intensive levels with delivery also through Universal settings. such
as schools*.

Increased ability to manage EHWB demand throughadditional support on Universal
settings*

* Kent Emotional Health and Well-being Strategy

2. Family support & Parenting

(incl. troubled families, vulnerable young people and NEETs)

Vulnerable CYP can have a range of poor outcomes, are in families with complex problems,
including generational or long term unelmployment, who are concentrated in deprived
communities.

Identifying and addressing ‘causal’ factors, not only presenting ‘symptomatic’ problems, is
central to improving outcomes.

Improved outcomes of family members, incl. parenting skills to manage challenging behaviours,
in more complex and vulnerable families
Improved outcomes for vulnerable/disadvantaged young people
Improved early childhood outcomes in Kent’s more deprived areas

Additional and intensive services for vulnerable adolescents to address a range of risk factors,
incl. NEET, positive relationships, family conflict, risk-taking, & CSE

Intensive whole family approaches for more complex circumstances, including domestic violence
and abuse, crisis intervention, bereavement, and other support to enable greater family
resilience.




3. Young Carers and Youth Services

Young carers are more vulnerable to a range of poor outcomes, including in areas of

education, friendship and emotional well-being

S CUEENT Adolescence is a critical developmental stage with a range of complex personal and

social needs. Young people can become isolated, have low aspiration, have a range of
poor outcomes and often live in deprived communities/areas

Young carers and disadvantaged young people experience opportunities and are
motivated to achieve positive adult independence and well-being.
Children and young people can access or are supported to access opportunities for
social and educational development that assists improved engagement in education and
training, health, resilience, emotional well-being and social skills

Key outcomes

Identify, assess, and provide holistic support to young carers

Open access support for young carers to reduce isolation, to make friendships, and improve
What is skills/capabilities
requ ired? An excellent Youth Offer across all districts that provides opportunities for a wide range of young people

and targetted work within universal settings to ensure that support is provided at the earliest possible
opportunity to address any emerging difficulties and prevent escalation of problems

Targetted reach to vulnerable young people and communities In the context of young people’s lives which
may be highly mobile and digital to ensure reach to rural and urban deprived areas, children in care or
other at-risk adolescents




Early Help & Preventative Services
(EHPS) Commissioning

Analyse Phase: Diagnhostic Report
July 2015

Page xii



Diagnostic Report

1. Introduction

This diagnostic report summarises the findings of the EHPS commissioning ‘Analyse’
phase, answering the 12 questions identified in the KCC commissioning framework.? It
includes needs analysis, stakeholder workshops and data analysis. The evidence will
inform proposals for what should be achieved through the commissioning exercise,
documented within the EHPS Commissioning Intentions document.

The report has been jointly completed by the Strategic Business Development &
Intelligence Division and the EHPS Commissioning Division in conjunction with the
Director for EHPS. A wide range of staff from Public Health and services for children and
young people have been involved in developing this report.

2. Background

Early Help means intervening as soon as possible to tackle emerging problems (focusing
on needs not symptoms). It is about ensuring that every child and young person from pre-
birth to age 19 (and their family) who need Early Help services receive them in an effective
and timely way. This will contribute to safeguarding, health, educational, social and
emotional needs being met. Early Help reflects the widespread recognition that it is better
to identify and deal with problems earlier rather than respond when difficulties have
emerged, when intervention can be less effective and often more expensive.

As part of the wider KCC transformation, EHPS is also undergoing transformation. EHPS
hold approximately 150 contractual and grant arrangements with external providers to
deliver services to children, young people and their families. These contracts are currently
being aligned as far as possible to end in March 2016 with the intention of reshaping the
offer in line with the revised EHPS restructure and proposed new ways of working, as
outlined in ‘A commissioning framework for Kent County Council'.

KCC has re-designed EHPS to provide additional support in open access settings and
Early Help Units providing intensive targeted casework.

Within the internal offer, one of the key principles is that open access will be used to help
children and families improve their life chances and within the units there will be an 80/20
split whereby staff working in the Units will spend 80% of their time on targeted casework
and 20% of their time delivering open access services, whilst staff working in open access
will spend 80% of their time here and 20% of their time on light touch targeted work.

¢ Inthe new EH Unit model, one Early Help practitioner is working with families from
end to end. Other members of the EH Unit who have good knowledge of the family,

% Questions have been extracted Kent County Council (2015) A commissioning framework for Kent County Council:
Delivering better outcomes for Kent residents through improved commissioning




provide support where needed and cover during periods of leave. The model allows
practitioners to draw upon the expertise of their colleagues so that, where
appropriate, they can work on a 1:1 basis with families, addressing the range of
presenting issues. This means families benefit from building a relationship with one
practitioner and can rely on consistency throughout their intervention.

e The redesign of EHPS is inextricably linked with the activity taking place in the 0-25
Unified Programme.

e The new structure will support the step up/step down process. The new way of
working for EHPS is also critical to the 0-25 Unified Programme and its objectives,
as the 80/20 split and early intervention measures will support a reduction in the
number of cases that become critical and need to be managed by SCS.

Local government contributes the largest proportion of public funds on late intervention in
Kent (approximately £151 million - almost the same amount as other public sector
services combined). The most significant areas of late intervention spend in Kent are
youth economic inactivity (including those young people Not in Education, Employment or
Training (NEETS), Child Protection and safeguarding, and crime and anti-social behaviour;
it is widely acknowledged that savings can be made through early intervention.

Practitioners and stakeholders identified other agency resources were meeting the needs
of children and young people. This included District Councils, Public Health, the VCS, the
police and the private sector. The sum total of this investment is not known.

There are a number of other services that tackle — or will tackle - similar issues and
outcomes, in addition to KCC (at universal, additional and intensive levels). An example is
the imminent re-commissioning of the School Nursing service and support for vulnerable
adolescents or school based provision for emotional wellbeing. The challenges are to
achieve the following:

e Delivery of the KCC and EHPS Strategic Outcomes and improve
educational,health and safeguarding outcomes for children, young people and
families

e To build a holistic early help and preventative services workforce to reduce the
number of cases entering into statutory services and speed up the step down
process of cases into EHPS

e To ensure as few professionals as possible are involved with a family
e To reduce the number, similarity and duplication of external arrangements
e To provide opportunities for locality based commissioning

e To ensure timely access to support, good utilisation of commissioned services and
reduction in waiting lists




e To reduce bureaucracy and unnecessary performance management processes
whilst maintaining confidence in the quality of the work through robust contract
management

e To build upon social value and encourage the growth of micro and small
organisations within Kent

e To build community and family resilience to reduce dependency on high cost
services for those who are able to, by utilising community capital, peer based
models and creative and sporting opportunities

e To deliver the budget savings required




3. Approach to ‘Analyse’ Phase

A diagram of the Analyse Phase methodology is shown below:

[ Analysis & Intelligence [ Analysis & Intelligence ] [ Analysis & Intelligence

Identify priority needs by district Thematic Analysis

M1 District Summaries and age group
Insight Analysis Identify who is already meeting Answ:uer cnr.nmlssmnlng
. i the needs and where Diagnostic Report
Sandbox Profile Analysis Questions

Identify the % unmet need by tier

l 1 11

[ Stakeholder Workshop 1 [ Stakeholder Workshop 2

EHPS
Commissioning
Diagnostic Report

1. Link themes to strategic

1. Select cross county priority outcomes

needs — themes

2. Identify what works within

2. Provide ‘the problem” and Kcc and beyond

‘context’ with a logic model
for each theme

[ Children and Young People Workshops ]
1. Involve Young Inspectors in

future service planning
and design

3. Scope innovative practices

EHPS
Commissioning
Intentions

2. Capture significant issues

and needs
3. Capture what works Practltlol-'ler
Consultations
4. Identify gaps

PLAN PHASE

Figure 2: Analyse phase methodology

Consultation with in-house Early Help teams, external service providers, partners,
stakeholders and service users underpins every stage of the commissioning cycle. It is an
important two-way process whereby feedback is sought and considered in order to inform
the development of commissioning intentions. As the process progresses there will be
continued checking back to ensure proposals are robust and will address identified needs.
This will also ensure that partners and stakeholders have clarity about the Early Help
commissioned offer and expectations can be managed effectively.

The stakeholder analysis comprised of:

e Children and young people workshops aimed to better understand their needs and
the issues that concern them.

e Workshop 1 identified and prioritised the local perception of need at District level
and where EHPS external arrangements need to focus.

e Within the priority themes highlighted from workshop 1, workshop 2 identified the
supporting outcomes which would ultimately be improved, gave examples of
successful programmes and models and suggested new innovative models.

e Separate Practitioner Consultations, aimed at internal Early Help teams and
voluntary sector service providers, identified service gaps across Kent.




4, Budget Scoping

The total net budget for Early Help and Preventative Services is £29,010.5. This budget
includes youth offending, troubled families, attendance and inclusion, children’s centres,
youth hubs and Early Help Intensive support.

The following contracts are in scope to this commissioning programme

o Troubled Families contracts (Family Intervention Project (FIP) and FIP light)
o Youth contracts

o Not in Education, Employment, or Training (NEET) participation contract

o Specialist and targeted Early Intervention contracts and grants.

For these contracts, the current 15/16 budget is set out below?®.

Budget Contracts
£3.881,526.82 Early Interven_tion and
Prevention
£1,105,001.00 NEET Participation
£1,434,709.79 Youth
£,1,543442.00 Troubled Families
£7,964,679.61 Total

Table 1: Current EHPS commissioning 15/16 budget

KCC’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP, March 2015) is clear: whilst KCC made £350
million of savings between 2011-12 and 2014-15, there is the need to make further
savings of a proportionate magnitude over the next 3 years. The 2016/17 commissioning
budget is yet to be finalised; it is anticipated that savings will be made.

Commissioning arrangements are currently in place with the Youth Justice element of
EHPS. Scoping is due to start to agree milestones and interdependencies for re-
commissioning.

Whilst Troubled Families (TF), FIP workers and FIP light contracts are in scope, a number
of TF contracts and grants will continue outside this process.

As Children’s Centre re-commissioning is part of the wider Transformation agenda, work
to scope the vision and approach will begin from September 2015 with a view to re-
commissioning from April 2017. This will align with the renewal of the Health Visitor
contract.

3 Early Help & Preventative Services (EHPS) Commissioning re-design - Update to the 0-25 Portfolio Board




5. Diagnostic report question summaries

A summary of the Analyse Phase analysis and findings, answering the 12 questions
identified in the KCC commissioning framework is shown below:

5.1  What are the challenges we are seeking to address?

The Public Sector is facing significant financial challenges and it is critical that KCC
focuses its resources to ensure that our most vulnerable children, young people and their
families are identified and supported as early as possible to prevent escalation into more
complex and costly health and social care problems.

Whilst efficiencies are required we have seen changing patterns of referrals in the last
year originating largely from Universal settings especially GPs and Schools. There are
emerging requirements to offer an appropriate and effective service to those families who
need it whilst recognising that EHPS is not a blue light service and that Universal services
need to be supported to play a part in managing demand and early identification.

At the same time, EHPS play an important part in the support and recovery of children,
young people and families who have experienced adverse situations or have needed to be
within statutory social care provision but are ready to move on with their lives with support.

As our existing external offer does not sufficiently enable us to meets the challenges that
face us and we are coming to the end of our existing arrangements we have an exciting
opportunity to re-design our priorities and approaches.

5.2  What are the needs of our residents and / or service users and how are these likely
to change?

The detailed needs and numbers analysis is shown in section 6. A summary is given
below:

e EHPS externally commissioned services mandate is specific to 0-25 year olds.

¢ National research shows that deprivation in childhood has significant short and
longer term impact, particularly in the areas of Health and Education.” The EHPS
users with a greater likelihood of need live in deprived areas within Kent.>

e The top characteristics and reasons for Early Help Notifications (EHN) are the same
in every District:

e One or more members of the household with (Tier 2) emotional and / or mental
health needs

e Significant behavioural difficulties

* http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty Last accessed 09 June 2015.
° Segmentation and profile analysis, KCC Business Intelligence, 2015



http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty

e Significant non-attendance at school

Residents can experience disadvantage on the grounds of age, gender, disability, race,
religion or belief, sexual orientation. Each group may have particular and / or greater
needs from EHPS externally commissioned services. Some examples of this are: on
average, girls have better educational outcomes than boys at 16; people with disabilities
are more likely to live in poverty and experience problems with housing; and Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) people are more likely to experience poorer treatment
from public services and bullying, hate crime and homelessness,

By the end of primary school, pupils receiving free school meals are estimated to be
almost three terms behind their peers. By age 14, this gap grows to over five terms.

5.3  What are practitioners and service users telling us?

Common themes raised by practitioners, stakeholders and service users were support for
mental ill-health and a whole family approach.

Thematic analysis from stakeholder workshops emphasised the need to facilitate greater
engagement with the community by working with service users, families, facilities and local
organisations (i.e. open access services such as businesses, voluntary sector and
community groups such as sports and arts).

Children and young people identified the following issues: Mental Health, policing and the
need to feel safe, advertising and marketing of services, improvement of public transport
and bullying.

5.4  What other resources are being used to tackle similar issues and outcomes?

The following examples are currently being explored as part of an alignment strategy with
EHPS.

e Emotional Health and Mental Health services delivered through Schools, KCC,
CCGs and Public Health.

e Public Health services such as Health Visitors, Family Nurse Partnerships, School
Nursing, Substance misuse and Teenage Preghancy support.

e District Councils support for Young People, anti-social behaviour, housing and
community safety.

e Supporting People support for homeless young people

e Partnership investment in Domestic Abuse.

e Work with Arts and Culture organisations to enhance traditional offers of support.

5.5 What is driving demand for these services and what is our evidence for this?

Demand expressed by EHPS notifications, comes from a number of different
organisations but these are predominantly submitted by schools (43%), KCC Services,




including adult’s and children’s social care, (24.5%) and Health (19.5%). The numbers of
Early Help Notifications (EHNs) from September 2014 to March 2015 totalled 4146.

5.6 How is demand for these services likely to change and what will be the impact?

Recent analysis as part of the 0-25 Transformation Programme has demonstrated that
demand in EHPS varies month on month and over time. This creates some difficulty for
accurately predicting the demand for a range of services, the flow between internal and
external provision and how cases are allocated.

The projected increase in the population (approximately 9% over 10 years) could
potentially lead to an increase in demand for EHPS commissioned services; what this
looks like in the short-medium term is not known.

A number of other contributing factors, both internal and external to KCC, could also drive
a change in demand e.g. the shift in schools provision, changes to funding availability in
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and Public Health and the ability of VCS to
continue despite funding cuts.

5.7 How effective are the services currently being delivered and what is the current cost?

Currently there are a range of internal and external EHPS services. Across some tiers and
age groups there is evidence of clustering of external services (within additional and
intensive for ages 5 — 25). Following the creation of an EHPS directorate and subsequent
transformation activity, performance scorecards and targets have been set. Early
indicators show a wide reach and improvements in focused work achieving good
outcomes. A comprehensive evaluation of this work is planned..

For the EHPS external offer; based upon the original contracts awarded to these services,

performance has been either ‘good’ or ‘acceptable’, however the impact of these services
has been harder to measure. It is essential that systems are in place to measure the
impact of both internal and external services in the future.

5.8 What is the state of the current market and how is this likely to change?

Over the last three years some providers have started to work more collaboratively and in
partnership and may be well placed to meet new procurement challenges and models
such as larger contracts or consortium arrangements with a greater range of partners
involved. However, there are still a range of micro and small organisations that have yet to
respond effectively to the changing landscape and have the potential to be put at risk
through the lack of infrastructure and experience of competing for larger scale contracts.
Any commissioning intentions will need to reflect both the need for efficient procurement
and localised opportunities to sustain and build upon the current good practice undertaken
by the micro and small VCS providers. While some providers are well placed, others
(micro and small VCS in particular) have yet to respond effectively. Local research has
shown that over 5 a year period smaller VCS organisations were at increased risk of
ceasing to exist.




5.9 How can we join up resources and activities with other partners to maximise our
impact?

The EHPS commissioning approach comprises joined up working with other partners
through several different mechanisms, including: local District-level commissioning, local
funding streams, engaging with Public Health and cross partnership bodies. Stakeholders
recommended that local, District level commissioning would best facilitate engagement
with local communities e.g. service users, universal services, social enterprises, the wider
voluntary and community sector and local businesses.

5.10 What are the outcomes we are seeking to achieve through this new commissioning
exercise?

EHPS commissioned services aims support the KCC strategic outcome - Children and
young people in Kent get the best start in life.

Service specific outcomes will be determined within the service specifications
5.11 What will success look like?

The EHPS Three Year Plan sets out the key performance targets and indicators for 2015-
18.These support the key outcomes set out in this document. Other indicators of success
will be:

¢ Increased family resilience
¢ Narrowing the gap in attainment
e Development of social value and the growth of micro and small organisations

e Meeting budget / efficiency targets

In order to evaluate the impact and effectiveness of EHPS and provider success in the
future, appropriate analysis frameworks and measures must be developed at ‘Plan’ stage
and implemented.




6. Detailed needs and numbers analysis
This section provides detailed needs and numbers analysis, specifically:

e Deprivation

e Children in education

e NEETs

e Presenting and underlying needs
e The toxic trio

e Equality and diversity

e Young carers

e The community perspective

e Demand for services




6.1 Deprivation

National research® illustrates that children from poorer backgrounds are disadvantaged in
many areas. These include — but are not limited to — lower birth weight, more likely to live
in bad housing, lower educational attainment and social isolation due to poverty.

The Indices of Multiple Deprivation covers a broad range of issues and refer to unmet
needs caused by a lack of resource of all kinds, not just financial. The most deprived
areas are usually defined as those areas that are among the 10% most deprived. 98% of
all of the most deprived areas in England are urban areas, although this is not the case in
Kent for some rural areas e.g. Swale and Shepway. See Figure 3 for the Kent Deprivation
Scores at lower super output level.

Index of Multiple Deprivation

®
o .2 S @ ,\g?'

K:
N b LS
Nt et o

Figure 3: Kent Deprivation Scores at lower super output level (IMD 2010)

In Kent, there are pockets of deprivation usually focused around urban areas. In general,
Tonbridge and Malling, Sevenoaks, Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells have much lower
levels of deprivation than the rest of Kent. The highest levels are wards in Thanet, Swale
and Shepway.

® http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty Last accessed 09 June 2015.



http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty

Mosaic is a classification system to profile the characteristics of the UK population and
classify households as belonging to one of 66 types, which fall into a broader range of 15
groups. These types and groups describe the residents of a household in terms of their
typical demographics, behaviours, lifestyle characteristics and attitudes.

Previous studies’ have highlighted 4 Mosaic Groups, L, M, N and O, as those that are
overrepresented in many high risk groups such as social services referrals, EHNs, youth
offending, NEETSs etc. The Mosaic system provides the location of families that fall into
these groups which can therefore be used as a way of predicting the communities and
universal source settings from which notifications, referrals and higher risk individuals are
more likely to come in the future.

Although these groups have different characteristics, they are usually found in urban areas
and social housing (or privately rented) estates in city suburbs. These families are the
least affluent of the Mosaic Groups and are facing an array of issues. These families make
up 22% of the population of Kent. Group profiles can be found in Appendix 2: Mosaic L, M.
N, O profile summaries.

Analysis has shown some schools, academies and other settings have greater proportions
of their children and young people coming from these families and communities.®

" Business Intelligence (2014/2015) Troubled Families — A Mosaic Profile of Families and Outcome, An
Analysis of Young People not in Education, Employment or Training, Domestic Abuse Notifications, Insight
Report for Children’s Centres

® Business Intelligence (2015) Vulnerable Children and Young People — Key Stage 4 (GCSE) Attainment




6.2 Children in Education

The information in this section sets out a detailed breakdown of the characteristics of

children in education in Kent, therefore identifying their needs.

Kent has a school population of 221, 902.° The key characteristics of this population are
displayed below for both primary and secondary schools:°

Primary school

Secondary school

Total number of pupils in Kent schools 113,449 98545
Educational Psychology referral 1077 302
Troubled Family 923 1402
SCS referral 4558 3117
Looked After Children 410 459
Child Protection Plan in place 406 188
Child in Need 1579 1069
Youth Offending 0 344
Permanent exclusion 33 138
More than one fixed term exclusion 479 4185
Children Missing Education referral 290 203
Elective Home Education referral 99 140
Physical SEN 6790 3546
Behavioural SEN 4354 4203
Between 85%-90% attendance 6538 6912
Less than 85% attendance 3518 4544
Free school meals 14976 9325

Table 2: Characteristics of pupils in schools in Kent

9 KCC (2015) School Census (EY directorate, Information and Intelligence as of January 2015)
1% Kent County Council (2015) Figures provided by Business Intelligence — based on matched data (not

whole population)




According to Department for Education statistics, by the end of primary school, pupils
receiving free school meals are estimated to be almost three terms behind their more
affluent peers. By 14, this gap grows to over five terms. By 16, children receiving free
school meals achieve 1.7 grades lower at GCSE." See Figure 6 below for the
characteristics of children eligible for free school meals in Kent.'°

57 (1%) have
DANS

873 (9%) are part 1259 (13%) have been
of a troubled subject tofixedterm

. I exclusions
106 (1% ) are CIC T 24 (0%) have been
] \ / subject to permanent

s’-\\‘ /‘"H exclusions
Of the 9980
children eligible 4078 (41%) are
148 (1%)arece @ < foresms > school action,

school action+ or

/ l \ statemented
191 |2%) have had
. YOT invalvermnent

1384 (14%) have been referred
to SCS between May 13-Aprild

Figure 5: Characteristics of children eligible for Free School Meals (FSM)

631 (6%) are CIN

M http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty Last accessed 09 June 2015.



http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty

Of the total Kent school population, around 2.8% (more than 6,500) are children and
young people subject to a Statement of Special Educational Needs (SEN). The distribution
of statemented pupils across Kent Districts*®is shown below.

5.0% - - 4.2%
4.0% - o, 32%32% _ o . ? . 3.3% .
3.0% _2.8/2': 2.8% 2.8% 2 5% 2.8% 7 6% 2 6% 2.6% 2-8% 2 g% 259
U0 1.8% 2.1%
2.0% - =
1.0% -
0.0% 1 T T T T T T T T T T T T
I I SR S S N R I O A T R 2 R\
& @& <@ {o" & & t\{‘ &0& z,{@ 2 o“} {éd‘ o Q‘:ga Q\e, @o ’b\\\o &
& & 0 TS TE T & &
@ & AR &\b
Q
) N
\0‘\6 R
N
/\0

Figure 6: Statements of SEN across Kent

There are a number of additional factors which affect children with SEN (not only those
statemented).'® These include:

e 5% are part of a Troubled Family

¢ 9% have been subject to fixed term exclusions
e 17% are eligible for free school meals

e 2% are looked after children

e 1% have a Child Protection Plan

e 5% are Child in Need

e 7% have been referred to SCS between May 2013 and April 2014




6.3 NEETs

NEETSs are one of the largest proportionate late intervention spending areas in KCC and
England and Wales and are disproportionately from low income families with multiple

challenges.*?

A contributing factor to NEETSs is exclusion from primary and secondary school.

Primary school %

Secondary school %

Pupils . Pupils .
Factors Pupils not | excluded | Pupils not
excluded
(658 total) excluded (6,757 excluded
total)
Male 91 51 73 50
Educational Psychology referral 17 1 2 0
Troubled Family 11 0 16 0
SCS referral 20 4 13 3
Looked After Children 4 0 3 0
Child Protection Plan in place 3 0 1 0
Child in Need 9 0 6 1
Youth Offending 0.5 0 7 0
Children Missing Education referral 2 0 2 0
Elective Home Education referral 1 0 2 0
Physical SEN 9 6 6 4
Behavioural SEN 73 4 28 4
Between 85%-90% attendance 11 6 11 6
Less than 85% attendance 19 3 16 3
Free school meals 47 13 22 8

Table 3: Factors related to pupils at school excluded (fixed or permanent) / not excluded

Research has shown that the cost of being NEET between the ages of 16 to 18 is
estimated to be around £56,000 in public finance costs and £104,000 in resource costs
(lost labour market potential), over the working lifetime of each person who has been

NEET at this age.™

'2 Business Intelligence (2015) Vulnerable Children and Young People- Fixed and Permanent Exclusions
¥ Coles, B., Godfrey, C., Keung, A., Parrott, S., Bradshaw, J. (2010) Estimating the lifetime cost of NEET:
16-18 year olds not in Education, Employment or Training University of York




6.4  Presenting and underlying needs

The Kent Family Support Framework (KFSF) is the structure through which families
requiring intensive support come to the attention of Early Help services through to
assessment, planning and review. It incorporates the Early Help notification form by which
any service or individual identifies a child of concern to KCC. It was launched in
September 2014, replacing the Common Assessment Framework (CAF).

Top reasons for notification are the same in every District (although the order may
change). These are significant behavioural difficulties, one or more member of the
household with (tier 2) emotional and/or mental health needs and significant non-

attendance at school.

Other key underlying factors include: Education / development issues, poor relationships
within families, domestic violence, parenting issues and housing / financial issues. By
examining cases and identifying the underlying issues the driving demand for services
could be explored further.

When examining the KFSF alongside additional case notes, a further 84% of factors were
noted compared to the KFSF alone (in Tonbridge and Malling). This suggests that a
number of underlying needs are not being identified at the referral stage.

1200

1000

800

600

400

o
) I ||
— — —
. = || — e || ]

Significant  Significant non-  One or more  Domestic abuse Drug or alcohol  Facing eviction  Other please  Children are in - Involverment in- Mo member of
behavioural schoaol member of the misuse or with specify need or opento  crime or anti- the family in
difficulties attendance (for household with significant rent social care social behaviour work
whatever {tier 2) arrears or
reason) emotional neighbour
and/or mental disputes
health needs

Figure 7: Early Help Notifications - Primary issues by age range

Analysis of external services referrals demonstrates that the presenting issue can often
mask the underlying cause, requiring external providers to undertake further assessment
to identify the underlying cause. This is not reflected in the EHN categories. See Appendix
3 for details.




1400

B Commissioned Service
W Early Help

1200
W Third sector

m Other/Blank

1000

80O -
600
400
L
|

200

0

Significant One or more  Significant non- Domestic abuse Drug or alcohol  Other please  Children are in - Facing eviction No member of  Involvement in
behavioural  member of the school misuse specify need or open to or with the family in - crime or anti
difficulties  household with attendance (for social care significant rent work social be haviour
(tier 2) whatever arrears or
emaotional reason) neighbour
and/for mental disputes

health needs

Figure 8: Early Help Notifications - Primary issues by supporting service

Tonbridge and Malling is currently delivering intensive support through the new “Early
Help unit model”. 774 cases (16%) within Tonbridge and Malling (Sept 14 — April 15), were
examined by accessing the KFSF and additional case notes.'* All factors affecting the
child and their family were recorded. The results are shown below:

Rank Children Carers Families
1 Education / Development Parenting Issues Mental lll-Health
Issues
2 Mental lll-Health Mental lll-Health Education / Development
Issues

3 Behavioural Issues Housing / Financial Issues Poor Relationships

4 Poor Relationships Domestic Violence Behavioural Issues

5 Domestic Violence Poor Relationships Domestic Violence

Table 4: Ranking of factors within Tonbridge and Malling case notes

* Work undertaken by KCC Evaluation and Review, Business Intelligence on behalf of EHPS

Commissioning




In total 243 presenting KFSF family factors were recorded in Tonbridge and Malling, after
examination of the case notes there were a total of 448 consolidated family factors.

The analysis highlighted the following key points:

e Mental ill-health was reported in 54% of cases
e Where there was Domestic Violence:

0 53% of children were witnesses
0 30% of children were perpetrators
o0 17% of children were victims

e 40% of cases had no factors recorded for the carer
e The number of Toxic Trio factors recorded increased after first contact by EHPS
e There was an overlap of recorded carer factors around

o mental ill-health

o housing / financial issues

O parenting issues

Mental ill-health featured predominantly in the factors recorded. Data is available on one
aspect of mental ill-health; self-harm. See below:

Age <15 Age 15<24
Males 15 297
Females 81 583

Table 5: Number of attendances at A&E due to self-harm 2012/2013 for Kent residents

These figures show a higher rate of self-harm amongst young females than males, with
females from under 15 to 24 having the highest number of attendances to A&E for self-
harm.'® Self-harm has been noted as a major concern emerging from the Emotional
Wellbeing Strategy.

% public Health Observatory, KCC




6.5 Toxic Trio

Domestic violence and abuse, parental mental ill-health, and parental substance misuse —
individually or in any combination — are recognised as indications of increased risk of harm
to children and young people®®. The term ‘Toxic Trio’ has commonly been used to
describe these three issues.

Children who have parents suffering from the Toxic Trio make up a substantial proportion
of the children coming to the attention of the child protection authorities for abuse or
neglect. However, it is believed that only a minority of such children come to the attention
of social workers.’

Work undertaken to estimate the prevalence of these issues (based upon an extrapolation
of national figures) found that in Kent, in 2014, approximately: '8

e 22.1% of children (68,112) have lived with a parent who misuses alcohol
(hazardous19)

e 2.5% of children (7,705) have lived with a parent who misuses alcohol (harmful?°)
e 8.0% of children (24,656) have lived with a parent who misuses drugs
e 5.7% of children (17,567) have been exposed to domestic violence and abuse

e 17.8% of children (54,860) have lived with a parent who has mental health
problems

A large number of these children will be affected by two or more of these factors in
combination.

While it is important to note that children whose parents suffer from the Toxic Trio are not
automatically at risk of abuse or neglect, it is recognised that there are potentially higher
risks for this group. Therefore while these numbers are not directly indicative of children at
risk, it does demonstrate the large proportion that may be more vulnerable to harm as a
result of the toxic trio.

The remainder of the section provides information, where available on domestic violence
and abuse, parental mental ill-health, and parental substance misuse.

16 Department of Health (2013), ‘No.5: Domestic Violence and Abuse — Professional Guidance’

7 Social Care Institute for Excellence (2005) Briefing: Parenting Capacity and Substance Misuse

'8 KCC (2015) Needs Analysis of the ‘Toxic Trio’ Business Intelligence

“Had a pattern of alcohol consumption that increases the risk of harmful consequences for the user or others. This is
classified as exceeding 14 / 21 units weekly for females / males respectively i.e. over the NHS recommended weekly
safe limits of alcohol.

20 Consumption that results in consequences to physical and mental health. This is defined as exceeding a score of 16
or more on the Severity of Alcohol Dependency Questionnaire (SADQ).




6.5.1 Domestic violence and abuse

Analysis investigating the characteristics of children from families with Domestic Abuse
Notifications (DANSs) across Kent between 1st May 2013 and 30th April 20142 found that
children with DANs were much more likely to have a number of associated adverse

outcomes as shown below.

Number of children with DANs = 628 With DANs Without
Number of children in the risk model without DANs = 230935 % DANs %
Troubled Family 6 1
SCS referral (May 2013 — Apr 2014) 65 4
Looked After Children 1 0
Child Protection Plan in place 3 0
Child in Need 12 2
Youth Offending 1 0
School action, school action + or statemented 30 20
Subject to permanent exclusion 1 0
Subiject to fixed term exclusion 9 6
Free school meals 36 11

Table 6: Additional factors faced by children referred to SCS with DANs compared to children in

the risk model without DANs

This analysis shows that, in the population sample used:

e Children from a Troubled Family are 6 times more likely to have DANs

e Children receiving free school meals are 3 times more likely to have DANs

e Children referred to SCS are 16 times more likely to have DANs

e Children subject to a Child Protection plan are 2 times more likely to have DANs

%L Business Intelligence (2015) Domestic Abuse Notifications




6.5.2 Parental mental ill-health

Parents with mental health problems may require additional support in the fulfilment of
their role as parents. Their children’s needs may also need to be addressed. Research
and government reports have highlighted the extent of the problem:?

e An estimated one-third to two-thirds of children whose parents have mental health
problems will experience difficulties themselves. Of the 175,000 young carers
identified in the 2001 census, 29% — or just over 50,000 — are estimated to care for
a family member with mental health problems.

e Parental mental health is also a significant factor for children entering the care
system. Childcare social workers estimate that 50-90% of parents on their
caseload have mental health problems, alcohol or substance misuse issues.

e In a class of 26 primary school children, it is estimated that six or seven children are
living with a mother with mental health difficulties.

The following information was available on parental mental ill-health in Kent:*?

e Parental mental ill-health was noted a specific factor in 3,127 C&F Assessments
(Jan 14 — Dec 14) in SCS.

¢ In a one-month snapshot, mental health of the adult was noted as the primary
reason for request for 23 (6%) and 2 (1%) cases for KCC EHPS (month of Sept
2014 — Oct 2014).

e 570 new mothers were referred to the Mother and Infant Mental Health Service
(MIMHS) team due to having mental ill-health (Dec 13 — Nov 14).

e Maidstone, Canterbury, Swale and Thanet have the highest proportion of women of
reproductive age accessing mental health services in Kent. Of these women, from
30-60% are likely to have children. Canterbury and Maidstone have the largest
estimated numbers of children at risk of having a mother who accesses mental
health services.

2 3ocial Care Institute for Excellence (2011) Think child, think parent, think family: a guide to parental
mental health and child welfare
% KCC Business Intelligence (2015) Needs Analysis of the ‘Toxic Trio’




6.5.3 Parental substance misuse

Research has indicated a number of ways in which parental substance misuse can have a
negative effect on children in both the short and long term:*3

e Children of parents who misuse substances are also more likely to enter the care of
relatives, who themselves may require help and support in caring for children.

¢ Children of parents who misuse substances may experience behavioural or
psychiatric problems and are more likely to engage in substance misuse
themselves.

e Parents who misuse substances may interact poorly or in an authoritarian manner
with their children and may also be inconsistent and emotionally unresponsive as a
result of their substance misuse.

e The lifestyle of families with a substance-misusing parent can also be characterised
by chaos and a lack of routine, as well as social isolation.

The following information was available on parental substance misuse in Kent: %3

e Parental drug abuse was noted as a specific factor in 1,181 C&F Assessments (Jan
14 — Dec 14). Parental alcohol abuse was noted in 1,533 Children and Family
(C&F) Assessments (Jan 14 — Dec 14).

e 1,570 drug users who live with children were in treatment in Kent (Apr 2013 — Mar
2014).

e 475 children of substance misusing parents accessed targeted early interventions
in Kent (Apr 2012 — Mar 2013).

e 888 adult clients in substance misuse treatment services had some or all of their
children living with them at the time of presenting to the service in Kent (Apr 2012 —
Mar 2013).

e 166 also had a comorbid mental health problem (Apr 2012 — Mar 2013).




6.6 Equality and Diversity

Discrimination has a negative impact upon the health and wellbeing of individuals and
groups of people. This can lead to social isolation and economic disadvantage.
Commissioning Intentions will take account of the fact that Kent residents can experience
disadvantage based on age, gender, disability, race, religion or belief or sexual orientation.
Some examples of this are that in general, boys seem to do less well than girls in
education; children and young people with parents who have a disability are more likely to
require support — particularly in the case of those who receive disability benefits.

6.6.1 Age and Gender

51.1% of the total population of Kent is female and 48.9% is male.?* Nationally on
average, girls have better educational outcomes than boys at 16. Out of every 100 pupils,
girls have median achievement ranked between 8 and 12 places higher than the median
achievement for boys (depending on which nation is examined). Reflecting these results,
women are more likely to go on to higher education than men, and are more likely to
achieve good (first or upper second class) degrees. More women now have higher
education qualifications than men in every age group up to age 44, and fewer have no or
only low qualifications, reversing the pattern in older generations.?®

Kent has a greater proportion of young people aged 5-19 years and people aged 45+
years than the national average.

6.6.2 Disability

Disabled people experience disadvantage in many aspects of daily life. Research has
shown that, compared with non-disabled people, disabled people are:?°

e More likely to live in poverty — the income of disabled people is, on average, less
than half of that earned by non-disabled people;

e Less likely to have educational qualifications — disabled people are more likely to
have no educational qualifications;

e More likely to be economically inactive — only one in two disabled people of working
age are currently in employment, compared with four out of five non-disabled
people;

e More likely to experience problems with hate crime or harassment — a quarter of all
disabled people say that they have experienced hate crime or harassment, and this
number rises to 47% of people with mental health conditions;

4 Business Intelligence Statistical Bulletin: 2011 Census: Cultural diversity in Kent

> Government Equalities Office (2010) An Anatomy of Economic Inequality in the UK — Summary Report of
the National Equality Panel

% DWP (2005) Improving the life chances of disabled people : Final Report




e More likely to experience problems with housing — nine out of ten families with
disabled children have problems with their housing; and

e More likely to experience problems with transport — the issue given most often by
disabled people as their biggest challenge.

The figure below shows the gender breakdown of disability claimants aged 0-15. Overall
disability benefits are claimed for 3.8% of the population aged 0-15 accounting for 10.0%
of the total number of disability benefit claimants.

9.0%

8.0%

7.0%

6.0%

5.0% -
mMale

W Female
4.0% -

3.0%

2.0%

1.0% -

0.0% -

Figure 9: Disability benefit claimants aged 0-15 by Gender?’

Males have at least twice as many claims for disability benefits than females in the 0-15
age group, in Kent 72.1% of claimants aged 0-15 are male. This age group would only be
eligible for Disability Living Allowance. A higher proportion of both males (5.5%) and
females (2.2%) aged 0-15 in Kent are claiming disability benefits than is seen nationally.
Swale District has the highest number of claimants in the county with Disability Living
Allowance being claimed for 1,580 young people aged 15 and under. 7.7% of males and
3.4% females aged 0-15 living in Swale claim benefit.

" Source: DWP (Presented in Business Intelligence Statistical Bulletin: Disability in Kent December 2014)




6.6.3 Race, Religion or Belief
Race, religion or belief has a known impact on school and later employment.

National research has shown that some minority ethnic groups that start with test scores
well below the national average improve their relative position between ages 7 and 16. At
16, however, Pakistani, Black African and Black Caribbean boys in England have median
results well below the national figure for all pupils. Other groups have results well above
the national average. A tenth of Chinese girls have results in the top 1 per cent overall.
Children recorded as having Traveller or Gypsy backgrounds have assessments that fall
further behind during the school years, resulting in much worse results at agel6 than
others. This gap appears to have widened in recent years. Those from minority ethnic
groups with GCSE results around or below the national median are much more likely to go
on to higher education than White British pupils with similar results. Black and
Pakistani/Bangladeshi students are less likely to go to more prestigious universities or to
get higher class degrees.

The 2011 Census indicates that:%®

e 93.7% of all Kent residents are of White ethnic origin — this includes those who are
White British, as well as other identities such as Irish, Eastern European origin etc.
Kent also has Gypsy, Roma and Traveller populations greater than national
average;

e 6.3% of Kent residents are classified as Black or Minority Ethnic (BME). This
proportion is lower than the national average for England (14.6%), although has
risen from the previous census and is anticipated to rise over time;

e Gravesham has the highest proportion of residents from a BME group at 17.2%
which is higher than national and regional proportions. Dartford has the second
highest BME population (12.6%), Canterbury is third with 10,525 residents (7.0%).
The Kent average is 6.3% - Dover has the lowest proportion with 3.32%;

e Almost three quarters of Kent residents follow a religion. The majority — 62.5% of
people - are Christian which is a higher proportion than the national figure (59.4%)
and the regional figure (59.7%);

e The next largest religion in Kent is Muslim with 0.95% of the total population. A
large proportion - 26.75% of the population claimed to have no religion; and

e Gravesham has the highest proportion of Muslims with 1.9% of the population.
However the Sikh religion accounts for the second largest proportion of Gravesham
residents with 7.6%.

*8 Business Intelligence Statistical Bulletin: 2011 Census: Cultural diversity in Kent




6.6.4 Sexual orientation

National research indicates that: Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) people:

6.7

Expect poorer treatment from public services including social housing, criminal
justice and health services.

Have experienced homophobic bullying (65% of LGBT young people. Seven in ten
feel this has an impact on their work, and half have skipped school as a result.

Have experienced a homophobic hate crime in the last three years.

Are more likely to be at risk of homelessness when young because of bullying at
school, and rejection from the family home. In addition, half of young LGBT women
under the age of 20 have self-harmed in the last year. 29303132

Younq Carers

Following the implementation of the Care Act in April 2016, local authorities are required to
assess whether young carers within their area have support needs and, if so, what those
needs are. The right to an assessment of need for support extends to all young carers
under the age of 18, regardless of whom they care for, what type of care they provide and
how often they provide it.

National research has shown the following:

Latest census statistics reveal there are 166,363 young carers in England,
compared to around 139,000 in 2001. This is likely to be an underrepresentation of
the true picture as many remain under the radar of professionals.

One in 12 young carers is caring for more than 15 hours per week. Around one in
20 misses school because of their caring responsibilities.

Young carers are 1.5 times more likely than their peers to be from black, Asian or
minority ethnic communities, and are twice as likely to not speak English as their
first language.

Young carers are 1.5 times more likely than their peers to have a special
educational need or a disability.

The average annual income for families with a young carer is £5000 less than
families who do not have a young carer.

% Stonewall (2008) Serves you right: Lesbian and Gay people’s expectations of discrimination
% Stonewall (2007) The school report: The experiences of young gay people in Britain’s schools
% Stonewall (2013) The Gay British Crime Survey 2013

%2 Stonewall (2008) Prescription for change: Lesbian and bisexual women'’s health check 2008

33 The Children’s Society (2013) Hidden from view: The experiences of young carers in England




e There is no strong evidence that young carers are more likely than their peers to
come into contact with support agencies, despite government recognition that this
needs to happen,;

e Young carers have significantly lower educational attainment at GCSE level, the
equivalent to nine grades lower overall than their peers e.g. the difference between
nine Bs and nine Cs.

e Young carers are more likely than the national average to be not in education,
employment or training (NEET) between the ages of 16 and 19.

In Kent, the following information is available on young carers:

Total Provides Unpaid Care
Localit ersons
'ty a% i 0024 | 119hrs | 20-49hrs | 50<hrs >0 hrs
England 16,307,596 310,024 59,104 44,651 413,779
South East 2,611,139 44,802 7,244 5,587 57,633
Kent 448,284 8,290 1,494 1,242 11,026

Number of young carers in England, South East and Kent**

35% -

958
3.0%
201 1,148
1,160
838 England (2.54%)

T 1,296

P 1

830 691 1,047 855 Kent (2.46%)
South East (2.21%)

2.0% - 649 663
1.5
l_ms <
[]_5 -
0.0% : : : : : : : : : : !

=* ES

R

Ashford
Canterbury
Dartford
Daver
Gravesham
Maidstane
Sevenoaks
Shepway
Swale
Thanet
Tunbridge Welk

Tonbridge & Malling

Number of young carers in Districts in Kent*

34 Source: 2011 Census, table LC3304EW, Office for National Statistics




Kent has proportionally less young carers than England and proportionally more young
carers than the South East. However, all of the figures are likely to be an under
representation of the true value.

6.8 Capturing the views of Younq People

6.8.1 User engagement

Engagement with 28,737 young people in Kent, as part of the Kent Youth County Council
(KYCC) election, identified the following issues of concern to young people:

B Improve Public Transport
M Bullying
B Mental Health

m More activites, facilities &
events

M Equality for all young
people

M Give young people a say

1 Help young peaple stay

and feel safe
M Improve educational

opportunities
Improve Environment
Awareness

m Positive Images of Young
People

Figure 10: KYCC campaign results




At a separate children’s and young people’s workshop, participants were asked to identify
the most important needs and issues, which are reflected below>>:

Figure 11: Workshop results

6.8.2 Practitioner consultations

Staff consultation events were held in order to identify service gaps across Kent. The key
themes and number of responses are given below:

Number of
responses

Identified service gaps

Emotional / Mental Health and Wellbeing
Whole family approach / support
Needs-based approaches and intelligent use of data
Family trauma

Domestic Abuse

Special educational needs

Parenting support

Resources

Education and attendance

Pre-CAF flexible support

SLC

Gambling support

Child sexual abuse

Consistency of approach

Links to VCS / Community

Aspiration

Step down / Exit strategies

NININININ|W WD O

Figure 12: Staff consultations identified areas of need

* Fora complete summary please refer to the supplementary report: EHPS Commissioning, KCC (May
2015) Early Help & Preventative Services (EHPS) Commissioning intentions consultation with children and
young people — summary of consultation event.




6.8.3 Practitioner and stakeholder workshops

At workshop 1 the following were identified: key themes of need, how much of this need is
unmet and which tier and age range it was applicable to (see table below):

S 2
Sum of LS Tier % w| = % gé ) g
(SICeI Rank R unmet e orovided) 2 2| 2 | 2 (B9 S| 2
Need (%) a 0 - |@= <]
a O
Emotional & Mental Health 53 32% 42 1,2,3,4 v
Domestic Abuse 23 14% 48 1,2,3 4
Family Skills 21 13% 46 1,2,3,4 v
Housing & Financial 15 9% 38 1,2 v
Substance Misuse 13 8% 41 1,2 v
Special Educational Needs 13 8% 38 2,3 v
NEETs: Educational Attendance & Attainment 9 5% 28 1 v 4 v
NEETs: Youth Education & Employment 7 4% 35 1,2,3,4 v
Behaviour 4 2% 65 2,3 4
Early Development 3 2% 40 2,3 v
Youth Offending 2 1% 25 v v v
Obesity 1 1% 50 v v
Worklessness 1 1% 40 4

Figure 13: Workshop 1 Identified areas of need by tier and age group (based on existing
knowledge supported by data and information)®®

For a complete summary of Workshop 1 and 2 outputs please refer to the supplementary
report: Business Intelligence, KCC (May 2015) EHPS Commissioning, Analyse Phase:
Diagnostic Report, Technical Appendix.

6.8.4 Thematic analysis

Workshop 2 intended to identify common requirements/values which it would be important
for commissioned services to hold. The thematic analysis below was carried out on the
recorded outputs from Workshop 2. These were widely grouped into the following six
categories based upon commonalities in the themes recorded:

e Approaches — the theoretical or value-based grounding upon which the services
should be based;
e Engagement — the characteristics and practicalities of services’ work with families;

e Location — the environments in which the interactions between practitioners and
families should take place;

e Skills — the common skills required in order to effectively perform the services;

e Collaborative working — the partners or relationships required in order for services
to function effectively; and

¢ Information — the requirements around information and intelligence utilised,
collected and evaluated.

% «Carer’ applies to the parent or a young carer.




As each group in the workshop gave their thoughts on one specific issue, a number of
individual/more nuanced requirements were gathered around each of these issues. These
issue specific requirements are recorded in ‘Appendix 5: Thematic analysis’. The diagram
below shows the key common workshop themes provided by category.

Approach Engagement Location Skills

™~ n ” - ~ n - "
Holistic Whole .
Family working Flexible Home Based According to need
= o ) h ’ .,
r N r - r - r . -
Active
Evidence Based Responsive Community and listening/conflict
Public Spaces resolution/positive
role modelling
., b = e y .
r -
r = a4 =
Volunteers should
Grass roots be adequately
Needs based upwards trained
-
- - -

Figure 14: Workshop themes
6.8.5 Other recommendations:

e Where there are fixed-length engagements with families this is considered a
weakness -

e Flexibility in plans to allow for both focused and long term engagement is desirable.
e There should be no waiting lists.

e Families who had benefited from a programme could champion the service and in
turn, volunteer themselves in order to reach more of the community.

¢ Information should be shared with partners; in turn information available to partners
should be made available via the secure information sharing network. It is important
to use the same shared database, along with other EHPS workers.

e The collection of comparable data sets across services should be implemented in
order to assess which are the most cost-efficient and effective.

e Local knowledge/experience from practitioners should be systematically collected
(one group suggested during supervision). This should be fed back along with other
performance data.




7.8 Demand for services

7.8.1 What is driving demand for these services and what is our evidence for this?

Requests for EHPS can be investigated by analysing the source of notifications received.
See below:

District/Borough Council
Third Sector

Police\ Probation

Not Recorded

Housing Services

Family

KCC services
Schools 43.1%

Health 19.5%

T
0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0%

Figure 15: EHPS Notifications by Organisation Type — September 2014 to March 201537

Over 87% of EHPS natifications are from three sources - Health, KCC Services and
Schools.

A large proportion of demand for EHPS services is originating from schools (43.1% of all
EHPS notifications in total).

The figure below breaks down the sources of notifications from ‘KCC services’ further. The
majority of notifications (12.3% of the total number of notifications received) are made by
Children’s or Adult’'s Social Care.

Early Years Setting\EYPS Other

Early Help 0-25

Disabled Children's services\KCC
Services (other)

Commissioned Service

Children’s Social Care\ Adults Social

o,
Care 12.3%

T T T 1
0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0%

Figure 16: EHPS Notifications by KCC Services (as a percentage of the total number of
notifications received by EHPS) — September 2014 to March 201538

%" Information provided by the Management Information Team, Education and Young People’s Services,
KCC




The figure below breaks down the sources of notifications from ‘health services’ further.
The largest proportion of EHPS notifications is from community health (15.4% of the total
number of notifications received by EHPS). CAHMS and Acute trusts together contribute
less than 5% of total EHPS notifications.

Community Health 15.4%
CAMHS 2.8%
Acute Trust 1.3%

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0%

Figure 17: EHPS Notifications by Health Services (as a percentage of the total number of
notifications received by EHPS) — September 2014 to March 2015%

6.7 How is demand for these services likely to change and what will be the impact?

There are about 5000 open cases of children and young people currently being supported
by EHPS. The average case duration is about 12 weeks and currently 69% cases are
closed to KCC with a positive outcome. In about 10% of cases, the needs of the child or
young person require the protection of statutory intervention and are “Stepped up” to SCS.

Recent analysis as part of the 0-25 Transformation Programme has demonstrated that
demand in EHPS is uncertain and varies month on month and over time.

The population data, based upon the 2011 Census information, provides the latest
estimate of population growth in Kent (approximately 9% over 10 years). The projected
increase in the population could potentially lead to an increase in demand for EHPS
commissioned services. See below:

% Information provided by the Management Information Team, Education and Young People’s Services,
KCC




400,000 -
350,000 - _—
300,000 -
250,000 -
200,000 -
150,000 -
= K CC Area total
100,000 -
= K CC Area males
>0,000 - — KCC Area females
0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Figure 18: KCC area forecast population aged 0-17°°
Year Males Females Total
2015 168,200 159,600 327,800
2025 183,300 173,700 357,000
Change 15,100 14,100 29,200
% change 9.0% 8.8% 8.9%

Forecast change in population aged 0-17 in KCC area, 2015 - 2025%*

It is expected that demand for these services will increase in the short term as the offer is
made available to new and existing users.

In the medium term if EHPS commissioned services are successful in reaching user’s
outcomes, including preventing relapse, there will be less demand. In the long term, if
services continue to be effective, behaviour will change — meeting the long term strategic
outcomes — and demand will decrease further. See below:

% KCC Strategy Forecast (October 2014), Business Intelligence, Research & Evaluation, Kent County

Council




Demand for EHPS
Commissioned Services

Short Term Medium Term Long Term

Figure 19: EHPS commissioned services demand

As the new way of working within the EHPS Division is further embedded it is possible that
the drivers of demand will change. This change could be influenced by:

e Governance (and partnership working) e.g. the expansion of the pupil premium is
designed to “address inequality by giving every school and teacher the resources
they need to help their most disadvantaged pupils, allowing them the freedom to

respond appropriately to individual circumstances”.*

e More effective identification of ‘need’ due to underlying causes, rather than
symptoms, through better and more accurate assessment of children, young people
and families (e.g. underlying mental ill-health or domestic abuse).

e The earlier identification and addressing of ‘need’ in order to prevent escalation and
the demand for more intensive intervention and SCS.

e The effectiveness of EHPS in facilitating step downs from SCS. As step downs
increase, the demand for EHPS will increase accordingly.

e The forthcoming Emotional Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which seeks to focus on
the groundwork needed to envision and establish a ‘whole-system’ of support for
children, young people and young adults experiencing emotional and mental health
difficulties. The strategy acknowledges that individual commissioned services
cannot meet all of the needs and will draw together and focus the efforts of a wide
range of agencies.

40 Department for Education (2015) 2010 to 2015 government policy: education of disadvantaged children
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/2010-to-2015-government-policy-education-of-disadvantaged-
children/2010-to-2015-government-policy-education-of-disadvantaged-children#appendix-2-pupil-premium



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/2010-to-2015-government-policy-education-of-disadvantaged-children/2010-to-2015-government-policy-education-of-disadvantaged-children#appendix-2-pupil-premium
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/2010-to-2015-government-policy-education-of-disadvantaged-children/2010-to-2015-government-policy-education-of-disadvantaged-children#appendix-2-pupil-premium

7. Current Activities: In-house, externally commissioned and others

7.1 Effectiveness and cost

Currently there are a range of internal and external EHPS services. Across some tiers and
age groups there is evidence of clustering of external services (within additional and
intensive for ages 5 — 25).

For the EHPS external offer; based upon the original contracts awarded to these services,
performance has been either ‘good’ or ‘acceptable’. It is recommended that for future
EHPS commissioned services outcome focused, impact evaluations, where appropriate,
are conducted which feed into an overarching evaluation framework.

Individual ‘costs to service’ are available for some commissioned services, but not all of
those within scope. Due to the recent changes as a result of transformation there has
been a short term negative impact on performance which has begun to improve.

The internal and commissioned services currently being offered by EHPS are shown

below.

17-25

11-16

5-11

0-5
Parent/

Carer

Early Help Open Access Early Help Units*
Tier1l Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4
Universal Additional Intensive Specialist

Figure 20: EHPS internal services




Youth Work
(Commissioned
17-25 Services)
11-16
5-11
Young Carers Young Healthy Minds Domestic Abuse
Children’s Centres
0-5 (Commissioned
Services)
ort Service*
Parent /
Carer
Family Mediation
Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier3 Tier 4
Universal Additional Intensive Specialist

Figure 21: EHPS commissioned services

The following can be derived from the figures above:

e The EHPS internal services, open access support and case holding units and

specialist interventions, (post transformation) provide a broad coverage of tiers and
ages;

e A large range of internal and commissioned EHPS services are currently available;




For the services shown below, when available, the lead organisation, average duration,
average unit cost and waiting list are shown.

Service Average Duration Average Unit Cost
Children's Centres (Commissioned Services) .

— - Not Available
Youth Work (Commissioned Services)
Adolescent Support Services 29 weeks £1,111
Family Mediation 6 weeks £578.14
Fam!ly Intervention Projects, Integrated Family Support Service, 21 Weeks £1.322
Family Support
Domestic Abuse Support 7 weeks £430
Young Healthy Minds Not Available
Young Carers ongoing £197
Positive Relationships 15 Weeks £717.72
Parenting programmes 12 Weeks Varies according to

Programme

Figure 22: EHPS commissioned service information




7.2  Market position

Internally EHPS is currently undergoing transformation, and the new systems, practices,
and processes are bedding-in. The model requires staff to work systemically with the
range of issues a family presents. This is to reduce duplication of work and to ensure as
few professionals as possible are involved with a family, there of course, will be some
occasions where complementary services, programmes or activities are required to assist
vulnerable children and families.

Externally, over the last three years some providers have started to work more
collaboratively and in partnership and may be well placed to meet new procurement
challenges and models such as larger contracts or consortium arrangements with a
greater range of partners involved. However, there are still a range of micro and small
organisations that have yet to respond effectively to the changing landscape and have the
potential to be put at risk through the lack of infrastructure and experience of competing
for larger scale contracts. Any commissioning intentions will need to reflect both the need
for efficient procurement and localised opportunities to sustain and build upon the current
good practice undertaken by the micro and small VCS providers. While some providers
are well placed, others (micro and small VCS in particular) have yet to respond effectively.
Local research has shown that over 5 a year period smaller VCS organisations were at
increased risk of ceasing to exist.

Early findings from a current research project focused on VCS organisations who were
working with children and young people in universal and early intervention (then under the
banner of reducing social exclusion) services are shown below: 41

Size % % % % %
Increased | Decreased Ceased Merged Total
Micro < £10,000 5.1 35.9 56.4 2.6 16.9
Small £10,001 - £100,000 18.7 26.7 49.3 53 32.5
Medium £100,001 - £1m 46.5 33.8 16.9 2.8 30.7
Large £1m - £10m 67.9 25.0 0.0 7.1 12.1
Major >£10m 55.6 38.9 5.6 0.0 7.8
Total 33.8 31.2 31.2 3.9 100.0

Figure 23: VCS organisation outcomes in Kent 2008 — 2013 (this information should not
published or further cited without author consent)*

“1 Alison Body, Research Associate, University of Kent




The sample is based upon tracking the trajectory of 231 organisations registered with Kent
Children's Fund in 2008 (not necessarily funded by but identified as working with children
in Kent).

70

B Micro MSmall ™ Medium M Large ™ Major

Percentage

% Increased % Decreased % Ceased % Merged

Figure 24: VCS organisation outcomes in Kent 2008 — 2013 (this information should not be
published or further cited without author consent)

The findings show that there is a fairly even trend in organisations which have increased,
decreased, or ceased overall. However, but when broken down to size category the
figures demonstrate the increased risked to smaller organisations.




7.3  Integrating and aligning resources to maximise impact

The EHPS commissioning process is approaching joined up working with other partners
through several different mechanisms in order to strengthen our offer across the key
agendas of education, health and social care. By commissioning at a local District level,
this will allow:

e Engagement with and encouraging the growth of small / micro businesses and the
voluntary and community sector, e.g. within arts and culture.

¢ Increased involvement of District councils, parish councils, police, CCGs etc.

e Complementing existing funding steams to open up local funding for local
innovation. For example, a local grant creating opportunities for joint funding at a
local level.

e The recent integration of Public Health to into local authorities provides
opportunities to jointly plan and commission across EHPS and Public Health. Key
discussions currently involve how to complement and align:

0 The School Nursing service for secondary schools with EHPS adolescent
support

o The Emotional Wellbeing and CAMHS model and EHPS role
The future of Health Visiting

e Within the Troubled Families programme and Youth work KCC and District Councils
are working collaboratively to ensure that vulnerable adolescents and their families
lives can be improved. This includes sharing use of buildings and delivery hubs,
staff and resource to achieve the required outcomes.

¢ Internally linking to the appropriate cross partnership bodies will ensure that
dialogue takes place around the joining up of resources and activities e.g. Kent
Health and Wellbeing Board, Children’s Health and Wellbeing Board, Multi-Agency
Data and Information Group and Kent Safeguarding Children’s Board.

e Maximising KCC'’s investment through commissioning, including using EHPS
monies to pump prime other projects in localities and to use as joint investment in
innovative programmes. In addition, it is critical to recognise that a small
contribution to the VCS can often lever in greater amounts of investment of funding
to the county.




7.4  Late Intervention Spend

The Early Intervention Foundation (EIF) compiled a report detailing estimates of how
much the KCC public sector spends annually (2014-15) on Late Intervention affecting
children and young people, based on their national model.

1Local government spends the most on late intervention (£151 million) - approximately the
same amount in late intervention as the NHS, Police, Justice and Education combined.

160

151.6

140

120 118.2

100

£M, 2014-15 prices
]
[=]
~
h

NHS Palice Justice Local Government Education Welfare

Figure 25: Late Intervention spend by organisation (Em, 2014-15 prices)*

The EIF has also estimated how much of the total Kent and England and Wales budget is
currently spent on a number of key outcomes for children.

*2 |nformation provided by the Early Intervention Foundation, 21 May 2015




o Kent

£6bn

m England & Wales

£5.2bn

30% -

£118m

25% -

£3.7bn

200 -

15%

10%

£24.4m

£21.8m

£450m

mm‘

lfﬁaﬂm

Youth economic activity Crime and anti-social School absence and Child protection and Child injuries and mental  Youth substance misuse
behaviour exclusion safeguarding health problems

0% -+

Figure 26: Late Intervention spend by outcome in Kent and England and Wales (Em, 2014-15
prices)

The most significant areas of late intervention spend in Kent are youth economic inactivity
(including NEETS), child protection and safeguarding, and crime and anti-social behaviour.

It is noted that proportionally Kent spends more than England and Wales in the following
areas; youth economic inactivity (including NEETS), school absence and exclusion
(contributing to NEETS) and child injuries and mental health problems.

As previously shown, in Kent, the populations making up these cohorts are largely from
the same population segments and related to communities of deprivation.*®

3 KCC (2015) Children’s Risk Model (Presented by Business Intelligence)




8. Conclusions

The identification of need in the community supports and is consistent with the current
approach in EHPS to adopt a whole family approach to working with children, young
people and their families. The findings suggest that a partnership approach is considered
in commissioning external services, such as Public Health and Adult Social Care — e.g.
School Nursing, Health Visitors.

Localised community capacity and engagement can enable communities in creating
positive outcomes. Local knowledge can inform local solutions. It suggests that local,
smaller scale resources offering social value be considered in the commissioning of
external services, such as through a localised commissioning approach.

Complexity in demand provides the motivation for externally commissioned services to be
able to respond flexibly. It suggests that the approach to commissioning external services
should be reviewed regularly to ensure flexibility and thus remain complementary to the
new EHPS local authority delivered services including specialist children’s social care
services. The importance of measuring success supports the implementation of a
Performance and Evaluation Framework as part of the Three Year Plan as a basis for
appropriate referral, monitoring and review. The performance measures and indicators will
be reflected in service outcomes once agreed in the Plan. Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) and indicators in line with such a framework be relevant to the level of service —
whether universal additional, intensive or specialist .




Early Help & Preventative Services
(EHPS) Commissioning

Analyse Phase: Glossary, References
and Appendices
July 2015




Glossary, References and Appendices

9. Glossary of Terms

Black or Minority
Ethnic / BME

The terminology normally used in the UK to describe people of non-white
descent.

CAMHS

CAMHS stands for Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services. CAMHS
are specialist NHS services. They offer assessment and treatment when
children and young people have emotional, behavioral or mental health
difficulties

Child in Need / CiN

A Child in Need is a child who is unlikely to achieve or maintain, or have
the opportunity of achieving or maintaining, a reasonable standard of
health or development without the provision for him/her of services by a
local authority, whose health or-development is likely to be significantly
impaired, or further impaired, without the provision for him/her of such
services or whose is a Disabled Child.

Child Protection Plan /
CP

A child protection plan should assess the likelihood of the child suffering
harm and look at ways that the child can be protected, decide upon short
and long term aims to reduce the likelihood of harm to the child and to
protect the child’s welfare, clarify people’s responsibilities and actions to
be taken, outline ways of monitoring and evaluating progress.

Clinical
Commissioning Group
/| CCG

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) commission most of the hospital
and community NHS services in the local areas for which they are
responsible. Commissioning involves deciding what services are needed,
and ensuring that they are provided.

Common Assessment
Framework / CAF

The common assessment framework is‘a way of working out what extra
support-a child may need and how best to provide it.

Domestic Abuse
Notifications / DANs

When the police are called to an incident of domestic violence where
children are present, the police are required to send a referral to children
and families social services.

Early Help and
Preventative Services
| EHPS

Early Help reflects the widespread recognition that it is better to identify
and deal with problems early rather than respond when difficulties have
emerged and intervention can be less effective and often more expensive.

Early Help Notification
/ EHN

A form which referrers complete about a family/child detailing background,
reason for referral, etc. which is then sent by the Triage team to the
relevant Provider for intervention/support.

Early Help Unit model

Details of the Unit model are shown on page 17

Family Intervention
Project workers / FIP
Light

FIP and FIP Light workers are attached to Troubled Families teams in
each District of Kent, working directly with families

Free School Meals /
FSM

Some children are eligible to receive free school meals subject to criteria relating
to receipt of certain benefits — please see https://www.gov.uk/apply-free-school-
meals

Indices of Multiple
Deprivation / IMD
2010

The English Indices of Deprivation measures relative levels of deprivation
in small of England called Lower layer Super Output Areas (LSOAS)

Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment / JSNA

Primary Care Trusts and local authorities are required to produce a JSNA
of the health and well-being of their local community. This is a requirement
of The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.



https://www.gov.uk/apply-free-school-meals
https://www.gov.uk/apply-free-school-meals
https://www.gov.uk/apply-free-school-meals

Kent Family Support
Framework / KFSF

The Kent Family Support Framework is a streamlined process which aims
to provide support and replaced Assessment (CAF)

Key Performance
Indicator / KPI

Key Performance Indicator. Key Performance Indicators, also known as
KPI or Key Success Indicators (KSI), help an organization define and
measure progress toward organizational goals.

LGBT

LGBT stands for Lesbian/Gay/Bisexual/Transgender

Mosaic Groups

Mosaic means you can start treating them as an individual. It gives you the
intelligence you need to reach the right people with the right message at
the right time — every time

NEETs

A NEET is a young person who is "Not in Education, Employment, or
Training"

Specialist Children’s
Services / SCS

A team that deal with the specialised.needs of a child which require
specific help from a specific service.

Statement of Special
Educational Needs /
SEN

A Statement is a document which sets out a child’s SEN and any
additional help that the child should receive. The aim of the Statement is to
make sure that the child gets the right support to enable them to make
progress in school. A Statement is normally made when all the educational
provision required to-meet a child’s needs cannot reasonably be met by
the resources within a child’s school at School Action or School Action
Plus (known as Early Years Action or Early Years Action Plus in Early
Years Settings).

Step up / Step down

Refers to the transition into higher level or lower level services in order to
help the child or families better.

Tier 1/ Level 1
services

Universal, open access services

Tier 2/ Level 2
services

Additional and targeted services

Tier 3/ Level 3
services

Intensive services

Tier 4 / Level 4
services

Specialist services

Troubled Families

Troubled families are defined as those who are involved in youth crime or
anti-social behavior, have children who are excluded from school or
regularly truanting, have an adult on out-of-work benefits cost the public
sector large sums in responding to their problems

Voluntary and
Community Sector./
VCS

The voluntary sector or community sector (also non-profit sector or "not-
for-profit" sector) is the duty of social activity undertaken by organizations
that are not for-profit. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Voluntary sector -
cite_note-1 and non-governmental

Young Carers

Young carers are children and young people who often take on practical
and/or emotional caring responsibilities that would normally be expected of
an adult.




10. References

Alison Body (2015) Unpublished research Canterbury: University of Kent

Coles, B., Godfrey, C., Keung, A., Parrott, S., Bradshaw, J. (2010) Estimating the lifetime
cost of NEET: 16-18 year olds not in Education, Employment or Training York: University
of York

CPAG The Impact of Poverty: Key facts and figures
http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty Last accessed 09 June 2015

DCLG (2010) The English Indices of Deprivation 2010

Department for Communities and Local Government (2011) Best Value Statutory
Guidance, DCLG Publications

Department for Education (2015) 2010 to 2015 government policy: education of
disadvantaged children

Department of Health (2013), ‘No.5: DomesticViolence and Abuse — Professional
Guidance’

DWP (2005) Improving the life chances of disabled people: Final Report

Government Equalities Office (2010) An Anatomy of Economic Inequality in.the UK —
Summary Report of the National Equality Panel

HM Government (2012) Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012,
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/3/enacted last visited 28 May 2015

Kent County Council (2015) School Census

Kent County Council (2015) Supporting Independence & Opportunity: Draft Corporate
Outcomes Framework 2015-2019

Kent County Council (2015) Needs Analysis of the ‘Toxic Trio’ Business Intelligence
Kent County Council (2015) Children’s Risk Model

Kent County Council (2015) Early Help & Preventative Services (EHPS) Commissioning
intentions consultation with children and young people — summary of consultation event

Kent County Council (2015) Early Help & Preventative Services (EHPS) Commissioning
re-design - Update to the 0-25 Portfolio Board

Kent County Council (2015) A commissioning framework for Kent County Council:
Delivering better outcomes for Kent residents through improved commissioning

Kent County Council (2014) Business Intelligence Statistical Bulletin: Disability in Kent
December 2014

Kent County Council (2014) Early Help and Preventative Services Programme, Knet
http://knet/ourcouncil/Pages/0-25-transformation-EHPS-programme.aspx accessed on
11/06/2015

Kent County Council (2014) Early Help and Preventative Services Prospectus

Kent County Council (2014) Strategy Forecast

Kent County Council (2013) Every Day Matters: Kent’s Children and Young People’s
Strategic Plan 2013-16



http://www.cpag.org.uk/content/impact-poverty
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/3/enacted
http://knet/ourcouncil/Pages/0-25-transformation-EHPS-programme.aspx

Kent County Council (2011) Business Intelligence Statistical Bulletin: 2011 Census:
Cultural diversity in Kent

ONS (2013) Mid-year estimates
ONS (2011) Census Key Statistics

Social Care Institute for Excellence (2011) Think child, think parent, think family: a guide
to parental mental health and child welfare

Social Care Institute for Excellence (2005) Briefing: Parenting Capacity and Substance
Misuse

Stonewall (2013) The Gay British Crime Survey 2013

Stonewall (2008) Prescription for change: Lesbian and bisexual women’s health check
2008

Stonewall (2008) Serves you right: Lesbian and Gay people’s expectations of
discrimination

Stonewall (2007) The school report: The experiences of young gay people in Britain’s
schools

The Children’s Society (2013) Hidden from view: The experiences of young carers in
England




Appendix 1: Questions which should be answered

All guestions below have been extracted from Kent County Council (2015) A
commissioning framework for Kent County Council: Delivering better outcomes for Kent
residents through improved commissioning

ANALYSE: Questions the Diagnostic report should answer

Al What are the challenges we are seeking to address?

A2 What are the needs of our residents and/or service users and how are
these likely to change?

A3 What are practitioners and service users telling us?

A4 What other resources are being used totackle similar issues and
outcomes?

A5 What is driving demand for these services and what is.our evidence for
this?

A6 How is demand for these services likely to change and what will be the
impact?

A7 How effective are.the services currently being delivered and what is the
current cost?

A8 What is the state of the current market and how is this likely to change?

A9 Is KCC the best placed organisation to provide services to support this
outcome?

Al10 How can we join up resources and activities with other partners to
maximise our impact?

All | What are the outcomes we are seeking to achieve through this new
commissioning exercise?

Al12 What will success look like?

Table 7: Questions the Diagnostic report should answer




Appendix 2: Mosaic L, M. N, O profile summaries

Experian-

L + L49 - 150 =+ L51 =~ L52

Transient Renters City of Kingston upon Hull
Single people privately renting low cost homes for the short term ﬁ 6.45% ‘ 5.95% ‘-

Who We Are

Household Income % \5‘."

Channel Preference

A
£20k-£29k o o o
325% 158 Be
i D
Number of children .
94 110 118

No children

Key Features Technology Adoption

= Private renters ; e 55
= Low length of residence . -
® Low cost housing roperty type I

= Singles and sharers Terraced

= Older terraces
® Few landline telephones K 53 6%

+ se s
-

£} Experian®

L - L49 =+ 150 - 151 =~ L52

3352 Age 5-11
35.5 Age 12-17

Adult mean age
H of HH mean age

1.89% Farm ] 0.01%

|
[

66+ ] 0.96% Age <5
|

| || 16.23% Named building ] 0.20%

Transient Renters City of Kingston upon Hull

Single people privately renting low cost homes for the short term ﬂ 6.45% ‘ 5.95% ;
( Age N Children Property Type h
18-25 B 2020 No children B 86.25% Detached ] 1.82%
26-35 35.74% 1 child | | 8.19% Semi-detached [ | 19.59%
36-45 | 18.19% 2 children || 4.26% Bungalow ] 1.62%
46-55 11.66% 3 children | 0.96% Terraced 59.57%
56-65 416%| | 4+ children [ 0.34% Purpese built flats | 14.42%

| 122% Converted flats | 2.98%

Age >18 8.56%
Household Composition Home Ownership

Families - 4.55% Household Income Owned - 16.24%
Extended family ] 128% <E15k B 26.84% Rented | 355 (RIS
Extended household [ | 400% £15k-£19K B e Council / HA [ | 22.52%
Pseudo family | IREERE £20k-£29k Bl o
Single male [ ] 2266% £30k-£39k B 1.66% Online Access
Single female B 27.79% £40k-£49k B 8.68% Every day | 73.43%
Male homesharers 577% £50k-£59k - 3.83% Most days l 17.75%
Female homesharers 6.20% £60k-£69k - 131% Weekly I 4.87%
Mixed homesharers 1.27% £70k-£99k - 1.04% Monthly . 1.90%
Abbr male families | 1.49% £100k-£149k | 0.18% Not at all B 2.08%
Abbr female families [ | 148% | | £150k+ I 0.04% | )




M +« M53 -

Family Basics

M54

M55 + M56

Families with limited resources who have to budget to make ends mest

Key Features
= Families with children
= Aged 25 to 40
= Limited resources
= Some own low cost homes
= Some rent from social landlords
= Sgueezed budgeis

;1.8 Experian

B 7.22% |874% L

Household compaosition

Family +
other adults
33.9% 171

Tenure

Council / HA

55.5%

Who We Are

Household Income

<£15k

203%

Number of children

3 children

142% 332

Property type

Terraced

51.8%

)
=,
Ao

10

86

Channel Preference

5%

102
@0
o

103 118

Technology Adoption

M +« M53 -

Family Basics

M54

M55 « M56

Families with limited resources who have to budget to make ends meet

s a
e

:£.3: Experian-

Sandwell
B 7.22% | 874% &

Age
18-26
26-35

36-45 e

46-55 |

56-65 B
|
|

66+
H of HH mean age l

Adult mean age

Household Composition

Families

Extended family
Extended household
Pseudo family
Single male

Single female

Male homesharers
Female homesharers
Mixed homesharers
Abbr male families
Abbr female families

~

17.53%
28.34%
3062%
19.69%
3.06%
0.76%
36.61
3987

23.12%
15.75%
13.82%
15.56%
3.31%
14.73%
0.75%
321%
5.35%
0.89%

344%

Children )
No children - 1.74%
1 child | 280 GG
2 children | 300 pAEEA
3 children B 2
4+ children 10.57%
Age <5 25.50%
Age 5-11 30.28%
Age 12-17 B >
Age >18 B 10.23%

Household Income

<£15k [ ] 2027%
£15k-£19K 1 8.84%
£20k-£29k B 26 58%
£30k-£39K | 17.32%
£40k-£49K | 11.34%
£50k-£59k B 471%
£60k-£69K | 123%
£70k-£99K e 0.62%
£100k-£149K ] 0.08%
£150k+ e 0.01% |

Property Type
Detached 1.90%
Semi-detached . 35.43%
Bungalow - 2.91%
Terraced - 51.85%
Purpose built flats - 7.37%
Converted flats - 0.54%
Farm 0.01%
Named building - 0.11%

Home Ownership

Owned || 36.61%
Rented [ 7.86%
Council / HA 55.53%

Online Access
Every day | 71.08%
Most days I 20.42%
Weekly . 4.07%
Monthly [ | 1.28%
Not at all | 3.14%

-

S




N + N57 =+ N58 -

N Vintage Value

N59 + N60 + N61

Elderly people reliant on support to meet financial or practical needs

Key Features
= Eiderly
= Living alone
" | ow income
= Small houses and flats
= Need support
" Low technology use

Experian

South Tyneside
B 682% |473% L

Who We Are

Household Income

<£15k

50.4%

Number of children

No children

Tenure Property type

Council f HA

54.9%

\)
~3
)

15

112

Channel Preference

5%

88
o0
A
109 71

Technology Adoption

Late Majority

. s o
1)

‘1.4 Experian

.
.

N =+ N57 + N58 =+ N59 + N60 -+ N61

Vintage Value South Tyneside

Elderly people reliant on support to meet financial or practical needs ﬂ\ 6.82% | 4‘?3%£

( Age h Children Property Type 1
18-25 B 0.89% No children [ ] 98.85% Detached 1.24%
26-35 e 133% 1 child I 0.75% Semi-detached [ | 17.46%
36-45 - 2.44% 2 children - 0.30% Bungalow - 13.90%
46-55 [ 529% 3 children I 0.07% Terraced | 31.08%
56-65 | 12.87% 4+ children I 0.02% Purpose built flats Py 34.50%
66+ | 365 [uAE Age <5 [ ] 2.02% Converted flats | | 1.86%
Adult mean age [ ] 7187 Age 5-11 [ ] 2.74% Farm I 0.01%
H of HH mean age || 7429 Age 1217 [ ] 4.36% Named building [ 0.22%
Age >18 | 1.88%
Household Composition Home Ownership

Families || 13.69% Household Income Owned B 35.00%
Extended family I 328% <15k 50.35% Rented [ | 10.08%
Extended household [ 1.44% £15k-£19k B o Council / HA | 208 TR
Pseudo family [ 2.56% £20k-E29k | 18.43%
Single male | RS £30k-£39k [ 467% Online Access
Single female 47.41% £40k-E49k I 1.46% Every day | 63.60%
Male homesharers - 0.80% £50k-£59k - 0.54% Most days | 22.58%
Female homesharers I 1.95% £60k-£69k - 027% Weekly . 7.95%
Mixed homesharers - 0.63% £70k-£99k - 0.37% Monthly - 2.67%
Abbr male families | 1.30% £100k-£149k I 0.10% Not at all ] 3.20%
Abbr female families | 262%| | £150k+ e 0.02% )




o « 062 + 063 -

Municipal Challenge

064 -+ 065 -

Urban renters of social housing facing an array of challenges

J
Key Features Slng]e NO Ch Ild ren Technology Adoption )
= Social renters 813%
= Low cost housing | |
= Challenged neighbourhoods FOpIty fypa |
= Few employment options
= Low income +
= Mobile phones Early Majority
_/

* se e
o

& 6.46% | 569% L

1.4 Experian®

Hackney

Who We Are

Household Income

<£15k

Household composition Number of children

Channel Preference
\3

v

29 98

115

< 5%

a9

105

Unem i TSR e,
o g
';"n'k'f'.-.huf_,l’ffﬂl e

Sheneii

o « 062 -+« 063 -

Municipal Challenge

Urban renters of social housing facing an array of challenges

064 + 065 -

. ee e
.

:5..: Experian-

e

Hackney

B 6.46% | 569% X

Age Y[ Children Property Type

18-25 | 9.22% No children | 81.20% Detached I 0.85%

26-35 | 18.19% 1 child [ | 7.20% Semi-detached [ | 12.80%

36-45 | 19.15% 2 children [ | 6.14% Bungalow e 2.76%

46-55 - 24.01% 3 children l 3.43% Terraced I 22.14%

56-65 I 262%| | 4+children | 185% Purpose built flats 58.73%

66+ || 8.81% Age <5 B 7.82% Converted flats | 2.92%

Adult mean age | 46.3 Age 5-11 l 9.85% Farm - 0.00%

H of HH mean age | 49.38 Age 12-17 | 12.75% Named building - 0.04%

Age >18 | 12.42%
Household Compesition Home Ownership

Families - 10.84% Household Income Owned - 10.34%

Extended family [ ] 5.21% <€15k 43.95% Rented [ ] 7.94%

Extended housshold [ | 4.74% £15k-£19k B o2 Council / HA T 51729

Pseudo family | 8.63% £20k-£29k ] 2272%

Single male Bl s £30k-£39k B 1.65% Online Access

Single female [ | 25 56% £40k-E49K || 479% Every day | 67.04%

Male homesharers - 2.85% £50k-£59k - 169% Most days I 23.11%

Female homesharers - 4.25% £60k-£69k - 1.36% Weekly I 5.43%

Mixed homesharers B 5.21% £70k-£99k I 1.02% Monthly | 1.60%

Abbr male families B 2o £100k-£149k I 0.10% Not at all | 2.82%
| Abbr female famiiies B 287%f | £150ks e 0.01% )




Appendix 3: External services referrals - EHN categories

Agzlesz‘ratnt Domestic Domestic Family In,tz r::i:‘y"e In't:e::rsli;ny.'e Positive Positive Parenti Young
WcFrJ:ers Abuse Abuse Mediation Support Support Relationships | Relationships ng Carers
North South | East West EastSouth | North West N°rt‘:'\;,ei?‘°'t & south
;i:re)s Referred in 14/15 (w hole 1377 385 196 419 522 300 218 &7 1660
1:1 case F:':(t:::d Meainly in the | Malnly in the ;r.ﬁ:hw‘(;:
workwih some 1:1 home family | home family Classroom Chubs” 1:1
Methodology s;::hg Group w ork 1:1work :g:dh: ba.sFe;:;;k— bas:;;k_ Group work | Groupwork Ieamba::dfor de:jﬂ;ﬁ:"lm
supportthe | model of model of parents
group work whaefamlv| workdng | working Y::‘;d(;f
v - - - - B - - v v
ASDVADHD 17 4
Anger Man. 47 9 4
Anxiety/stress/panic 29 1 3 11
Autism/ Aspersers spectrum 2 1
Behaviour 65 16 2 53 9 19 39
Boundary setting 32 45 17 20
Bullying 15 6
Child Mental Health 13 18 3
Child Substance Misuse 8
Communic ation 34 8 5
Debt and Money management 14 18
Domestic Abuse (Experiencing) 8 8 24 26 4
Domestic Abuse (Witnessing) 12 100 6 80
Engagement w ith Ed. (Child) 58 27
Exclusion/ missing from education 32 4
:?cn.'lily events (divorce/separation 54 5 1 1 29 7 9
Family events (divorce/separation) 7 4 pal 6
Gender Identity - Child 6
Gender Identity - Adult
oy o 1 o s
Improving social netw orks 46 12
Keeping your child safe 12 7
Learning Disabilities (Child) 1 1 20
Loss and Bereavement 10 2
Ic_::‘vduit:ucahcnal attainment due to 37 4
Low Self Esteem/ Confidence 63 1 7 42 "
Maintaining a family routine 23 5 21 T
Meeting emotional needs 44 4 2% 62 4
Parenting T 1 2
Cther Learning Disabilities 18 13 1
Parental Mental Health 7 13 31
Promoting good health 6 7 51
Providing a stable home environment 5 3 23 9
Speech and Language Difficulties
Sexuality (LGBT) - Child 2
Sexuality (LGBT) - Adult
Substance Msuse (adult) 1 9
Supperting learning (adult) 1 1
Young Parent
Young Carer 71 100
Other 4 44 8




Appendix 4: Feedback from staff consultation events

uo13239||02 ejep pue yiomiaded
1U31SISUO) - elep paseq SpasN

(zS) 01 S4A3) Bupjoesy sswodno
wJ33-3u0 - elep paseq spaaN

yi|eaH |ewuaN

(s19snyau
[00Y2S) S2uepuUdNY pue uolnesnp]

(s101e019duad 1€ pawie) y@g

(1opow uoidweyd
|BD0] ‘SPa3U puk SaNSS| 01 payul|
e}ep |ed0|) |apow paseq-spasN

asnge Jdl}sawoqg

(@d0
‘elqoyd '3'3 [9A9] SINHYD-34d) gMH3

(s@a19s @ Ajlwey) va

(ssuewwns
2nso|2) sa13a1e1s 1xa/umop dais

voddns 9|qIxa} 4vJ-34d

(s19sn4au pue uoiediynnou
4vD) Hoddns 3|qIxa|} 4¥D-2.d

(poddns a|qixa|4) Sunuaied

(sayoeoudde
|e207) E1Ep PasSeq SpasaN

poddns asnqe|enxas p|Iyd

yoddns Sujjques

(sd14 404) s@2unosay

uonedsidse Jo e

(shoq) amH3

(s12124d4m1u1 - poddns saljiwey pue
uaJp|Iyd S13) SdUepuLIE pUE UOIIEINPT

yoeoudde Ajiwed yuiyy

(Juswanealaq) ewneuy Ajlwe4

(s198euasl) poddns Ajiwe4

(Juswanealaq) ewneul Ajlwe4

(uonesedas
quawanealaq) ewnedy Ajlwe4

ANUNWIWOI/SOA YoM syulT

(parg Alie3
‘9’1 gHQV/asy woddns Ajiwe4) N3S

(dA pue siaSeuasy
JO spaau Supaaw 1ou) yijeay |eaus|Al

(@20 ‘eiqoyd
:8'3 |9A3| SHVD-24d) gMH3

(FUSWUO[ONSP PTYJI S[JOM
uonisuesy ‘poddns Ajiwey o1 Ajlwey
‘Suliolusw 193d) poddns Ajiwe4

(sewwesdoud
Sunuaued saiqeq Al) Sunuaied

(sana
9|geueo| ‘89 saljlwey J0}) S92IN0SaY

uswdo|anap IJ1S

(4o340m T) yoeoudde jualsisuo)

Yijeay |eausw }npe o3 yul]

(Suiuassy
9A110E ‘SUl|]3SUNOd [9A3] JaMO]) GMHI

(8uiuaisi) annoe ‘8uyjasunod
[9A3] 43MO]) GMH3

(onsijoy) poddns Ajiwe4

(poau 4amo| swoy ul) poddns Ajiwe4

(stsuo ut'satjiwey) pyoddns Ajiweq

(Juswissasse/iuawanels
-a4d) N3S

Aemdays / piojysy

Janoq /vueyy / sjems / Ainguajue)

suoispieiN / sjl9m 23pliquny / Suljle|N 8
adpuquo] / syeouanas / weysanelo / piojlieq

ua)




Appendix 5: Thematic analysis

Early years open access and targeted support

e Resources

o
o
o

Access to systems
Play equipment
Funds for engagement e.g. coffee

e Supervision

o

Receive good quality supervision and support

Approaches

(0}

O 00O

Holistic/whole family
Non-judgemental
Non-authoritarian
Strength-focussed
Knowledge-based
= Realises impact of trauma on brain development

Engagement

o
Location
o

Skills

O O0O0O0OO00O0

(0}

Must be flexible - Longer/shorter engagement plans

Multiple areas
= Home
= Community/children’s centres
= Telephone

Active listening

Ability to model behaviours
Positive role modelling
Time management
Play/development

Poverty alleviation

Debt management
Employability support

Collaborative working

(0]
(0]

With existing local partners and able to refer to them
Health services e.g. mental health, breastfeeding, smoking

0 Adult education e.g. literacy and numeracy

(0]

Uses volunteers to engage families, act as mentors and build capacity

Information
Must be shared between partners

(0]




5-11 Open access and targeted support

Approaches
o Safe and confidential
o Everyday approach
o Communicate well — shows we value people
0 Restorative
Engagement
0 Multiple areas
= Social media
= Virtual groups
= Real relationships
Rapid — no waiting list
Must be timely
Flexible
Consistent presence
Utilise community assets

O O0O0O0O0

Location
0 Based locally in community, not office i.e. youth centre, supermarket,
children’s centre
Skills
Self-awareness
Focus on emotional need
Active listening
Conflict resolution

O 00O

12+ Open access and targeted support

Resources
o Requires filtered information on issues/needs from scorecards
o0 Needs information from workforce
= Must be able to cross-reference datasets and capture gaps in
the workforce
0 Requires service-level agreements to set expectations
Supervision
o Key to role
o Can be used to capture workforce intelligence
Approaches
o Evidence-based/guided by intelligence
Engagement
0 Must be proactive between services and interventions
0 Be responsive
o Flexibility
0 Must be based on local gaps/needs (District and sub level)
Collaborative working (with partners)
Information
0 Needs information sharing protocol
Services must be tested/evaluable
Services must be testable
WEMWABS to track outcomes

(elNelNe]




Substance misuse

Approaches
0 Holistic/whole family
o Child-based
Engagement
0 Needs to work with a “light touch”
o Can’'t work with people under the influence — how can this be safely
overcome?
Location
0 Uses multiple areas
= Children’s centre
= Schools
= Youth centres
= “Busses and marquees”
Collaborative working
o Primary MH
Schools (FLOs, SENCOSs)
CSA
Police
Health (midwives, health visitors, school nurses)

O O0OO0Oo

Housing/Financial

Approaches
o0 Needs-based
= Harness local knowledge
o Co-designed (within community)
0 Sustainable
o Mindful
o0 Range of delivery models
Engagement
o0 Flexible model (to adapt if not working)
o Engage community at every stage
0 Consistency of presence
0 Approach and programme should grow organically
Location
o Multiple areas
= Wherever community is
= Range of public spaces
Collaborative with partners
0 Housing providers
Voluntary sector
Workers with expertise and local knowledge
Volunteers, befrienders, mentors, influential community members
Key community members
Arts and cultural organisations and individuals

O O0O0O0O0




Family and parenting

Engagement
0 One-offs don’t work very well
0 Be consistent, not just stops
0 Uses volunteers
= Up-front investment in infrastructure for volunteers can save
money over time
= Must ensure enough volunteers as not enough are available
0 Use mentors/champions who have already been through the
programme
0 Must engage families in rural areas as well as population centres
o Flexible
= Shorter engagements as 12 weeks is a long commitment (could
offer 6 week focussed courses
= Across age ranges
o0 Could offer food incentives to families to complete courses
o0 Open every day including Saturday and Sunday.
0 Remain open past 16:30 as some families can only access after this
time
Approach
0 Non-stigmatising
0 No logos
0 Needs identified based on consultation with users
Location
0 Mustbe suitable
o Offer an outreach to hard to reach families
Collaborative working
o Colocation at sites with other partners
Midwives
Health visitors
Children’s Centres
GPs
VCS - through libraries, arts and culture

O O0OO0OO0Oo

Emotional/mental health

Approach
0 Use of creative approaches e.g. artistic facilitation, mirroring, modelling
o0 Focus on change and prevention not just on diagnosis
0 Gardening i.e. allotments
Engagement
0 Use champions
o “Train the trainers” approach to engage community
Location
o Tailored environment
0 Shared spaces e.g. eating, experiences
Collaborative working
0 VCS e.g. Youngminds, MIND, Children’s Society, NCVS
o Libraries, pubs, community centres, cafes, wellbeing centres




Skills

(elNelNe]

(0]

Social services and early help practitioners (especially around
vulnerable groups)

CBT

Art therapy

Practical interventions e.g. sport and physical activity
Diet

Information

o
(0}
o

Must be evidence-based
Must show what works
Gather evidence of impact

Domestic Violence

Approaches

o
o
o
o
o

Identify trigger points within families i.e. financial pressures
Whole family, holistic

Includes educational, social and emotional elements
Sensitivity to individual needs

Include restorative processes

Engagement

o
o
o

o

o]

Location
o
o]

Skills

O OO

(0}

Should not drop-off after engagement

Continuum of services

Promotional materials e.g. leaflets, posters, digital media, word of
mouth

Flexible, with county offer and rapid response, bespoke targeted
service component.

Appropriate to the level of need

In. home
Place where service user is safe/lcomfortable

Community development

Promote internal learning

Supervision

Drama/music/art workshops in schools

Collaborative working

@]

O o0OO0oo

(0]

Clear communication with partners
Children’s centres

Youth hubs

Schools

Housing providers

Voluntary sector

Information

o
(0}

Must be evidence-based
Includes training on why we collect data and understanding of local
intelligence and its use.




tors

ICa

EHPS Ind

Appendix 6

EHPS One Year Plan 2014-2015 (July 2014) — Performance Indicators and Targets

0S€ 14 SHINVD Aq JuswIssasse Ja1je Juaileal) dulIN0J 10y SullieM Jaquinu 3y} 3dnpay
0008 6768 (¥10Z AeIN) Yruow 3ya Jo pua 1e uado syuailed Jo) ‘Peo|ased SHIANYD 2INpay
00L 819 V1 9Y1 Aq 1ISIA B 9A19231 OYM WOy 1B 31eINP3 01 U1193|3 S3I|IWe) JO JaqUINN
%0L %95 umoud| Sulwo3q Jo SABP O UIYIIM UOIIBINPS B|ge}INS PJID440 UOIIeINPT SUISSI UaJp|IYD J0 98ejuadiad ay) asealou|
00T €LT sdiysaoipuasdde uo sisulea| 3|geISUINA JO JBqUINU BY) SSEAIDU|
%8'TT %L'ET %0T %0T Aq AdueuSaid Jo pua ay3 1e 930Ws ||13S OYM S13yl0w 01 uIoq salqeq Jo a8ejuadiad ay) aonpay
%07 %9€ SW11 JOAO P3aUIRISNS Pue S}23M Y313 01 XIS 1B pajIsealq Sulaq uaJap|iyd jo aSerusdiad syl asealdu|
%09 %05 sawwesdoud 1ay10 4o Sunpuased Sunnajdwod sdnoud 198.1e3 wouy spualed Jo a8ejuaduad ayy aseasdu|
%0S %9€ %81 28e15 uonepunod sieap Alie3 aya uljuswdo|aAap Jo S|aAd| poo3 SulAaIYde IAISH YIIM uaap|iyd Jo a8ejuadiad ay) asealou)
vdl val 2J1Ud) S,UaJP[1YD B Y1IM 10BIUOD PBUIRISNS DABY OYM BIJE 33 Ul SUIAI| G Japun uaJp|Iyd Yaim saljiwey) AjioLd jo adejuadiad ay) asealou|
val veal 9J3UD S,UdJpP|IYD B Y3IM pala1sidal ase oym Alanod ul SulAl| G aapun uaJp|Iyd Yim saljiwey Jo a8eiusdiad syl asealdu|
J2% VN [43 (491enD yoea Jo pua 1e J0ysdeus) peojased ad11SN[ YINOA 3y} U0 348D Ul UaJp|IyD JO Jaquinu ay) adnpay
%S'€ %€V s|esodsip 1no9 Jo a8ejusdiad e se SIUUIS |BIPOISNI 30NPAY
%1€ %E'SE P a33 9|doad 3unoA Aq Suipuajjo-au Jo 91eJ BY3 dNpPaY
879 VN 869 %0T AQ Wa1sAS 8213SN[ YINOA dY3 01 SIUBJIUS SWI} ISJ1} JO JaqUINU By} 3dNpay
%08 %19 ,0M1 10} 934y, dn Supjel uasp|iyd jo a8ejusdiad ay) asealdu|
%98 %58 s8u1119s SulpuelsIno 1o poo3 ul sp|o JeaA z papuny Jo 98e1uadlad
%EY %6L. JUBW U3 344 dn Sujey splo Jeah z paliausapl dMa 4o d8eiusdiad sy aseasou|
%SL %CL uoipadsul pa1sj0 Suimo||o} 19119q 40 pooS Jo Juawadpn( e Sulaladaa Sa43ud) S,ualp|iy) 4o a8eruadiad ay) asealdu|
€z 9C 14 (£1-ST pa8e uswom oot 43d) Jueudasd swodag oym uswom 3unoA jo a8ejusdiad syl onpay
068 Wit sdnoJ3 a|qesau|nA wouy Suiwod S1IIN JO Jaquinu ay) adnpay
%'C %6°'S |1e49A0 $133N 40 28ejusdiad ay3 dnpay
%0L VN %0€E punoJe pauini 1oyod T aseyd jo adejuadiad :sajjiwed pajgnou]
%56 VN %8 Y1IM PayJOM pue paljlauapl Moyod T aseyd jo a8ejusdiad :saljiweq pajgnody
%S'S %L9 101295 AJepu0das ay) Ul 9duasqe Jua1sisiad JO [9A3] Byl 2oNpPaY
6€ 9L suoIsn|axa Juauew.ad Alepuodas Jo Jaquinu ayj adnpay
S299 €8/9 SUOISN|IXd WU} PaxIy AJepuodas Jo Jaquinu 3yl dNpay
%8°C %1€ 102095 Alewud ay) ul @duasqe Jua3s1siad JO [9A3] Y] 2INpaY
€C 9C %0T Aq suoisnpxa Jusuewuad Arewnd jo Jaquinu ay3 dnpay
000T LOTT 9%0T Aq suoisn|oxa wua) paxiy Aewnd Jo Jaquinu ay)l aonpay
%E8 %99 %S¢ Aq 9W021n0 aA11IS0d 3|RINSEIW B LY1IM PBSO|d S4VL pue sS4y Jo a8ejuadiad ay) asealou|
LS 14 6T-9T ‘dnou8 a8e uad 000 ‘0T 42d pa1a|dwod syuawssassy djaH Ape3
9€T LTT 9T-TT ‘dnoud a8e uad 000 ‘0T 42d paia|dwod syuswssassy d|aH Aje3
ST €T TT-S ‘dnou8 a8e uad 000’0t 42d pa19|dwod syuawssassy djaH Ajeg
€01 98 -0 ‘dnoud a8e uad 0O ‘0T 42d pa19|dwod syuawssassy d|aH Ajue3
oSt 009 %G¢ Aq aue) |enos Aioiniels o1 d|sH AjJe3 wody sdn dais aonpay
067T SPTT %0€ Aq d|aH AjJe3 01 aJe) |e1pos Aloniels wody sumop dais aseatou|
%SC %9°9¢ %9 AQ $921A13S S,ua4p|IYD 1511 123dS 03 S|eJI9}24-3) dNPAY
64491 TvL6T %GT Aq S921A13S S,ua1p (1Y) 15!1|eadS 01 S|eliajal NPy
ST0C V10T |[euolieN | $TOZ 3uUd)
198.e] 198.e] sduewIOMad 1oiealpul

EHPS performance indicators and targets (one year plan)

Table 8




EHPS Prospectus (May 2014) — Performance Indicators 0-11 year olds

Priorities for 0-11 year olds

Key Performance Measures

We will keep vulnerable and
disadvantaged children safe
without the need of specialist
children’s services

Number of CAFs completed per 10,000 population for 0-4 year olds and 5-11 year olds

% and number of TAFs closed because the case has escalated to Children's Social
Services for 0-4 year olds and 5-11 year olds

% and number of SCS cases closed that have been stepped down to
CAF/Preventative Services for 0-4 year olds and 5-11 year olds

% and number of TAF's open for 3 months or less when outcomes were achieved for
0-4yearolds and 5-11 year olds

% and number of TAF's open for 6 months or less when outcomes were achieved for
0-4yearolds and 5-11 year olds

% and number of TAF's open for 12 months or less when outcomes were achieved for
0-4 yearolds and 5-11 year olds

% and number of referrals with a previous referral within 12 months for 0-4 year olds
and 5-11year olds

We will reduce health
inequalities in the early years
and during childhood and
ensure we improve physical and
mental health outcomes

% of mothers breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks from birth

Obesityl % of obese children in Reception and Year 6

% Prevalence of smoking during pregnancy

Number of A&E attendances for 0-4 year olds and 5-11 year olds

Number of teenage mothers

Number of children supported by CAMHS with a positive outcome

Reduction in the number of children referred to CAMHS

Reduction in waiting and treatment times for CAMHS

We will ensure vulnerable and
disadvantaged children access
and participate in good quality
childcare and education and
achieve good

% and number of fixed term exclusions at primary school

% and number of permanent exclusions at primary school

% and number of persistent absentees receiving early help

% and number of take up of EYFE for two year olds, and

three and four year olds

% of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development2

% of pupils at KS1 achieving L2B+in Reading, Writing and Mathematics 3

% of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, Writing and Mathematics4

% reduction in attainment gaps for pupil premium pupils at EYFS, KS1 And KS2

We will ensure early help
services support children and
families to be resilient and
overcome barriers to achieving
their potential

Number of families who receive early help support who report a positive outcome in
helping them to move on

% of families contacted within 8 weeks of child being born - Children’s Centre

Number of families supported through the Troubled Families Programme that
achieve good outcomes and are turned around (with child under 11)

% and number of families in each reach area who engage with Children’s Centres

% of families with children living in poverty under 11 who access employment and
who take up maximum benefits

Table 9:

EHPS performance indicators 0-11 (prospectus)




EHPS Prospectus (May 2014) — Performance Indicators 12-1- year olds

Priorities for 12-19 year olds

Key Performance Measures

We will ensure that more young
people receive help earlier so
that their needs do not escalate
and require support from
specialist provision

Number of CAFs completed per 10,000 population for 12-16 year olds and post 16
year olds

% and number of TAFs closed because the case has escalated to Children's Social
Services for 12-16 year olds and post 16 year olds

% and number of SCS cases closed that have been stepped down to
CAF/Preventative Services for 12-16 year olds and post 16 year olds

% and number of TAF's open for 3 months or less when outcomes were achieved for
12-16 year olds and post 16 year olds

% and number of TAF's open for 6 months or less when outcomes were achieved for
12-16 year olds and post 16 year olds

% and number of TAF's open for 12 months or less when outcomes were achieved for
12-16 year olds and post 16 year olds

% and number of referrals with a previous referral within 12 months 12-16 year olds
and post 16 year olds

We will ensure young people
are helped to avoid harm from
substance misuse and risky
behaviours and they benefit
from improvements in support
for mental health and wellbeing

Number of young people supported by CAMHS with a

positive outcome

Reduction in the number of young people referred to CAMHS

Reduction in waiting and treatment times for CAMHS

Number and % of teenage pregnancies and single mothers aged under 20

Self-reported use of drugs and alcohol and reduction in drug misuse

Attendance by young people at A&E for deliberate or unintentional harm

Chlamydia rates for 15-24 year olds

We will ensure that all young
people aged 11-19 are positively
participating in EET, and
achieving and progressing well
to employment or higher
learning

Percentage of persistent absenteeism by young people receiving early help

Percentage of NEETs

Percentage and number of fixed term exclusions for young people receiving early
help

Percentage and number of permanent exclusions for young people receiving early
help

Percentage and number of young people attending PRUs or alternative provision
who achieve a good outcome at age 16 and have a positive destination to college or
employment with training

% young people achieving 5 good GCSEs with English and maths at age 16

% young people achieving level 2 and 3 qualifications at age 19

% reduction in attainment gaps for disadvantaged young people at ages 16 and 19

Number of apprenticeships started and completed by vulnerable and disadvantaged
young people receiving early help

We will ensure that young
people are resilient, able to
make positive informed choices
and become active and
responsible citizens with strong
personal networks

Percentage and number of targeted young people aged 16-17 engaged in social
action and volunteering

Unemployment numbers for vulnerable 17-19 year olds

Number of families with adolescent members supported through the Troubled
Families Programme that achieve good outcomes and are turned around

Number of young people receiving custodial sentences

Numbers of young people first time entrants (FTE) into the criminal justice system

Rate and number of re-offending by young offenders

Table 10:

EHPS performance indicators 12-19 (prospectus)




This page is intentionally left blank



621 abed

Proposed Phased approach - EHPS

0-25 Procurement timelines

EHPS P1 Youth/Young Carers

Adolescent, Family
EHPS P2

Support/NEET/TF

Procurement A
Award ©
Mobilise “
Start @

Phase One EHPS Phase Two EHPS

2015/16 2016/17
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March IApril MayJune July August September
A O e o



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem C1

From: Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s
Services

Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health
Reform

Mike Hill, Cabinet Member for Community Services
Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director, Education and Young
People’s Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee —
18 September 2015

Subject: Performance of Early Help and Preventative Services
Classification: Unrestricted
Summary:

Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS) were integrated and formed as a new
service in April 2014. They are designed to provide support for vulnerable, and at risk,
children, young people and families who are most likely to experience poor social,
emotional and educational outcomes. The services form a continuum of support with
Specialist Children’s Services as part of an integrated model encompassing
universal, targeted and specialist provision. A range of support is provided by
(EHPS) to children, young people and families, some of whom are known to
Specialist Children’s Services (SCS).

A key priority is to reduce the number of children and families that need the statutory
intervention of Children’s Social Care and to reduce the numbers in the social care
system by stepping down cases safely and providing continuing support to those
families that need it. A particular focus is reducing the number of children in care
through:

e Earlier identification and response to need

e Prompt and proactive engagement of families

e Delivery of family focused approaches that build resilience and understanding

of family responsibility

The services encompass parts of the portfolios of three Cabinet Members, and
include Children’s Centres, Youth Justice, Troubled Families, Youth Work,
Attendance and Inclusion, Pupil Referral Units including the Health Needs Education
Service, and integrated Early Help teams that operate on a district basis. The service
is closely integrated with the work of schools and Early Years settings, that provide a
range of early intervention themselves and contribute to the packages of support for
families provided by the Early Help service.

This report sets out the progress made to date in delivering an effective Early Help

Page 131



service, the current performance of the service and the performance monitoring
arrangements that have been developed. The performance of this service is also
scrutinised by Kent Safeguarding Children’s Board, where regular reports are
presented.

Recommendation(s):
Cabinet Committee is asked to note the progress to date, the current

performance and the arrangements for monitoring performance through the
scorecard attached as appendix 1.

1. Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS) Overview

1.1 The vision of the Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS) is that every
child and young person, from pre-birth to age 25, and their family, who needs
early help will receive support in a timely and responsive way, so that they are
safeguarded and their educational, social and emotional needs are met with
good outcomes. We work to ensure that children and young people contribute
positively to their communities and are actively engaged in learning and
employment to achieve adult well-being and independence.

1.2 EHPS aims to target early help services to the most vulnerable children,
young people and families with complex needs and multiple disadvantage
who require additional and intensive support, with a focus on delivering better
outcomes. Children, young people and families should be able to access the
right services at the right time in the right place. The service aims to place
them at the heart of everything it does, working in a more integrated way and
avoiding, where possible, lack of coordination or wasteful duplication.

1.3  The intention is to make a significant difference through early help, to prevent
the escalation of needs wherever possible, and to reduce the likelihood of
problems emerging in the first place. The service also works to make a
significant difference in reducing demand for statutory children’s social care
and to help step-down social care cases where it is safe to do so.

2. EHPS Budget

2.1 The net budget for Early Help and Preventative Services in 2015 /16 is
£29,297k. The service receives £18,019k income from grants and other
income sources. The gross budget is £47,316k.

2.2 The net Budget for EHPS has seen a 37% reduction over the last three years
as a result of efficiency savings, from £45,690k net in 2013-14 to £34,699k in
14-15 and £28,797k in 15-16. Proposed savings for 2016-17 will reduce the
budget by a further 6% to £26,611k. This has been achieved by restructuring
and integrating the service, and by removing duplication and layers of
management.

Page 132




2.3

By integrating services and ensuring reduced duplication and maximum
flexibility the service is able to manage the demand for Early Help Services
and deliver a range of opportunities and support for children, young people
and families. Financial savings have been achieved without the loss of front
line delivery to date, while maintaining careful management oversight of the
capacity to deliver reductions in Children’s Social Care. .

2.4 Table 1 below provides a breakdown of spend across service areas. The
Early Intervention and Prevention Service budget includes youth hubs,
integrated additional and intensive support (including Youth Justice,
Attendance and Inclusion and Troubled Family work), the Family Liaison
Officers and a range of commissioned services.
Table 1
Gross Income Net
Children’s Centres (excluding Property costs) 8,604.4 -1576.5 7,027.9
Troubled Families 1,887.1 -1,887.1 0.0
Directorate Management & Support for Education & Young
People Directorate 3,073.1 -1,159.7 19134
Attendance & Behaviour 1,760.1 -1,621.5 138.6
Early Intervention & Prevention 20,209.7 -5,338.1 14,871.6
Youth Offending Service 2,373.1  -1,941.5 431.6
Youth Service 2,962.2 -1,726.2  1,236.0
Housing Support for Vulnerable Young People 3,677.9 0.0 3,677.9
Schools & High Needs Education Budgets - Exclusion
Services 2,7684 -2,768.4 0.0
TOTAL -
47,316.0 18,019.0 29,297.0
3. Range of Provision in Early Help and Preventative Services
3.1 EHPS provides opportunities and support to children, young people and
families across the range of safeguarding and well-being levels to help solve
problems and find solutions at the earliest possible stage; and as a step down
from Specialist Children’s Services to maintain and support achievements
made whilst statutory social care was involved.
3.2 Individual and family casework is arranged according to the Kent
Safeguarding Children Board Inter Agency Threshold Guidance levels of
need. The four levels of need are Universal, Additional, Intensive and
Specialist. Cases are managed by Specialist Children’s Services (SCS) or
Early Help, according to appropriate application of the Kent Safeguarding
Children’s Board (KSCB) multi agency threshold framework
3.3  Universal services seek to meet all the needs of children, young people and

families so they are happy, healthy and able to learn and develop securely. In
Kent there is a good level of provision across the county, delivered where

Page 133




3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

communities have the most need. EHPS resource is allocated to ensure that
provision is targeted to children and families known to Specialist Children’s
Services and the most vulnerable children, adolescents and families. EHPS
universal services are provided to all children and young people, for example
in Children’s Centres and Youth Hubs, including those with additional,
Intensive or specialist needs.

The figures for children worked with in Children’s Centres who are also known
to SCS are as follows:

KCC Registered/
Target Group - Worked Percentage
Baseline -
With
Children Known to SCS 2,319 1,721 74.2%
Children Known to Social 0
Services (LAC) 171 131 76.6%
Children Known to Social 0
Services (CP) 577 432 74.9%
Children Known to Social 0
Services (CHIN) 1,583 1,169 73.8%
Children with Early Help o
Notifications 789 552 70.0%

Currently 17% of the SCS caseload for 12 -18 year olds is accessing a Youth
Hub or commissioned youth service. Work is taking place to standardise the
recording in Youth Hubs to ensure that all work undertaken in the Youth Hubs
is captured. This should lead to an increase in this figure.

Children and families with additional needs are best supported by those who
already work with them or in settings where they feel safe to make changes or
resolve problems. This is often provided in universal settings or through
targeted and outreach work to vulnerable communities or identified children
and families. All EHPS staff providing open access universal provision are
expected to undertake 20% of their work delivering targeted additional needs
casework. This is often supporting statutory SCS intervention cases. There
are 205 staff delivering open access provision and undertaking individual and
family additional support. This equates to 3198 children and families
worked with per year.

Where additional support is required for children known to SCS, in the form of
targeted open access support, this arrangement is agreed locally between the
respective EHPS and SCS district teams and put in place swiftly to
complement the support being provided by the family’s social worker.
Examples of such work include a parenting course in a Children’s Centre to
increase parenting skills of teenage parents or a girls group in a Youth Hub to
tackle sexual exploitation, low self-esteem and self-harm issues.

Page 134



3.8  For children whose needs are Intensive, a multi - agency approach or team
around the family usually achieves the best outcomes. The Kent Family
Support Framework, which replaced the CAF, provides a clear pathway for
Notification, Screening, Assessment, Planning, Outcome Tracking and
Reviewing of Early Help cases. Early Help Units in each district work with
children, young people and families requiring intensive support. They work in
partnership with other professionals and the family to build resilience and
develop solutions to problems the family may be experiencing. There are 44
Early Help units across Kent; the number allocated to each district being
dependent on demography and levels of need. Each Early Help Unit consists
of five members of staff, including a Unit Leader and Senior Early Help
worker, coming from varying professional backgrounds. An additional 0.5
business support officer is allocated to each unit to ensure that professionals
can undertake the maximum amount of time in direct contact work with
children and families. Each member of the unit works with an average of 13
or 14 cases at any one time for an average duration of 20 weeks. This
equates to 6320 cases over a year

3.9 Increasing proportions of cases closed to SCS are stepped down to EHPS
(currently 27%). The chart below demonstrates the impact that working
together in the West of the County has had on reducing demand in Specialist
Children’s Services

900 . . . . .
NB: Significant decrease in caseload in Maidstone &

%0 The Weald is partially

700

20 —

: ]

Thanet Weald Shepway Canterbury Gravesham Dartford

Cases (AIT FST)
w H u D
o o o o
o o o o o

o

o

I Current Caseload = Baseline Caseload = Target Caseload

3.10 District panel meetings take place every week to discuss complex cases, the
step-down of cases to ensure an integrated approach to working and to plan
the appropriate handover of the case from SCS to EHPS.

Page 135



3.11

4.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

By working together across all thresholds of need we seek to prevent more
children and young people requiring statutory specialist social care
interventions, at higher cost, and to promote the very best educational, health
and emotional well-being outcomes for children and young people to ensure
future adult well-being and economic independence.

Integrated Specialist Services in EHPS

In addition to the universal, additional and intensive work in EHPS, statutory
Youth Justice and school Attendance and Inclusion work is integrated within
the service. This enables the greatest budget efficiency and ensures that the
service can deliver to maximum capacity and flexibility without unnecessary
transfer of cases due to circumstances rather than the needs of the young
person. The model also ensures that the minimum number of professionals is
involved with a young person and that good working relationships form the
basis of effective practice.

33% of the Youth Justice caseload is known to SCS. In Quarter 4 of 2014-15
this was 124 young people. The SCS social work teams work closely with the
Youth Justice teams to ensure appropriate planning and support by both
statutory services.

There is also a significant number of Other Local authority Children in Care on
the youth justice caseload. In Q4 of 2014-15 there were 33, which added to
the SCS cases means that 41% of the youth justice caseload is known to
Children’s Social Services in Kent or in other local authorities.

Joint Working between Early Help Triage and the Central Duty Team

In June the Early Help Triage team, responsible for receiving and assessing all
Early Help notifications (referrals) moved to Kroner House to be co-located
with the Specialist Children’s Services’ (SCS) Central Duty Team (CDT) and
form part of the multi-agency Central Referral Unit (CRU). This co-location
supports closer-working between the two services to ensure a swift and
appropriate response to referrals by the correct service according to
application of the KSCB thresholds.

Where referrals are made into Triage that actually meet SCS thresholds, then
a consultation takes places and the referral is escalated quickly. Where
referrals are made into CDT that do not meet their thresholds, an Early Help
Notification is completed and screened by designated EHPS staff in CDT.

A key piece of joint working between Triage and CDT is around the
notification, tracking and follow-up of children missing from home or care.
Notifications from the Police go into CDT, and those missing children not
known to SCS are passed to EHPS for follow-up. All information is recorded

Page 136



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

on the Liberi data system by both services to ensure reporting captures all
work undertaken with missing children.

EHPS Performance Monitoring and Summary data

Early Help and Preventative Services produce a monthly scorecard outlining
performance against a range of Key Indicators. This includes a breakdown by
age of reach and outputs for the County as a whole and each district. The
indicators include output data for the number of notifications received, the
number of open and closed cases, the number of cases stepped up or down
to Specialist Children’s Services, timeliness of responses and the percentage
of cases closed with a positive outcome. The latest July EHPS scorecard,
including data up to June 2015, is included at Appendix 1.

Overall 749 notifications were received by EHPS in June 2015. Of these
18.6% were for 0-4 year olds, 35% for 5-10 year olds, 38.1% were for 11-15
year olds and 8.1% were for over 16s. Fewer cases are stepped down from
SCS in the older age range. Overall in June, 95 cases were stepped down to
EHPS from SCS, compared to 87 in May. Of these 26 were in the 0 — 4 age
range, 35 in the 5 — 10 group, 29 in 11 — 15 age range and only 5 in the 16
plus age range.

The effectiveness of EHPS relies on good throughput and positive outcomes
being achieved, Overall data for EHPS for June 2015 evidences that
significant progress has been made with the throughput of cases, with the
number of case closures increasing by over 200 from last month, from 254 to
665. The percentage of cases closed with a positive outcome has also
increased from 69.4 % to 73.7%.

In addition to the throughput and outcome data the scorecard focuses on key
data for specific areas that impact on vulnerable children and young people.
This includes Children’s Centres, Youth Justice, NEETSs, school attendance
and exclusions data. More detailed data is also available in each of the
service areas and outcomes are reported to their respective management
boards, such as the Youth Justice Board and the Troubled Families Multi
Agency Steering Group.

The Youth Justice work which is specifically with adolescents is showing good
outcomes. The number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System has
fallen again this quarter from 581 to 445, a reduction of 136 young people.
The number of fixed term exclusions within secondary schools has fallen by
156 episodes and permanent exclusions in Kent continue to decrease.

There remains a challenge with the NEET performance with current
performance being at 6% (June 2015) of young people being NEET. The
latest national scorecard data published by the Department for Business,
Innovation and Skills reports Kent’'s annual NEET figure as 4.7%, which is in
line with the national average. Good performance in this area is based on a
range of complex interdependencies across a wide range of partners including

Page 137



7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

schools, colleges, work based training providers, employers, KCC services
including Skills and Employability, Special Educational Needs, VSK, Youth
Justice, Troubled Families and commissioned services. To address this area
of work a high level cross directorate task and finish group is in place which
will inform ongoing practice and performance with a new NEETSs strategy in
autumn 2015.

Early Help Intensive Casework

All Early Help intensive level casework is informed by an Early Help
assessment and plan. The structure of the assessment is informed by Kent's
model of practice, Signs of Safety. This ensures an accurate picture of the
individual and family circumstances that informs the plan and its expected
outcomes. The assessment and plan always involve the child, young person
or family and all work is outcome focused

A revised Quality Assurance framework is in development to inform QA
activity. Currently QA is undertaken by the Information and Intelligence team.
The new QA framework will enable a greater volume of activity and ensure
that all managers undertake quality assurance in a consistent way.

A detailed outcome tracker is being utilised by all Early Help Units to ensure
that work load and throughput of cases is managed and work does not drift.
The tracker enables the Early Help Unit leader to have an overview of activity
for all cases and outcomes achieved. This focus has resulted in improved
outcomes for children and young people, and increasing the number of cases
closed with a positive outcome. In January 2015 49.2 % of cases resulted in a
positive outcome with this incrementally improving over the following six
months to an overall 73.7% of cases achieving a positive outcome in June
2015. Over the coming year we will further track this work to monitor the re-
referrals to both EHPS and SCS, and better understand the factors for best
practice. An example of the outcome tracker is provided at appendix 2.

EHPS Commissioned Services

Early Help and Preventative Services commission a range of provision that
works with children and adolescents. Details about the commissioned
services and the budget available, plus the palns to re-commission much of
this provision is set out in another paper being presented to the Cabinet
Committee.

Performance for the EHPS commissioned services has been measured
through contract monitoring as either good or acceptable. However this has
not always been outcome focused. A new commissioning framework is being
developed which will ensure that for future EHPS commissioned services
outcome focused, impact evaluations, where appropriate, are conducted
which feed into an overarching evaluation framework

Page 138



8.3 Commissioned services can also be structured in the Kent Safeguarding
Children Levels of Need. The table below illustrates the volume of work

(numbers of children and young people) across additional support provided by

commissioned services. Whilst table 3 shows the support provided by VCS

organisations at the intensive level of work.

Table 2
Additional Support - either as a stand-alone case or Per SCS
alongside intensive or specialist casework Year Step

Downs
Project Salus — Domestic 218 38
violence
Rising Sun — 313 12
DomesticViolence
Choices - Positive relationships (pregnancy, sex etc) 123 16
Barnardos — Positive relationships (as above) 91 1
Avante - Family Mediation 444 59
Imago — Young Carers 921 27
CXK - Parent Training Programmes 1716 2
CXK — Neet provision 1500K unknown
TOTAL 5,326 155
Table 3
Intensive VCS Casework Per SCS Step
Year Downs

Troubled Families FIP and FIP Light Casework 533 unknown
Family Action (Intensive Family Support) 285 67
Stonham (IFS) 502 63
Porchlight 1018 180
TOTAL 2,338 310

8.4  The new Commissioning framework will be in place for April 2016 with a
phased approach to ensure alignment with the Emotional Health and Well-
being strategy. The second phase will be in place for September 2016.

Page 139




9 Summary

9.1  EHPS is committed to evidencing the impact of Early Help and Preventative
Services. As the service develops and practice embeds, a greater richness of
performance data across all fields of quality, outputs and impact will be
available. Work is also underway to evaluate value for money, cost avoidance
and the longer term impact of EHPS work for vulnerable children, young
people and families.

Recommendation(s):

Cabinet Committee is asked to note the progress to date, the current
performance and the arrangements for monitoring performance through the
scorecard attached as appendix 1.

Report Author:
Florence Kroll, Director, Early Help and Preventative Services
Florence.kroll@kent.gov.uk, Tel: 03000 416362

Relevant Corporate Director:
Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director, Education and Young People’s Services
Patrick.Leeson@kent.gov.uk Tel: 03000 416384

Page 140



mailto:Florence.kroll@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Patrick.Leeson@kent.gov.uk

Education & Young People's Services Performance Management
Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard

August 2015 Release (July 2015 Data)

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
Publication Date: 26th August 2015

L1 obed

Council

kent.gov.uk




¢v| obed

This page is intentionally blank



Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard

Executive Summary

Data Headlines:

After a reduction in May, the number of notifications received has risen to 818 which is down by 116 from last month.

The percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification has increased by 7.4% from 56.3% to 63.7% this month.

The average length of time for both notification to assessment and notification to plan has continued to fall again this month.

The number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System has dropped considerably in the first month of quarter 2, from 583 to 492, a reduction of 91 young people.

The number of fixed term exclusions in primary and secondary schools has continued to fall again this month by 28 and 85 respectively.

Recent Activity:
Recruitment to the new Early Help & Preventative Services structure is almost complete, and the roll-out of the 0-25 transformation is well underway in West Kent and South Kent. Revised notification, assessment,
planning and review forms have been launched in order to provide a clear outcomes-focused approach to working with children, young people and their families.

Work is taking place to continue to strengthen the links between Triage, the Early Help units and open-access provision in Early Help, with a focus on addressing demand whilst meeting the needs of children, young
people and their families that meet the threshold for Early Help & Preventative Services.

o

ﬁnew process for attendance referrals is now in place which means attendance-only issues can be referred direct to the PRU, Inclusion and Attendance service, resulting in reduced demand into Triage and the Early
Ip units.

-_—
%iness processes have been mapped out to specify how youth justice work will be managed between the central youth justice team and the Early Help units, and the new process will start in September.

Work is progressing well on the implementation of the Early Help Module, due to go live at the end of the year. This will provide a full case management system that links to the system used by SCS. Staff from across
the service have recently been involved in the second round of testing which is shaping the final developments within the system.

A series of reviews of Children's Centres have taken place and the results of these are shaping our planning to continue the improvement journey for centres in Kent and to ensure greater consistency across districts.
A series of meetings have taken place to consider how to embed the NEET strategy into all aspects of Early Help & Preventative Services, to ensure an integrated approach across the service when working with young

people at risk of NEET, or with those already NEET. This has resulted with a new process planned in EHPS which will be launched in the autumn. This work is part of the wider partnership approach to NEET involving
Skills & Employability, SEN, Fair Access, VSK and our commissioned services.

Planned Activity:
Further work is planned with Public Health to ensure an integrated approach to health issues across the service, from the 0-5 population serviced by Children's Centres to those requiring adolescent mental health
services from CAMHS.

An internal review of our Youth Hubs is underway in order to inform our improvement planning, to ensure greater consistency across districts, and to identify synergies with Children's Centres as they start to work
more closely together to provide open-access services.

Work is taking place to match data and to map the pathways for access to Early Help support for children and young people known to SCS to ensure appropriate support to complement their casework in SCS.

Service development reviews are underway with the PRU, Inclusion & Attendance service to ensure the new structure is best placed to support the needs of children, young people and schools, and to ensure
improved data flows with schools.

Page 1



Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard

Guidance Notes

POLARITY
H The aim of this indicator is to achieve the highest nhumber/percentage possible
L The aim of this indicator is to achieve the lowest humber/percentage possible
T The aim of this indicator is to stay close to the target that has been set

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL (DOT)

ﬁ Performance has improved compared to previously reported data
@ Performance has worsened compared to previously reported data
& Performance has remained the same compared to previously reported data
U
KEY '@ ABBREVIATIONS
(0]

MI = Management Information

EH&Pﬁ: Early Help & Preventative Services

CIC Children In Care

CpP Child Protection

CIN Child in Need

M Monthly

T Termly

Q Quarterly

NEET Not in Education, Employment or Training

Persistent Absence Proportion of pupils absent for >15% of sessions

SCS Specialist Children's Services

SKWO Secure Kent Workforce Online

LSOA Lower Super Output Area

CYP Children and Young People

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CONTACT DETAILS

Cheryl Prentice 03000 417154
Matt Ashman 03000 417012
Ed Lacey 03000 417113
Nas Peerbux 03000 417152

management.information@kent.qgov.uk

Important Data Notes:

Performance Indicators are monitored using direction of travel

Activity indicators are not monitored using direction of travel

Due to data quality issues in SKWO, all data being reported is subject to change

All date measured indicators are based on calendar days and not working days

Data to be supplied
Data not available

The number of cases closed in July has fallen due to the following reasons;
1) The roll out of induction training for all unit staff.
(North & East Kent staff were all trained in July and South Kent at the end of June)

2) July is typically a busy month for new requests, schools and others wanting support for families
focus on ensuring this support is set up over the summer holidays. This month is not always the best
time to close a case, often these are closed with the understanding that the universal service — school
or other service will continue to work with the family but if they are not about due to the summer

holidays this then cannot happen.

Page 2


mailto:management.information@kent.gov.uk

Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Kent Trends

é’ Jan 2015 Feb 2015 March 2015 April 2015 May 2015 June 2015 July 2015
Indicators 2
£ Overall Overall Overall Overall Overall Overall Overall
SCS  |Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T 31.7 32.0 39.3 31.2 39.8 43.6 46.7
SCS  |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L 28.7 28.6 28.5 21.5 224 21.2 21.4
EH3 |Number of notifications received M 832 749 1220 731 544 934 818
EH4 |[Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 24.1 21.7 354 21.2 15.8 27.1 23.7
EH5 [Number of open cases M L 3606 4212 5380 5759 5547 5669 5806
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 118 179 330 324 454 763 698
EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 54 60 63 72 84 87 95
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 49.2 55.9 68.8 63.3 69.4 75.8 77.5
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 15.3 15.6 9.4 10.2 8.1 6.2 6.3
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 18 28 31 33 37 47 44
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 104 86 102 96 87 136 145
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 22 24 27 26 28
EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 93.2 94.5 96.8 96.9 97.9 97.6 97.7
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 23.6 39.8 71.3 55.5 59.4 56.3 63.7
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 46.5 53.9 55.9 52.1 50.3 58.1 58
EH16 |Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 11.5 44.9 58.7 47.4 51.4 59.2 63.0
EH17 |Average length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 22 19 21 19 14 19 14
o EH18 |Average length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 40 41 40 36 30 26 22
(Q [EH19 |Percentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.
(4] EH20 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 27.3 25.0 21.2 23.0 21.4 19.4 18.6
—MEH21 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 51.8 53.5 53.1 52.4 54.0 53.9 53.7
QN|EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 14.5 14.9 15.5 15.1 16.1 17.0 16.4
EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 996 896 971 957 958 934 881
EH24 [Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 11062 11021 12180 11319 11324 11645 11001
EH25 |Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 71.3 71.5 714 71.6 71.8 71.7 71.6
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 78.1 78.0 79.9 78.2 78.1 78.0 78.0
EH27 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 48.6 48.3 47.0 48.0 47.9 47.8 47.0
EH28 |Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 72.0 77.6 75.3 74.9 74.5 74.2 73.1
EH29 |Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H 72 72 72 72 72 72 72
EH30 |[Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 7399 7263 15244 9218 11725 11423 7301
EH31 |Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 2783 2687 3837 3104 2570 3341 2498
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 664 640 614 583 567 537 492
EH33 |Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 2.0 8.2 7.2 3.7 3.8 13.0 3.9
EH34 |Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 12.3 11.2 12.3 15.0 15.4 14.8 16.0
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 5.3 5.3 5.7 6.0 6.1 6.1 7.8
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 659 680 733 761 796 816 839
EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 1620 1619 1763 1661 1713 1697 1669
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 35 37 39 43 45 46 48
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.3 23 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 8812 8986 8374 8964 9117 8959 8874
EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 61 61 59 59 59 58 61
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2
Note:
Annual Indicators only showing the latest year available.
Page 3

Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Kent July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

Indicators 2015 2016 2017 2018

o)
=
[}
S
=3
9]
o
i

Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T 46.7 43.6

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L 21.4 21.2 @ 25.0

EH3 [Number of notifications received M 818 22.7 32.8 37 7.5 934 17.8 35.1 39 8.1

EH4 [Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 23.7 20.4 25.2 33.7 10.6 27.1 18.2 30.8 40.4 13.2

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 5806 17.1 32.0 41.5 9.4 5669 17.1 31.8 41.7 9.6 @

EH6 [Number of cases closed M H 698 23.6 32.8 34.4 9.2 763 18.9 32.0 38.1 11.0 @

EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 95 97 106 104 95 87 93 98 96 88 @

EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 77.5 71.5 86.5 73.3 76.6 75.8 70.1 79.5 77.0 70.2 ﬁ

EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 6.3 10.9 2.6 7.1 4.7 6.2 10.4 5.7 4.8 4.8 @

EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 44 18 6 17 3 47 15 14 14 4 ﬁ

EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 145 43 45 43 12 136 43 45 40 9 ﬁ

EH12 [Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 28 26

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 97.7 97.9 98.4 97.0 97.6 97.6 97.9 98.1 97.2 96.1 @

EH14 [Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 63.7 61.0 68.0 61.8 58.6 56.3 55.4 59.6 55.9 46.3 ﬁ

EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 58 56.4 58.7 58.6 56.0 58.1 60.4 60.0 57.1 47.6 @

EH16 MWercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 63.0 58.5 66.4 61.4 70.8 59.2 61.4 58.5 62.4 38.1 ﬁ

EH1 verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 14 14 14 14 15 19 17 19 19 22 ﬁ

EH18%Average length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 22 21 23 21 23 26 23 27 26 26 ﬁ

EH19£ercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 18.6 31.0 17.3 14.3 18.8 19.4 33.2 18.5 14.6 18.1

EH21 (Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 53.7 54.3 61.1 50.3 42 53.9 53.6 61.6 50.6 42.6

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 16.4 7.8 18.0 18.2 18.2 17.0 8.0 18.2 19.1 19.6

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 881 934 @

EH24 [Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 11001 11645 @

EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 71.6 71.7 @

EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 78.0 78.0 &

EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 47.0 47.8 @

EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 73.1 74.2 @

EH29 [Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H 72 72 & 75 81 90 100
EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 7301 11423 @

EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 2498 3341 @

EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 492 537 ﬁ 628 615 602 589
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 3.9 13.0 ﬁ 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 16.0 14.8 @

EH35 [Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 7.8 6.1 @ 4.0 3.5 1.0 1.0
EH36 [Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 839 816 @ 300 200 130 70
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 1669 1697 ﬁ 1350/ 1250| 1150 1050
EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 48 46 @ 11 8 6 5
EH39 [Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.3 2.3 f= 2.8 2.6 2.4 2.2
EH40 [Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 8874 8959 ﬁ 8000, 7000, 6000, 5000
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 61 58 @ 39 32 24 15
EH42 [Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.2 6.2 & 5.8 5.6 5.4 5.2

. Page 4
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - East

August 2015

July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators El DoT et
E Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15
SCs Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T
SCS  |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L
EH3  |Number of notifications received M 256 21.1 32.8 38.7 7.4 328 18.9 36.3 34.8 10.1
EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 26.7 21.6 29 39.3 11.4 34.2 24.8 41.1 45.3 19.8
EH5 |Number of open cases M L 1985 18.2 31.3 41.4 9.2 1960 17.9 31.3 41.4 9.4 @
EH6  |Number of cases closed M H 263 22.8 33.8 35.7 7.6 276 21.0 31.2 34.8 13 @
EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 91 92 102 97 91 67 88 97 86 84 @
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 78.3 75 88.8 68.1 90.0 75.4 65.5 76.7 79.2 77.8 ﬁ
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 5.7 6.7 2.2 8.5 5.0 6.9 10.3 7.0 7.3 0.0 ﬁ
EH10 |Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 15 4 2 8 1 19 6 6 7 0 ﬁ
EH11 |Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 62 22 19 18 3 68 23 22 18 2 @
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H
EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 96.9 95.3 97.7 96.5 100.0 97.5 96.6 97.0 97.5 100.0 ﬁ
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 66.0 69.2 66.3 67.6 46.2 57.5 70.8 58.6 52.6 42.9 ﬁ
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 48.7 52.3 48.3 47.7 46.2 51.9 54.5 55.2 50.0 39.4 @
EH16 |Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 70.2 76.0 73.2 66.0 62.5 59.3 76.9 52.8 60.0 50.0 ﬁ
EH17 sMverage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 14 14 14 15 16 15 14 16 13 18 ﬁ
EH18(CMverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 22 20 23 21 25 26 21 26 27 29 ﬁ
EH19 “YPercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.
EH20 EErofiIe of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 17.0 26.9 17.6 121 17.6 18.2 30.6 18.2 12.3 18.9
EH21 =~lrofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 51.8 50.1 58.9 48.7 44.5 52.2 49.7 60.4 49 43.8
EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 14.4 4.8 15.4 18.0 14.4 15.0 5.4 14.9 19.2 15
EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 170 247 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 3213 4105 @
EH25 |Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 77.8 77.6 ﬁ
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 80.6 80.6 &
EH27 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 52.7 53.7 @
EH28 |Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 77.6 79.9
EH29 |Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H
EH30 |Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 2024 3888 @
EH31 |Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 808 1210 @
EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 185 201 ﬁ
EH33 |Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 2.3 13.3 ﬁ
EH34 |Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 20.0 14.9 @
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 9.6 7.2
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 328 316
EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 666 688 ﬁ
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 21 20 @
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.3 2.3 Le=s
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 2725 2754 ﬁ
EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 0 0 &
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 7.3 7.3 &

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 5




Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - North July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators e POT o5 a0ie 3017 a0is
E Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+
SCS |Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T
SCS |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L
EH3 |Number of notifications received M 146 24.0 26.7 39.0 10.3 144 22.9 37.5 35.4 4.2
EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 18.9 16.3 16.1 29.6 12.3 18.7 15.3 22.4 26.5 4.9
EH5 |Number of open cases M L 1074 18.2 35.0 38.9 7.9 1019 17.3 35.3 39.2 8.2 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 100 23 23.0 40.0 14 127 244 34.6 32.3 8.7 @
EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 101 93 98 106 101 92 89 95 95 20 @
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 81.0 78.3 82.6 85.0 71.4 77.2 77.4 84.1 73.2 63.6 ﬁ
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 8.0 13.0 4.3 7.5 7.1 7.9 12.9 4.5 4.9 18.2 @
EH10 |Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 8 3 1 3 1 10 4 2 2 2 ﬁ
EH11 |Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 26 10 5 8 3 27 7 13 6 1 @
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H
EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 98.9 100.0 97.7 98.9 100.0 98.9 100.0 98.9 98.8 100.0 &
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 55.0 60.6 55.6 52.2 40.0 37.1 37.9 42.1 26.5 75.0 ﬁ
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 41.5 39.7 40.7 42.6 50.0 38.7 44.6 34.7 39.8 28.6 ﬁ
EH16 |Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 48.1 25.0 61.5 45.8 100.0 36.6 50.0 31.3 33.3 50.0 ﬁ
EH17 g#iverage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 16 14 17 17 18 19 16 18 20 23 ﬁ
EH18.Elverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 26 28 25 27 20 30 31 27 33 20 ﬁ
EH19 | ercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.
EH20 -§'ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 20.3 31.3 17.8 16.7 23.5 20.6 31.3 18.9 17.5 20.2
EH21 QBrofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 54.5 57.9 59.0 51.4 41.2 55.4 56.8 60.0 53.1 44
EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 20.2 11.1 224 22.2 21.7 21.0 11.2 22.3 24 22.2
EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 197 235 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 2159 2267 @
EH25 |Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 72.7 73.1 @
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 85.1 85.4 @
EH27 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 43.8 44.7 @
EH28 |Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 73.3 73.1
EH29 |Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H
EH30 |Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 1995 2740 @
EH31 |Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 622 919 @
EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 82 87 ﬁ
EH33 |Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 =g
EH34 |Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 8.3 10.0 ﬁ
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 7.3 5.5
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 133 127
EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 313 292 @
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 7 7 &
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.6 2.6 Le=d
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 1272 1252 @
EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 32 28 @
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 5.1 5.1 &

. Page 6
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - South July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

boT 2015 2016 2017 2018

Indicators
Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+ Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+

o)
=
[}
S
=3
9]
o
i

SCS  |Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS  |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 239 23.8 36.8 33.5 5.9 260 13.5 36.9 40.0 9.6

EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 31 28.3 37.2 39.2 10.8 33.7 17.4 40.6 51.0 19.3

EH5 |Number of open cases M L 1482 14.9 32.5 41.9 10.7 1501 15.3 32 41.6 11.1 ﬁ
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 229 26.2 38.4 27.5 7.9 237 14.3 30.8 43.0 11.8 @
EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 97 101 117 109 97 99 97 103 103 94 ﬁ
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 75.1 66.7 84.1 71.4 72.2 73.8 70.6 79.5 75.5 57.1 ﬁ
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 6.6 11.7 3.4 7.9 0.0 4.2 8.8 4.1 2.0 7.1 @
EH10 |Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 15 7 3 5 0 10 3 3 2 2 @
EH11 |Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 32 6 13 9 3 19 2 4 9 3 ﬁ
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 97.8 96.9 100.0 96.5 96.2 96.7 95.8 100.0 96.7 90.6 @
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 75.8 6.6 79.2 75.8 87.5 70.2 76.9 77.5 67.4 53.3 ﬁ
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 80.8 81.5 83.1 80.3 69.2 78 80.6 84.2 75.2 62.5 1’}
EH16 |Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 72.0 70.4 73.8 69.4 85.7 71.3 56.3 81.3 74.4 50.0 ﬁ
EH17 T@verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 11 9 12 9 16 22 18 21 24 27 1’}
EH18¢A\verage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 18 17 18 17 23 21 21 22 21 25 ﬁ
EH19 (PPercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 =Rrofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 16.9 28.5 14.9 14.0 16.5 18.7 33.9 16.4 15.1 15.7

EH21 ¢[Rrofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 53.5 57.5 61.6 49.6 38 52.4 56.1 60.1 48.7 38.6

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 16.9 8.6 17.9 18.2 20.9 17.3 8.1 17.9 18.4 24

EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 237 175 1’}
EH24 [Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 3222 2809 ﬁ
EH25 |Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 70.4 70.5 @
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 72.4 72.3 ﬁ
EH27 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 44.5 44.7 @
EH28 |Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 71.9 67.6

EH29 |Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 |Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 1899 2934 @
EH31 |Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 630 743 @
EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 120 134 ﬁ
EH33 |Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 20.0 14.3 @
EH34 |Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 18.5 19.3 ﬁ
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 7.5 6.2

EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 214 214

EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 377 390 ﬁ
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 11 11 o
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.0 2.0 L
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 3083 3070 @
EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 3 3 &
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.6 6.6 o

. Page 7
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - West July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

boT 2015 2016 2017 2018

Indicators
Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+ Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+

o)
=
[}
S
=3
9]
o
i

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 177 22.6 32.2 37.9 7.3 202 17.8 29.2 47.0 5.9

EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 18.6 16.3 19.2 26.6 8.4 21.3 14.6 19.9 37.7 7.7

EH5 |Number of open cases M L 1265 17.2 29.9 43.6 9.3 1189 16.7 29.1 44.7 9.4 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 106 20.8 27.4 40.6 11.3 123 17.1 33.3 42.3 7.3 @
EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 91 102 102 106 91 97 103 94 101 83 ﬁ
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 77.4 68.2 89.7 76.7 66.7 78.9 71.4 80.5 78.8 88.9 @
EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 5.7 18.2 0.0 2.3 8.3 6.5 9.5 7.3 5.8 0.0 ﬁ
EH10 |Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 6 4 0 1 1 8 2 3 3 0 ﬁ
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 25 5 8 8 3 22 5 6 7 3 ﬁ
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 97.7 100.0 97.9 96.8 95.0 97.5 100.0 97.0 97.5 95.8 @
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 49.5 36.8 61.8 66.7 45.5 58.3 50.0 60.0 69.4 33.3 @
EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 58.7 55.2 58.8 61.1 55.0 62.0 61.8 64.6 62.3 50.0 @
EH16 |Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 46.1 38.9 40.0 52.5 50.0 56.1 60.0 55.9 62.2 14.3 @
EH17 (fiverage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 15 18 13 15 13 21 21 20 21 22 1’}
EH18'-EI\verage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 27 24 32 25 24 30 24 35 29 25 ﬁ
EH19 ercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 Qofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 21.7 40.1 19.6 16.1 20.3 21.5 38.7 21.4 15.4 18.8

EH21 GProfile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 56.4 54.8 65.9 52.7 44.1 57.3 54.8 67.6 53.4 45.5

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 15.6 9.1 18.4 15.6 17.5 16.5 9.9 20.2 16.0 17.9

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 277 277 o
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 2407 2464 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 63.5 63.3 ﬁ
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 70.0 70.0 o
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 40.5 41.0 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 67.4 72.4

EH29 [Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 1383 1861 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 438 469 @
EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 100 110 ﬁ
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.2 ﬁ
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 11.1 12.5 ﬁ
EH35 [Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 6.5 5.3

EH36 [Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 164 159

EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 313 327 ﬁ
EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 9 8 @
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.1 2.1 L
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 1794 1883 ﬁ
EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 26 27 ﬁ
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 5.4 5.4 o

. Page 8
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Ashford July 2015 Data

> July 2015 June 2015
é DOT
o

Target Target Target Target

Indicators 2015 2016 2017 2018

Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall () 5-10 11-15 16+

Frequency

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 57.0 33.3 28.1 35.1 3.5 79.0 10.1 41.8 36.7 11.4

EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 19.0 23.9 17.0 25.4 4.2 26.4 10.1 35.1 36.9 18.9

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 501.0 14.8 31.7 45.3 8.2 556.0 13.8 33.6 43.7 8.8 ﬁ
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 96.0 21.9 39.6 30.2 8.3 78.0 9.0 37.2 38.5 15.4 ﬁ
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 105.0 100.0 122.0 117.0 105.0 97.7 82.1 102.0 104.0 95.0 @
EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 82.3 61.9 97.4 72.4 100.0 75.6 71.4 79.3 80.0 58.3 ﬁ
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 3.1 4.8 0.0 6.9 0.0 2.6 0.0 3.4 0.0 8.3 @
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 3.0 1.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 2.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 @
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 4.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.0 1.0 1.0 5.0 0.0 @
EH12 [Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 96.6 100.0 100.0 94.3 75.0 93.9 87.5 100.0 95.6 75.0 @
EH14 [Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 70.6 75.0 76.9 61.5 0.0 75.0 100.0 78.6 72.7 50.0 @
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 78.7 86.7 85.7 68.6 75.0 68.4 66.7 83.8 60.0 50.0 ﬁ
EH16—glercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 65.0 66.7 78.9 46.7 0.0 54.2 16.7 62.5 85.7 33.3 ﬁ
EH17np"Average length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 10.2 5.9 10.8 11.5 12.0 23.6 18.1 24.5 24.5 27.6 ﬁ
EH18=fAverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 19.8 19.7 20.6 18.5 22.3 24.1 314 23.7 21.3 16.3 ﬁ
EH19 |Percentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EHZ(Eﬁrofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 21.8 40.5 17.6 18.5 19.5 22.1 46.8 18.2 18.1 16.3
EH217[Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 54.7 59.5 62.3 53.3 22.0 53.1 54.5 60.4 52.3 24.5

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 15.3 11.5 15.7 17.0 12.1 15.5 11.3 14.7 17.6 14.0

EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 77 85 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 1050 1085 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 67.2 67.1 ﬁ
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 66.5 66.2 ﬁ
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 44.8 44.9 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 73.1 72.3

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 802 1141 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 223 250 @
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 33 33 L
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 o
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 19.0 22.7 ﬁ
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 6.5 5.8 @
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 56 57 ﬁ
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 132 231 ﬁ
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 0 0 &
EH39 [Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 1.7 1.7 o
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 1495 1467 @
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 0 0 &
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.0 6.0 L

. Page 9
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Canterbury July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

DOT 5015 2016 2017 2018

Indicators
Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+ Overall  0-4 510  11-15 16+

)
=
9}
>
=3
]
1<
i

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 83.0 19.3 28.9 43.4 8.4 118.0 12.7 39.0 35.6 12.7

EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 26.6 21.0 25.5 43.6 11.8 37.8 19.7 48.9 50.9 25.3

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 523.0 12.8 33.7 43.4 10.1 529.0 13.4 33.8 42.2 10.6 ﬁ
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 88.0 25.0 33.0 31.8 10.2 109.0 13.8 24.8 38.5 22.9 @
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 86.0 80.0 92.0 106.0 86.0 89.0 77.7 90.0 99.0 83.0 ﬁ
EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 85.2 86.4 89.7 75.0 100.0 82.6 80.0 92.6 78.6 80.0 ﬁ
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 3.4 0.0 0.0 10.7 0.0 2.8 0.0 3.7 4.8 0.0 @
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 3.0 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 &
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 9.0 3.0 5.0 1.0 0.0 10.0 3.0 4.0 2.0 0.0 @
EH12 [Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 95.9 100.0 92.9 96.7 100.0 96.1 100.0 93.2 96.3 100.0 ﬁ
EH14 [Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 63.3 62.5 56.5 79.2 20.0 57.1 100.0 63.6 55.0 33.3 ﬁ
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 53.3 50.0 52.4 56.7 40.0 62.0 61.1 65.9 63.0 46.2 @
EH16 JBercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 70.0 100.0 54.5 69.2 100.0 77.3 0.0 62.5 91.7 100.0 @
EH17rr%\verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 13.6 15.1 14.7 12.4 15.1 7.6 11.6 16.6 0.0 17.4 @
EH18 (PAverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 21.8 15.6 24.2 21.4 20.8 22.8 17.1 25.2 22.8 22.3 ﬁ
EH19 -tRercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 ;ﬂ’ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 20.1 32.8 23.3 14.1 18.9 22.1 39.4 22.3 16.1 21.4

EH21 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 50.9 59.7 56.3 47.6 35.8 48.4 52.1 55.9 44.8 33.9

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 15.1 2.5 13.1 19.2 20.3 15.8 3.0 15.0 19.2 20.4

EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 67 59 ﬁ
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 1231 1243 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 74.0 73.7 ﬁ
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 74.9 74.3 ﬁ
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 48.4 48.7 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 81.3 86.0

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 921 1933 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 305 471 @
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 36 36 L
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 o
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 19.2 17.2 @
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 8.3 6.3 @
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 80 80 L
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 174 179 ﬁ
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 3 3 &
EH39 [Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.6 2.6 o
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 423 405 @
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 0 0 &
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.7 6.7 L

. Page 10
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Dartford July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

DOT 5015 2016 2017 2018

Indicators
Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+ Overall  0-4 510  11-15 16+

)
=
9}
>
=3
]
1<
i

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 47.0 29.8 12.8 42.6 14.9 38.0 26.3 36.8 34.2 2.6

EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 19.1 19.3 7.8 34.2 18.5 15.5 13.8 18.3 22.2 2.6

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 314.0 20.1 31.5 39.5 8.9 290.0 17.6 34.5 39.0 9.0 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 23.0 21.7 21.7 39.1 17.4 45.0 20.0 46.7 28.9 4.4 @
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 90.0 91.0 92.0 90.0 90.0 88.4 90.7 91.0 86.0 92.0 @
EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 82.6 60.0 100.0 88.9 75.0 88.9 88.9 90.5 84.6 100.0 @
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 13.0 20.0 0.0 11.1 25.0 4.4 11.1 4.8 0.0 0.0 @
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 3.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 @
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 7.0 4.0 2.0 1.0 0.0 8.0 4.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 @
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 98.8 100.0 95.7 100.0 100.0 99.0 100.0 97.1 100.0 100.0 ﬁ
EH14 [Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 69.7 87.5 71.4 62.5 50.0 60.7 50.0 80.0 50.0 0.0 ﬁ
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 35.8 42.3 34.8 30.0 50.0 31.3 52.0 28.6 20.6 20.0 ﬁ
EH16 NJercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 69.2 25.0 66.7 100.0 100.0 62.5 66.7 66.7 50.0 0.0 ﬁ
EH1 e verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 13.1 12.3 12.4 13.8 19.0 16.6 15.6 15.1 16.9 23.7 ﬁ
EH18(JAverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 18.6 22.5 20.5 12.4 11.0 22.4 26.8 21.2 17.3 14.0 ﬁ
EH19 :tercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 Eﬁ’ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 25.2 30.2 20.2 22.6 42.9 26.9 31.4 24.0 23.9 42.3

EH21 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 58.0 57.1 60.6 57.3 53.6 58.3 56.9 60.0 56.6 61.5

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 16.2 11.0 14.5 20.4 16.2 16.7 12.0 15.3 20.5 14.3

EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 73 92 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 682 692 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 65.8 66.2 @
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 77.7 77.9 @
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 38.8 39.9 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 71.0 69.2

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 332 485 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 103 151 @
EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 20 22 ﬁ
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 o
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 8.3 7.1 @
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 7.2 5.0 @
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 32 28 @
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 136 128 @
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 3 3 &
EH39 [Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 3.3 3.3 o
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 608 610 1
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 13 11 @
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 3.9 3.9 L

. Page 11
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Dover July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

DOT 5015 2016 2017 2018

Indicators
Overall  0-4 5-10  11-15 16+ Overall  0-4 510  11-15 16+

)
=
9}
>
=3
]
1<
i

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 95.0 23.2 38.9 32.6 5.3 95.0 10.5 36.8 45.3 7.4

EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 39.0 35.4 50.2 48.0 11.6 39.0 16.1 47.5 66.6 16.2

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 508.0 14.2 35.0 39.8 11.0 504.0 15.9 33.1 39.1 11.9 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 81.0 29.6 39.5 22.2 8.6 78.0 20.5 34.6 38.5 6.4 ﬁ
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 73.0 94.0 111.0 85.0 73.0 89.9 97.7 101.0 84.0 70.0 ﬁ
EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 76.5 70.8 78.1 88.9 57.1 73.1 62.5 81.5 73.3 60.0 ﬁ
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 4.9 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.1 12.5 3.7 0.0 20.0 ﬁ
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 4.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 2.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 Lo
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 14.0 1.0 9.0 3.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 ﬁ
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 98.6 96.4 100.0 97.8 100.0 97.7 100.0 100.0 93.9 100.0 @
EH14 [Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 79.2 78.6 79.3 75.0 100.0 58.5 83.3 83.3 43.8 28.6 ﬁ
EH15 J{Bercentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 82.9 82.1 83.3 91.3 50.0 80.5 89.3 88.4 79.6 38.5 ﬁ
EH16 gyercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 67.8 70.0 61.9 70.8 75.0 65.0 85.7 78.6 50.0 33.3 ﬁ
EH17%f\verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 11.5 8.4 12.4 9.9 19.6 20.8 17.2 16.8 27.3 25.9 ﬁ
EH18 Average length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 16.9 14.4 16.2 18.9 17.3 21.2 18.3 19.6 23.9 26.0 ﬁ
EH19 ¢[fercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 13.0 18.1 12.9 10.4 16.1 14.7 23.8 13.8 11.2 16.7

EH21 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 53.9 54.2 60.1 50.5 46.4 52.6 57.5 56.9 49.2 45.0

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 17.3 6.7 17.7 18.2 29.7 18.3 7.8 18.3 17.6 36.1

EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 63 38 ﬁ
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 840 842 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 68.1 68.6 @
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 70.8 71.0 @
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 41.3 41.1 ﬁ
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 70.8 72.4

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 178 719 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 93 196 @
EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 50 57 ﬁ
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 25.0 16.7 @
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 15.6 15.2 @
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 8.1 6.0 @
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 75 75 L
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 105 107 ﬁ
EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 6 6 &
EH39 [Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.1 2.1 o
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 645 679 1
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 0 0 o
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.6 6.6 L

. Page 12
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Gravesham July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators § 2 T;o?gt T;(;?St T;()r?st T;(;?St

,f'f' Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 5-10 11-15 16+

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 50.0 26.0 30.0 34.0 10.0 58.0 19.0 39.7 39.7 1.7

EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 19.7 18.6 19.2 26.5 12.1 22.9 15.7 29.5 35.9 2.4

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 418.0 18.4 35.2 38.0 8.4 408.0 17.2 34.3 40.4 8.1 @

EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 50.0 22.0 20.0 48.0 10.0 53.0 321 24.5 321 11.3 @

EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 120.0 98.0 85.0 118.0 120.0 88.2 90.0 77.0 98.0 95.0 @

EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 74.0 81.8 60.0 79.2 60.0 73.6 82.4 69.2 76.5 50.0 ﬁ

EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 8.0 9.1 10.0 8.3 0.0 13.2 11.8 7.7 11.8 33.3 ﬁ

EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 4.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 7.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 ﬁ

EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 15.0 6.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 13.0 2.0 8.0 2.0 1.0 ﬁ

EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 99.2 100.0 100.0 97.6 100.0 98.4 100.0 100.0 96.1 100.0 @

EH14 [Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 19.1 14.3 13.3 29.4 0.0 12.7 0.0 14.3 10.0 66.7 ﬁ

EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 59.3 58.6 55.0 64.3 57.1 53.5 59.3 42.9 62.7 28.6 ﬁ

EH16 NJercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 31.0 14.3 57.1 21.4 100.0 25.8 40.0 9.1 30.8 50.0 ﬁ

EH1 e verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 214 20.2 21.3 22.5 20.4 20.9 19.9 19.5 21.9 24.3 @

EH18(JAverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 30.5 32.0 28.4 32.6 22.3 33.7 33.9 31.3 35.7 23.5 ﬁ

EH19 :tercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 ¢lfyofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 23.2 36.4 22.4 18.9 17.1 22.8 34.3 21.4 20.6 15.2

EH21 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 51.7 59.7 57.8 46.5 314 52.7 58.6 58.6 50.9 24.2

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 22.9 11.1 29.9 22.6 20.9 23.3 9.1 29.1 25.3 18.8

EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 75 77 @

EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 914 951 @

EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 83.7 83.9 @

EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 92.6 92.6 L

EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 50.8 51.2 @

EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 81.0 80.0

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 949 1422 @

EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 325 485 @

EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 35 38 ﬁ

EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 o

EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 14.3 14.8 ﬁ

EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 9.6 7.0 @

EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 78 76 @

EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 81 77 @

EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 1 1 &

EH39 [Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.7 2.7 o

EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 417 398 @

EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 12 11 @

EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.0 6.0 L

. Page 13
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Maidstone July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators g POT o5 a0t 3017 2016

L‘I‘,:’ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS  [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 65.0 21.5 27.7 38.5 12.3 81.0 16.0 32.1 46.9 4.9

EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 17.9 13.9 16.0 26.8 14.0 22.3 12.9 23.1 40.7 7.0

EH5 |Number of open cases M L 483.0 16.6 30.0 44.3 9.1 443.0 17.4 29.6 44.9 8.1 @

EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 25.0 48.0 20.0 28.0 4.0 46.0 10.9 45.7 34.8 8.7 @

EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 90.0 105.0 89.0 98.0 90.0 91.3 106.6 85.0 93.0 93.0 ﬁ

EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 76.0 66.7 100.0 71.4 100.0 76.1 60.0 76.2 75.0 100.0 @

EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 8.0 8.3 0.0 14.3 0.0 13.0 20.0 9.5 18.8 0.0 ﬁ

EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 2.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 6.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 0.0 ﬁ

EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 6.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 7.0 1.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 @

EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 97.7 100.0 97.4 95.9 100.0 97.7 100.0 94.7 98.1 100.0 ﬁ

EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 37.8 25.0 58.3 29.2 100.0 66.0 70.0 53.3 76.5 60.0 @

EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 68.0 70.0 71.8 65.3 60.0 66.9 73.3 71.1 63.5 50.0 ﬁ

EH16 =gAercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 44.2 30.0 22.2 52.4 100.0 54.5 55.6 63.2 50.0 25.0 @

EH17 @\verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 15.1 15.2 14.1 17.1 8.9 23.6 22.6 23.7 24.7 19.6 ﬁ

EHl# verage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 25.6 21.9 24.5 30.4 18.3 28.0 214 28.0 33.8 19.4 ﬁ

EH19 _|Rercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 %ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 22.2 43.8 20.7 15.9 18.2 22.1 41.6 21.4 15.6 19.4

EH21 TProfile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 58.2 53.8 64.1 57.5 50.0 57.8 53.2 64.9 56.3 50.0

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 14.7 5.6 15.0 17.4 17.8 14.4 53 15.2 17.0 15.8

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 112 87 ﬁ

EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 863 864 @

EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 63.0 62.8 ﬁ

EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 70.4 70.2 ﬁ

EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 41.7 41.8 @

EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 66.5 67.2

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 242 431 @

EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 65 123 @

EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 45 46 ﬁ

EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 28.6 ﬁ

EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 21.4 21.4 o

EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 7.2 5.7 @

EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 69 66 @

EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 114 125 ﬁ

EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 2 2 &

EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.1 2.1 L

EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 801 861 ﬁ

EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 14 14 L

EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 5.0 5.0 o

. Page 14
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Sevenoaks July 2015 Data

July 2015 June 2015
Target Target Target Target

boT 2015 2016 2017 2018

Indicators

o)
=
[}
S
=3
9]
o
i

Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS  [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 49.0 16.3 36.7 40.8 6.1 48.0 25.0 35.4 31.3 8.3

EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 18.0 11.0 20.7 28.7 7.0 17.6 16.5 19.5 21.5 9.3

EH5 |Number of open cases M L 342.0 16.1 38.0 39.5 6.4 321.0 17.1 37.4 37.7 7.8 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 27.0 25.9 29.6 25.9 18.5 29.0 17.2 34.5 37.9 10.3 @
EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 89.0 86.0 125.0 106.0 89.0 104.8 85.4 125.0 102.0 81.0 ﬁ
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 92.6 85.7 100.0 100.0 80.0 65.5 40.0 90.0 54.5 66.7 ﬁ
EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 3.7 14.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.4 20.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 @
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 &
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 4.0 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.0 6.0 1.0 3.0 2.0 0.0 @
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 98.5 100.0 95.7 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 ﬁ
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 85.0 100.0 92.9 69.2 50.0 68.2 83.3 71.4 50.0 100.0 ﬁ
EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 16.7 5.6 21.7 18.2 33.3 17.9 0.0 27.8 17.4 50.0 @
EH16 |Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 70.0 100.0 66.7 60.0 100.0 100.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 @
EH17 4¥verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 10.4 8.3 12.1 10.4 9.7 18.2 11.4 18.1 22.0 19.3 ﬁ
EH18&Average length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 17.4 12.0 19.0 16.5 18.0 29.5 0.0 22.0 41.8 18.0 ﬁ
EH19 “[Percentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 [Rrofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 12.3 25.5 10.8 8.9 9.1 12.1 27.3 11.7 7.4 4.0

EH21 =¥ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 54.7 56.4 59.2 51.9 40.9 56.4 54.5 61.7 52.9 52.0

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 20.6 11.3 20.0 234 30.8 22.2 13.0 20.3 25.4 38.1

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 49 66 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 563 624 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 69.0 69.7 @
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 75.9 77.5 @
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 28.4 30.5 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 59.5 65.1

EH29 ([Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 714 833 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 194 283 @
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 27 27 o
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 L
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 0.0 5.3 ﬁ
EH35 [Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M| L 5.2 43 iyl
EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 23 23 &
EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 96 87 @
EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 3 3 &
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 1.9 1.9 L
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 247 244 @
EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 7 6 @
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.7 6.7 o

. Page 15
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Shepway July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators g POT % ot 017 a0is

L‘I‘,:’ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 87.0 18.4 40.2 33.3 8.0 86.0 19.8 32.6 37.2 10.5

EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 38.1 26.9 50.9 47.6 18.0 37.7 28.5 40.7 52.6 23.1

EH5 |Number of open cases M L 473.0 15.9 30.7 40.6 12.9 441.0 16.6 28.8 41.7 12.9 @

EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 52.0 28.8 34.6 30.8 5.8 81.0 13.6 21.0 51.9 13.6 @

EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 109.0 115.0 116.0 126.0 109.0 114.6 116.3 108.0 121.0 113.0 ﬁ

EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 59.6 66.7 66.7 50.0 33.3 72.8 81.8 76.5 73.8 54.5 @

EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 15.4 13.3 16.7 18.8 0.0 4.9 9.1 5.9 4.8 0.0 @

EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 8.0 2.0 3.0 3.0 0.0 4.0 1.0 1.0 2.0 0.0 @

EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 14.0 1.0 4.0 6.0 2.0 10.0 1.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 ﬁ

EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 97.9 95.5 100.0 96.7 100.0 98.2 100.0 100.0 97.9 90.9 ﬁ

EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 75.0 40.0 80.0 82.8 66.7 77.8 66.7 71.4 84.2 83.3 @

EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 80.0 77.3 80.9 78.7 90.0 84.8 85.0 79.4 85.1 100.0 @

EH16 tpgrcentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 81.0 72.7 81.0 82.6 100.0 89.2 66.7 100.0 90.0 75.0 @

EH17 @verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 10.4 12.9 11.5 8.2 13.7 22.2 18.4 23.8 21.3 27.1 1’}

EHlsﬁverage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 17.4 17.3 18.8 14.5 26.0 19.4 14.8 21.9 17.4 27.6 ﬁ

EH19 |Pgrcentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 ‘ﬂofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 16.1 26.7 14.5 12.5 14.8 18.8 31.5 17.3 15.2 14.0

EH21 [Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 51.8 58.7 62.8 44.3 41.0 51.5 56.2 63.8 43.5 43.9

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 18.3 8.0 20.7 19.7 20.3 18.5 53 21.7 20.4 21.3

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 97 52 1’}

EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 1332 882 ﬁ

EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 74.9 77.1 @

EH26 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 77.8 77.4 ﬁ

EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 47.4 48.2 @

EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 71.7 72.5

EH29 [Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 919 1074 @

EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 314 297 ﬁ

EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 37 44 ﬁ

EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 25.0 20.0 @

EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 21.4 21.4 o

EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M| L 8.3 6.8 Iy

EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 83 82 @

EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 140 140 L

EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 5 5 &

EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.4 2.4 L

EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 943 924 @

EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 3 3 &

EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 7.3 7.3 o

. Page 16
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Swale July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators e bor TS oie 017 0is
E Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+
SCS  |Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T
SCS  |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L
EH3 [Number of notifications received M 81.0 21.0 35.8 39.5 3.7 91.0 20.9 35.2 36.3 7.7
EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 24.3 18.8 28.5 37.0 5.5 27.3 21.0 31.4 38.1 12.8
EH5 [Number of open cases M L 746.0 18.6 32.0 40.5 8.8 719.0 17.5 32.0 41.3 9.2 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 68.0 17.6 35.3 42.6 4.4 71.0 11.3 42.3 39.4 7.0 @
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 81.0 88.0 107.0 94.0 81.0 91.8 86.1 104.0 88.0 73.0 ﬁ
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 73.5 75.0 79.2 65.5 100.0 77.5 50.0 73.3 92.9 60.0 @
EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 2.9 8.3 0.0 3.4 0.0 7.0 12.5 10.0 3.6 0.0 ﬁ
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 2.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 5.0 1.0 3.0 1.0 0.0 ﬁ
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 23.0 10.0 6.0 6.0 1.0 32.0 10.0 11.0 8.0 1.0 @
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H
EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 98.3 97.4 100.0 96.5 100.0 98.5 97.1 100.0 97.6 100.0 ﬁ
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 61.6 66.7 65.6 56.5 33.3 41.0 53.3 30.4 38.1 100.0 ﬁ
EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 40.2 51.3 44.3 29.8 25.0 46.8 55.9 56.7 38.8 26.7 @
EH16 [Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 68.6 60.0 76.9 70.0 50.0 48.7 85.7 44.4 35.7 0.0 ﬁ
EH17 erage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 16.4 14.1 15.2 19.0 21.1 19.5 16.0 18.5 22.4 17.1 ﬁ
EH18 erage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 24.2 229 25.0 234 31.0 28.5 22.3 27.8 32.9 32.0 ﬁ
EH19 [Percentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.
EH20 'ﬁofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 15.1 24.5 13.8 9.9 22.7 15.6 27.0 13.9 10.1 22.7
EH21 {BXofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 53.2 45.3 62.3 50.0 51.5 54.0 45.2 64.8 49.8 51.5
EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 15.6 4.5 17.0 19.5 15.7 16.3 4.6 16.5 21.8 15.4
EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 42 124 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 757 1488 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 77.3 76.5 ﬁ
EH26 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 80.0 80.2 @
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 53.6 55.0 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 78.3 79.7
EH29 (Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H
EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 475 782 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 215 278 @
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 62 70 ﬁ
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 15.0 ﬁ
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 14.3 10.3 @
EH35 [Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M| L 10.0 7.8 iy
EH36 [Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 118 111 @
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 194 194 Le=d
EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 5 5 &
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.2 2.2 Le=s
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 1315 1360 ﬁ
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 0 0 &
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 9.1 9.1 &

. Page 17
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Thanet July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators e boT  TNe oie 07 0t
E Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15
SCS  |Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T
SCS |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L
EH3 [Number of notifications received M 92.0 22.8 33.7 33.7 9.8 119.0 23.5 34.5 32.8 9.2
EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 29.4 25.1 33.1 37.5 17.1 38.1 33.5 43.8 47.1 21.0
EH5 [Number of open cases M L 716.0 21.6 28.8 40.8 8.8 712.0 21.5 28.8 40.9 8.8 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 107.0 24.3 33.6 34.6 7.5 96.0 36.5 30.2 27.1 6.3 ﬁ
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 109.0 103.0 108.0 91.0 109.0 27.5 95.6 97.0 70.0 100.0 @
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 75.7 65.4 94.4 64.9 75.0 65.6 62.9 65.5 65.4 83.3 ﬁ
EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 9.3 11.5 5.6 10.8 12.5 11.5 14.3 6.9 15.4 0.0 ﬁ
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 10.0 3.0 2.0 4.0 1.0 11.0 5.0 2.0 4.0 0.0 ﬁ
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 30.0 9.0 8.0 11.0 2.0 26.0 10.0 7.0 8.0 1.0 ﬁ
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H
EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 96.3 91.9 98.3 96.4 100.0 97.3 9%4.4 96.3 100.0 100.0 ﬁ
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 72.9 75.0 76.0 66.7 80.0 78.0 100.0 83.3 68.8 0.0 @
EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 54.4 54.1 50.0 56.4 75.0 50.0 50.0 44.4 54.9 60.0 ﬁ
EH16 [Hgjcentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 71.2 81.8 82.4 63.0 50.0 60.0 80.0 60.0 50.0 0.0 ﬁ
EH17 |@¥erage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 11.8 12.4 10.6 12.7 10.6 15.2 13.4 14.1 16.7 20.5 ﬁ
EH18 erage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 20.1 18.0 19.8 20.6 26.2 25.1 21.7 24.9 25.9 40.0 ﬁ
EH19 |Pgrcentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.
EH20 [@file of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 16.8 26.5 17.0 12.7 11.1 17.8 29.4 19.5 11.7 12.7
EH21 [Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 51.0 50.3 57.3 48.3 44.4 53.2 52.3 59.5 51.2 44.4
EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 12.8 6.0 15.5 15.5 8.2 13.0 7.2 13.2 16.7 9.8
EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 61 64 @
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 1225 1374 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 81.7 82.4 @
EH26 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 83.4 83.6 @
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 53.7 54.7 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 75.3 77.2
EH29 (Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H
EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 628 1173 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 288 461 @
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 87 95 ﬁ
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 4.0 12.5 ﬁ
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 24.6 17.0 @
EH35 [Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M| L 10.6 7.6 iy
EH36 [Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 130 125 @
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 298 315 ﬁ
EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 13 12 @
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.2 2.2 Le=s
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 987 989 ﬁ
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 0 0 &
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 6.1 6.1 &

. Page 18
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Tonbridge & Malling July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators e bor TS oie 017 0is
E Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+
SCS  |Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T
SCS  |Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L
EH3 [Number of notifications received M 62.0 25.8 24.2 43.5 6.5 74.0 20.3 23.0 51.4 5.4
EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 20.4 21.5 15.8 32.8 7.7 24.4 20.1 17.9 46.2 7.7
EH5 [Number of open cases M L 441.0 16.1 26.8 47.2 10.0 431.0 14.2 28.8 46.9 10.2 @
EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 53.0 11.3 37.7 41.5 9.4 48.0 20.8 25.0 47.9 6.3 ﬁ
EH7 |[Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 81.0 97.0 116.0 109.0 81.0 100.4 107.2 101.0 103.0 71.0 ﬁ
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 86.8 83.3 95.0 81.8 80.0 75.0 70.0 75.0 78.3 66.7 ﬁ
EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 1.9 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.1 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0 ﬁ
EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 &
EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 6.0 1.0 1.0 3.0 0.0 9.0 2.0 2.0 3.0 1.0 @
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H
EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 99.1 100.0 100.0 100.0 75.0 98.4 100.0 100.0 98.1 83.3 @
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 64.1 57.1 60.0 66.7 100.0 54.3 45.5 60.0 66.7 0.0 ﬁ
EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 60.7 54.2 59.4 65.4 50.0 65.0 58.3 65.9 69.2 50.0 @
EH16 [Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 51.9 66.7 50.0 46.2 0.0 63.4 71.4 50.0 77.8 0.0 @
EH17 erage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 13.9 17.1 11.3 13.8 17.3 19.3 17.4 20.5 18.9 21.4 ﬁ
EH18 erage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 26.9 22.5 41.7 20.1 32.5 29.3 22.5 39.2 24.4 30.7 ﬁ
EH19 [Percentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.
EH20 %ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 20.6 33.8 20.3 17.3 15.9 19.7 34.4 21.8 15.8 114
EH21 tP*ofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 55.3 57.7 71.2 50.0 34.1 56.6 55.7 72.6 52.0 34.1
EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 16.4 6.8 234 15.7 14.3 18.4 8.8 27.0 16.8 14.0
EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 106 104 ﬁ
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 937 945 @
EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 68.0 67.5 ﬁ
EH26 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 73.1 73.7 @
EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 46.0 46.3 @
EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 68.5 67.9
EH29 (Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H
EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 512 528 @
EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 194 166 ﬁ
EH32 [Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 34 37 ﬁ
EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 =g
EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 5.6 4.8 @
EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 6.6 5.2 @
EH36 [Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 52 51 @
EH37 [Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 122 123 ﬁ
EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 6 5 @
EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 1.9 1.9 Le=s
EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 472 506 ﬁ
EH41 [Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 6 7 ﬁ
EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 7.0 7.0 &

. Page 19
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management August 2015

Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard - Tunbridge Wells July 2015 Data

g July 2015 June 2015
Indicators g poT TN i 017 201

L‘I‘,:’ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+ Overall 0-4 5-10 11-15 16+

SCS [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population M T

SCS  [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral M L

EH3 |Number of notifications received M 50.0 20.0 48.0 30.0 2.0 47.0 17.0 34.0 40.4 8.5

EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 17.7 14.1 27.2 19.7 2.1 16.7 11.3 18.1 25.0 8.6

EH5 [Number of open cases M L 341.0 19.4 33.7 38.1 8.8 315.0 19.4 28.9 41.6 10.2 @

EH6 |Number of cases closed M H 28.0 14.3 14.3 50.0 214 29.0 20.7 27.6 44.8 6.9 @

EH7 |Average case duration (Calendar Days) M L 110.0 106.0 100.0 112.0 110.0 100.8 90.8 98.0 110.0 92.0 @

EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome M H 60.7 50.0 50.0 71.4 50.0 89.7 83.3 100.0 84.6 100.0 @

EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS M L 10.7 50.0 0.0 0.0 16.7 3.4 16.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 @

EH10 [Number of cases stepped-up to SCS M L 3.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 @

EH11 [Number of cases stepped-down from SCS M H 13.0 2.0 6.0 3.0 2.0 6.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 ﬁ

EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS M H

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment M L 95.7 100.0 96.2 92.0 100.0 95.6 100.0 95.0 92.3 100.0 @

EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 48.1 25.0 66.7 40.0 0.0 51.9 20.0 80.0 63.6 33.3 @

EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan M H 38.6 23.1 38.5 44.0 50.0 47.1 42.9 50.0 46.2 50.0 @

EH16 —gRercentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M H 42.1 0.0 50.0 66.7 0.0 38.5 50.0 0.0 42.9 0.0 ﬁ

EH17 Q\verage length of time from notification to assessment (Calendar Days) M L 16.7 23.8 15.3 14.3 16.2 18.9 22.3 15.9 18.7 26.3 ﬁ

EH18% verage length of time from notification to plan (Calendar Days) M L 29.7 45.3 32.9 224 30.0 35.8 39.0 46.1 29.3 27.5 ﬁ

EH19 _|Rercentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months M H Monitoring not available until January 2016 due to time lag.

EH20 (Erofile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British M 22.6 42.4 17.4 14.6 30.0 23.2 39.3 20.9 14.5 28.1

EH21 '|Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys M 55.4 53.0 62.6 49.2 50.0 57.5 55.7 64.8 51.1 56.3

EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability M 15.6 15.7 17.4 12.8 21.9 16.9 16.7 19.2 13.2 25.8

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre M H 59 86 @

EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre M H 607 655 @

EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre M H 59.8 59.9 @

EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre M H 66.2 65.9 ﬁ

EH27 [Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre M H 32.5 33.9 @

EH28 [Percentage of children under 5 with Current Social Services involvement known to a Children Centre M H 68.1 68.3

EH29 [Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements M H

EH30 [Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 629 902 @

EH31 [Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision M H 179 180 @

EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System M L 21 27 ﬁ

EH33 [Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals M L 0.0 0.0 =g

EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) M L 0.0 6.7 ﬁ

EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET M L 5.6 4.7 @

EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups M L 43 42 @

EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary M L 77 79 ﬁ

EH38 [Number of permanent exclusions - primary M L 1 1 &

EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary A L 2.3 2.3 Le=d

EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary M L 521 516 @

EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary M L 6 6 &

EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary A L 4.2 4.2 &

. Page 20
Management Information, EYPS, KCC



Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard

Scorecard - Indicator Data Source

Indicators Source Description Latest data Description Latest data release date
SCS  [Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population Liberi Monthly Reporting, MIU - SCS Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
SCS  [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral Liberi YTD Monthly Reporting, MIU - SCS YTD - July 2015 August 2015
EH3  |[Number of notifications received SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH4 |Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH5 |Number of open cases SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH6  |Number of cases closed SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH7 |Average case duration SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH8 |Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH9 |Percentage of cases closed - step-up to SCS SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH10 |Number of cases stepped-up to SCS SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH11 |Number of cases stepped-down from SCS SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH12 |Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS SKWO Monthly Reporting/ Liberi YTD - July 2015 August 2015
EH13 |Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH14 |Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH15 |Percentage of notifications leading to a plan SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH16 'Fg'centage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH17 LeS/erage length of time from notification to assessment SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH18 j/\erage length of time from notification to plan SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH19 ﬁcentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months SKWO Monthly Reporting/ Liberi
EH20 ‘F%file of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH21 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EH22 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability SKWO Monthly Reporting Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
EStart. Reporting is extracted as soon as possible after the
EH23 |Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre 8th of the month and data represents activity or registrations |Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
within the month of interest
EStart. Reporting is extracted as soon as possible after the
EH24 |Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre 8th of the month and data represents activity or registrations |Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
within the month of interest
EStart. Reporting is extracted as soon as possible after the
EH25 |Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre 8th of the month and data represents activity or registrations |Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
within the month of interest
EStart. Reporting is extracted as soon as possible after the
EH26 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre 8th of the month and data represents activity or registrations |Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
within the month of interest
EStart. Reporting is extracted as soon as possible after the
EH27 |Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre 8th of the month and data represents activity or registrations |Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
within the month of interest
EStart. Reporting is extracted as soon as possible after the
EH28 |Percentage of children under 5 with current Social Services involvement known to a Children's Centre 8th of the month and data represents activity or registrations |Snapshot - July 2015 August 2015
within the month of interest

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 21




Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard
Scorecard - Indicator Data Source

Indicators

EH29 |Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements

Source Description

Ofsted and Estart

Latest data Description

Snapshot - July 2015

Latest data release date

August 2015

EH30 |Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision

Information, Quality and Performance

Snapshot - July 2015

August 2015

EH31 |Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision

Information, Quality and Performance

Snapshot - July 2015

August 2015

EH32 |Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System

Information, Quality and Performance

Rolling 12 Months - July 2015

August 2015

EH33 |Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals

Information, Quality and Performance

Snapshot - July 2015

August 2015

EH34 |Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC)

Information, Quality and Performance

Snapshot - July 2015

August 2015

EH35 |Percentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET

MI monthly reporting

Snapshot - July 2015

August 2015

EH36 |Number of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups

MI monthly reporting

Snapshot - July 2015

August 2015

EH37 |Number of fixed term exclusions - primary

Impulse database - monthly reported data

Rolling 12 Months - July 2015

August 2015

EH38 |Number of permanent exclusions - primary

Impulse database - monthly reported data

Rolling 12 Months - July 2015

August 2015

EH39 |Percentage persistent absence - primary

Kent LA is DfE Published, District level is MI calculations
based on Termly School Census

Snapshot - 2013-14

2013-14 annual data

EH40 |Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary

Impulse database - monthly reported data

Rolling 12 Months - July 2015

August 2015

EH41 |Number of permanent exclusions - secondary

Impulse database - monthly reported data

Rolling 12 Months - July 2015

August 2015

EH42 |Percentage persistent absence - secondary

Kent LA is DfE Published, District level is MI calculations
based on Termly School Census

Snapshot - 2013-14

2013-14 annual data

mul
QO
Q
(0]
-_—
(o]
SN

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 22




Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard

Scorecard - Indicator Definitions

Indicators

Definiti

Rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services per 10,000 under 18 population The purpose of the indicator is to track the number of referrals into Specialist Children’s Services. Using a per 10,000 calculation allows for the comparison
of different sized districts with Kent, and for comparison with other local authorities.

SCS  [Percentage of re-referrals to Specialist Children's Services within 12 months of a previous referral The number of referrals since April, where a previous referral had been made within the last 12 months, as a percentage of the total number of referrals
since April.

EH3  [Number of notifications received SKWO: The number of notifications received during the current month is given in the "Overall" column, the percentage breakdown is given for the age
bandings. The data includes all notifications received by EH&PS excluding the following Notification Types: "Existing TAF moved", "Existing TAF moved (CDT
e-mail)", "SCS open case - support", "SCS step-down". Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH4 [Number of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population SKWO: The number of notifications received during the current month per 10,000 of the Mid Year 2013 0-18 population Estimates. The data includes all
notifications received by EH&PS excluding the following Notification Types: "Existing TAF moved", "Existing TAF moved (CDT e-mail)", "SCS open case -
support", "SCS step-down". Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH5 [Number of open cases SKWO: The number of open cases as at the end of the current reported month is given in the "Overall" column, the percentage breakdown is given for the
age bandings. The data includes all open cases received by EH&PS. Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH6 [Number of cases closed SKWO: The number of closed cases at the point of data extract for the current month only is given in the "Overall" column, the percentage breakdown is
given for the age bandings. The following Closure Outcomes are excluded: "Moved out of Kent", "Closure - Closed at Triage", "Closure - case open to Early
Help", Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH7 |Average case duration SKWO: Average all the 'Calc: Notification Date to Closure Date', cases are as at the end of the current reported month. Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH8 [Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome SKWO: The percentage of all closed cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. Closure Outcomes used are 'Outcomes
achieved - case closed' and 'Outcomes achieved - support from partner agency'. Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH9 [Percentage of cases closed - stepped-up to SCS SKWO: The number of all closed cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. Closure outcome — escalation to SCS.
Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH10 &dmber of cases stepped-up to SCS SKWO: The number of all closed cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. Closure outcome — escalation to SCS.

o} Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH11 mber of cases stepped-down from SCS SKWO: The number of all closed cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. Notification type — SCS step-down. Date

= of birth used to calculate age.

EH12 rcentage of cases stepped-down from SCS The number of closed cases within the period where the referral end reason was recorded as being step down as a percentage of the total number of cases
closed within the period.

EH13 [Percentage of notifications leading to an assessment SKWO: The percentage of Early Help Notifications that have lead to an Assessment based on the number of Early Help Notifications received for the
previous 3 months. 'Date First Key Worker Appointed' field used to determine if an assessment has taken place.

EH14 (Percentage of assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification SKWO: The percentage of Early Help Notifications received during the current month. Notification date less than the plan date. Date of birth used to
calculate age.

EH15 [Percentage of notifications leading to a plan SKWO: The percentage of Early Help Notifications that have lead to a plan based on the number of Early Help Notifications received for the previous 3
months. 'First Meeting Date' field used to determine if a Plan has taken place.

EH16 [Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification SKWO: The number of Early Help Plans for the current month only less the number of Early Help Notifications received. <28 calendar days. 'First Meeting
Date' field used to determine if a plan has taken place.

EH17 [Average length of time from notification to assessment SKWO: The number of Early Help Notifications received for the previous 3 months. The average length of time Early Help Assessments have taken place at
anytime. 'Date First Key worker Appointed' field used to determine if an assessment has taken place.

EH18 [Average length of time from notification to plan SKWO: The number of Early Help Notifications received for the previous 3 months. The average length of time Early Help Plans have taken place at
anytime. 'First Meeting Date' field used to determine if a Plan has taken place.

EH19 (Percentage of closed cases that are referred to SCS within 12 months

EH20 |Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Non White British SKWO: The number of all open cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. Non White British is based on the child's
recorded ethnicity , this indicator excludes the following ethnicity codes: WENG/WBRI/WOWB/WSCO/WWEL/WCOR. Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH21 (Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Boys SKWO: The number of all open cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. The child's gender recorded is used to
determine this percentage, any record without a gender has been excluded from the calculations. Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH22 (Profile of open cases by vulnerable group - % Disability SKWO: The number of all open cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. This indicator excludes the following
Disability codes recorded: NCOL/NONE and where the field is blank. Date of birth used to calculate age.

EH23 [Number of children under 5 newly registered with a Children's Centre Children aged under 5 newly registered with a Children’s Centre within the month, includes Chidlren recorded out of area.

EH24 [Number of children under 5 attending a Children's Centre Children aged under 5 attending an activity or event at a Children’s Centre within the month.

EH25 [Percentage of children under 5 who are registered with a Children's Centre Proportion of children aged under 5 registered with a Children’s Centre.

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 23




Early Help & Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard

Scorecard - Indicator Definitions

Indicators

Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs registered with a Children's Centre

Definiti

Proportion of children aged under 5, living in the most deprived 30% of LSOAs in Kent, registered with a Children’s Centre.

EH27

Percentage of children under 5 living in the 30% most deprived LSOAs attending a Children's Centre

Proportion of children aged under 5, living in the most deprived 30% of LSOAs in Kent, attending an activity or event at a Children’s Centre within the last
year.

EH28

Percentage of children under 5 with current Social Services involvement known to a Children's Centre

Children under 5 years old known to Social Services, registered with a Children’s Centre and on eStart. Children with confidential addresses have been
excluded from the district level data, but included in the Kent total. eStart member has to be active and consent must be obtained before any data is
extracted.

EH29

Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements

The percentage of Children's Centres judged Good or Outstanding for Overall Effectiveness in their latest inspection, as a proportion of all inspected Kent
Children's Centres. Centres are now judged as a hub network, district level data has been re aggregated from centre level results.

EH30

Number of attendances at KCC or commissioned youth provision

The number of attendances at all (commissioned and direct delivery) Kent County Council open access youth activities. These figures include 13-19 year
olds (including 11-25 when identified as disability or learning difficulties). The figures are accurate at the time of publication but are subject to change.
Please check with the original source for any updated figures if the data is to be used else where.

EH31

Number of young people accessing KCC or commissioned youth provision

The number of Young people attending (commissioned and direct delivery) Kent County Council open access youth activities. These figures include 13-19
year olds (including 11-25 when identified as disability or learning difficulties). The figures are accurate at the time of publication but are subject to change.
Please check with the original source for any updated figures if the data is to be used else where.

EH32

Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System

Notification from Kent Police of CYP aged 10 to 17years inclusive who receive their first formal Youth Justice Disposal. The figures are accurate at the time
of publication but are subject to change. Please check with the original source for any updated figures if the data is to be used else where.

EH33

Custodial sentences as a percentage of court disposals

The number of custodial sentences expressed as a percentage of the total number of sentences imposed in court within the quarter. The figures are
accurate at the time of publication but are subject to change. Please check with the original source for any updated figures if the data is to be used else
where.

EH34 [Percentage of the Youth Justice caseload which are CIC (Kent CIC) The number of Kent Children in Care on the Youth Justice caseload as a snapshot taken on the last day of the quarter. The figures are accurate at the time
LY} of publication but are subject to change. Please check with the original source for any updated figures if the data is to be used else where.
o}

EH35 § rcentage of 16-18 cohort who are NEET The percentage of young people who have left compulsory education, up until their eighteenth birthday, who have not achieved a positive education,

employment or training destination. Data collected under contract by CXK (Connexions).

EH36

dyymber of 16-18 NEETs coming from vulnerable groups
)

The percentage of young people who have left compulsory education, up until their eighteenth birthday, who have not achieved a positive education,
employment or training destination. Data collected under contract by CXK (Connexions).

EH37

Number of fixed term exclusions - primary

Number of pupils that have a fixed term exclusion from a Kent maintained Primary school or a Primary academy over the reported time period.

EH38

Number of permanent exclusions - primary

Number of pupils that have been permanently excluded from a Kent maintained Primary school or a Primary academy over the reported time period.

EH39

Percentage persistent absence - primary

The percentage of pupils that have been persistently absent from a Kent maintained Primary school or a Primary academy for 15% or more of their
expected sessions over the reported time period.

EH40

Number of fixed term exclusions - secondary

Number of pupils that have a fixed term exclusion from a Kent maintained Secondary school or a Secondary academy over the reported time period.

EH41

Number of permanent exclusions - secondary

Number of pupils that have been permanently excluded from a Kent maintained Secondary school or a Secondary academy over the reported time period.

EH42

Percentage persistent absence - secondary

The percentage of pupils that have been persistently absent from a Kent maintained Secondary school or a Secondary academy for 15% or more of their
expected sessions over the reported time period.

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 24




'Kent

APPENDIX 2

Vision | Practitioner Dashboard for the date range: County
Our focus Is on supporting families, communities and universal settings within local districts to support Options District Council
all children and young people to do well and to stay safe. Our aim is also to provide additional local Practitioner Jun-15 to 29-Jul-15 kent.gov.uk
services that can be accessed easily, at the right time in the right place, to ensure more targeted early
help is available to meet the needs of children and young people in a way that avoids problems Closure Outcomes |Average Duration of Cases Closed
becoming more serious. 4 4 5 a
Telp 1 100% 2
90% 1
Your local EYPS busines suspport will be able to provide opperational assistance should you require it. 80% 20
Access to SKWO via: http://www kelsi.org.uk/earlyhelp g 70%
S so% - Lo1s
3 2
g sow ]
Current Case Summary - Total Cases = 13 S a0% —| Z 2
Value ;e 30%
20% s
Cases on Track 5 (38%) % ]
o% . 0 v
Jun-15 Juk-15 Jun-15 Jul-15
ith Month ~
Drifting/Escalating Cases E==0utcomes Achieved [E==IWithdrawn Consent EEEEStep-up to SCS = Kent Service Standard # Weeks Average (# Cases Closed) Kent Service Standard
2 (15%)
No progress in the last 3 weeks, or negative progress in the
last week [Current Workload
Qutcomes not agreed @ Visit - 20%
5 (38%)
No outcomes within 4 weeks of notification received W Travel - 6%
Lon. ion [ Associated - 16%
ong duration cases 1(8%) 8% long duration cases - review plans to
hi
ﬁral\vn is greater than 20 weeks R e B [ Open Access - 20%
Cas@formation not up to date O Supervision - 8%
5(38%)
[‘anwmil»un not updated in last 7 days O Training - 11%
[ Oth 0%
" Indictation of letion based er -
PRAicted number of case Al SR (E LSRRI LD
0.5 the percentage progress against outcomes .
closures: - Target 0.5 case / week ® Available - 18%
o iy View e
[Closed Case Summary (over last 2 months) 100%
90%
Value Kent Service Notes 803&
Standard S 70%
n 60%
gn 50%
Cases closed with 6075 % 8% Better than Kent historical average but not yet g 40%
outcomes achieved (75%) at Service Standard 30%
20%
10%
Cases closed per 0%
4.1 2.4 /fmonth Better than Kent Service Standard
month ,@'\“ &P g7 ,‘,o"? &P Y ,‘,6¢° P S R G S SR T I
W o G o P o G o o F o T o o ¢ T o o ¢ ¢ @ o o
P I g g g L i T T g R
. Close to target, review outcomes and progress Week Commencin
Average case duration 21 20 weeks B towards them. oroe ’
: ——Outcome 1 = = Outcome 2 === Outcome 3 «++++ Qutcome 4




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem C2

From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health
Reform

Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director for Education and
Young People’s Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet
Committee — 18 September 2015
Subject: Teacher Recruitment and Retention Activity for 2015

Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: Annual Update

Electoral Division: County-wide

Summary: This report provides a general update on Teacher Recruitment and
Retention Activity for 2015 and any key issues in relation to teacher recruitment
and retention in Kent schools.

Recommendation: The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet
Committee is recommended to comment and note the report.

1. Introduction

1.1 This report relates to teacher recruitment and retention activity for 2015, and
provides a general update relating to the current position, progress and any
key issues.

2. History and Background

2.1 www.Kent-Teach.com website was launched in 2000 in order to support
schools in Kent with their recruitment. The Kent-Teach team maintain,
market and promote the website and teaching as a desirable profession
within Kent.

2.2 The website provides visitors with information on teaching careers and
leadership, information on the county, job searches, help and support and
resources via the blog and forum. Candidates can create an online profile
which allows them to apply online and track their applications and set
up job alerts.

2.3 Schools in Kent can either sign up to a monthly package which allows them

unlimited advertising and access to the full range of KT services or they
can advertise on an adhoc basis and pay per vacancy placed.

Page 169


../../leesop01/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/JS2CSQFK/www.Kent-Teach.com

3.1

41

4.2

4.3

Progress to date

Having successfully supported schools with their recruitment for over 15
years the team have a strong grasp of the Primary school recruitment
market in Kent and have established themselves as worthy competitors of
much larger organisations in the eyes of the Secondary school market too.

The team are also developing innovative strategies to target the shortage
and quality of teachers in Kent more directly by putting in place recruitment
strategies that allow Kent to be proactive rather than reactive.

Website Development

The Kent-Teach website is crucial to the success of the team and is an
integral part of all their recruitment strategies. The website was successfully
rebranded and redesigned in the financial year 2013-14.

The new website design is accessible via mobile or tablet devices, Google
Analytics shows that since its launch 45% of traffic to the website is now
from a mobile or tablet device.

Digital media moves forward very quickly so the team constantly review and
update the website and always address any feedback that is received from
site members or schools. This flexibility sets them apart from their
competitors.

In the year following the rebranding of the site, the team also developed 3
more areas of the site:

(i) Application Form

The application form has been updated to reflect the more varied needs of
customers. As both Kent maintained schools and Academies use the site for
advertising, a KCC branded online application form was no longer suitable for
all customers. The newly redesigned application form has been streamlined
to make it easier for candidates to complete and uses the school’s own name
and logo. This standard form is online only but schools have the option to
upload their own form or redirect candidates to another website to apply.

(i) Trust and Federation Advertising

Recognising a new need in the market with many schools becoming part of a
federation or joining an academy trust the team have implemented a system
which allows Trusts/Federations to be set up on the system as an
organisation. This allows them to advertise for vacancies across a number of
their schools and to link the schools within the Trust or Federation to their
account. This means that Trusts and Federations are able to centrally
manage their recruitment if they so wish, although the option is still available
for schools to continue to maintain their accounts.

Page 170



(iii) Talent Stream

The team also implemented a Talent Stream system on to the website which
allows them to identify and track top quality candidates and signpost them to
vacancies in Kent schools. This helps manage and track candidates that
have been alerted to Kent-Teach via the work the team do in recruiting from
universities around the UK and Ireland. The long-term plan for the talent
stream is that the team will be able to track not only Newly Qualified Teachers
(NQTs) but more experienced teachers and suitable leadership candidates.

4.4 New Website Developments

It is nearly two years since the relaunch of the website so the team have once
again reviewed the functionality of the website and identified several areas for
development which will be implemented over the summer of 2015 These include
the following:

(i) Homepage

The homepage uses a structure of columns and boxes to direct visitors to the
relevant information. The homepage is being reshuffled to group functional
items; job search, NQT manager, Medway job page, enhanced featured jobs,
featured schools and promotional items into the top section of the site and
“added value” items like the blog articles, forum, twitter feed and upcoming
events to the bottom half of the site. There is also the addition of a quick job
search right at the top of the page.

(i) Job Enhancement Options
The website already had functionality to allow schools to “feature” their

vacancy. This has a lot of take up from schools so the team have expanded
these options to now include the following:

Type What does this include?
Automatic listing on job

Featured job search pages. Appear near
the top of relevant search
listings.

Highlighted box. Automatic
listing on job search
Enhanced Featured Job pages. Appear at the top of
relevant search listings.
Listings on the homepage
on rotation.

School name, logo and
number of jobs appear on
Featured School scroll on homepage.
Featured schools also
appear on rotation in
featured school box.

Page 171



4.5

(i)  Blog

For the last two years the team have run a blog which provides resources,
information and first hand tales of teaching from Teachers in Kent schools.
Promoting these posts on social media drives traffic to the website and adds
value to the service they offer their customers. The blog was redesigned to
incorporate the news and events section, allow users to share content directly
to their social media pages and to subscribe so they receive notification of
new blog posts. The updated blog went live in May and since then the team
have seen a 130% increase in traffic to the blog.

(iv) Members Area

The members’ area is being redesigned to be more streamlined and easier to
navigate.

(v) School Dashboard

The School Dashboard is being redesigned to help schools keep their
account and actions up to date. It will be easier for them to review their
account details, share feedback and news with the team and access their list
of vacancies and NQT manager tasks.

(vi) Vacancy Uploader

The vacancy uploader function has been made more efficient and accessible.

(vii) Registration

The team have reviewed and shortened the registration process to allow for a
quicker registration.

Customer engagement

The team ensure that they keep up to date with the latest research and methods
for reaching their customers. Whilst the site is very effective for active job seekers,
reaching that passive market can be more challenging and research shows that the
best way to do this is to engage with your customers so that they have reason to
keep in touch with you even when they are not actively job hunting.

(i) Social Media

Kent-Teach uses a number of social media platforms to engage with
customers.

Kent-Teach find that their customers do view and read the information that is
put out on these platforms but there is limited engagement from the point of
view of customers “talking back” to them.

This year the team undertook a review of their social media platforms and
conducted research to build a strategy for their social media activity. This has
been invaluable and has shown an increase engagement via shares, likes
and click-throughs.

Page 172



4.6

Kent-Teach currently use the following channels:

Facebook
Twitter
Linked In
Pinterest
Google +

As well as using their own social media platforms to encourage traffic to the
website and engage with their customers, the team have been assisting
schools in running social media campaigns for their recruitment.

When the usual channels such as Kent-Teach, Guardian and TES have not
resulted in an appointment KT have worked in partnership with advertising
agency TMP Worldwide to run a Social Networking Advertising Package
(SNAP) in order to promote their vacancy and reach a wider audience.

A SNAP campaign is more expensive than traditional advertising so the KT
team offer this as an option to schools which have had difficulty in recruiting
or who have a large number of vacancies.

(i) Blog and Forum

In June 2013, Kent-Teach launched a blog and forum to encourage traffic to
the site from people other than active job seekers. The blog aims to give an
insight into teaching and Kent schools and the posts are submitted by
teachers and leaders currently working with Kent-Schools alongside posts
from the team itself.

The forum aims to give teachers a platform to pose questions, queries or
debate with each other on topics about teaching.

The blog has been redesigned and has since seen a 130% increase in traffic.

Marketing Schedule

Kent-Teach has a well established reputation with 88% of its traffic being organic or
direct (rather than through paid advertising or through another media). However it
is important that this is maintained and so each year the team will implement a
Media Schedule of advertising to keep the Kent-Teach brand recognised and to
expand the reach of the brand beyond Kent.

Last year’'s campaign was a targeted campaign via Google Display Network and
Keyword searches and ran for 36 weeks from September 2014 until end of May
2015 resulting in the following:

22,936 clicks across the 9 campaign locations

£0.60 cost per click rate

1,834 submitted applications

£7.50 cost per application rate

Most effective keyword — “Kent Teaching Jobs”

90% of applications from desktop device /10% from mobile or tablet devices.

Page 173



Kent was the most successful location with 39% of overall clicks and 60% of overall
applications. London was next with 30% of campaign applications and 10% click to
submit application conversion. The South East location performed better than other
targeted areas.

4.7 Recruitment Fairs

The team attends a programme of recruitment events around the UK from October
through to February in order to represent Kent schools and promote Kent as a
desirable location for new teachers.

In 2014-15 the team attended 22 recruitment fairs which resulted in:

e 725 expressions of interest from teaching candidates

e 172 candidates went on to log on to the Kent-Teach website at least once
¢ 48 of these candidates have logged in 20 or more times

¢ 40% of these candidates have submitted at least 1 job application

4.8 Irish Recruitment

In order to address the shortage of teachers in Kent, the team have in the past
recruited from Ireland where top quality teacher trainees do not find work due to the
surplus of teachers.

In 2014 the team successfully placed 10 Irish teachers in 6 schools in Kent, with
one of the schools taking a total of 4 teachers.

As well as helping the students to find jobs the team also assisted them in finding
suitable accommodation and produced a brochure about their new local area for
them. Research has found that this additional support is essential to ensuring that
the teachers feel supported in their new jobs and are therefore more likely to settle
in Kent for the longer term.

In 2015, the Irish market has become saturated with recruitment agencies
recruiting teachers from Ireland. The team has seen a dramatic decrease in the
number of trainee teachers interested in coming from Northern Ireland this year.

Kent-Teach has often had success with teachers from the Republic of Ireland but
their graduate teacher training programme has just been extended to two years so
no trainee teachers have come from Ireland this year. Kent-Teach may revisit this
in 2016 when the trainee teachers will be finishing their two-year programme but it
may be the case that there are still less available candidates given that there were
no trainee teachers graduating this year.

4.9 Headteacher Recruitment
Kent-Teach works in partnership with the Schools’ Personnel Service and the

School Improvement Team to provide a comprehensive Headship recruitment
package to Kent Schools.

Page 174



In order to advertise the headships effectively Kent-Teach produce a microsite for
each individual headship they support.

The team started using microsites for headship recruitment in January 2011 and
since then just under 60% of headships advertised in this way have made a
successful appointment on the first round of recruitment. Please refer to section
4.11 for statistics on the number of headship posts advertised for April 2014 —
March 2015.

4.10 Partnerships

Kent-Teach has a contract with The Guardian that enables all vacancies posted on
Kent-Teach to be placed on Guardianjobs.co.uk at no additional cost to the school.
Kent-Teach pay a yearly fee to the Guardian and are provided with monthly reports
on click-throughs to the Kent-Teach site.

4.11 Key Statistics

Kent-Teach statistics showing information for April 2014 - March 15:

Number of Number of
Vacancies Applications

2,986 10,539
378 1,078
2,416 38,761
5,780 50,378

Visits Unique Visits New Visits

1,357,078 607,348 407,304

Total Members New Members

85,680 16,493

Number of Schools registered Number of Schools on

on Kent-Teach Monthly Package

792 511
Number of Headships Advertised Number appointed on 15t Round
59 30

Since September 2014 the following new Headteacher appointments have been
made:

32 Headteachers started in the Autumn term 2014

9 Headteachers started Spring term 2015

15 Headteachers started Summer term 2015

28 Headteachers are due to start in Autumn term 2015

2 Headteachers are due to start in Spring term 2016 (so far)

There are currently 63 schools without a substantive Headteacher for September
2015, but in each case robust interim leadership arrangements are in place. These
arrangements include an Executive Headteacher, a Head of School or an Interim
Headteacher.

Page 175



5. Key Issues

5.1 In common with the national picture, schools in Kent are experiencing
difficulty in teacher recruitment in Science, Mathematics, English, Modern
Foreign Languages and Design Technology. The problem extends beyond
the number of teachers as feedback from schools suggests that the
shortage has led to further recruitment issues:

e Schools take on larger numbers of NQTs to meet the need for teachers but
may not always be able to provide the support required.

e Schools feel that the quality of the candidates is not always as good as they
would like.

5.2  Location can prove to be a problem for recruiting in Kent for a number of
reasons:

e With a large coastline surrounding half of the county, schools in East Kent
do not have the benefit of teachers crossing the border to teach.

e Being on the border of London, which is able to offer higher salaries, can
mean that schools in West Kent often lose out to schools in neighbouring
London boroughs.

5.3 2015 has also seen a number of other key factors affecting the number of
teachers:

e Teacher trainee numbers are down by 12% nationally in the 2015 cohort.
e There has been an increase in teachers going abroad to work

6. Next Steps

6.1  Key activities for 2015-16:

e Review strategies for nationwide recruitment

e Continue to review and develop the website to ensure it remains
innovative and up-to-date

¢ Maintain and build on customer engagement via blog, forum and social

media pages

Implement new website developments in time for September 2015

Review and streamline Kent headship process

Explore possibility of implementing a positive PR campaign for teaching

Develop strategies for encouraging candidates into teaching profession

6.2 National Recruitment

In order to encourage the recruitment of teachers in Kent, Kent-Teach market
outside of the county through a targeted Google Campaign, attendance at
recruitment fairs and building relationships with teacher training universities.

Following a review of the data collected from last year's Google Campaign, this
year's campaign will focus more on the South East areas.

Page 176



6.3 Website Development

The team constantly reviews the website in order to keep up to date with current
technology and recruitment advances. Large reviews are undertaken biannually by
the team and small developments are considered at monthly team meetings in
order to response to customer feedback as timely as possible.

6.4 PR campaigns

The team is exploring ways in which it can raise the positive profile of teaching as a
profession through the use of original video content and Twitter campaigns. By
using their influence on social media they hope to encourage teachers to share
positives messages about the profession as the antidote to the negative messages
appearing in the mainstream press.

This is a long term strategy that will involve engaging with current teachers in a
positive way and implementing strategies to engage with potential teachers early
on.

6.5 Bespoke Solutions

The team is continuing to work closely with schools that have particular recruitment
needs in order to provide innovative and bespoke solutions. This may include
social media campaigns, signposting campaigns, videos and placement schemes.

7. Recommendation

Recommendation:

7.1 The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is asked to
comment and note the report.

8. Contact details

Report Author:

Samantha Vandersteen, Kent-Teach Manager
03000 412395
Samantha.Vandersteen@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Directors:

Gillian Cawley, Director of Education, Quality and Standards
03000 419853

Gillian.Cawley@kent.gov.uk

Page 177



mailto:Samantha.Vandersteen@kent.gov.uk
../../leesop01/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/JS2CSQFK/Gillian.Cawley@kent.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem C3

From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member — Education and Health Reform
and Matthew Balfour, Cabinet Member — Environment and
Transport

Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director — Education and Young
People’s Services and Roger Wilkin, Interim Director —
Highways, Transport and Waste

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee
18 September 2015

Subject: An Active Travel Strategy for Kent

Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: N/A

Future Pathway of Paper: The draft Strategy will be reported to this Cabinet
Committee, Environment and Transport and Adult Social Care and Health. The
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport will ultimately take the decision to

adopt the Strategy.

Electoral Division: Countywide

Summary

Active travel (specifically choosing journeys by bicycle and on foot instead of by car
wherever possible) can reduce congestion, improve the environment and the air we
breathe. It can improve our health and can increase levels of physical activity in
school-aged children leading to improved attainment. It is crucial to establish
healthy habits in young people in order for them to be sustained in later life.

In Kent, almost half of adults fail to meet recommended levels of physical activity
required for good health, and one third of Kent’s children are overweight or obese
by the time they leave Primary School. One in three adults in Kent is at high risk of
developing a disease condition through a lack of physical activity. Evidence
suggests that objectives and measures to increase active travel will help deliver
positive outcomes and that these will be across all KCC directorates.

It is proposed that an Active Travel Strategy be developed and adopted as County
Council policy. The strategy will be cost-neutral and provide strategic guidance in
order to maximise existing investment in projects.

The development of the Strategy was reported to the Environment and Transport
Cabinet Committee on 21st July 2015. A report to the Adult Social Care and Health
Cabinet Committee will be considered on 11t September 2015.

Recommendation

Page 179



The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is asked to
comment on the development of an Active Travel Strategy for Kent.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1.

2.2.

3.1.

Introduction and Background

Over 26% of adults in Kent are classed as physically inactive and at high risk
of developing disease conditions as a result of their sedentary lifestyle. Over
43% fail to meet the recommended levels of activity required to maintain
good health. 21% of children in Kent are above a healthy weight when
starting Primary school, increasing to 33% by the time they leave.

By 2050, the NHS cost attributable to obesity and overweight will be £9.7
billion and the total costs will be £49.9 billion. The direct costs of iliness as an
outcome of physical inactivity to the NHS are quoted to be as much as £1.0
billion per annum, while costs to the whole economy are estimated at £20
billion per annum.

Active travel is the recognised public health term for journeys made by
bicycle and on foot instead of by car, and includes part-journeys that involve
public transport. It can reduce congestion, improve the environment and the
air we breathe, and it can improve our health as well as attainment in school-
aged children. Healthy habits established in young people are more likely to
be sustained in later life. Delivery of actions through schools is also crucial in
terms of impacting on congestion. In the morning peak around 20% of traffic
is ‘on the school run’.

An Active Travel Strategy

Kent County Council currently does not have a corporate strategy for
increasing active travel for every-day journeys such as to school, to work or
for shopping. Evidence (see Appendix 1) suggests a co-ordinated set of
policies and measures will have a positive benefit to reduce traffic
congestion, improve the environment and improve public health. Further, if
developed, an Active Travel Strategy will provide a commissioning framework
for all directorates and partner organisations; it will inform local transport and
health policies; it will provide a context for bids for external funding; and
deliver an increase in walking and cycling to contribute to keeping Kent
moving and healthy.

This Strategy will support National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
(NICE) commissioning guidance that recommends schools foster a culture
that supports physically active travel for journeys to school and during the
school day, through encouraging children to walk or cycle.

Financial Implications

The Strategy will be developed as a cost-neutral document and require no
additional investment from Kent County Council budgets. The Strategy will
act as a commissioning framework to provide strategic guidance on where
existing programmes of work can deliver higher returns and maximise
existing investment in projects

Page 180




3.2.

41.

4.2.

4.3

4.4

5.1

Further, the Strategy will be used to support bids for external income,
including anticipated Government funding through the Infrastructure Act
(2015) which specifically provides for investment in walking and cycling.

The Strategic Statement and Corporate Objectives

The Strategy is in line with the KCC Strategic Statement 2015-2020;
specifically outcome 2: Kent Communities feel the benefits of economic
growth by being in-work, healthy and enjoying a good quality of life.

In the Growth Environment and Transport Business Plan (2015-2016), the
Strategy accords with priorities 1, 2, 4, 6, and 7: to contribute to the delivery
of the growth and infrastructure outcomes, create successful bids to secure
funding; facilitate partnerships between transport providers; delivery of the
Kent Environment Strategy; and specifically to contribute to Public Health by
facilitating and promoting active travel.

The Strategy delivers against objectives in the Public Health Outcomes
Framework, specifically indicators 2.13i (proportion of adults achieving at
least 150 minutes of physical activity per week), 2.13ii (proportion of adults
classified as inactive) and 1.16 (utilisation of outdoor space for exercise or
health reasons).

Schools, Early Years Settings and Children’s Centres have responsibilities to
promote the health and wellbeing of children and young people. The
Strategy will support their efforts. Both Kent’'s Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy, and the KCC Health Inequalities Action Plan, ‘Mind the Gap’ also
highlight the importance of the early years of a child’s life, and most crucially
that health prevention through increasing levels of physical activity at this age
will deliver long-term benefits for all family members, and improve a child’'s
readiness for school.

Timescales for consultation and adoption

The Strategy will be developed by a cross-directorate working group. Partner
engagement is planned to take place between September and October 2015.
Workshops are proposed in October in the east and west of the county with
further engagement planned for schools and young people. A draft Strategy
will be developed between October and December, with full consultation
beginning in January 2016. A final Strategy, taking into account consultation
responses, will be presented for consideration to the three Cabinet
Committees reviewing this paper during Spring 2016. It is proposed to
recommend to the Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment that the
Strategy be adopted as Kent County Council policy, subject to the views of
these Cabinet Committees at that time.

Page 181



6.1

6.2

Conclusions and Recommendation:

Increasing the number of journeys made by active modes of travel will have
benefits for the residents and visitors to Kent. An Active Travel Strategy will
ensure that the Kent population, with particular reference to populations at
risk of poor health through a lack of physical activity or pollution, are enabled
to choose active modes of transport more regularly and for a wider range of
journeys.

It is crucial to establish healthy habits, including walking and cycling to school
and for leisure activities, in young people in order for them to be sustained in
later life.

Recommendation

The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is asked to
comment on the development of an Active Travel Strategy for Kent.

7.1

Appendix 1: Background Documents
The evidence base for policies to promote active travel includes the following:

National Institute for Health & Care Excellence (2012) - Walking and Cycling:
Local Measures to Promote Walking and Cycling as forms of Travel or
Recreation.

Public Health England (2014) - Everybody Active, Every Day. A Physical
Activity Strategy.

Public Health England (2014) - Public Health Outcomes Framework.

Kent & Medway Public Health Observatory Library (2014) - Active Travel
Literature Review (unpublished).

Department of Health (2011) - Start Active Stay Active: A Report on Physical
Activity from the 4 Home Countries.

National Institute for Health & Care Excellence (2008) - Physical Activity and
the Environment.

Authors

Andy Fairhurst,

Physical Activity Programme Manager
Telephone 03000 416077

Email: andy.fairhurst@kent.gov.uk

Simon Allum,

Mobility & Safety Team Leader
Telephone 03000 411617

Email: simon.allum@kent.gov.uk

David Adams,

Area Education Officer (South Kent)
Telephone 03000 414989

Email: david.adams@kent.gov.uk

Page 182



mailto:andy.fairhurst@kent.gov.uk
mailto:simon.allum@kent.gov.uk
mailto:david.adams@kent.gov.uk

Agenda ltem C4

From: Peter Sass, Head of Democratic Services

To: Growth, Economic Development and Communities Cabinet
Committee — 15 September 2015

Subiject: Work Programme 2015/16
Classification: Unrestricted

Past Pathway of Paper: Growth, Economic Development and Communities Cabinet
Committee meeting — 7 July 2015

Future Pathway of Paper: Standard agenda item

Summary: This report gives details of the proposed work programme for the Growth,
Economic Development and Communities Cabinet Committee.

Recommendation: That the Growth, Economic Development and Communities
Cabinet Committee considers and agrees its Work Programme for 2015/16.

1.  Introduction

1.1 The proposed Work Programme, appended to the report, has been compiled
from items in the Future Executive Decision List and from actions arising and
from topics identified at the agenda setting meetings, held 6 weeks before a
Cabinet Committee meeting in accordance with the Constitution, by the
Chairman, Mr Wickham, Mr Holden, Vice Chairman and 3 Group Spokesmen,
Mr Clarke, Mr Truelove and Mr Baldock.

1.2 Whilst the Chairman, in consultation with the Cabinet Member, are responsible
for the programme’s fine tuning, this item gives all Members of this Cabinet
Committee the opportunity to suggest amendments and additional agenda
items where appropriate.

2. Terms of Reference

2.1 At its meeting held on 27 March 2014, the County Council agreed the following
terms of reference for the Growth, Economic Development and Communities
Cabinet Committee ‘To be responsible for those functions that fall within the
responsibilities of the Director of Economic Development as well as some
functions transferred from the former Communities Directorate and now located
within the Growth, Environment and Transport Directorate’. The functions
within the remit of this Cabinet Committee are:

Economic Development

Economic & Spatial Development

Strategy & Development

International Affairs

Regeneration Projects including Grant and Loan schemes and other ‘bid for
funded’ projects

LEP reporting and monitoring

Kent Film Office

Page 183



3.
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.5

Communities

Arts

Sport

Libraries

Registration and Archives
Volunteering

Big Society

Work Programme 2015

The proposed Work Programme has been compiled from items in the Future
Executive Decision List and from actions arising and from topics, within the
remit of the functions, listed in paragraph 2.1 above, of this Cabinet Committee,
identified at the agenda setting meetings [Agenda setting meetings are held 6
weeks before a Cabinet Committee meeting in accordance with the
Constitution]. The attendees of the agenda setting meetings are; Mr Wickham,
(Chairman), Mr Holden, (Vice Chairman) and 3 Group Spokesmen, Mr Clarke,
Mr Truelove, Mr Baldock; and Mr Dance (Cabinet Member for Economic
Development) and Mr Hill (Cabinet Member for Community Services).

An agenda setting meeting was held on 31 July 2015, when items for this
meeting’s agenda and future agenda items were agreed. The Cabinet
Committee is requested to consider and note the items within the proposed
Work Programme, set out in appendix A to this report, and to suggest any
additional topics to be considered at future meetings where appropriate.

The schedule of commissioning activity 2015-16 to 2017-18 that falls within the
remit of this Cabinet Committee will be included in the Work Programme and
considered at future agenda setting meetings to support more effective forward
agenda planning and allow Members to have oversight of significant services
delivery decisions in advance. The next agenda setting meeting is scheduled to
be held on Tuesday, 13 October 2015.

When selecting future items the Cabinet Committee should give consideration
to the contents of performance monitoring reports. Any ‘for information’ items
will be sent to Members of the Cabinet Committee separately to the agenda and
will not be discussed at the Cabinet Committee meetings.

Conclusion

It is vital for the Cabinet Committee process that the Committee takes
ownership of its work programme to deliver informed and considered decisions.
A regular report will be submitted to each meeting of the Cabinet Committee to
give updates of requested topics and to seek suggestions for future items to be
considered. This does not preclude Members making requests to the Chairman
or the Democratic Services Officer between meetings for consideration.

5.

Recommendation: The Growth, Economic Development and Communities

Cabinet Committee is asked to consider and agree its work programme for 2015.

6.

Background Documents
None.

Page 184




Contact details

Report Author:

Christine Singh

Democratic Services Officer
01622 694334
christine.singh@kent.gov.uk

Peter Sass

Head of Democratic Services
01622 694002
peter.sass@kent.gov.uk

Page 185



981 abed

GROWTH, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITIES CABINET COMMITTEE

(Members agreed that the number of jobs, being created through the work being undertaken in the reports presented to the

WORK PROGRAMME 2014/2015

Cabinet Committee, should appear at the top of each report where appropriate)

FORTHCOMING EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

Decision

Decision Maker

Lead officer

Discovery Park Enterprise
Zone, Sandwich. Growing
Places Fund investment
Decision Number: 13/00034

Cabinet Member for

Ross Gill, Economic Policy and Strategy

Economic Development Manager Tel: 01622 691131 e-mail:

ross.gill@kent.gov.uk

STANDARD AGENDA ITEMS

Item

Cabinet Committee to receive item

Verbal updates by the Directors and Cabinet

Members

At each meeting

Portfolio Dashboard

At each meeting

Budget Consultation

Annually (November/December)

Final Draft Budget

Annually (January)

Annual Equality and Diversity Report

Annually (September)

Work Programme

At each Meeting



mailto:ross.gill@kent.gov.uk

/81 abed

PROPOSED FUTURE ITEMS

Agenda Item

Date requested

Cabinet Committee meeting

Paramount Theme Park project on
Swanscombe Peninsular

29/07/2013

Regular updates

Shipping in Kent Ports —(Marine diesel)
Request by the Cabinet Member

Part of Cabinet Members verbal update
in Jan 2015

Ebbsfleet 14/10/2014 agenda setting tba
meeting

Urban Development Corporation 14/10/2014 agenda setting tba
meeting

Support for Start Ups and 14/10/2014 agenda setting tba

Entrepreneurs

meeting

2020 Business Show

14/10/2014 agenda setting
meeting

Members to be advise of date and time
of show

Manston Airport

14/10/2014 agenda setting

Regular updates

meeting
PRESENTATIONS
Thanet Seafront 14/10/2014 agenda setting tba
meeting
Paramount Theme Park project on 14/10/2014 agenda setting In 2015

Swanscombe Peninsular

meeting

VISITS
VISIT: TIGER and Escalate - Request | 11/12/2013 Jacqui Ward to organise visits before 2
by Chairman December 2014 meeting
VISITS: To Businesses in East Kent 11/12/2013 tba

with the Investment Advisory Board

VISIT: Discovery Park

14/10/2014 agenda setting

David Smith to organise




This page is intentionally left blank



681 abed

GROWTH, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITIES CABINET COMMITTEE

WORK PROGRAMME 2016-2017

(Members agreed that the number of jobs being created through the work being undertaken in the reports presented
to the Cabinet Committee should appear at the top of each report where appropriate)

FORTHCOMING EXECUTIVE DECISIONS (13 July to 31 January 2016)

Decision

Decision Taker

Lead officer

Herne Bay Gateway - temporary
relocation of library services
POSSIBLY DECEMBER 2015

Cabinet Member for Community

Services

Jonathan White, Projects & Operations
Manager

Discovery Park Enterprise Zone,
Sandwich. Growing Places Fund
investment

Cabinet Member for Economic

Development

Ross Gill, Economic Policy and Strategy
Manager

STANDARD AGENDA ITEMS

Item

Cabinet Committee to receive item

Verbal updates by the relevant Cabinet Members and Directors

At each meeting

Portfolio Dashboard

At each meeting

Budget Consultation

Annually (November/December)

Final Draft Budget

Annually (January)

Annual Equality and Diversity Report

Annually (September)

Risk Register — Strategic Risk Register

Annually (last submitted in April 2015)

Directorate Business Plan

April

Work Programme

At each meeting




061 abed

PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS

Proposed Agenda ltem

Date requested

Cabinet Committee meeting

Paramount Theme Park project on Swanscombe Peninsula

29/07/13

Regular updates

Ebbsfleet Garden City UDC Master Plan

14/10/14
(agenda setting meeting)

Discussions under way with Robin
Cooper to see if this can come to the
December meeting.

Manston Site 14/10/14 Further verbal updates
(Invite Paul Barber) (submitted - September 2015)
A report on Kent Life Science Network — Paul Wookey 22/01/15 Further verbal updates
(submitted - September 2015)
Progress of new LEP arrangements 14/4/15 Further reports
(submitted - September 2015)
Libraries, Registration and Archives Service specification December 2015
(relating to internal commissioning of LRA services)
Littering — economic impact on businesses 31/07/15 Deferred to December, along with
similar report to E&T
To ask the Chamber of Commerce if they would help in | 31/07/15 tba

asking their members, (maybe via an anonymous
questionnaire) any issues or concerns they have with KCC
and any obstacles to expansion. This could then be collated
and presented to the committee so that we can better
understand what help and assistance Kent businesses need
from KCC. The results of which could advise future agenda
items.




161 obed

PRESENTATIONS

Proposed Topic

Date requested

Cabinet Committee meeting

Thanet Seafront 14/10/14 tba

Following visit to Margate. Update to include

Dreamland Paper + possible presentation
The current position with sports education in our | 3/12/14 (Education and Young People’s Services
Secondary Schools, looking at participation but also Directorate to be included in this —
competitive activity, the opportunities for excellence and Stephanie Holt and Chris Metherell)
working with sports bodies and professional sport. December 2015
Requested by Mr Truelove
Kent Universities to be invited to present how they are | 4/12/14 Dave Hughes liaising with Universities
facilitating and encouraging economic development in
Kent. The discussion would include current programs and Ongoing programme
planned initiatives along with consideration specific
challenges faced. Requested by Mr Clark
(link includes some high level case studies
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/contribution-of-
uk-universities-to-national-and-local-economic-growth)
Presentations on the 4 District Deals 22/01/15 tba (First one in December is ABC — may
(ABC, TWBC, TMBC and SBC) include a key decision.)

VISITS

VISIT: TIGER and Escalate - Request by Chairman 11/12/13 Jacqui Ward to organise V2 day visits
(Including Discovery Park visit) 10.00 am - 2.00 pm
Visit to be arranged to the regeneration sites in Margate 22/01/15 tba

Meeting to be arranged with Small Medium size
Enterprises (SMEs) to hear what impact KCC’s decisions
had on their businesses

7/7/15 meeting



https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/contribution-of-uk-universities-to-national-and-local-economic-growth
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/contribution-of-uk-universities-to-national-and-local-economic-growth

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item D1

From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health
Reform

Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director for Education and Young
People’s Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee
— 18 September 2015

Subject: Annual Equality and Diversity Report for Education and
Young People's Services 2014-15

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral Division: All Divisions

Summary: This report sets out a position statement for services within the
Education and Young People’s Service (EYPS) Directorate regarding equality and
diversity work and provides an update on progress in delivering Kent County
Council's (KCC's) Equality Objectives for the year 2014-15. The Council is required
to publish this information on an annual basis in order to comply with its statutory
Equality Act duties.

Recommendations:
The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is asked to:

i)  note the current performance of EYP Services in relation to equality priorities in
Appendix 1 to this report;

i)  note the progress EYPS has made in reducing inequalities in 2014-15 and
future key actions proposed in Appendix 1 to this report; and

iii) agree to receive this report annually in order to comply with the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED).

1. Introduction

1.1 The Equality Act 2010 provides the framework for public bodies in England to
promote equality and eliminate discrimination. KCC must also adhere to the Public
Sector Equality Duty (PSED) as detailed in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.
This duty requires the Council to promote equality, undertake equality analysis to
inform all policy decisions and to publish equality information.

1.2  As part of its statutory duties under the Equality Act 2010, KCC must publish
an Equality Annual Report to demonstrate compliance with the general PSED.
Proactive publication of equality information ensures compliance with the legal
requirements.

1.3 Compliance with the Council's equality duties should also result in:

e Better informed decision-making and policy development;
Page 193



e A clearer understanding of the needs of service users, resulting in better
quality services;

e More effective targeting of resources to address greatest need;

e Greater confidence in, and satisfaction with, the Council;

¢ A more effective workforce and a reduction in instances of discrimination.

2. Financial Implications

2.1 There are no financial implications resulting from the Annual Equality and
Diversity Report. However, gathering equality information and using it to inform
decision-making enables KCC to achieve greater value for money in services
delivered, through more effective targeting of resources to address need.

3. KCC's Strategic Statement and Policy Framework

3.1 Advancing equality and reducing socio-economic inequalities in Kent
contributes towards the achievement of ‘Increasing Opportunities, Improving
Outcomes' — KCC's Strategic Statement 2015-2020, the Medium Term Financial Plan
2015-18 and EYPS's Vision and Periorities for Improvement 2015-18. KCC's Equality
Objectives were developed from the Council’s three key strategic outcomes. The
objectives correspond with existing Council priority outcomes to ensure: children and
young people in Kent get the best start in life; Kent communities feel the benefits of
economic growth by being in-work, healthy and enjoying a good quality of life; and
older and vulnerable residents are safe and supported with choices to live
independently.

3.2 The EYPS ‘Vision and Priorities for Improvement 2015-18’ document is the
key strategic plan for Education and Young People’s Services in Kent. The
development of this plan and its priorities follow annual discussions with
Headteachers, governors and other public sector partners to determine where Kent
learning institutions need to be in relation to improving education and learning
outcomes. The Plan sets out shared ambitions and includes a range of ambitious
priority improvements up to 2018. These ambitions and strategic priorities for
Education and Young People's Services are based on a rigorous analysis of current
performance and challenging expectations for future improvements. The Plan
provides all concerned with education and early help and preventative services in
Kent, a clear sense of what services are for, the challenges faced and the priorities
and targets for transformation and improvement both within the Council and amongst
our schools, and other settings, as well as KCC services.

3.3 KCC published its equality objectives for 2012-2016 in 2011. Each Directorate
was asked to provide equality information and to demonstrate how they complied with
equality legislation between 1 April 2014 — 31 March 2015, and what performance
measures they have in place to achieve the KCC Equality Objectives. Appendix 1 to
this report details the actions that EYPS Directorate has undertaken in the last year,
and actions that will be taken in the future, in order to narrow the inequality gaps and
promote equality of opportunity to address the diverse needs of all Kent's children
and young people.

4. Key Achievements

4.1 A full report of what has been achieved in terms of reducing inequalities within
Education and Young People’s Servip%bgvg42014-15 can be seen in Appendix 1 to



this report. Detailed below are some highlights.

4.2  Currently, 83% of pupils in Kent attend a good or outstanding school
compared to 75% in July 2014 and 70% in July 2013. This means approximately
15,420 more children and young people are receiving a better education since last
July, including 12,700 Primary School pupils. The overall figure includes 81% of
Primary school pupils (91,003), 85% of Secondary school pupils (83,551) and 94% of
Special school pupils (3298) who now attend a good or outstanding school.

4.3 In July 2014, there were 328 good and 92 outstanding schools, 110 schools
requiring improvement (including 93 Primary schools and 11 Secondary schools) and
31 schools in a category. Four schools were judged inadequate in the past year and
17 schools were removed from special measures, some to a judgement of good or
outstanding. There are now 362 good and 96 outstanding schools, 85 schools
requiring improvement (including 67 Primary schools and 14 Secondary schools) and
14 schools in a category, out of a total of 557 schools that have a current inspection
result. There are now 38 more good and better schools than this time last year.

4.4  There has been a very good improvement in the numbers attending a good or
outstanding Pupil Referral Unit from 30% of pupils in 2012, 76% in 2013, 90% in
2014 and to 94% currently. The quality of PRUs has improved so that 90% are now
good or outstanding. This work is helping to reduce exclusion and improve
qualifications for pupils educated out of school.

4.5 Children's Centres are playing a key role in targeting support to disadvantaged
families and ensuring they are helped to take up the provision for eligible two year
olds. The Ofsted Early Years Annual Report 2015 indicates that 56% of Children's
Centres, nationally, are rated good or outstanding. In Kent 72% of Children's Centres
are good or outstanding and we expect this to improve to over 80% by 2016. 89% of
early years provision is rated good or outstanding by Ofsted, and 91% of children
attend a good or better Early Years setting.

46 In 2014, for Kent overall, 68.6% of children achieved a Good Level of
Development (GLD) in the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), which represented
a 5.1% increase on 63.5% in 2013. At 68.6%, Kent was well above the national
average for GLD of 60% and was in a strong position standing seventh out of 152
local authorities. In 2015 in the EYFS, 73% of children achieved a good level of
development.

4.7 At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics) the attainment
gap between FSM pupils and their peers narrowed significantly in 2014. The
attainment of FSM pupils in Kent improved at a more rapid rate than nationally and
the gap for FSM children at this key stage also reduced more quickly than nationally.
However, the attainment of FSM children overall in Kent at this key stage remains
below the national average and therefore remains a priority for improvement.

4.8 The attainment and progress of pupils with special educational needs in Kent,
in the 2014 results, was significantly above or in line with national average attainment
levels for similar pupils. Pupils with SEN in Kent performed better than equivalent
children nationally; 50% of pupils at school action in Key stage 2 achieved Level 4 in
Reading, Writing and Maths compared with 47% nationally. Of those at school action
plus in Kent 42% achieved level 4 compared with 36% nationally. Both these results

were significantly above national perfolgmanqle%The most complex children, those with
age



a Statement, achieved in line with the national level; 13% compared with 15%
nationally. We have set ourselves a target for 2015 of 16%.

49 At Key Stage 4, 33% of pupils in Kent at ‘SEN school action’ attained 5 or
more A-C grade GCSEs (including English and Maths) which was significantly above
the national average of 24%. Similarly at ‘SEN school action plus’ 24% of pupils in
Kent schools achieved 5 or more A-C grade GCSEs compared to 20% nationally. 8%
of Kent pupils with a Statement of SEN attained 5 or more A-C grade GCSEs. The
national average was also 8%.

4.10 We have successfully implemented a new system of high needs funding for
pupils with special educational needs. Alongside this we have reviewed and
improved the arrangements to provide SEN funding (known as SCARF) to support
severe and complex children access Early Years settings.

4.11 18.7 FE Year Reception classes were added to Primary provision in 2014-15,
increasing the number of high quality school places available to meet parental
demand. Planning is underway to establish 7 new Primary schools which will open in
September 2015, in addition to the other school expansions to ensure every child has
a school place.

412 KCC remains committed to the programme to rebuild or refurbish the
remaining Special Schools in the capital programme. This programme, together with
the re-designation of pupil numbers, has so far provided an additional 229 places in
Special schools, with further additional SEND capacity planned. Two Special schools
have had improvement works completed and five have new builds underway to
replace or refurbish their premises.

4.13 The 14-24 Skills and Employability Strategy was refreshed and now focuses
upon 14 to 19 curriculum changes and the development of improved pathways and
opportunities for all learners to participate to age 18 and up to 24 for those young
people with learning difficulties and disabilities.

414 NEET figures for vulnerable groups have reduced from 944 to 761. This
improvement is encouraging as it reflects the impact of the increased focus on
supporting vulnerable young people by KCC, in particular through the 14-24 Skills
and Employability Strategy, SEND Strategies and the establishment of Early Help
and Preventative Services. We are seeing a reduction in overall NEET numbers,
now standing at 4.7% from 5.9% in 2014, but not quickly enough and the percentage
is still at 5.2% for Year 13 students, but lower, at 2.3% for Year 12 which is
encouraging.

4.15 There is an encouraging upward trend on apprenticeships in the 16 to 18 year
groups following a collaborative campaign between KCC, FE colleges, employers
and work based training providers. This included establishing an apprenticeship
talent pool for 16 to 18 year olds in schools.

4.16 Permanent and fixed-term exclusions continue to decline in Kent with some
positive outcomes for certain groups. FSM pupils account for around 37.5%, a slight
reduction of last year's 40% of all permanent exclusions, although it remains a much
higher rate than the normal FSM% for the school population which is around 14%.
When analysed by phase, 42% of excluded pupils are eligible for FSM in Primary

schools, compared to 36% in Secondary schools. Both have been reduced from last
Page 196



year’s respective figures of 59% and 37%. A significant improvement has been made
in the reduction of children with SEND being permanently excluded. In 2013/14,
SEND pupils account for 58% of permanent exclusions, a significant reduction from
previous year’'s 84%. However we expect to reduce this further.

4.17 The Introduction of the Kent Family Support Framework, to replace the CAF,
(common assessment framework) has ensured easier and swifter access to Early
Help services for all children and young people in need of support.

4.18 Notifications to Early Help Triage are prioritised for cases involving missing
children, children known to SCS and children with a high level of need in order to
ensure swift and appropriate provision and consideration of safeguarding issues.

4.19 The rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services (SCS) per 10,000 from
March to April 2015 has reduced by 8.1% (from 39.3% to 31.2%).

4.20 74% of Early Help cases are now closed with a good outcome.
4.21 The percentage of cases 'stepped down' from SCS is now 24%.

4.22 Over the course of the first phase of the Troubled Families Programme, the
lives of 2,560 families have been turned around.

4.23 Significant work has been undertaken by Kent's School Collaboratives on
projects to narrow the gap in attainment, co-ordinated and evaluated by Kent
Association of Headteachers' (KAH) and supported by funding agreed by the Schools
Funding Forum.

5. Governance

5.1 As part of the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a statutory duty to show due
regard to equality issues arising from any important decisions it makes relating to its
policies, procedures and budget. The Council discharges this duty through a process
of Equality Impact Assessments (EqlA). These assessments capture evidence about
the impact of LA decisions and policies on the people of Kent.

5.2 To ensure that managers discharge their equalities obligations, KCC has
ensured a system of internal controls, based around EqlAs. Accordingly, in 2012
governance arrangements were agreed by the Council to ensure compliance with the
Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) following an internal audit. Governance is now
based on decisions having an EqlIA at both Directorate Management Team and
Member levels. If decisions about service changes and provision are taken without
full equality analysis, the local authority is open to potential Judicial Review.

6 Future reporting

6.1 It is proposed that KCC revises and consults on its equality objectives during
2015/2016. The objectives will be embedded in the achievement of the key strategic
outcomes of the Council and their achievement monitored through the Council's
performance framework.

6.2 This will result in greater compliance in relation to the delivery of organisational
priorities and core services. Criticalggg%u{g%mes will be monitored through core



performance management frameworks which will result in greater efficiency and
accountability in relation to the delivery and achievement of outcomes by services for
customers. Performance monitoring is to be reported to the relevant Committees and
this will meet the statutory duty under the Equality Act 2010.

7 Equality Impact Assessment

7.1 There is no requirement to undertake an Equality Impact Assessment because
this paper reports performance monitoring on the previous year’'s work and internal
governance arrangements.

8. Conclusion

8.1 The Annual Report sets out progress on the relevant equality objectives. The
Directorate can demonstrate that it provides accessible and usable services but it
needs to continue to improve outcomes and narrow achievement gaps, as well as
ensure the children, young people and families with multiple disadvantages receive
the services and support they need to thrive.

9. Recommendations:
The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is asked to:

i)  note the current performance of EYP Services in relation to equality priorities in
Appendix 1 to this report;
i) note the progress EYPS has made in reducing inequalities in 2014-15 and
future key actions proposed in Appendix 1 to this report; and
iii) agree to receive this report annually in order to comply with the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED).

10. Background Document
10.1 Kent County Council Equality Objectives 2012-2016:

http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/corporate-
policies/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-diversity-objectives

11. Contact details

Report Authors: Akua Agyepong - Corporate Lead, Equality & Diversity
03000 415762 akua.Agyepong@kent.gov.uk

John Reilly — EYPS Strategic Business Adviser
03000 416949 john.reilly@kent.gov.uk

Relevant Corporate Director: Patrick Leeson
03000 416384 patrick.leeson@kent.gov.uk

Page 198


http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/corporate-policies/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-diversity-objectives
http://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/strategies-and-policies/corporate-policies/equality-and-diversity/equality-and-diversity-objectives
mailto:akua.Agyepong@kent.gov.uk
mailto:john.reilly@kent.gov.uk
mailto:patrick.leeson@kent.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1

Education and Young People's Services Contribution to the KCC
Annual Equalities Plan 2014-15

Purpose

This paper sets out the way in which the Education and Young People's Services (EYPS)
Directorate understands and responds to the needs of its most vulnerable children, young
people and their families. The paper details the actions that the Directorate has undertaken
in the last year, and actions we will take in the future, in order to narrow the inequality gaps
and promote equality of opportunity to address the diverse needs of all Kent's children and
young people.

In addition to setting out how the Directorate addresses inequalities, promotes equality and
assesses progress against equalities priorities, the Directorate's equalities activity also
demonstrates support for the achievement of the Council's Strategic Equality Objectives.

Improving education and attainment outcomes for children and young people from early
years through to post-16, tackling child poverty, promoting emotional resilience, delivering
early help and preventing the escalation of problems, in addition to reforming our SEND
system, are just some of the ways we are improving the outcomes for the most vulnerable
groups of children and young people, increasing their life chances, so that they may thrive at
every stage of their lives.

Introduction

Kent County Council (KCC) is operating in a diverse education system with greater freedoms
and autonomy for schools, colleges and other education and learning providers. To achieve
the improvement in outcomes set out in our strategic plans, particularly our vulnerable
groups across Kent, we work in close partnership with early years settings, schools,
colleges, training providers, employers and other providers and stakeholders.

Education and learning has the potential to improve the wellbeing and life chances of all
children and young people, especially the most vulnerable groups in our communities
including those with protected characteristics under the Equality legislation. Education is
linked with happiness and wellbeing, mental and physical health, employment and ultimately
life expectancy. It has been proven that generally the more you learn, the more you earn and
you are more at risk of spending time not in education, employment or training if you have
limited or no qualifications. Good quality education and support builds resilience, increases
self- confidence and independence and gives young people the skills and qualifications to
progress in their learning and on to achieve sustained employment that will benefit
individuals, families and the communities they live and work in.

Reducing inequality in education and learning outcomes, reducing achievement gaps and
championing the needs of the most vulnerable children and young people is therefore a vital
part of the Local Authority’s role and purpose. This affects individuals and whole
communities.

"Education is serving many children well, but it is failing those who need it most."
[Sir Kevan Collins, Chief Executive, Education Endowment Foundation — June 2015]

Strategic leadership and ambitions
The EYPS Vision and Priorities for Improvement 2015-18 is the key strategic plan for

Education and Young People’s Services in Kent. The development of this plan and its
priorities came from a range of discussions that are held regularly with Headteachers,

Page 199



governors and other public sector partners to determine where Kent learning institutions
need to be in relation to ever improving education and learning outcomes.

The Plan sets out shared ambitions and includes a range of ambitious priority improvements
up to 2018. These ambitions and strategic priorities for Education and Young People's
Services are based on a rigorous analysis of current performance and challenging
expectations for future improvements.

The Plan provides all concerned with education in Kent, a clear sense of what services are
for, the challenges faced and the priorities and targets for transformation and improvement
both within the Council and amongst our schools and other settings.

We will support the best early years settings, schools and their leaders to lead the system
and drive improvement through collaboration across all schools, settings and education and
training providers, supporting and challenging each other in how we achieve our goals, so
that we are able to transform outcomes for all of our children and young people more rapidly.
We will promote innovation and creativity in teaching and learning and the curriculum, so
that Kent achieves a world class education system, greater social mobility and reverses the
national trends of under-performance for vulnerable and disadvantaged groups which hold
back progress in our economy and our society.

[Extract from EYPS Vision and Priorities for Improvement 2015-2018]

Summary of areas where we have made the most difference in 2014-15

o We exceeded the target of 85% for the number of families securing their first preference
school on offer day (85.8%).

e Currently, 83% of pupils in Kent attend a good or outstanding school compared to 75% in
July 2014 and 70% in July 2013. This means approximately 15,420 more children and
young people are receiving a better education since last July, including 12,700 Primary
School pupils. The overall figure includes 81% of Primary school pupils (91,003), 85% of
Secondary school pupils (83,551) and 94% of Special school pupils (3298) who now
attend a good or outstanding school.

e There has been a very good improvement in the numbers attending a good or
outstanding Pupil Referral Unit from 30% of pupils in 2012, 76% in 2013, 90% in 2014
and to 94% currently. The quality of PRUs has improved so that 90% are now good or
outstanding. This work is helping to reduce exclusion and improve qualifications for
pupils educated out of school.

o In July 2014, there were 328 good and 92 outstanding schools, 110 schools requiring
improvement (including 93 Primary schools and 11 Secondary schools) and 31 schools
in a category. Four schools were judged inadequate in the past year and 17 schools
were removed from special measures, some to a judgement of good or outstanding.

e There are now 362 good and 96 outstanding schools, 85 schools requiring improvement
(including 67 Primary schools and 14 Secondary schools) and 14 schools in a category,
out of a total of 557 schools that have a current inspection result. There are now 38 more
good and better schools than this time last year.

¢ Children's Centres are playing a key role in targeting support to disadvantaged families
and ensuring they are helped to take up the provision for eligible two year olds. The
Ofsted Early Years Annual Report 2015 indicates that 56% of Children's Centres,
nationally, are rated good or outstanding. In Kent 72% of Children's Centres are good or
outstanding and we expect this to improve to over 80% by 2016. 89% of early years
provision is rated good or outstanding by Ofsted, and 91% of children attend a good or
better setting.

e In 2014, for Kent overall, 68.6% of children achieved a Good Level of Development
(GLD) in the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), which represented a 5.1% increase
on 63.5% in 2013. At 68.6%, Kent was well above the national average for GLD of 60%
and was in a strong position as seventh out of 152 local authorities;

e The national achievement gap in Kent in the EYFS of 27% was lower than the England
figure of 34%, placing Kent 27t out of 152 local authorities;

Page 200



At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics) the attainment gap
between FSM pupils and their peers narrowed significantly in 2014. The attainment of
FSM pupils in Kent improved at a more rapid rate than nationally and the gap for FSM
children at this key stage also reduced more quickly than nationally. However, the
attainment of FSM children overall in Kent at this key stage remains below the national
average and therefore remains a priority for improvement.

The attainment and progress of pupils with special educational needs in Kent, in the
2014 results, was significantly above or in line with national average attainment levels for
similar pupils. Pupils with SEN in Kent performed better than equivalent children
nationally; 50% of pupils at school action in Key stage 2 achieved Level 4 in Reading,
Writing and Maths compared with 47% nationally. Of those at school action plus in Kent
42% achieved level 4 compared with 36% nationally. Both these results were
significantly above national performance. The most complex children, those with a
Statement, achieved in line with the national level; 13% compared with 15% nationally.
We have set ourselves a target for 2015 of 16%.

At Key Stage 4, 33% of pupils in Kent at ‘SEN school action’ attained 5 or more A-C
grade GCSEs (including English and Maths) which was significantly above the national
average of 24%. Similarly at ‘SEN school action plus’ 24% of pupils in Kent Schools
achieved 5 or more A-C grade GCSEs compared to 20% nationally. 8% of Kent pupils
with a Statement of SEN attained 5 or more A-C grade GCSEs. The national average
was also 8%.

In Kent 90.4% of new statements of SEN issued in 2014 were completed in 26 weeks
which compares favourably with the South East Region performance of 85% (which fell
9.6% over the same period) and the National performance of 89%.

All local authorities are required to transfer existing Statements to Education, Health and
Care Plans by 2018. The DfE report 1.2% of all statements had been transferred by
January 2015. Kent has transferred 2.3% of its Statements.

We have successfully implemented a new system of high needs funding for pupils with
special educational needs. Alongside this we have reviewed and improved the
arrangements to provide SEN funding (known as SCARF) to support severe and
complex children access early years settings.

18.7 Year Reception classes were added to Primary provision in 2014-15, increasing the
number of high quality school places available to meet parental demand.

Planning is underway to establish 7 new Primary schools which will open in September
2015.

The local authority remains committed to the programme to rebuild or refurbish all
Special Schools. This programme, together with the re-designation of pupil numbers,
has so far provided an additional 229 places in Special schools, with further additional
SEND capacity planned. Two Special schools have had improvement works completed
and five have new builds underway to replace or refurbish their premises.

The 14-24 Skills and Employability Strategy was refreshed and now focuses upon 14 to
19 curriculum changes and the development of improved pathways and opportunities for
all learners to participate to age 18 and up to 24 for those young people with learning
difficulties and disabilities.

NEET figures for vulnerable groups have reduced from 944 to 761. This improvement is
encouraging as it reflects the impact of the increased focus on supporting vulnerable
young people by KCC, in particular through the 14-24 Skills and Employability Strategy,
SEND Strategies and the establishment of Early Help and Preventative Services.

We are seeing a reduction in overall NEET numbers, now standing at 4.6% from 5.9% in
2014, but not quickly enough and the percentage is still at 5.2% for Year 13, but lower, at
2.3% for Year 12 which is encouraging.

There is an encouraging upward trend on apprenticeships in the 16 to 18 year groups
following a collaborative campaign between KCC, FE colleges and work based training
providers, this included establishing an apprenticeship talent pool for 16 to 18 year olds
in schools.

We are moving forwarding in some districts with a more coherent approach to
addressing these issues by planning for better 14 to 19 pathways and gaps in provision.

Page 201



Both overall absence and persistent absence for children on FSM have reduced in
2013/14 compared to the previous year. Children on FSM and non FSM pupils both
reduced persistent absence rates and the gap between the two cohorts became
narrower from 6.4 to 5.0 percentage points.

Permanent and fixed-term exclusions continue to decline in Kent with some positive
outcomes for certain groups. FSM pupils account for around 37.5%, a slight reduction of
last year’s 40% of all permanent exclusions, although it remains a much higher rate than
the normal FSM% for the school population which is around 14%. When analysed by
phase, 42% of excluded pupils are eligible for FSM in Primary schools, compared to 36%
in Secondary schools. Both have been reduced from last year’s respective figures of
59% and 37%.

A significant improvement has been made in the reduction of children with SEND being
permanently excluded. In 2013/14, SEND pupils account for 58% of permanent
exclusions, a significant reduction from previous year’s 84%.

There has been a higher percentage of pupils from most ethnic groups achieving 5 or
more subjects at grades A* — C including English and Maths since 2010. Chinese pupils
continue to outperform their peers across Kent in KS4. There has been a significant
increase in the number of Bangladeshi (44.4% - 75%) and Caribbean (39.3% - 69.7%)
pupils achieving this benchmark.

The DfE Virtual Headteacher Pilot Project (to support Gypsy, Roma and Traveller pupils)
finished in May last year and the report was made public in October 2014. Baroness
Whitaker stated that “This is really useful and positive and some of the efforts are most
commendable, not least those which set up a proper data base to measure trend
information, and hopefully progress.”

An Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS) Prospectus and Early Help Action Plan
2014-2015 sets out the strategy for early help, what and how key service changes are
being made, progressing the development of new processes and systems, detailing
service priorities and targets and key outcomes to be achieved to change demand
patterns. Progress made in the first year of the Early Help Service will be set out in an
Early Help Three Year Action Plan which is currently being developed.

The Introduction of the Kent Family Support Framework, to replace the CAF, has
ensured easier and swifter access to Early Help services for all children and young
people in need of support.

Notifications to Early Help Triage are prioritised for cases involving missing children,
children known to SCS and children with a high level of need in order to ensure swift and
appropriate provision and consideration of safeguarding issues.

The rate of referrals to Specialist Children's Services (SCS) per 10,000 from March to
April 2015 has reduced by 8.1% (from 39.3% to 31.2%).

The Current Early Help Caseload is 5759.

The number of Early Help Assessments completed within 2 weeks of notification has
increased to 55%.

47% of Early Help notifications are now leading to an Early Help Plan in 4 weeks.

74% of Early Help cases are now closed with a good outcome.

The percentage of cases 'stepped down' from SCS is now 24%.

Over the course of the first phase of the Troubled Families Programme, the lives of
2,560 families have been turned around.

Significant work has been undertaken by Kent's School Collaboratives on projects to
narrow the gap in attainment, co-ordinated, funded and evaluated by Kent Association of
Headteachers' (KAH).

Key Equalities Priorities for 2015-16

EYPS's Divisional Management Team considered the Council's overarching equalities
objectives in April 2015 and established for 2015-16 some key Directorate equality
objectives:

Page 202



¢ Narrow the achievement gaps for all groups, including FSM pupils, learners with SEND,
and Children in Care.

e Increase post 16 — 25 participation and employment opportunities for the most
vulnerable groups.

e Increase access to early years for the most vulnerable including the two-year old offer of
free provision for the most disadvantaged.

¢ Drive down exclusions from schools to zero.

¢ Increase the proportion of pupils receiving Free School Meals attending selective
education.

e Ensure more Children in Care are able to access progression pathways post 16,
including the offer of an apprenticeship where appropriate, and fewer CiC become young
offenders.

Key Challenges

The UK has to achieve a more educated and skilled workforce and cannot afford to lose the
potential of so many young people who, if they are not educated and skilled well enough, will
lead less productive and satisfying lives. The economic and social cost of educational failure
is immense and too much provision that is less than good damages the life chances of
children and young people. In this mix the role of the Local Authority is changing to be more
ambitious, focused and strategic in bringing about educational transformation for Kent by
being a strong and influential partner with schools and other stakeholders and providers.

Itis our job to build and support effective partnerships and networks that will be more
effective in delivering better services and improved outcomes and it is also our role to
champion more innovative and creative practice and ways of working.

We are aiming for outcomes that are ambitious and challenging. We are determined to
pursue them relentlessly and believe we have ways to achieve them. There is a good level
of shared ambition amongst Headteachers, Governors and other key agencies and
stakeholders to achieve the improvements detailed in this Business Plan. The establishment
of the Early Help and Preventative Services Division in April 2014 has resulted in a more
joined-up approach to supporting vulnerable children and young people. A restructure of the
Early Help Division to ensure better outcomes is underway and will result in a change in
service delivery focused on integrated support, open access and targeted work.

While we continue to make good progress in raising attainment, narrowing some
achievement gaps and increasing the number of good and outstanding early years settings
and schools, we also continue to face significant challenges:

¢ Closing the achievement gaps for vulnerable groups which are still too wide for the
following groups — FSM / SEN / Gender / Children in Care.

e Continuing to increase the number of good and outstanding schools as we move forward
(from 55% in 2012 to 78% in January 2015).

e Addressing post-16 challenges in terms of participation, progression and provision,
reflected in low participation figures, high drop-out rates at age 17, challenging NEET
figures, insufficient progress in respect of the attainment of children in care and the need
to develop more appropriate vocational and technical pathways for young people to
flourish.

These challenges inevitably shape our response to delivering transformational change and
influence our priorities for the year ahead.

To make an impact on the key challenges, support will be secured from and via:

e School leaders to lead the system through stronger school partnerships, the Kent
Association of Headteachers, working at a local level through District and Area forums

Page 203



that have strong and purposeful working relationships in order to deliver the best
opportunities and outcomes for children and young people;

e Schools to procure support services well, have real choice and be able to procure high
quality services through EduKent;

¢ Increased collaborative working in the early years and childcare sectors;

e Locality based working and commissioning to pool and target resources to local needs in
Districts;

o Local 14-24 strategic partnerships to maximise effort and increase capacity to transform
post 16 learning pathways and training opportunities so that they are truly excellent;

o District based multi-agency working to deliver more integrated preventative and early
help services through the area based 0-25 Integrated Early Help teams.

EYPS Strategic Priorities

The EYPS Directorate Business Plan sets out a wide range of priorities and targets for
improvement, built up over time in partnership with schools and other partners, to achieve
what we believe is a shared vision for educational improvements in Kent.

Our strategic priorities are set out in the Directorate’s Strategic Plan: ‘Education and Young
People’s Services Vision and Priorities for Improvement 2015-18’. Our strategic priorities for
2015-16 are:

o to ensure all children get the best start in the early years and all pupils can go to a good
school and achieve their full potential;

¢ to shape education and skills provision around the needs of the Kent economy and
ensure all young people move on to positive destinations, training and employment; and

o to improve services and outcomes for the most vulnerable children, young people and
families in Kent.

Our main focus continues to be on raising standards of attainment, closing achievement
gaps, improving attendance and reducing exclusion, increasing participation to age 18 and
having more good and outstanding early years settings and schools.

We are giving very high priority to ensuring all young people are engaged in learning or
training until age 18, including increased numbers of apprenticeships, so that there are good
outcomes that lead to employment. We will continue to develop the opportunities and
pathways for all 14-19 year olds to participate and succeed so that they can access higher
Levels of learning or employment with training to age 24.

One of our major developments is to deliver improved multi-agency support for children and
families who have additional needs by implementing effective Early Help and Preventative
Services and working in a more integrated way to achieve better outcomes. As a
consequence we expect to see fewer children needing the protection of statutory social care.

Key priorities for the Directorate are to:

e Embed and integrate Early Help and Prevention services so that there is at least a 10%
reduction in the numbers of children in need and those with a child protection plan, and
at least 80% supported through an early help programme achieve a good outcome.

e Continue to deliver the targets in the 14-24 Skills and Employment Strategy, including
priorities to develop the vocational offer so that there is further improvement in the
number of young people taking up and successfully completing apprenticeships and a
further reduction in youth unemployment.

o Deliver the SEND changes required by the Children and Families Act and the priorities in
the SEND Strategy to increase provision and pupil outcomes in Kent, so that there is
reduction in out of county places and their cost, and a reduction in SEN transport costs

Page 204



Make a significant improvement to outcomes for Children in Care and markedly reduce
the number of CiC who are NEET and in the youth justice system.

Deliver 7 new Primary schools, 29 new forms of entry in Primary and Secondary schools,
195 temporary Reception class places, 90 temporary Primary school places in years 1-5
and 60 temporary Secondary school places in Year 7.

Ensure schools are well supported to deliver the new National Curriculum and
assessment arrangements, as well as new GCSE and vocational qualifications, and new
school performance measures from 2015-16.

Deliver the new Health Needs Service and improve outcomes for pupils with mental
health needs.

Continue to support and develop more effective school to school support through the
Kent Association of Headteachers, and a refreshed leadership strategy, so that there are
fewer schools requiring improvement.

Develop phase 2 of the Troubled Families programme and ensure it is well integrated
into the models of family support provided through Early Help.

Ensure the Community Learning and Skills service becomes a successful local authority
trading company, delivering improved outcomes for adults and young people, especially
the more vulnerable.

Continue to develop and expand EduKent as a successful trading organisation delivering
good value support services to schools at competitive cost.

Promote more innovative and creative ways to deliver learning for the 21st century,
including support for the delivery of the new National Curriculum and new vocational,
GCSE and A Level curriculum pathways.

Champion school leadership which is most effective in improving teaching and learning
and accelerating pupil progress, and provide leadership development opportunities
which increase capacity in Kent to improve and transform the education system through
programmes such as the Future Leaders programme.

Deliver the School Improvement Strategy to ensure all schools requiring improvement
become good and outstanding schools within the next 18 months and there are no Kent
schools providing an inadequate quality of education.

Work with schools and early years settings to deliver a more focused approach to
narrowing achievement gaps and achieve better outcomes for all vulnerable groups with
a specific focus on the pupil premium, SEN and Children in Care.

Work with outstanding and good schools to increase their capacity to sponsor and
improve schools requiring improvement, through academy, federation, trust, executive
headship or other structural arrangements.

Continue to implement the Early Years and Childcare Strategy to ensure there are
sufficient high quality free places for two year olds, yet more good early years settings
achieving positives outcomes, more children are well developed to start school and there
is better integration of the work of children’s centres, early years settings and schools.
Continue to improve District based working so that more decision making and
coordination of services for children and young people happens locally through school
collaborations and better integrated working between education, health and social care.
Deliver the Education Commissioning Plan so that the needed growth in good quality
school places is delivered on time for September 2015, there is improved parental choice
and planned improvements for September 2016 are on target.

Reduce the rising cost of SEN Transport and make more efficient use of DSG funding by
reducing the increasing costs of SEN pupils placed out of county, as well as working with
schools at risk of deficit budgets to ensure there are clear improvements by 2016.
Successfully implement a new system if high needs funding for pupils with special
educational needs, which proves to be more effective at earlier intervention to improve
pupil outcomes.

Supporting Plans and Strategies

These priorities and targets are set out in more detail in our key strategy documents:

Page 205



The School Improvement Strategy;

The Early Years and Childcare Strategy;

The SEND Strategy;

The Education Commissioning Plan;

The 14-24 Learning, Skills and Employment Strategy;
The Early Help Prospectus and One Year Plan.

Page 206



Supporting Parental Preference for Primary and Secondary schools

We set targets for the percentage of families securing their first preference schools for entry
in September 2015. For Primary schools the target was 86% and on Offer Day 85.8% of
parents secured their first preference.

For Secondary schools the target was 84%, and 80.5% of parents secured their first
preference. The target for first and second preferences for both primary and secondary
schools was 94%, with 93.4% of parents securing their first or second preference.

The Table below sets out the percentage of families receiving their first and second
preferences for admission into Reception classes in Primary Schools and into Year 7 in
Secondary Schools, in relation to the targets set.

Targets April 2015

To ensure that at least 86% of | On offer day for September 2015 entry:-
families secure their first Reception children:-

preference Primary schools; and | 85.8% secured their first preference

94% secure first or second 93.1% secured their first or second preference.

preference schools.

To ensure that at least 85% of |Year 7:-

families secure their first 80.5% secured their first preference
preference Secondary schools; [90.6% secured their first or second preference
and 94% secure first or second
preference schools.

There are two main reasons why we did not meet the Secondary first preference target of
84% this year. These was an increase in the number of applications since last year (from
17,662 to 18,193), and within this out-county applications increased by 18.6%; coupled with
a decrease in the Year 7 capacity which fell by 1.2% from 17,724 to 17,512 places.

Comparative data showing percentages of first preferences in neighbouring Local Authorities
(little data is available) is set out in Table below. This indicates we are performing in line with
other authorities in respect of meeting Primary School preferences. However, we secured a
significantly lower percentage of first preference Secondary placements than East Sussex.

Local Authority | Primary Secondary
Kent 85.8% 80.5%
Surrey 83.1% 82.4%
Medway 87.1% 80.1%
East Sussex 84.7% 90.5%

Improving Attainment and Achievement across all School Phases

The Directorate takes its school improvement responsibilities very seriously and we use all
the available powers of intervention and support to accelerate improvement, address decline
and prevent school failure. We are determined to do everything we can, within the
framework of government policy and through our own local initiative, to bring about dramatic
improvement in the quality of schools in Kent to ensure every school requiring improvement
becomes a good school within the next two years, and that we continue to work together in
partnership to ensure no good and outstanding schools decline.

Kent schools made good progress in the last school year in improving inspection outcomes
and in increasing the number of good and outstanding schools.

Currently, 83% of pupils in Kent attend a good or outstanding school compared to 75% in
July 2014 and 70% in July 2013. This means approximately 15,420 more children and young
Page 207



people are receiving a better education since last July, including 12,700 Primary School
pupils. The overall figure includes 81% of Primary school pupils (91,003), 85% of Secondary
school pupils (83,551) and 94% of Special school pupils (3298) who now attend a good or
outstanding school.

There has been a very good improvement in the numbers attending a good or outstanding
Pupil Referral Unit from 30% of pupils in 2012, 76% in 2013, 90% in 2014 and to 94%
currently. The quality of PRUs has improved so that 90% are now good or outstanding.

Overall, the latest Ofsted data for Kent (as at 7 July 2015) shows that 82% of schools are
rated good or outstanding compared to 80% nationally. This includes 17% of schools judged
to be outstanding and 65% judged to be good.

The performance of each Kent school phase is as follows:

Early Years Settings - 89% of settings are good or outstanding
Primary - 82% of schools are good or outstanding
Secondary - 83% of schools are good or outstanding
Special - 87% of schools are good or outstanding

Pupil Referral Unit (PRU)

90% of PRUs are good or outstanding

In Kent, there are now 362 good and 96 outstanding schools, 85 schools requiring
improvement (including 67 Primary schools and 14 Secondary schools) and 14 schools in a
category, out of a total of 557 schools that have a current inspection result. There are now
38 more good and better schools than this time last year.

In July 2014, the percentage of good and outstanding schools was 75%, compared to 68%
at the same time in 2013, 59% in 2012 and 55% in 2011.

In July 2014, there were 328 good and 92 outstanding schools, 110 schools requiring
improvement (including 93 Primary schools and 11 Secondary schools) and 31 schools in a
category. Four schools were judged inadequate in the past year and 17 schools were
removed from special measures, some to a judgement of good or outstanding.

We expect this positive trend to continue towards our ambitious target of at least 86% of
Primary and Secondary schools to be judged good or outstanding in the next year or two,
and 90% or better by 2018.

Children's Centres play a key role in targeting support to these families and ensuring they
are helped to take up the provision for eligible two year olds. The Early Years Ofsted Annual
Report 2015 indicates that 56% of Children's Centres, nationally, are rated good or
outstanding. In Kent 72% of Children's Centres are good or outstanding and we expect this
to improve to over 80% by 2016. 89% of early years provision is rated good or outstanding
by Ofsted, and 91% of children attend a good or better setting.

Page 208



Key Equalities Issues for the Early Years and Childcare Service

The Kent Early Years and Childcare Strategy 2014 — 2017 sets out our ambition for early
years and childcare in Kent to be an exciting, vibrant, increasingly diverse and thriving sector
that is of good and outstanding quality, achieves very good outcomes for children and that is
sufficient, affordable and easily accessible for parents and carers. One of the five strategic
aims of the strategy is: ‘To mitigate the effects of poverty, inequality and disadvantage
through the provision of high quality early education and childcare, more effective support for
parents and narrowing of the early development achievement gaps for the most
disadvantaged children’.

Key service equality issues are to:

o Accelerate the narrowing of gaps in achievement by ensuring that children in the early
years who may be vulnerable to poorer outcomes (including those with SEND) have their
needs identified as early and possible and receive appropriate additional support to
develop well.

e Ensure there is a sufficiency of high quality and accessible out of school childcare places
for school aged children to age 14 (up to 18 where a young person has a SEND and/or is
in the care of the local authority) so that parents are not inhibited from work or training by
the absence of childcare.

Progress in reducing inequality in the last year

Narrowing achievement gaps

o In 2014, for Kent overall, 68.6% of children achieved a Good Level of Development
(GLD) which represented a 5.1% increase on 63.5% in 2013. Within the 68.6%:

o There was a range across districts from 60% - 74%, with Tunbridge Wells being the
highest and Thanet being the lowest

e Girls continued to achieve more highly than boys, with 76.4% of girls and 61% of boys
achieving a GLD, with the gender achievement gap at 15.3% having narrowed
marginally (0.7%) since 2013;

e The achievement gap based on FSM data was 12%, a significant narrowing of 7% since
2013;

o The national achievement gap between the lowest attaining 20% of children and the
mean was 27%, a small widening since 2013;

e The achievement gap for Kent Children in Care was 46.3%, which had widened by 15%
since 2013, and for Other Local Authority Children in Care was 35.4% a narrowing of 5%
from 2013.

e The achievement gap for EAL is 11.8% and has narrowed by 1.5%

In comparison to national results:

e At 68.6%, Kent was above the national average for GLD of 60% and was in a strong
position as seventh out of 152 local authorities;

e The national achievement gap in Kent of 27% was lower than the England figure of 34%,
placing Kent 27t out of 152 local authorities;

e For both the overall GLD figure and for the achievement gap, Kent was first amongst its
statistical neighbours, which is excellent.

Overall, whilst Kent position is strong in comparison to the national, there is clearly still much
work to be done to ensure that more children universally achieve more highly, whilst further
narrowing gaps in achievement for children who may be vulnerable to not achieving to their
full potential. Work in progress during 2014/15 has been:

e Using the district based data to inform targeted work within districts

Page 209



Using Learning Goals data to inform targeted work on specific areas of learning

Using schools based data to inform targeted support where improvements are needed in
teaching and learning

Using settings based data showing where lower numbers of children have gone on to
achieve a GLD, to inform targeted support

Continuing to offer bespoke support to settings to enable them to better support children
at risk of under achievement

Additional activity to support the narrowing of achievement gaps

Advice, support and guidance to Children’s Centres to ensure that the early learning
ethos and any early learning activities are in line with EYFS principles and best practice;
Establishing over 10,000 registered places for free early education for two year olds,
against a target of 6,501

A targeted programme of advice, support and training to early years providers to
promote and enable equality and inclusion and to further narrow gaps in achievement
Support to early years providers to ensure maximum impact of the Early Years Pupil
Premium, introduced in April 2015

Ensuring early years representation on and engagement with the FSM Working Group
Development of Early Years LIFT to support children with SEND

The establishment of early years collaborations and providing them with GLD and
achievement gap data, by the geography of each individual collaboration

Out of school childcare (including for those with disabilities)

In order to support a sufficient supply of out of school childcare so that the absence of this is
not a barrier to parents being able to work, study of train, the Early Years and Childcare
Service ensures

Periodic assessments of the availability of provision, including the identification of any
gaps in the market

The availability of support for existing and potential new providers to fill any identified
gaps in the market

Support for out of school providers judged by Ofsted to be ‘requiring improvement or
‘inadequate’, to help to them be ‘good’ as soon as possible

The availability of a chargeable Improvement Service, including an Improvement Award
Support for partnership working through the provision of networking meetings and a
framework for collaborations

Links with Early Help

Future Key Actions to Reduce Inequality

Narrowing achievement gaps

Next steps will be informed by the EYFS Profile outcomes in September 2015.

Actions going forward to support the narrowing of achievement gaps include:

Introducing in September ‘Enhancing Family Involvement in Children’s Learning’
(EFICL), a refreshed drive to create pathways to enhance family involvement in their
children’s learning. EFICL has been developed to include a ‘toolkit’ for early years and
childcare providers and children’s centres, as well as parents to support increased
parental and whole family involvement in children’s learning;

Promoting and supporting the increased take up of the free early education entitlement
by eligible two year olds. Free Early Education for two year olds (FF2) is funded by the
Government via the local authority to registered early education providers.
Approximately 7,000 two year olds in Kent are now eligible for a free early education

Page 210



place at any one time. Whilst ensuring the availability of sufficient places has been
challenging, our overall supply is now strong. There are currently 10,261 places
developed across the county which is made up of 7,774 places in the private, voluntary
and independent sectors and 2,487 places with childminders.

Currently, 91% of children accessing a FF2 place are attending a good or outstanding
setting, however, the take up of places by eligible two year olds is presenting a challenge
for us so the LA is developing a county-wide campaign to raise awareness of the value
of FF2 places amongst parents, utilising the key supporting role that Children's Centres
have in this regard.

Page 211



Key Equalities Issues for the Standards and School Improvement Service
The key service equality priority is to close the achievement gaps.
In Kent’s Strategy for School Improvement, the Council aims to be:

e The champion of all children, young people and families and ensure good support for all
vulnerable children so that they can succeed.

The Education and Young People’s Services Vision and Priorities for Improvement 2015-
2018 document identifies the need to accelerate the rate of progress in closing the gaps in
attainment for groups of vulnerable learners, in particular children and young people in
receipt of Free School Meals and Children in Care. In addition, it identifies the gaps in
achievement between boys and girls.

The following vulnerable groups were the focus of work to improve outcomes:

a) Closing the achievement gaps at Key Stages 2 and 4 for children and young people in
receipt of Free School Meals.

b) Children in Care (all phases)

c) Gender gaps at Key Stages 2 and 4.

There continues to be a very prominent focus by Ofsted on inspecting the effectiveness of

schools in closing achievement gaps for pupil's in receipt of the pupil premium, from the

early years through to post-16 provision. No school can expect to achieve a good inspection

outcome without demonstrating good progress for these pupils.

Progress in Reducing Inequality in the Last Year

Performance of key vulnerable pupil groups at Key Stages 1 to 4

The position at September 2014 was:

a) Free School Meals (FSM)

Key Stage One

At Key Stage 1 Level 2+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics) there remains a significant gap
between FSM pupils and their peers, but all gaps narrowed in 2014.The attainment gaps in
reading and mathematics are reducing in line with national comparators and the attainment
gap for writing is reducing slightly faster than national. While this is encouraging, more
progress is needed in accelerating the reduction in achievement gaps at this critical stage in
the early lives of less advantaged children.

Kent National

KS1 L2+
FSM Attainment 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

% % % % % %
Reading - FSM 72 76 77 76 79 80
Reading - Non FSM 89 92 92 a0 91 92
Writing - FSM 65 70 71 70 73 75
Writing - Non FSM 85 88 88 86 88 89
Mathematics - FSM 81 83 84 82 84 85
Mathematics - Non FSM 93 94 94 93 93 94

Page 212




KS1 L2+ Kent National

FSM

Attainment 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | Reduction | 2012 2013 2014 | Reduction

Gaps % % % in gap % % % in gap

(%) since since 2012
2012

Reading 17 16 15 -2 14 12 12 -2

Writing 20 18 17 -3 16 15 14 -2

Mathematics 12 11 10 -2 11 9 9 -2

At Key Stage 1, there been a 5 percentage point improvement in the attainment of FSM
pupils at Level 2+ (Reading) over the last 3 years. Attainment nationally improved by 4
percentage points over the same period. Kent mirrored the national reduction of 2
percentage points in this attainment gap between 2012 and 2014.

At Key Stage 1 Level 2+ (Writing), the attainment of FSM pupils has improved by 6
percentage point since 2012. This is compared to a national improvement of 5 percentage
points over the same period. The reduction in the attainment gap for writing at Key Stage 1
is more rapid in Kent than nationally with a reduction of 3 percentage points over 3 years,
compared to 2 percentage points nationally.

Attainment at Key Stage 1 mirrored the improvement nationally at Level 2+ (mathematics)
with a 3 percentage point improvement in the attainment of FSM pupils over the last 3 years.
Kent also matched the national reduction of 2 percentage points in this attainment gap
between 2012 and 2014.

Key Stage Two

At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics) the attainment gap between
FSM pupils and their peers narrowed significantly in 2014. The attainment of FSM pupils in
Kent has improved at a more rapid rate than nationally and the gap for FSM children at this
key stage has also reduced more quickly than nationally. However, the attainment of FSM
children overall in Kent at this key stage remains below the national average and therefore
remains a priority for improvement.

Kent National

KS2 Level 4+
FSM Attainment 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

% % % % % %
RWM - FSM 51 53 61 66 60 64
RWM - Non FSM 76 78 82 83 79 82
Reading - FSM 70 69 77 77 75 79
Reading - Non FSM 88 88 91 89 89 91
Writing - FSM 59 66 71 68 71 73
Writing - Non FSM 83 86 88 85 87 88
Mathematics - FSM 67 67 72 73 74 75
Mathematics - Non FSM 86 86 88 87 87 88

Page 213



Kent National

?gnzn L4+ Reducti Reducti
Attai ¢ 2012 | 2013 | 2014 onin 2012 2013 2014 onin

alnmen % % % gap % % % gap
Gaps

P since since

2012 2012

RWM 25.2 25 21 -4.2 19 19 18 -1
Reading 17.8 19 14 -3.8 12 14 12 0
Writing 23.4 20 17 -6.4 17 16 15 -2
Mathematics 19 19 16 -3 14 13 13 -1

At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics), there has been a significant
improvement in the attainment of FSM pupils, with a 10 percentage point increase since
2012. This is compared to a 2 percentage point decline nationally over the same period. The
attainment gap at Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics) has narrowed
significantly with Kent achieving a reduction of 4.2 percentage points since 2012, compared
to a reduction nationally of 1 percentage point.

At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading), the attainment of FSM pupils has improved significantly
increasing by 7 percentage points between 2012 and 2014. This is compared to a 2
percentage point improvement nationally. At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Reading) the gap
between FSM and non FSM pupils in Kent is 14%, which is a reduction of 3.8 percentage
points since 2012. The national gap has remained unchanged over this 3 year period.
Although the gap in Kent remains larger than nationally the rate of progress is increasing.

At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (Writing), there has been significant improvement in the attainment
of FSM pupils in Kent with a 12 percentage point increase since 2012. This compares to a 5
percentage point improvement nationally. There has been a 6.4 percentage point reduction
in the gap at Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (writing) for FSM pupils in Kent over the last 3 years. The
national gap has reduced by 2 percentage points. Again although the gap in Kent remains
larger than national, attainment from a lower base is improving at a more rapid rate than
nationally.

At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ (mathematics), the attainment of FSM pupils has improved by 5
percentage points in Kent over the last 3 years. This is compared to a 2 percentage point
improvement nationally over the same period. The gap in Kent for this measure has reduced
by 3 percentage points since 2012, compared to a national gap reduction of 1 percentage
point. Once again the gap in Kent remains larger than national but as with reading and
writing, progress towards reducing the gap is more rapid than nationally.

Key Stage Four

KS4 5+ A*-C inc Eng & Maths 2012 2013 2014
FSM Attainment % % %

Kent LA - FSM 31.7 32.8 27.3
Kent LA - Non FSM 64.7 67.3 61.3
National - FSM 36.5 38.1 33.7
National - Non FSM 62.8 64.8 60.7

Page 214



KS4 5+ A*-C inc Eng &

Maths 2012 2013 2014 Difference
FSM Attainment Gap % % % since 2012
Kent 33.0 34.5 34.3 1.3
National 26.3 26.7 27.0 0.7

At Key Stage 4 in 2014, the percentage of FSM pupils achieving 5+ A*-C GCSE including
English and mathematics decreased by 4.4 percentage points. Nationally, attainment
decreased by 2.8 percentage points. There has also been a widening of the gap for FSM
pupils at Key Stage 4 5+ A*-C GCSE including English and mathematics. The gap has
increased by 1.3 percentage points since 2012, compared to an increase nationally of 0.7
percentage points.

This decline in performance reflects the changes to the national accountability and
examination framework in 2014 but is still very disappointing. Both in attainment and in the
widening gap, KS4 is a concern and therefore a priority for improvement.

(b) Children in Care (CiC)
For the purposes of this report, children in care is defined as those looked after for at least
12 months as at 315t March 2014, excluding those children in respite care. Only children

who have been matched to the key stage data are included.

Key Stage One

At Key Stage 1, attainment for children in care has improved over the past 3 years but
remains below national averages and the gap between this group of vulnerable learners and
all children remains larger than national. For example, nationally the attainment gap for
mathematics has remained steady but the Kent gap has increased by 10 percentage points
since 2012. These outcomes are a cause for concern.

KS1 L2+ Kent National
12+ Month CiC 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014
Attainment % % % % % %
Reading 63 76 70 67 69 71
Writing 51 62 56 57 61 61
Mathematics 78 78 70 71 71 72
Kent National
KS1 L2+
2012 | 2013 | 2014 | Differen 2012 2013 2014 Differenc
12+ Month % | % | % ce % % % e since
SIS e since 2012
2012
Reading 23 13 20 -3 20 20 19 -1
Writing 31 23 30 -1 26 24 25 -1
Mathematics 13 14 23 10 20 20 20 0

At Key Stage 1 Level 2+ (Reading) CiC attainment is improving faster in Kent than nationally
with an increase of 7 percentage points since 2012 (compared to a national increase of 4
percentage points over the same period) but outcomes remain just below national in 2014.

Page 215




There is a similar picture in the attainment of CiC pupils at Key Stage 1 Level 2+ (Writing) as
although improvement was faster than national with an increase of 5 percentage points since
2012 (compared to a national improvement of 4 percentage points over the same period),
there was a 6 percentage point drop in overall attainment in 2014.

At Key Stage 1 Level 2+ (mathematics) CiC attainment in Kent has declined by 8 percentage
points since 2012, this is compared to a national improvement of 1 percentage point and is a
cause for concern.

Key Stage Two

Outcomes for children in care at Key Stage 2 have shown some improvement but remain a
concern and will continue to be a significant focus for improvement in 2015.

KS2 L4+ Kent National

12+ Month CiC 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014
Attainment % % % % % %
Reading 54 61 65 64 63 68
Writing 44 46 59 51 55 59
Mathematics 42 52 57 56 59 61
RWM 35 39 44 42 45 48

Kent National
KS2 L4+
2012 | 2013 | 2014 | Differen 2012 2013 2014 Differen
12+ Month % % % ce % % % ce since
CiC Gaps since 2012
2012

Reading 32 24 24 -8 23 23 21 -2
Writing 35 37 27 -8 30 28 26 -4
Mathematics 41 31 29 -14 28 26 25 -3
RWM 37 35 35 -2 33 30 31 -2

At Key Stage 2 Level 4+ in Reading and mathematics, CiC attainment although still below
national outcomes for CiC, has shown significant improvement between 2012 and 2014. At
Key Stage 2, Level 4+ Writing attainment is now in line with national outcomes for this group.
Although the gaps in attainment for CiC at Key Stage 2, Level 4+ in the three separate
measures of Reading, Writing and mathematics remain larger than national, the rate of
improvement in Kent over the last 3 years is significantly faster than national.

At Key Stage 2, Level 4+ (Reading, Writing and mathematics), CiC attainment remains 4
percentage points below national outcomes but the pace of improvement is swifter than
national with a 9 percentage point increase since 2012.

Key Stage Four

KS4 Kent National
12+ Month CiC 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014
Attainment % % % o, o, o,

5+ A*-C inc English &

. 15.3 14.8 8.0 14.9 15.5 12.0
mathematics

Page 216




Kent National
KS4
12+ Month 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | Differen 2012 2013 2014 Differen
CiC Gaps % % % ce % % % ce since
since 2012
2012
5+ A*-Cinc
English & 459 | 48.3 | 50.0 41 445 43.7 41.4 3.1
mathematics

At Key Stage 4, the percentage of CiC attaining 5+ GCSE at grades A*-C including English
and mathematics decreased by 7.3 percentage points between 2012 and 2014. This is
compared to a decrease nationally of 2.9 percentage points over the same period. The
attainment gap in Kent for this group increased in 2014 by 4.1 percentage points over a 3
year period, this is compared to a 3.1 percentage point increase nationally.

Although this decline may be due to the national changes in accountability measures in
2014, this is a cause for concern and will be an important focus for improvement in 2015.

(c) Gender Gaps

Key Stage One

At Key Stage 1 in 2014, the gender gaps at Level 2+ and Level 2b+ are in line with national
and continue to show girls doing better than boys in all three areas. At Level 3+ girls still
perform better than boys in reading and writing but in mathematics boys are performing
better than girls.

Kent National

KS1 L2+
Gender Attainment 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

% % % % % %
Reading - Girls 90 92 93 89 90 92
Reading - Boys 82 86 87 84 86 87
Writing - Girls 88 90 90 88 90 91
Writing - Boys 77 80 81 78 80 82
Mathematics - Girls 92 94 94 92 93 93
Mathematics - Boys 89 91 92 89 90 91
KS1
gg:ge’ % achieving L2+ | % achieving L2b+ | % achieving L3+
Reading

2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014

Kent 8 6 6 10 11 8 9 9 9
National 6 6 6 9 9 8 8 8 9

Page 217




KS1

g:;ger % achieving L2+ | % achieving L2b+ | % achieving L3+
Writing

2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014
Kent 11 10 9 17 16 16 8 9 10
National 10 10 9 15 15 15 8 10 10
KS1 Gender
Gaps % achieving L2+ | % achieving L2b+ | % achieving L3+
Mathematics

2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014

Kent 3 3 2 3 3 3 -4 -5 -4
National 4 3 2 3 4 4 -5 -4 -4

At Key Stage 1, Level 2+ (Reading), Kent girls performed better than national achieving
93%, while Kent boys matched attainment nationally. The improvement made by girls in
Level 2 and above (reading) since 2012 was in line with the national improvement of 3
percentage points. The rate of boys’ improvement is more rapid than nationally with a 5
percentage point increase over this 3 year period.

At Key Stage 1, Writing attainment at Level 2+ the rate of improvement for girls is slightly
slower than the improvement made nationally. The improvement made by boys is in line with
national. Whilst the improvements made between 2012 and 2014 are encouraging there
remains a need to focus on the gender gap at Key Stage 1 in writing.

At Key Stage 1, Level 2+ (mathematics), both girls and boys performed better than
nationally. At this level the rate of improvement of both Kent girls and boys is more rapid
than nationally. Attainment for both boys and girls is showing a good three year upward
trend in mathematics at Level 2 and above.

Key Stage Two

At Key Stage 2 in 2014, girls at Level 4+ in Reading, Writing and mathematics continue to
outperform boys. Girls are attaining in line with the national average whilst boys are
performing 1% below national averages. The attainment of girls and boys at Level 4+
(Reading, writing and mathematics combined) has improved by 6 percentage points since
2012, which reflects a three year upward trend. In 2014, the national gender gap is 6
percentage points, which is a 2 percentage point gap reduction over 3 years, compared to a
significant gap in Kent of 7 percentage points which remains stubbornly unchanged since
2012.

Kent National

KS2 L4+
Gender Attainment 2012 2013 2014 2012 2013 2014

% % % % % %
RWM - Girls 76 77 82 79 79 82
RWM - Boys 69 71 75 71 72 76
Reading - Girls 89 88 91 90 88 91
Reading - Boys 83 82 87 84 83 87
Writing - Girls 85 89 91 87 88 90
Writing - Boys 73 78 81 76 78 81
Mathematics - Girls 83 83 86 84 85 86
Mathematics - Boys 83 83 85 84 85 86

Page 218



KS2 L4+ Kent National

Gender

Gaps 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | Decrease | 2012 | 2013 2014 | Decrease

(Girls-Boys) % % % 2012 % % % since
2012

RWM 7 6 7 0 8 7 6 -2

Reading 6 6 4 -2 6 5 3 -3

Writing 12 11 10 -2 11 10 9 -2

Mathematics 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

At Key Stage 2 attainment in Reading, at Level 4+, is now in line with national for both girls
and boys following a pleasing increase of 4 percentage points for boys and 2 percentage
points for girls from 2012 to 2014. Nationally there was a slower increase of 3 percentage
points for boys and 1 percentage point for girls over the last 3 years.

At Key Stage 2, attainment in writing at Level 4+ in Kent improved for both boys and girls in
2014. Attainment for girls has improved by 6 percentage points since 2012 to 91% which is 1
percentage point higher than national. Attainment for boys has improved significantly over
the last 3 years by 8 percentage points and is now in line with national outcomes.

At Key Stage 2 in 2014, attainment in mathematics at Level 4 and above increased by 3
percentage points since 2012 for girls which is faster than the national increase of 2
percentage points over the same period. Boys attainment improved by 2 percentage points
which is in line with the national increase.

Key Stage Four

P .
Kent LA - Girls 65.2 67.7 62.6 -2.6
Kent LA - Boys 57.3 58.5 53.6 -3.7
National - Girls 64.3 64.8 61.7 -2.6
National - Boys 54.7 53.8 51.6 -3.1
KS4 5+ A*-C inc Eng & Maths
Gender Attainment Gap 2012 2013 2014 Difference
% % % since 2012
Kent 7.9 9.2 9.0 1.1
National 9.6 11.0 101 0.5

At Key Stage 4, the gender gap in attainment at 5+ A*-C GCSE including English and
mathematics remains unchanged at 9%. The attainment gap in Kent has increased by 1.1
percentage points since 2012, compared to a national gap increase of 0.5 percentage points
over the same period.

In Kent at Key Stage 4 2014 5+ A*-C GCSE including English & mathematics, gender
attainment for girls has reduced by 2.6 percentage points since 2012, which is in line with
the national decline. The attainment of Kent boys has reduced by 3.7 percentage points,
compared to a 3.1% decline nationally. As with all Key Stage 4 outcomes, it is important to
bear in mind the impact of First Result reporting.

Page 219



In 2014, Kent increased the number of schools which narrowed their achievement gaps for
children in receipt of Free School Meals (FSM) to 214 primary schools and 57 secondary
schools, compared with 2013 when 177 Primary schools and 43 Secondary schools
narrowed their FSM achievement gaps.

The Closing the Gap priority programme is continuing with the following focused activities:

o Sharing of practice that has had the most significant improvement on closing the gaps
with particular focus on secondary schools

o Targeted visits to schools to advise and inform best practice

e Cross phase network meetings

o Focused project pilots in a number of schools

¢ Involve schools in development of Kent wide and school to school support/CPD

o Dissemination of effective practice in the Governor Magazine

e CPD for Governors

e Bespoke Governor Support

¢ Involvement of VSK in project work

e Two bids to secure EEF funding for research

e Collaboration funding through Kent Association of Headteachers for groups of schools to
work on closing the gap.

o Development of coherent strategy for EYFS and Primary transitions

o Kent conference led by national speakers with associated workshops

e Best practice newsletter issued to all Headteachers

o Research strategies to improve retention of Pupil Premium students post 16 in Kent

schools.
Future Key Actions to Reduce Inequality:

o Promote a culture of high expectations for disadvantaged pupils across all schools
through an agreed framework for data analysis and progress measures.

¢ Providing training and guidance to raise awareness further with governors on their role in
closing the gap.

o Further develop school collaboration in closing the gap in secondary and primary
particularly with a focus on transition at all key stages for this group of pupils.

¢ Identifying and sharing effective teaching and learning strategies for accelerating
progress for disadvantaged pupils.

o Develop and publish a Vulnerable Learners Strategy to identify, share and promote the
positive developments schools and the LA are undertaking to narrow the achievement
gaps and accelerate levels of performance of vulnerable groups within the County.

Page 220



Key Equality Issues for the Skills and Employability Service

The refreshed 14-24 Skills and Employability Strategy focuses on 14 to 19 curriculum
change, and the development of improved pathways and opportunities for all learners to
participate to age 18 and up to 24 for those young people with learning disabilities.
We are having some success but this still remains a big challenge. Success depends on
schools and colleges being more collaborative to open up planning opportunities in districts
and the development of the creative use of study programmes post 16.

The challenges include moving to a more blended vocational and academic post 16 offer
for all students which offer high quality progression routes. The number of young people
gaining a level 2 qualification decreased slightly to 82.7% in 2014, from 84.9% in 2013 but
the number of young people progressing from level 2 to level 3 increased from 55.9% to
56.7% we need to build on this success. There is a high drop- out rate still, particularly at the
end of Year 12. Participation rates have significantly improved from 2014 for 16 year olds
from 91.2% to 92.4%, the biggest increase is for 17 year old from 83.5% to 92.3%.This will
continue to be a key area of work in 15/16 new systems are in pace to track and support
young people if they leave school or college in Y12, all these young people will be offered
trainee or apprenticeship opportunity.

Progress in reducing inequality in the last year

We are seeing a reduction in NEET numbers, now at 4.6% from 5.9% in 2014, but not
quickly enough and the percentage is still at 5.2%for Year 13, but lower, at 2.3% for Year 12
which is encouraging. A significant challenge remains for learners who are NEET at aged
18 who need additional support to access employment opportunities which includes
apprenticeships. It means nearly 2800 young people are NEET. It is a challenge to find and
fund provision to meet the needs of these young people. New vocational and technical
programmes have been put in place in all districts opportunities to ensure that 14 to 19
pathways can be personalised to meet all learners needs. There are new support systems in
place for a number of vulnerable groups which includes Children in Care, Young Offenders,
SEND, and Home educated. These new systems will significantly reduce the number of
NEET young people to below 4% this year, to enable the target of 1% NEETSs to be reached
by 2017.

There is an encouraging upward trend on apprenticeships in the 16 to 18 year groups
following a collaborative campaign between KCC, FE colleges and work based training
providers, this included establishing an apprenticeship talent pool for 16 to 18 year olds in
schools, although we are still below the KCC target figure and we will continue to do more to
promote higher level apprenticeships.

We are moving forwarding in some districts with a more coherent approach to addressing
these issues by planning for better 14 to 19 pathways and gaps in provision. This
happens best with the full participation of senior school and college leaders, supported by
robust data which can be honestly scrutinised. We are proposing to improve support for
these 14-19 curriculum mapping and planning forums in the coming months, and would hope
to concentrate on the implementation of the new technical and vocational qualifications
which offer realistic opportunities into employment and higher levels of learning. A coherent
and coordinated District offer is the key to achieving full participation and eliminating
NEETSs.

To inform discussion about developing 14 to 19 curriculum pathways and new provision,
KCC's Skills and Employability Service produce Post-16 Data Pack for each district and
provide individual schools with detailed data sets about the profile of their learners.
The district data summarises the key legislative changes which impact on post-16 learning;
provides an updated analysis of district economies; reviews the curriculum changes over the
past year; presents data on participation, attainment and progression; and sets the scene for
curriculum planning for 2016-17

Page 221



NEET figures for vulnerable Kent young people for 2014-15

Looking at the 2014 and 2015 data it can be seen that NEET figures for vulnerable groups
have reduced from 944 to 761. This improvement is encouraging as it reflects the impact of
the increased focus on supporting vulnerable young people by KCC, in particular through the
14-24 Skills and Employability Strategy, SEND Strategies and the establishment of Early
Help and Preventative Services

This improvement is due to the increased use of robust data sets that shows the profile of
the learners who are NEET and improvements in the coordination of the tracking systems
The detailed data sets held within the CCIS database enable officers to gain a greater
insight into the challenges and barriers facing vulnerable learners and can ensure that
resources are targeted to individuals and schools

New post 16 pathways have been developed by Skills and Employability Service for SEND
learners and those young people who do have a level 2 qualification to ensure there are
appropriate learning progression pathways in all localities and there is sustained
employment or assisted employment opportunities available. This has been achieved by
expanding the remit of the Kent Supported Employment programme and assisted
apprenticeships. There is a new supported employment programme being developed in
special schools and a new supported internship offer will be available in September. This is
a key area of focus in the revised 14 to 24 Strategy.

A key priority for this year will be to continue to expand the support to 16 to 18 year olds
from troubled families and increase the number of young people into apprenticeships. The
other major focus for the Skills and employability Service will be to narrow the achievement
gap for 19 year olds from disadvantaged backgrounds

Future key actions to reduce inequality
As we go forward our priorities are to:

¢ Develop further local collaboration between providers as part of local 14-19 partnerships

to improve the local offer

Continue to improve KS4 performance to improve attainment in maths and English

Re launch the Kent Vocational programmes

Identify 12 schools to develop innovative vocational and technical pathways at level 2/3

Develop new learning pathways and provision including vocational and technical

qualifications with work experience

e Work in partnership with the Colleges to extend the apprenticeship offer and take up
further

e Improve employer engagement in the design of vocational and technical pathways

o Take more action to reduce the Year 12-Year 13 drop-out rate

e Develop supported employment opportunities and better provision for vulnerable
learners

e Continue to make better use of the data to re-design the curriculum offer.

The Skills and Employability Service working collaboratively with partners will ensure that
young people are able to access the information and gain the qualifications, skills, work
experience and learning opportunities they need to engage successfully with employment or
higher levels of learning. This will be achieved through:

e Continuing to improve the post 16 information available to young people, parents and
carers and support progression at Year 11, 12 and 13 through the kentchoices4u
website and a new programme for the Kentchoices live event;

¢ Continuing to expand the work of the Careers Education, Information, Advice and
Guidance (CEIAG) network to include for support vulnerable groups

Page 222



Targeting early interventions to continue to reduce NEETs and young people at risk of
becoming NEET

Reviewing the District Data Pack and identify the impact of the data pack on the District
Offer to ensure there is sufficient level 1 and 2 provision which leads to employment in
the locality

Developing pilot programmes between schools and colleges to improve English and
maths outcomes at 19

Increasing the number of young people from vulnerable groups accessing pre
apprenticeships and supported internships

Expanding the offer of the virtual learning programme to post 16 levels 2 and level 3

Working with parents and young people to receive feedback on the quality if the post16
offer

Page 223



Key Equalities Issues for the Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)
Service

In January 2014, the SEND Strategy was launched to achieve three overarching aims to:

1) Improve the educational, health and emotional wellbeing outcomes for Kent’s children
and young people with SEN and disabilities

2) Ensure Kent delivers the statutory changes (required by the Children and Families Act
2014)

3) Address the gaps in provision for children and young people with SEN and disabilities,
improve the quality of provision, develop the broadest range of providers, and encourage
a mixed economy of provision.

The Strategy forms the County Council’s policy for SEND and our plans to deliver the special
educational need requirements of the Children and Families Act, which came into force from
September 2014. The Strategy anticipated the changes including the new arrangements for
education, health and care plans (EHCP) to replace Statements of SEN for school age
children and Learning Disability Assessments (LDA) for students in Further Education
Colleges, the development of the local offer, and better outcomes and progress for disabled
children and those with special educational needs.

The Strategy sets out a vision of a well-planned continuum of provision, from birth to age 25.
It builds on earlier investment in Kent Special schools, setting out key priorities to improve
and expand provision in mainstream and Special schools. It recognises that this will lead to
less reliance on out of county placements and that in order to keep in step with the demand
for Special school places, as a result of changing needs, a priority is to provide additional
capacity e.g. in Special Schools, mainstream schools and specialist resourced based
provision (sometimes called units).

Key service equality issues

Co-production with parents and carers of children and young people with SEN and
disabilities in Kent is at the core of the SEND Strategy. We want to ensure their educational,
health and emotional wellbeing outcomes are good and we know that in order to deliver the
cultural and practice improvements needed, we need good SEN practice in every school; a
stronger commitment to inclusion; core standards delivered by skilled workforce across all
schools.

We have developed an approach to deliver top-up funding to schools for high needs pupils
and we must ensure it leads to earlier intervention and greater targeting of resources to most
significant needs. Alongside this we have been reviewing the work of the Specialist Teaching
and Learning Service (STLS) because we want an effective, responsive support service for
schools which is able to build sustainable expertise and create greater capacity within all
mainstream schools.

We must deliver statutory changes (required by the Children and Families Act 2014)
necessary to have better integrated assessment and support and address the gaps in
provision for children and young people with SEN and disabilities. We want local decision
making for SEN statutory assessment through the Local Inclusion Forums (LIFTs) to lead to
assessments which provide better personalisation for children and young people with SEN
and make the most efficient use of our resources.

We have undertaken public consultation on proposals to developing more ASD and BESN
provision in newly built primary schools, and a programme of capital improvements in special
schools in place to increase the number of places in good and outstanding schools to reflect
parent preferences.

Page 224



Progress in Reducing Inequality in the Last Year

The attainment and progress of pupils with special educational needs in Kent, in the 2014
results, was significantly above or in line with national attainment levels. It is recognised that
there is a gap between the attainment of pupils with SEN and that of other learners. These
gaps remained largely the same as in 2013 which was disappointing. However pupils with
SEN in Kent performed better than equivalent children nationally; 50% of pupils at school
action in Key stage 2 achieved Level 4 in Reading, Writing and Maths compared with 47%
nationally. Of those at school action plus in Kent 42% achieved level 4 compared with 36%
nationally. Both these results were significantly above national performance. The most
complex children, those with a Statement, achieved in line with the national level; 13%
compared with 15% nationally. We have set ourselves a target for 2015 of 16%.

At Key Stage 4, 33% of pupils in Kent at school action attained 5 or more AC grade GCSEs
(including English and Maths) which was significantly above the national average of 24%.
Similarly at school action plus 24% of pupils in Kent Schools achieved 5 or more A-C grade
GCSEs compared to 20% nationally. 8% of Kent pupils with a Statement attained 5 or more
A-C grade GCSEs. The national average was also 8%.

Since launching the Strategy we have made good progress in improving performance in
completing SEN statutory assessments in 26 weeks reaching 92% in Kent, compared to
82% nationally. However from September 2014, the new assessment process requires
completion in 20 weeks and it is evident from data published by the DfE in May 2015 that the
impact of dual systems and preparation for statutory changes has reduced performance
nationally.

In Kent 90.4% of new statements issued in 2014 were completed in 26 weeks which
compares favourably with the South East Region performance of 85% (which fell 9.6% over
the same period) and the National performance of 89%. This data excludes those
assessments where there was an allowable medical exception to the timescale. Including all
cases, there were national and regional reductions in performance against 2013 for all
assessments, with Kent achieving 84.7% in 26 weeks compared to the South East region of
79.8% and nationally 79.1%.

All local authorities are required to transfer existing Statements to EHC Plans by 2018. The
DfE report 1.2% of all statements had been transferred by January 2015. Kent has
transferred 2.3% of its Statements. Progress has been limited because of the demands of
converting existing Statements to EHCPs, however additional resources have been
identified to address this and reduce assessment delay. We have set ourselves a target to
have embedded the new 20 week process firmly by 2016 and be achieving 95% of
Education, Health and Care plan (EHC) assessments in 20 weeks.

Significantly more children and young people with SEN in Kent are receiving a better quality
education than in previous years and they are performing better than equivalent learners
nationally. We have increased the number of places in Kent special schools, recognising that
the number of good or outstanding schools continues to rise. Through investment in our
workforce and specialist resources to support them, we are creating capacity in mainstream
schools to ensure high quality provision. There are emerging examples of where joint
commissioning is being effective in improving services.

Through co-production with parents, we have established on Kent.gov, the Local Offer by
schools, early years providers, FE colleges, health and social care services, including
services that promote transition to adulthood, short break services and services
commissioned by health. We have put in place a multi-agency steering group to monitor
quality and relevance of information for families. Feedback through Kent’s digital services
team and external evaluation of kent.gov has highlighted that the local offer is already being
well used by parents who have told us it is helpful and easily accessible. We will continue to
develop this as a resource for parents and young people.

Page 225



Two projects within the programme to improve the quality of Special school accommodation
are complete (Oakley and Stone Bay and three projects are on site (Broomhill Bank,
Laleham Gap and St Antony’s). We have established satellite provision for three of our
PSCN special schools (Five Acre Wood School Oakley School and St Nicholas School). We
have more secondary provision pupils with Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) and speech
and language difficulties (SLCN) and we have expanded existing good provision for SLCN to
include ASD places in primary. Across Kent there are six new Primary schools opening from
September 2015 each of which will provide for ASD, BESN and SLCN.

We are providing more specialist provision so that we can reduce the number of children
whose needs cannot be met in local schools and the number supported in a local
mainstream school has risen from 48.5% to 51.1% (57.5% of new plans). We have
successfully reduced the proportion of pupils with Statements placed in the non-maintained
sector as at January 2015 to 12.1% of all SEN placements (from 13.3% in 2014).

We have successfully implemented a new system of high needs funding for pupils with
special educational needs. Alongside this we have reviewed and improved the
arrangements to provide SEN funding (known as SCARF) to support severe and complex
children access early years settings.

Through the work of the STLS we are increasing expertise in mainstream schools. Feedback
from schools (211) showed that 87% rated the overall impact of STLS intervention on
progress of the child as good, very good or excellent. This is helping us to identify schools
requiring support and robustly challenge over identification/referral. Information regarding
the LIFT and STLS has been included within KELSI. Schools now have good up to date
guidance through the LIFT.

The Workforce Development Plan in place to underpin the SEND Strategy ensures we are
able to provide a district training offer lead by special schools which includes training in ASD,
BESN and SLCN. We established a pilot to develop a professional development framework
to influence at a strategic level, the culture and practice across the whole workforce and all
participating settings achieved externally accredited awards from the Continuing
Professional Learning Development (CPLD) and Inclusion Quality Mark (IQM) and individual
professionals were accredited by Christchurch Canterbury University.

Future key actions to reduce inequality

Whilst we have been effective at identifying educational outcomes and the action to improve
them, we have recognised that there are inequalities in access to health services for children
and young people with special educational needs and disabilities. Schools are parents
report difficulties accessing therapies and there are only 3 of Kent’s special schools
receiving NHS commissioned specialist nursing input. We have also seen different levels of
participation and engagement in the assessment and review processes which can be
explained by the arrangements put in place by NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups.

We are further developing the model for the STLS to support to mainstream schools. We
want to strengthen the support for sensory impaired pupils. We are proposing to will more
closely align the outreach support from special schools and the role of the STLS.

We remain committed to high quality personalised plans co-produced with families and we
have received positive feedback on this approach through Ofsted’s discussions with parents
and pupils; however we know that there are delays in our assessment process which we
must tackle, particularly as all local authorities are required to transition existing Statements
by 2018.

Page 226



ASD is the most prevalent need type in Kent, BESN the second most prevalent need in
mainstream. This remains the case. We continue to work on establishing further provision in
mainstream schools.

In March 2015, the DfE outlined its intention to put in place accountability for the SEN
reforms in the Children and Families Act 2014. Kent Children’s Health & Wellbeing
Standing Group for disabled children and young people and those with special educational
needs (CHWB-SEND has a role to ensure services are co-produced with parents and
carers, recognising that whilst the lead role rests with the local authority, successful
implementation requires effective partnership and engagement.

Page 227



Key Equalities Issues relating to Pupil Place Planning

In November 2014 Kent County Council published the latest Kent Commissioning Plan for
Education 2015-19. This sets out how the County Council, as Strategic Commissioner of
Education Provision, will provide sufficient school places of good quality, and other
education provision across all types and phases of education in the right locations, to meet
the demands of increased pupil numbers and parental preferences. The Plan is updated
annually with progress being monitored six to nine months after publication.

Key service equality issues

e Ensure that a place in a good school is available for every Kent child through planning,
commissioning and securing high quality school places.

e Address gaps in SEN, Early Years and Childcare and Post-16 provision by
commissioning Kent-based state maintained local provision.

¢ Ensure that equalities issues are considered for all statutory school organisation
changes.

Progress in reducing the inequality in the last year

A mid-year review of the Kent Commissioning Plan for Education (June 2015) demonstrated
that:

¢ Commissioning and implementing the planned number of new school places overall for
September 2015 has been successful and targets have been largely met. Delivery of a
small number of projects has been adjusted in response to changing contexts during the
year.

e The local authority remains committed to the programme to rebuild or refurbish all
Special Schools. This programme, together with the re-designation of pupil numbers, has
so far provided an additional 229 places in Special schools.

e The accuracy of the LA's forecasting methodology is within 1% of accuracy, apart from
Reception Year forecasts which are accurate to within 1.8%.

e Surplus capacity in the Primary School sector is at 5.4% in Reception Year and 5.2%
across all Primary School year groups (target is at least 5% surplus). The surplus in
districts varies across the County from 1.1% in Gravesham to 8.7% in Dover. Surplus
capacity in Year 7 and across the Secondary School sector remains high both across the
County and in districts, apart from Canterbury which is below 4%.

Progress in Expanding School Place Numbers

The Plan identified the need, by 2015-16, for:

Primary Secondary
Permanent Temporary Temporary Temporary
Year R Year R Years 1-5 Year 7

Need 29.3FE 195 places 90 places 60 places
identified in
Plan
Places 18.7FE 309 places 90 places 30 places
delivered (by
May 2015)
Difference -10.6FE +144 places 0 -30 places

¢ In most cases, temporary Year R will become permanent places, once due process has

been completed.

e The LA did not deliver 10FE of the planned permanent primary provision for September
2015. The reasons for this include forecast demand not materialising, temporary places

Page 228




provided whilst consultation on permanent expansion is underway, new free school
opening in the planning area negating need for planned expansion and an inability to
identify suitable schools at present.

e Pressure on places in Dartford, Gravesham and Swale remains acute, however, the LA
was able to ensure that all children in Kent were offered a place for September 2015,
albeit journeys for some of these pupils is longer than ideal.

e Seven new primary schools will open in September 2015, with a further Free school due
to open in September 2016.

Sufficient School places

Maintaining sufficient surplus capacity in schools across an area is essential both to meet
increased demand and to enable parental preferences to be met.

The targets which relate to providing sufficient school places are set out in ‘Vision and
Priorities for Improvement’.

We strive to maintain at least 5-7% surplus primary school capacity in each district, in line
with demand and parental preferences, each year. Surplus capacity in Reception classes
across Kent is currently 5.4% and across Years R — 6 across Kent surplus capacity stands at
5.2%.

Similarly, we strive to maintain at least 5-7% surplus secondary school capacity in each
travel to learn area of Kent. Across the Secondary School age range there is a high
percentage of surplus capacity overall (10.9%), reflecting a period of reduced demand due to
the size of the Secondary School population. As the increased numbers of Primary aged
pupils transfer to Secondary Schools over the next few years, demand will rise and surplus
capacity will return to an effective operating level. However, the surplus in Canterbury is
slightly below the preferred operating capacity of 5% surplus (2.8%).

Progress in Implementing Changes to Provision for SEND Pupils

Our Strategy to improve the outcomes for Kent's children and young people with SEN and
those who are disabled (SEND) recognised that our current SEN capacity had not kept pace
with changing needs, and that we continue to commit a significant level of resources to
transporting children to schools away from their local communities. Therefore, the
Commissioning Plan set out our commissioning intentions to improve access to local
provision.

The capital programme continues to prioritise the County Council’'s commitment to ensure
sufficient Special School places exist, and these are in high quality environments. The 10
Special School projects contained within the programme are at the following stages:

Two projects are complete:
o Oakley (West Kent) — Extension and refurbishment to both junior and senior schools.
e Stone Bay (East Kent) — New Emergency Fire Exit

Three projects are in progress:

e Broomhill Bank (West Kent) — Provision of additional and extended classrooms, together
with improved changing facilities and new studio hall.

o Laleham Gap (East Kent) - EFA managed relocation and new build project

o St Anthony’s (East Kent) - New sports hall and ancillary spaces

Two projects are at Tender and/or Contract Award stage:
e Foreland (East Kent) - Relocation and new build project
¢ Foxwood and Highview (South Kent) - Relocation and new build

Page 229



Three projects are at the planning stage:

¢ Ridge View (West Kent) — Relocation and new build

o Five Acre Wood (West Kent) - Extension on existing site

e Portal House School (South Kent) — New build on existing site

The refurbishment and rebuilds of Five Acre Wood School, Portal House and Ridge View
Schools have all encountered difficulties in respect of planning and budget. All three remain
high priorities for bringing to swift, satisfactory conclusions.

Increasing the Designated Numbers in Special Schools

We have achieved a total of 3555 places, which is an increase of 229 additional places since
October 2014. This figure is expected to rise by a further 21 places once statutory proposals
for Grange Park School have concluded in the autumn term. The total number of places will
therefore be 3576 as set out in our 2015/19 Commissioning Plan.

Following a statutory consultation process, we are continuing with the proposal to
discontinue Furness School. It is proposed that Broomhill Bank School be expanded to
incorporate satellite provision on the Furness site, enabling pupils on the roll of Furness
School to continue with their education on the same site.

Specialist Resource Base Provision (SRBP)

The Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) remains the most prevalent need type in Kent, while
Behavioural, Emotional and Social Needs (BESN) remains the second most prevalent need
type in Kent mainstream schools. Table 10 below sets out the SEND Specialist Resource
Base Provision commissioned to help address these needs. Table 11 shows SRBPs that we
have commissioned since the Commissioning Plan (2015 — 19) was published.

School School | SRBP | District Places added
Type Type 2015 2016 2017

Thistle Hill (new) PRI BESN Swale 4 8 14

Martello Grove (new) PRI ASD Shepway 4 8 12

Valley Invicta Primary School PRI BESN | Tonbridge 4 6 8

at Leybourne Chase (new) & Malling

Valley Invicta Primary School PRI BESN | Tonbridge 4 6 8

at Holborough Lakes (new) & Malling

Valley Invicta Primary School PRI ASD | Tonbridge 6 8 12

at Kings Hill (new) & Malling

Oakfield Community Primary PRI ASD Dartford 12 12 12

School

Holmesdale Technology SEC ASD | Tonbridge 4 8 12

College & Malling

Nonington CE Primary School PRI BESN Dover 3 4 6

River Primary School PRI SCLN Dover 4 8 12
Total 45 68 96

We continue to monitor the growth in the Secondary School population and respond
accordingly with new SEN provision where required. For West Kent we have already created
additional SEND provision at Holmesdale Technology College and statutory proposals are
underway to create a new SRBP for up to 50 students with a statement of SEN or EHCP
equivalent for ASD for September 2015 at Hugh Christie Technology College.

In North Kent we are working with Oasis Academy Hextable to move the SLCN provision to
the Leigh Academy Trust, on closure of the Hextable Academy. The Leigh Academy Trust
also propose to establish a SRBP for pupils with ASD, at Wilmington Academy, Common
Lane, Wilmington, Dartford, Kent, DA2 7DR.

Page 230



For South Kent we are re-commissioning Castle Community College (Deal) Secondary
SRBP for dyslexia to become Secondary SLCN provision, providing up to 20 places
(consisting of 16 places for pre-16 and 4 places for post-16 pupils).

Progress in delivering Early Years and Childcare Provision

The Early Years and Childcare element of the Commissioning Plan 2015/19 included the
following key features:

o All districts had surplus early education places

e The duty introduced in September 2013 to ensure that the most disadvantaged 2 year
olds were able to access free early education provision represented a challenge for Kent
but that good progress was being made

¢ Over and above the provision and availability of early education for two, three and four
year olds, there were gaps in childcare provision (0-4), across ten of Kent's twelve
districts

e There were gaps in provision for childcare for school-aged children, particularly in
Thanet, Swale, Shepway and Canterbury.

¢ Work was being undertaken with schools to engage them in local planning for early
years and childcare provision and to encourage more schools with maintained nurseries
to expand their provision to offer early education places for 2 year olds.

o With effect from April 2014 the Free Early Education Entitlement for three and four year
olds had been “extended”, so that where providers were able to accommodate this, it
became available during school holidays in addition to the more traditional offer of term
time only.

Early Education for Two Year Olds

Kent's target number of places for September 2014 was 6,501. However, based on our
aggregate take up for September 2013 — August 2014 the anticipated actual need was 5,136
places. In September 2014, there were 5,872 places available or in development, showing a
potential surplus against anticipated actual need of 736. Since then, significantly more
places have become available, as follows:

Private, voluntary and independent provision 7,608 places
Childminders 2,572 places
Maintained nurseries 16 places
Total 10,196 places

The district with the most significant challenges throughout has been Gravesham. However,
with the lowest level of take up of places, the supply has always been and continues to be
sufficient to meet demand.

Progress in Post-16 Commissioning

The post-16 commissioning element of the Commissioning Plan 2015/19 included the
following current priorities:

implementing the raising of the participation age to 18

supporting vulnerable learners to participate and achieve good outcomes
responding to national changes in the funding regime for post 16 learning
responding to new requirements for all learners to meet higher standards at GCSE
English and Mathematics; and

e meeting the changing skills needs of the Kent economy and of young people to gain
employment. Progress and Achievements

Page 231



Continued Participation

Overall, participation levels (86%) as at April 2015 are similar to those reported in
January 2014. There is a slight reduction in the percentage of the total cohort
participating, though the actual number of young people participating has increased.

In 2014-15 increasing the number of 16-18 year old apprenticeships has been a major
campaign for all providers. This has been a highly successful activity in Kent as this
year’s figures show an additional 300 16-18 year old apprentices have been recruited to
date.

The percentage of learners who are in Further Education in April 2015 (9758) is just
slightly below January 2014 figures (9720). (There was an increase from January 2015
(8101) to April 2015 (9758) which was likely caused by the clarity of understanding
across colleges of part and full time education as reported to the DfE.)

The requirement for all young people who have not achieved Level 2 English and Maths
GCSE to work towards achieving that grade, may well have had a disproportionate
impact on FE colleges

Through the use of District Data packs, which have influenced the planning decisions of
partners, and there is increased take up of vocational training at post-16.

Locally, providers need to continue to work collaboratively on the 14-19 vocational offer
to ensure that there continue to be realistic opportunities for young people to progress to
Level 3 programmes, as smaller school provisions are likely to offer diminished
outcomes.

There are still gaps in provision at district level for good quality entry level, level 1 and 2
provision that supports a sustainable pathway into employment. The district offers are
going some way to meet this. But there is more provision needed. Apprenticeships at
level 3 are too few.

Ongoing initiatives to support increased participation through to 18 include:

16-19 Study Programme linked to LMI (including the 2-1-2 model)

Improving employer representation on the ELS Partnership Board

Ensuring employability skills are better developed in schools, colleges and work-based
learning providers

Shaping the future direction of the five Learning and Employment Action Zones
Improving Careers guidance including employer engagement

Helping to reduce barriers to learning through use of the Kent Post-16 Travel Card, thus
enabling Kent learning providers to meet the requirements of Full Participation in
learning to 18 years of age.

Supporting Vulnerable Learners

The key vulnerable groups include young offenders, SEND, Children in Care and Elective
Home Educated young people. Support for these groups is a priority moving forward. One
main priority is to commission provision specifically for vulnerable groups.

For young people with SEND / Learning Difficulties the priorities going forward are:

develop tracking processes which provide high quality data to effectively target
resources for SEND

develop new reports and data-matching across organisations

reduce significantly the number of SEND learners who are NEET or Not Known

identify at risk learners for whom the progression pathways are limited, which will be a
key activity over the next two years

develop a district offer which will be personalised to learners’ needs, rather than being
provision-based. SEND learners will start to identify progression routes through CEIAG,
in discussion with their parents or carers and schools, from age 14 in Year 9.

Page 232



The main initiatives to support the progress of the most vulnerable learners include:

Developing and improving job mentoring and coaching

Improving the support for vulnerable young people, by employers, job coaches and
mentors

Developing further the Assisted Apprenticeships Programme

Developing the 14-24 pathways for SEND learners into employment or assisted
employment

Future Key Actions to Reduce Inequality

Monitor the trend of inward migration and develop a profiling analysis of the increasing
population: The profiling analysis has been developed.

Creation of all-age schools: St George’s Secondary School in Thanet is in the process of
becoming an all-through school from September 2016 with the addition of a new building
for the Primary phase on site.

In areas of the County where Secondary school places will be needed in the future,
consider the vulnerability of schools with reducing numbers and budgets, to ensure their
future viability: We are reviewing potentially vulnerable Secondary schools and
producing Action Plans.

Continue reviewing separate Infant and Junior schools to consider amalgamation where
circumstances permit; four Infant schools and their linked Junior schools became all
through Primary schools for the September 2014/15 academic year.

Commission a survey of unregistered childcare in schools.

Page 233



Key Equalities Issues and Progress relating to Children Missing Education (CME)

Responsibility for tracking CME children and young people was transferred to Fair Access
on 1 January 2015.

The number of CME referrals in 2013-14 (academic year) was 2,486. Referrals in 2014-15
academic year (up to 19/04/15) was 1,866, which is comparable to Terms 1-4 in 2013-14
where the number of referrals was 1,725. This indicates that there has been an increase in
referrals of 141 up to April 2015.

As a consequence of this increase in referrals, Fair Access is reviewing how referrals are
recorded. Our data shows that in 2013—-14 there were 347 referrals for CME were found to
be on the roll of a school. For Terms 1 - 4 in 2014—-15, CME received 129 referrals that were
found by the team to be on the roll of a school. Where a child or young person is found to be
in a school, roll data will now be recorded separately, in order that Kent can better identify
genuine cases of CME.

The gender breakdown continues to be fairly evenly split. Ethnicity is not routinely collected
at point of referral as this is taken from the school census information where ethnicity is self-
declared. Referrals come from a number of different agencies, some of which have their
own targets to improve engagement with vulnerable and harder to reach groups. The
largest minority ethnic group in Kent is the category of White Eastern European. Within this
group are Gypsy and Roma, who experience particular vulnerabilities and who often have
limited experience of positive education impacting on their success at accessing services.

Data recorded shows that in 2013-14, deducting referrals where ethnicity is unknown and
ethnicity information is not yet obtained, 262 referrals are Gypsy and Roma. This equates to
22.96% of referrals that are Gypsy Roma against all other ethnicities. Terms 1-4 in 2014-15
shows that the percentage of referrals that are Gypsy Roma against all other ethnicities
(deducting referrals where ethnicity is unknown and ethnicity information not yet obtained)
the percentage is 18.65%, equivalent to 172 Gypsy Roma referrals.

Where ethnicity is known and reported for CME referrals, Gypsy Roma are
disproportionately represented and referrals have increased during the last year. In 2012-
13, 3.5% of the CME referrals where ethnicity was declared were Gypsy Roma. This
increased to 7.29% in 2013-14. This is set against a Gypsy Roma cohort for the whole
school population of 0.9%, evidencing a disproportionate rate of Gypsy Roma pupils who are
CME.

Future key action to reduce inequality

Proactive work continues with agencies to highlight the CME processes. Outreach Officers
within Early Help and Preventative Services are focused on identifying new arrivals and the
Gypsy Roma population to support school access and promote attendance.

Key Equalities Issues and Progress relating to Elective Home Education

Responsibility for supporting Elective Home Education (EHE) children and young people
was transferred to the Fair Access Service on 1 January 2015.

The service has been reviewed and a new EHE Policy has been developed during the
course of 2014/15. The new EHE Policy seeks to improve the LA's relationship with Home
Educators by building trust and understanding, in order to help ensure every child and young
person accesses the best possible education, whether that be delivered at home or in other
learning environments. By engaging more effectively with this learning community, KCC is
seeking to assure itself that all children are in receipt of suitable education. It expected that
this Policy will be consulted upon and agreed during the course of 2015/16.

Page 234



Engaging with the EHE community early is enabling KCC to better understand the drivers for
electing to home educate, enabling us to record the numbers who are choosing this route
and how best to support the families. Improving avenues of communication has enabled
KCC to quickly make a distinction between those families who have consciously elected to
home educate and those who feel a disconnect with their child's current school.

The LA has recently developed a new website accessible to all Home Educators which aims
to provide information and guidance for families who have chosen to take responsibility for
their child's education. The website is in its infancy and is providing links to some groups of
Home Educators, links to legislation and curriculum content websites as well as links to
voluntary organisations that support Elective Home Education with best practice and advice.

Engaging with families from the onset of their registering enables the LA to offer each family
who chooses to home educate, relevant support, whether that be signposting them to
organisations and or materials that enable effective home learning or where appropriate to
advise and signpost to KCC officers who can work with schools to request reintegration.

The number of EHE children and young people has significantly risen year on year for the
past 5 years (from 793 in 2008 to 1326 in 2013-14). Since September 2014, referrals have
been received at an alarming rate, up to 89 per month (804). The gender breakdown is
approximately even. Where provided, 55% of the reasons given for electing to home
educate suggest that this has not been a proactive decision by the family. There are
concerns about the number of young people leaving formal education in years 9,10 and 11
with numbers significantly higher in some districts and from particular schools.

Children and young people declared as Gypsy Roma feature disproportionately in EHE
figures. They represent 0.9% of the total school population. In 2012-13 the figure for EHE
was 8.8%. This reduced in 2013-14 to 7.52% but this over-representation is still a concern
especially where families have not truly elected to enter into home education and have
instead, in some instances felt this is the option open to them.

Future key actions to reduce inequality

o Following engagement with the EHE community, finalise the EHE Policy for
implementation.

¢ Work more closely with schools to prevent high numbers of pupils and their families
inappropriately having to home educate and identify where young people are electing to
home educate to avoid interventions from other partner agencies.

o Ensure all pupils receive their entittement to an efficient full time and suitable education
according to their age, ability and aptitude.

Page 235



Key Equalities Issues for Early Help And Preventative Services

All Early Help and Preventative Services (EHPS) were brought together by KCC through the
establishment of a new Early Help and Preventative Services Division, within the Education
and Young People's Services Directorate from April 2014.

The task of the EHPS Division is to deliver effective early help and prevention, which means
better outcomes for vulnerable children and families and reduced demand for social care
services. The principle aim of the Division is to deliver early help, which is timely and
effective to children, young people and families who need it, enabling them to flourish and
preventing costly, harmful long-term consequences and the need for more specialist
children's social care services. The benefits are improved life chances for children and
young people and lower costs to the Council and the taxpayer by reducing the demand for
social care.

An EHPS Prospectus was published in May 2014, setting out the strategy for Early Help.
The Prospectus provides the rationale for change in order to achieve better outcomes
shares a vision for the future and details where we are in terms of re-focusing and
integrating services and provision into District based teams, informed by a better
assessment of needs.

To assure progress in achieving improvement in relation to the priorities the Division
developed a set of targets and outcome measures to show the impact the new preventative
services were having. These are set out in the Early Help One Year Action Plan 2014-15
and the Early Help Scorecard.

The Early Help One Year Plan, 2014-2015, sets out what and how key service changes
were made, identifying the development of new processes and systems, detailing service
priorities and targets and key outcomes to be achieved to change demand patterns.
Progress made in the first year of the Early Help Division will be set out in an Early Help
Three Year Action Plan which is currently being developed.

The EHPS Division comprises Children’s Centres and the integrated 0-25 Early Help
Service, the PRU, Inclusion and Attendance Service, Youth Justice and Safer Young Kent,
Troubled Families and Projects, the Youth and Adolescence Service and the Information and
Intelligence Service. It also includes the Kent Family Support Framework (KFSF), which
replaced the CAF, and Triage Unit — which is activity to improve the way we assess the
needs of children and young people, and to make sure we provide the right help to the right
people at the right time. EHPS also collaborate with health services to better integrate
commissioned health services for children and young people. Schools are at the heart of this
new way of working at district level.

Early Help support is provided to children in need, children in care and those on the child
protection register. Early Help provision aims to contribute to a reduction of around 10% in
the demand for Specialist Children’s Services (SCS) in the next couple of years.

Early Help works closely with Social Care professionals to reduce the referrals to SCS,
reduce the number of children in care and reduce the number of families requiring statutory
social care interventions. Early Help and SCS are working together to co-locate and align the
SCS Central Referral Unit and Early Help Triage processes. This will ensure one ‘front door’
to support services and ensure that decision-making and access to Early Help Services is
safe and made at the earliest possible opportunity.

Integrated 0-25 Early Help Services Structure and Delivery Model

A subsequent review of EHPS structures and budget in 2014 resulted in the redesign of 0-25
services providing integrated support for children, young people and their families, to provide
a more outcome focused, flexible and responsive service for those children at risk of poor

Page 236



outcomes in their lives. The service is undergoing a restructure currently which will be fully
operational by September 2015. A new senior management structure was appointed in
January 2015 operating across the four geographic areas of Kent, co-terminus with
Specialist Children’s Services (SCS) and EYPS service area structures. The four Early Help
Area Managers support the strategic development of the 0-25 integrated service delivery
model and provide operational management support for the three districts within their area.

The Early Help Senior Management restructure has also created a distinct role of Head of
PRU, Inclusion and Attendance to manage Pupil Referral Units (PRU) and relationships with
schools, emphasising the focus on inclusion and attendance, and a new Head of Service to
lead the performance, quality assurance and analysis across the EYPS Directorate — the
Information and Intelligence Service. Youth Justice and Troubled Families functions have
retained their management arrangements, pending future service redesign.

The Early Help model within the 0-25 unified service encompasses:

New forms of delivery to realise between 2% - 8% improvement in efficiencies;

o Early Identification — rigorous and consistent threshold application within the Central
Referral Unit (CRU) and Kent Family Support Framework (KFSF) triage process to
ensure appropriate case referral;

¢ Consistent application of needs thresholds, including step down processes, so that Early
Help provision contributes to a reduction of between 3.5% - 9% in the demand for SCS.

Each Early Help Area Head of Service lead the delivery of Early Help and Preventative
Services across the three districts within their area and have a strategic responsibility:

Early Years
and
Children's

Adolescence
and the Youth
Officer

Health and

Safeguarding

Progress in reducing the Inequality in the last year

o The rate of referrals to SCS per 10,000 from March to April 2015 has reduced by 8.1 from
39.3 to 31.2.

Current Early Help Caseload 5759

Assessments completed in 2 weeks of notification 55%

Percentage notifications leading to Plan in 4 weeks 47%.

Cases closed with a good outcome 63%

Percentage of cases stepped down from SCS 24%

The Introduction of the Kent Family Support Framework has ensured easier and swifter
access to Early Help services for all children and young people in need of support

Page 237



o Prioritisation of notifications to Triage for cases involving missing children, children known
to SCS and children with a high level of need in order to ensure swift and appropriate
provision and consideration of safeguarding issues

¢ Demographic mapping of all Districts to better understand issues of poverty and the
transient population against school outcomes including Attendance and Inclusion Youth
Offending and Troubled Families.

Future key actions to reduce inequality

o Work to continue with Partners to develop an integrated multi-agency approach to
understanding the needs of children and families to inform a revised commissioning
framework.

e Ensure any equality issues highlighted through analysis or audit are addressed in a
timely way to improve the service to vulnerable children and young people.

¢ Implementation of a new Early Help & prevention service model to ensure services are
located according to demographic need.

Key Service Equalities Issues for Troubled Families

Troubled families face multiple disadvantages. Troubled families are those that:
Are involved in crime and anti-social behaviour;

Have children not in school;

Have an adult on out-of-work benéefits;
Cause high costs to the public purse.

Analysis for HM Treasury and Department of Education and Skills also shows that children
aged 13 to 14 years who live in families with five or more of these problems are 36 times
more likely to be excluded from school than children in families with no problems and six
times more likely to have been in care or to have contact with the police.

Over the past three years the Kent Troubled Families Programme has engaged with 2,560 of
these families, supported them in tacking these issues and has helped them to turn their
lives around.

Progress in reducing the Inequality in the last year

Over the course of the first phase of the programme, the lives of 2,560 families have been
turned around.

e 2,172 families where crime and anti-social behaviour has dramatically reduced and
children are attending school regularly

o 388 families where an adult is now in employment or on the European Social Fund
Progress to Work Programme

In addition, while other families cannot be defined as fully turned around, many have made
significant improvements in school attendance and reductions in crime and anti-social
behaviour. If there are still outstanding needs in these families they will continue to be
worked with in the next phase of the programme.

Future key actions to reduce inequality

In April 2015, the second phase of the Troubled Families programme began. It retains the
initial programme’s focus on families with multiple problems, such as poor school
attendance, youth crime, anti-social behaviour and unemployment. However, the second
phase will also reach out to families with a broader range of problems, such as children who

Page 238



need help, families affected by domestic abuse and parents and children with a range of
health problems.

In 2015, the programme is aiming to work with 1,792 families and to turn around at least
1,075. This means prioritising projects for dedicated workers, integrated working, family
mentoring and improving family resilience and relationships, increasing and supporting
opportunities for families to gain skills, apprenticeships and employment. This will be the
context of effective early help and preventative services that take a whole family approach to
helping families challenge the many disadvantages they currently face and overcome them.

Key Equalities Issues for the Youth Justice Service

(i) Children with a Legal Status with Specialist Children’s Services

This group of children and young people are disproportionately represented within the
youth justice system. Assessments indicate a strong association between their
experiences of neglect, abuse and disadvantage and their offending behaviour. They
also feature among those who re-offend frequently and as a result amongst those
receiving custodial sentences.

A Protocol has been signed by the County Council and a number of Criminal Justice
Organisations which is designed to achieve lower levels of criminalisation of children in
care. The commitments in the Protocol have yet to be fulfilled and they will need to be a
focus of the work of the Central Youth Justice Team and of the Early Help Units during
2015-16.

(ii) Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) Representation within the Youth Offending Population

Youth Justice performance data indicates that children and young people from the BME
communities are disproportionately represented in the youth justice system in the
county, despite their numbers being relatively low.

Kent Police are interested in determining the reasons for this finding so that
consideration can be given to possible discriminatory decision making across the whole
youth justice process, including how they are reported on and supervised by the Youth
Offending Teams.

Additionally children and young people from the various Eastern European communities
in the county are becoming evident in the youth justice system. There is a need to
ensure all in the Central Youth Justice Team have an understanding of the different
cultures of these communities so that, as appropriate, officers can help to shape the
style of interventions to better support these children and young people.

(iii) Females within the Youth Justice System (YJS) — Responses

A recent audit of children and young people released from custody during 2014 raised
questions as to how violent behaviour by females was responded to. An interpretation of
the data can be that females attract more punitive responses than do their male
counterparts when they are responsible for violence towards others.

(iv) Children & Young People with Special Educational Needs
About 35% of the Kent youth population in custody have a statement of SEN or an
Education Health and Social Care Plan. The changes in the SEND Code of Practice

post the Children and Families Act 2014 for the SEND population in custody should
support improved resettlement arrangements but the objective is to reduce the number

Page 239



of the SEND population receiving custodial sentences by enhancing the quality of
community based interventions.

Progress in reducing the Inequality in the last year

The signing by the County Council of the Kent & Medway Joint Protocol on Criminal Justice
Agency Involvement with Children in Care aims to reduce the prosecution of Children in
Care (CiC), wherever possible, by encouraging the use of alternative resolution approaches
such as restorative justice. This is a significant first step but the fulfiiment of its objectives is
now critical.

The County Youth Justice Board, (the partnership group responsible for the management of
youth justice services in the county) has supported studies on BME representation within the
YJS and on the engagement of children and young people in Education Training and
Employment (ETE).

Future equalities issues informed by progress this year
Planned activities include:

¢ Review, with Kent Police, the possible reasons for the disproportionate representation of
children and young people from the BME communities and agree an action plan in
response to the findings.

e Agree with partner agencies a plan for the implementation of the Protocol designed to
reduce the criminalisation of Children in Care.

¢ Monitor decision making with respect to females within the YJS with a view to assessing
whether there is evidence of them being treated more punitively than males. If this is the
case, share the findings and a proposed remedy with the County Youth Justice Board for
their endorsement.

¢ In line with the requirements of the SEND Code of Practice (June 2014) with respect to
children and young people subject to Education Health and Care Plans, review the
number of them in the YJS, and specifically in custody, so that practices can be agreed
that are designed to reduce their representation.

Page 240



Key Equalities Issues for the PRU, Inclusion and Attendance Service

The new Pupil Referral Unit (PRU), Inclusion and Attendance Service (PIAs) works to
reduce exclusion from school, to improve pupil attendance and to facilitate good quality
PRUs and alternative provisions for those who would otherwise not be able to attend schools
due to exclusion or health needs. The Head of PRU, Inclusion and Attendance is responsible
for the engagement with Pupil Referral Units and for building relationships with schools in
Kent to fortify inclusion and attendance.

Forming an integrated part of the Early Help and Preventative Strategy, the PIA Service
adopts a new approach of intervening early and acting timely to support schools, children
and families in addressing the issues of behaviour, attendance and exclusion.

Attendance

The key aim remains to reduce overall and persistent absence and thus improve the
attendance of children within Kent schools. Children eligible for free school meals (FSM)
record disproportionately higher levels of both overall and persistent absence compared to
their peers.

The service continues to develop the offer to schools to improve attendance. Persistent
absence is reducing, broadly in line with national trends, however this reduction needs to
accelerate to narrow the gap with national figures in secondary schools.

Progress in reducing attendance inequality in the last year
Primary Schools:

Both overall absence and persistent absence for children on FSM have reduced in 2013/14
compared to the previous year. Children on FSM and non FSM pupils both reduced
persistent absence rates and the gap between the two cohorts became narrower from 6.4 to
5.0 percentage points. However, while primary school children without FSM achieved 1%
reduction in overall absence, there was a slight increase (0.2%) of absence among children
with FSM.

Secondary Schools:

Although there was a slight improvement in secondary schools’ attendance in 2013 -14, the
gap between pupils on FSM and non FSM cohort widened in both overall absence and
persistent absence. Measuring by the indicator of over absence rate, the gap between the
two cohorts widened from previous year’s 3.6 to 6.2 percentage points, with children on FSM
having higher overall absence rate. Similarly, the gap between the two cohorts also widened
in terms of persistent absence rate, increasing from previous year’s 7.1 to 12.3 percentage
points in 2013-14.

While we have a strategic aim to reduce Kent's overall absence rate and persistent absence
rate in order to improve attendance to the national average and better, it is imperative to
narrow the gaps between the attendances of the two cohort groups.

FSM 2012-13 2013-14
Overall Persistent Overall Persistent
absence Absence absence Absence
Prima 4.8% 3.3% 3.8% 2.3%
FSM pupils 6.5% 8.6% 6.7% 6.5%

Page 241



FSM 2012-13 2013-14
Overall Persistent Overall Persistent
absence Absence absence Absence
Non FSM pupils | 4.4% 2.2% 3.4% 1.5%
Secondary 6.0% 6.6% 5.6% 6.2%
FSM pupils 9.1% 16.7% 11.0% 17.0%
Non FSM pupils 5.5% 5.0% 4.9% 4.7%

Kent has started to develop a wider range of strategies to improve school attendance,
establishing a new attendance service that will refocus on empowering schools to manage
pupil attendance more effectively. We are holding regular School Attendance Officers
network meetings advising and training school-based attendance workers to ensure more
effective way to improve attendance. Practitioners from the new Inclusion and Attendance
Service identify and target the schools that need more support and carry out group and
project work in schools to support attendance improvement of the children on FSM.

Future key actions to reduce inequality

Since May 2015, every school in Kent has a link Kent attendance practitioner to provide
timely and effective support and advice. Besides the Inclusion and Attendance Service, we
also have Early Helps Units that will provide support for those pupils who have genuine
family problems. For the schools with a higher level of needs, we are piloting the approach of
having a link Early Help Unit for the schools so that Early Help Workers in the Units can
provide right and timely intervention when needed.

Integrated teams within Early Help and Preventatives Services will utilise local data to
identify needs led interventions to reduce the gaps for vulnerable groups through earlier
interventions. This will include partnership with SEND colleagues, and outreach work to
targeted families.

Progress in reducing Exclusions inequality in the last year

Key Exclusion Data 2013/14

One pupil was excluded from a Special school during 2013-14. This pupil is included in the
totals below. Alternative figures excluding this pupil are shown in brackets.

1) Permanent exclusion breakdown by gender:
Boys 69 (68); Girls: 19
2) Primary school permanent exclusion breakdown by gender:
Boys 24; Girls: 2
3) Among the children permanently excluded, percentage with FSM:
37.5 (37.9)
4) Among the primary schools’ permanent exclusions, percentage of children with FSM:
42.3
5) Among the secondary permanent exclusions, percentage of children with FSM:
36.1
6) Of the total permanent exclusions, percentage of children with SEN:
58.0 (57.5)
7) Of the total permanent exclusions, percentage of children with School Action:
10.2 (10.3)
8) Of the total permanent exclusions, percentage of children with School Action Plus:

Page 242



45.5 (46.0)

9) Of the total permanent exclusions, percentage of children with SEN Statement or
EHCP:
2.3(1.1)

10) Of the primary schools’ permanent exclusions, percentage of children with SEN:
80.8

11) Of the secondary schools’ permanent exclusions, percentage of children with SEN:
47.5

Permanent and fixed-term exclusions continue to decline in Kent however there are clear
variations in outcomes for certain groups.

Boys account for 82% of all permanent exclusions. When analysed by phase, 92% of
excluded pupils are boys in primary schools, compared to 78% in secondary schools.

FSM pupils account for around 37.5%, a slight reduction of last year’s 40% of all permanent
exclusions, although it remains a much higher rate than the normal FSM% for the school
population which is around 14%. When analysed by phase, 42% of excluded pupils are
eligible for FSM in primary schools, compared to 36% in secondary schools. Both have been
reduced from last year’s respective figures of 59% and 37%.

A significant improvement has been made in the reduction of children with SEND being
permanently excluded. In 2013/14, SEND pupils account for 58% of permanent exclusions,
a significant reduction from previous year’s 84%. Of this 58% of permanently excluded
pupils, 10% are School Action, 46% are School Action Plus and nearly 2.3% are
Statemented. When analysed by phase, 81% of excluded pupils have SEN in primary
schools, compared to 48% in secondary schools. The comparative data of 2012/13 were
95% and 82%. There was a 14 percentage point’s reduction at primary schools and 34 at
secondaries.

The ethnic breakdown of all permanent exclusions in 2013/14:

Number of Percentage of Percentage of
Ethnicity . pupils (including | pupils (excluding
pupils Special) Special)
Not matched 10 114 11.5
Black or Black British - African 1 1.1 1.1
Mixed - any other mixed > 23 23
background
Mixed - White and Black African 1 1.1 1.1
Mixed - White and Black 1 11 11
Caribbean ' )
Parent/pupil preferred not to 1 11 11
say
White - any other White > 23 23
background
White - British 66 75.0 74.7
White - Gypsy/Roma 4 4.5 4.6

The ethnic breakdown of exclusions is in line with the ethnic breakdown of the total school
population, with the exception of Gypsy, Roma and Traveller (GRT) pupils who are over-
represented. In 2013-14, 4 Gypsy Roma pupils were permanently excluded. To date there
has been 2 permanent exclusion of Gypsy/Roma children in 2014-15.

In 2013-14 19% of all Fixed Term Exclusions relate to GRT pupils. The GRT school
population represents 0.96% of the total school population. This has now been reduced to
11% to date this year.

Page 243



The newly formed PRU, Inclusion and Attendance Service will have a dedicated team to
help children from GRT pupils to increase school attendance and to avoid exclusion. The
service operates within the context of Early Help and will be able to recruit the support of
Early Help Units and its Open Access. This area of work will be a priority for GRT outreach
officers who will also provide advice to schools on the good practice of improving GRT
children’s behaviour at schools.

Establishing Baseline Equality Data relating to PRU Pupils

A dataset was established in September 2014 to collect all PRU/Alternative Provision (AP)
performance information and hold them centrally in one place. A trial use of the data set was
carried out in all PRUs/AP in Kent. The trial helped to establish baseline performance data
based on 2013/14 records of the pupils who attended PRUs/AP. The initial analysis of the
data provides us with baseline information on equality relating to PRU pupils, including the
gender, FSM and vulnerability of the cohort:

o Figure 1 shows that in 2013-14, 646 pupils were admitted to PRUs/AP at different points
of time throughout the academic year. Of this 646 cohort, 456 (70.6%) were male pupils
and 190 (29.4%) were female pupils; boys are more than two thirds of the PRUs/AP
population.

fig.1: Kent PRU Pupils by Gender

W Boys M Girls

e As is indicated in Figure 2 (based on PRUs/AP admissions 2013-14), 57.9% of PRUs/AP
pupils in Kent were known to be entitled to FSM. 95% of Kent PRUs/AP pupils are in
KS3 and KS4. The FSM entitlement rate at the same age groups in the mainstream
schools is 12.2% in Kent. Therefore, there is a significant link between the FSM
entitlement and pupils who are likely to be admitted to PRUs/AP.

fig.2: Kent PRU Pupils FSM Entitlement

EFSM  ®m Non-FSM

¢ In analysing the PRUs/AP dataset, it was also found that a very high proportion of pupils
who have the vulnerability factors that are not school related. These factors including
mental health, Children in Need, Children in Care (CiC), Child Protection and children
needing the interventions of family support. Figure 3 (based on PRUs/AP admissions
2013-14) shows that 45% of PRUs/AP pupils in Kent were known to be affected by these
issues, which are different from those that associated with schools, i.e. peer relationship,
bullying or exclusion. This confirms the hypotheses that there is more a need for co-
ordinated Early Help and Preventative interventions to support children in PRUs/AP in
order for them to achieve and to thrive on a par with their peers at mainstream schools.

Page 244



fig.3: Pupils with Known Problems outside School

M Known to Have Problems outside School
M Not Known to Have Problems outside School

e The high proportion of PRUs/AP pupils with family related problems or other difficulties
outside schools leads to another hypotheses that this cohort needs more support and
intervention in order to be successfully re-integrated into mainstream schools or to make
progress in PRUs and alternative provision. This data analysis also indicates that very
often this cohort of 45% of PRU population tend to stay in the alternative settings for a
longer period of time than other groups. Fig. 4 shows that only 20.6% of PRUs/AP
vulnerable pupils are successfully re-integrated after less than 14 weeks’ placement in a
PRU (average stay). 66.7% of the pupils staying in PRUs/AP longer than 14 weeks or
have never been re-integrated were from the vulnerable cohort (Fig.5).

fig.4: PRU Pupils Re-integrated within 14 Weeks

M Pupils Known to Have Problems outside School
M Pupils Not Known to Have Problems outside School

21%

fig.5: PRU Pupils' Who Have Not Been Re-
integrated after 14 Weeks

M Pupils Known to Have Problems outside School
M Pupils Not Known to Have Problems outside School

Future key action to reduce inequality

In order to ensure that pupils in PRUs receive appropriate support that help them achieve on
a par with their mainstream schools peers, it is imperative that Early Help provide timely and
well-planned support to this cohort of pupils. The Early Help Services aim to have an Early
Help Plan for every child who is in a PRU.

Page 245



Key Equalities Issues for the Inclusion Support Service Kent

The Inclusion Support Service Kent is committed to raising the attainment and inclusion of
EAL, Minority Ethnic (and particularly GRT) children and young people and closing the gap
between these groups and others.

Minority Ethnic Data Analysis

The proportion of Minority Ethnic pupils in Kent has risen from 14% to 18% in the last 5

years.
Kent - All Schools Spring Spring Spring Spring Spring Spring
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Number Minority Ethnic 30352 31365 31908 33047 35435 39289
pupils
Percentage 14.2 14.7 14.9 15.3 16.1 17.7

The largest declared Minority Ethnic group is now White Eastern European with the majority
of these children and young people having Polish or Slovakian heritage.

s |Ndian

e African
White Eastern European

== \Nhite and any other Ethnic

=== \Nhite Western European
Gypsy/Roma

2.5

2
15 7 —_—

1

— R

0.5

0 T T T T T

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Most districts have seen an increase of Minority Ethnic pupils attending their schools;
however Shepway has seen a slight decline form from 15% to 14%, and Dover’s percentage

decrease in numbers is negligible.

Gravesham has the greatest

Changes in District Minority Ethnic
School Populations 2010 - 15

[}
= 6000
a
2 4000
°
¥ 2000
[}
o
g 0 m 2015
z 2 O & A @ A & O
\Q'b%o* O %0®Q$$e}\ ,b(\bsz} B = 2010
RN G IR 2?8 R Q&
IR SRR S RCNS C\
A RO <«
(\\Q&OQ G
,\0
Districcts

percentage of Minority Ethnic pupils
at 35.6%’ with Indian pupils being
the largest group at 9.5%: however
this percentage has remained
consistent, whereas the African
pupil population has increased from
3.6% to 6.2%, and White Eastern
European pupil numbers have risen
from 2.2% to 5.4%.

Dartford has the second largest
Minority Ethnic school population
at 30%. The Number of pupils
declaring as African has nearly
doubled, however the largest
increase since 2010 has been in

European from 0.6% to 2.3%.

pupils declared as White Eastern

Progress in reducing the inequality in the last year

There has been a higher percentage of pupils from most ethnic groups achieving 5 or more
subjects at grades A* — C including English and Maths since 2010. Chinese pupils continue
to outperform their peers across Kent in KS4. There has been a significant increase in the

Page 246



number of Bangladeshi (44.4% - 75%) and Caribbean (39.3% - 69.7%) pupils achieving this
benchmark.

Gypsy/Roma (3.7% — 8.5%), and Afghanistani (8.7% - 10.5%) continue to considerably
underachieve compared with their peers, however there has been a slight increase in the
proportion of pupils achieving the required grades.

2010 - 11 2013 -14
K$4: !—Iighest.Achieving % point
MIpority EINC 9roups | otal %5+ AC | Total |%5+AC | difference
Pupils EM Pupils EM
Chinese 55 80.0 60 85.0 5%
Other White British 68 63.2 58 84.5 21.3%
Filipino 14 64.3 23 82.6 18.3%
Sri Lankan Tamil 16 75.0 31 80.6 5.6%
Indian 178 70.8 197 80.2 9.4%
Pupils declared as 14581 51.6 13532 55.7 4.1%
English
Pupils declared as 173 38.2 351 57.8 19.6%
British
KS4: Lowest Achieving 2010 =11 2013 14 o
Minority Ethnic groups ./° el
in 2013 — 14 Total % 5+ A*-C Total % 5+ A*-C | difference
Pupils EM Pupils EM
Any Other Black 13 61.5 11 36.4 -25.1
Background
White Eastern 76 34.2 183 33.3 -0.9%
European
Thai 11 36.4 19 31.6 4.8%
Afghanistani 23 8.7 19 10.5 1.8%
Gypsy/Roma 54 3.7 82 8.5 4.8%
*Only showing groups >10

There has been a percentage increase in most ethnic groups acquiring level 4 or above in
English, maths and writing across Kent. Now over 90% of all Caribbean, Filipino,
Bangladeshi and Sri Lankan Tamil pupils achieve the required standard. However since
2010 a significantly smaller percentage of Chinese pupils (97.4% to 78%) are achieving this
grade alongside pupils declared as White/Indian which has seen a drop of 9.8%. In 2010
less than 50% of Turkish and White Eastern European pupils were achieving this grade;
these numbers have now risen to 65.6% and 63.4% respectively. Although there has been
an increase in the number of Gypsy/Roma children reaching this standard by 14% there are
still only 34.7% of this pupil cohort managing to achieve L4 + in English, maths and writing.

2010 -11 2013 -14
KS2: Highest Achievi ,
>2: Highest Achieving ) % L4+ Total % L4+ | % point

Minority Ethnic groups ; , . ; .
in 2013 — 14 Pupils Reading, Pupils Reading, | difference

Writing & Writing &

Maths Maths
Caribbean 20 75.0 26 92.3 17.3%
Filipino 21 71.4 23 91.3 19.9%
Bangladeshi 253 69.2 63 90.5 21.5%

Page 247



Sri Lankan Tamil 21 85.7 40 90.0 4.3%
Nepali 81 60.5 125 87.2 26.7%
Pupils declared as 13814 68.2 39 64.1 39
English
Pupils declared as Less than 10 39 64.1 N/A
British
2010 - 11 2013 -14
KS2: Lowest Achieving = % 5+A~C | Total % L4+ | % point
Minority Ethnic groups . ; i :
: _ Pupils EM Pupils Reading, | difference
in 2013 - 14 "
Writing &
Maths
Turkish 11 36.4 32 65.6 29.2%
British Less than 10 39 64.1 N/A
White Eastern 132 40.2 265 63.4 23.2%
European
Portuguese Less than 10 14 50.0 N/A
Gypsy/Roma 92 | 20.7 150 34.7 14%
*Only showing groups >10

The DfE Virtual Head Teacher Pilot Project finished in May last year and the report was
made public in October 2014. Baroness Whitaker stated that “This is really useful and
positive and some of the efforts are most commendable, not least those which set up a
proper data base to measure trend information, and hopefully progress.”

Link to Kent Report and Case Studies: Kent County Council website

Since the last report and following discussions with the Virtual Head Teachers for GRT
Pupils in Kent and Cambridge and the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller (GRT) Education

Stakeholder Group, the DfE have started an informal consultation with local authorities
proposing new discreet ethnicity codes of “Gypsy” or “Roma” to give parents a choice thus
hopefully increasing ascription and accuracy of data.

Future key actions to reduce inequality

¢ Continue to improve attainment, reduce exclusions and absences in order to narrow the

gap between Minority Ethnic (including Gypsy, Roma and Travellers) Bilingual Learners,
pupils who have English as an Additional Language and others.

To continue to develop and deliver training packages that will support schools in meeting
the Ofsted requirements in regard to British values and safeguarding in relation to
radicalisation, FGM and trafficking.

The Inclusion Support Service Kent has recently been selected to become accredited
‘Train the Trainers’ for Stonewall, a nationally acclaimed charity representing the needs
of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans and Questioning (LGBTQ) children, young people and
adults. This will enable the team to run CPD sessions for school leaders in this field who
will in turn be able to disseminate information and strategies to overcome barriers facing
these young people, to increase their well-being, inclusion and attainment.

Page 248


http://email.education.gov.uk/rsps/ct/c/642/r/612921/l/55222

Next Steps

A refreshed EYPS Vision and Priorities for Improvement 2016-19 will be published in the
autumn of 2015, which will detail the way that both KCC and the Education and Young
People's Services Directorate are changing to improve the lives of children, young people
and families by redesigning services so that they are integrated and better meet the needs of
vulnerable groups.

The annual refresh of the EYPS Vision and Priorities for Improvement in the autumn of 2015
will, in light of the new Directorate Equality Objectives, have at its heart, priorities and
stretching targets to ensure that:

Educational attainment for all continues to improve

Attainment gaps are narrowed for the most vulnerable and disadvantaged groups.

Every child has the best possible early start in life and is ready to succeed in school

Outcomes and progression pathways for the 14-24 cohort of young people, including

those with SEND are improved

All schools and teaching within them is judged by Ofsted to be at least good

Collaborative practices and partnerships between schools mature in order to:

e Spread best practice more quickly and make the best classroom practice open, shared,
accountable and celebrated across groups of schools

¢ Promote more innovation and creativity in order to make school improvement self-

sustaining and have a greater impact on pupil outcomes

Workforce Development is a major element in improving outcomes for children, young
people and their families. The ability to continuously improve is intrinsically linked to:

e The quality and capacity of the staff who lead, manage, deliver and support those
services.

o How effectively the staff work together across organisational and professional
boundaries to combine their expertise.

The EYPS Workforce Development Plan is central to our improvement efforts and sets out
how we will invest in staff development at all stages and at all levels in order to increase their
skills, knowledge and understanding of children, young people and their families.

15 July 2015

Page 249



Characteristics of Education in Kent

Kent Pupil Population

School Type No

Early Years 27,106
Primary 119,162
Secondary 99,032
Special 3,511
PRU 107
Total 248,918

Source: January 2015 School Census and Early Years Headcount

Number of Schools

School Sub Type Number of Schools
Academy Infant 2
Infant 26
Academy Junior 7
Junior 21
Academy Primary 87
Primary 300
Free Primary 3
Primary Total 446
Academy Grammar 22
Grammar 10
Academy High 31
High 15
Academy Wide Ability 16
Wide Ability 4
University Technical College 1
Free Secondary 3
Secondary Total 102
Academy Special 1
Special 23
Special Total 24
Nursery 1
Pupil Referral Units 11
Total 584

Number of schools as at 4th June 2015

Page 250

APPENDIX 2

58



Nursery and Early Years Settings

Mursery School/Units

Early Years Settings

S - _ Number of Children
Area/District Number of Units Total January 2015 Roll Number of Settings Attending
Kent 68 2484 1402 24622

Children's Centres
Number of Number of Individual | Total Number
Area/District Centres as at | Children seen at any |of Visits to any
31/12/2014 Setting* Setting
Kent 85 58636 412329
Mumber of Children seen at any Children's Centre - 2014

S000

8000

7000

E 6000 4— —
2
55000 +— —— —
5
5 4000
£
= 3000
z
oy — — — — — — — — — — — —
w4 - - — — — — — — — — — —
0 T 7
éb el & & s i oy 2 A & = .@}5“
A R A A P
& F & # g b (\&f‘
P ry o
S
&
™

District

Percentage of Pupils Receiving Free School Meals and Percentage of pupils with English as an Additional

Language
_ . % of Pupils whose First Language is not
%% of Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals English/Believed to be not English
Area/District Primary Secondary Special Owerall Primary Secondary Special Owverall
National 17.0 14.6 37.2 16.3 18.7 14.3 13.2 NfA
Kent 13.7 11.7 33.7 13.2 10.9 7.9 4.1 9.4

Percentage of Pupils with Additional Educational Needs and Percentage of Pupils with an SEN Statement

% SEN No
Statement

% SEN Statement

2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2013 | 2014

2015

18.7 [16.0 [111] 27 | 2.7 | 28 |

Page 251

59



Percentage of Minority Ethnic Pupils

White Asian or Asian British Black or Black British Mixed [ Dual Background
White _ Any
Traveller | Any Any Any | White White and | Any
Area/ District White | b | P | Cflrich | Other | Indian istani i | Other | Caril African | Other | and ::; Black | Other | Chinese :" Refused Hat Mot "
Lol Roma | | eritage | White Asian Black | Asian = Caribbean | Mixed e (EiE | e
Kent 81.9 0.3 0.9 0.1 4.6 1.6 0.3 04 1.3 0.2 1.8 0.1 1.1 0.6 0.8 18 0.4 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.3

The Percentage of Minority Ethnic Pupils in Kent was 17% as at January 2015.
(Percentages are rounded so may not total 100%.)

School Performance as judged by Ofsted Inspections

Ofsted Inspection Results Dashboard

% of Schools and EY Settings with Good and Outstanding Ofsted Judgements

§

§
5

100%

g
g P EEREEEREG

s FFESESEEREG

M_E. Horizontal lines reprasent Kent targets for 2005

% of Pupils attending Schools and EY Settings with Good and Outstanding Ofsted Judgements

100 100% 10076 100% 100% 1005
B S0% 905 0% BIFE Q0%
Bfe B0 BEg BORS BOFe 805
o 0% TR 0% TORE 0%
BOFE 60% [ 0% B0FE 60%
0% 0% 508 0% S0 S0%
A i ElLY 0% A0FE 0%
3R e 3 3% 305 %
20% 20 208 20% 0% b2
10 0% 10w 0% 107

L -— -
0% o ! 0% o -
B3.2% | | B5.3% 93.9% | 944%
Ly / I'-_\ -> > >
/ .
177853 pupils 91003 pupils E3551 pupils 3208 pupils 101 pupils 13354 pupils

MN_E. Horizontal line represents the national % of pupils attending Schools with Good or Owtstanding Ofsted Judzements as at 31/12/2014
Based on a total pupi roll in Kent of [as at Spring Census 2015 for PrifSec/Spe/PRU)
Early ¥ears: Based on 2014 Autumn Headoount (including late joiners) Non Domestic Premesis Only

Page 252

60



Vulnerable Groups Attainment Gap Trends by Key Stages 2013 and 2014
(Gender, FSM, SEN, EAL, Ethnicity and CiC)

% Good Level of
EYFSP Gender Gap Development Diff
(Girls-Boys) 2013 | 2014 | from
2013
Kent 17 15 -2
National 16 16 0
Difference Kent v
Nat. 1 ul -2
% Good Level of
EYFSP FSM Gap |- 2evelopment Diff
(Non FSM - FSM) 2013 2014 from
2013
Kent 18 19 1
National 19 19 0
Difference Kent v
Nat. -1 0 d
% Good Level of
EYFSP SEN Gap | 2evelopment Diff
(Non SEN - SEN) 2013 2014 from
2013
Kent 44 48 4
National 42 46 4
Difference Kent v
Nat. 2 2 0

All of the above figures are based on DfE published data

% Good Level of

EYFSP Kent and Tvpe Development
OLA m}’glc Diff
CIC Gap 2013 2014 from

2013
Kent Kent 31.5 46.3 14.8
Kent OLA 40.6 35.4 5.2
Difference Kent CIC
v OLA. -9.1 10.9 20.0

The above table is based on Keypas reporting matched to CIC pupil data

Page 253



% Good Level of
EYFSP EAL Gap | 2evelopment Diff
(Non EAL - EAL) 2013 2014 from
2013
Kent 13.3 11.8 -1.5
National
Difference Kent v
Nat.
.. % Good Level of
EYFSP Ethnicity Development
Gap_ o Diff
White Britisn) | 2013 | 2014 | from
Kent 8.5 7.1 -1.4
National
Difference Kent v
Nat.

The above two tables are based on provisional datasets matched to Spring/Summer School Census
(Ml Vulnerable Groups analysis)

% Achieving L2+ Reading | % Achieving L2+ Writing % Achieving L2+ Maths

KS1 Gender Gap Diff Diff Diff

(Girls-Boys) 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from
2013 2013 2013

Kent 8 6 6 0 11 10 |9 -1 3 3 2 -1

National 6 6 6 0 10 [10 |9 -1 4 3 2 -1

Difference Kent v

Nat. 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 -1 0 0 0

% Achieving L2+ Reading | % Achieving L2+ Writing % Achieving L2+ Maths

KS1FSM Gap Diff Diff Diff

(Non FSM -FSM) | 5512 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from
2013 2013 2013

Kent 17 |16 |15 |1 |20 |18 [17 |1 |12 |11 |10 |-1

National 14 |12 |12 Jo 16 |15 |14 |1 |11 |9 9 0

Difference Kent v

Nat. 3 |4 3 4 |4 3 3 0 1 2 1 1

% Achieving L2+ Reading | % Achieving L2+ Writing % Achieving L2+ Maths

KS1 SEN Gap Diff Diff Diff
(Non SEN -SEN) | 5012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from
2013 2013 2013
Kent 39 (33 |36 |3 |47 |42 |43 |1 28 |26 |27 |1
National 40 |38 |37 |1 |47 |45 J4aa |1 |5 |30 [30 |o
Difference Kent v -1 -5 -1 4 0 -3 -1 2 -22 -4 -3 1

Page 254 62




Nat.

KS1 12+ Month

% Achieving L2+ Reading

% Achieving L2+ Writing

% Achieving L2+ Maths

CIC Gap (DfE Diff Diff Diff

Published) 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from
2013 2013 2013

Kent 23 13 20 7 31 23 30 7 13 14 23 9

National 20 20 19 -1 26 24 25 1 20 20 20 0

Difference Kent v

Nat. 3 -7 1 8 5 -1 5 6 -7 -6 3 9

All of the above figures are based on DfE published data

% Achieving L2+ Reading

% Achieving L2+ Writing

% Achieving L2+ Maths

KS1 EAL Gap Diff Diff Diff
(Non EAL -EAL) | 5012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from
2013 2013 2013
Kent 6.2 |71 4.9 -22 |53 5.7 4.8 -09 |49 6.3 3.3 -3.0
National
Difference Kent v
Nat.
The above table is based on provisional datasets matched to Spring/Summer School Census
(MI Vulnerable Groups analysis)
% Achieving L4+ Reading, Writing
KS2 Gender Gap & Maths Diff
AR 2012|2013 | 2014 | from
2013
Kent 7 6 7 1
National 8 7 6 -1
Difference Kent v
Nat. -1 -1 1 2
% Achieving L4+ Reading, Writing
KS2 FSM Gap & Maths 5
(Non FSM-FSM) | 5015 12013 | 2014 | from
2013
Kent 25.2 25 21 -4
National 19 18 -1
Difference Kent v
Nat. 6 3 -3
% Achieving L4+ Reading, Writing
Math
KS2 SEN Gap & Maths S
(Non SEN-SEN) 15015 | 2013 | 2014 | from
2013
Kent 54 1 50 46 -4
National 53 52 -1
Page 255 63




Difference Kent v
Nat.

% Achieving L4+ Reading, Writing

KS2 12+ Month & Maths

CIC Gap (DfE Diff

Published) 2012 2013 2014 from
2013

Kent 37 35 35 0

National 33 30 31 1

Difference Kent v

Nat. 4 5 4 -1

The above figures are based on DfE published data except those shown to 1 decimal place,
which are from Keypas reporting

% Achieving L4+ Reading, Writing

KS2 EAL Gap & Maths Diff
(Non EAL - EAL) 2012 2013 2014 from

2013
Kent 6.4 4.9 4.5 -0.4
National

Difference Kent v
Nat.

The above table is based on provisional datasets matched to Spring/Summer School Census
(MI Vulnerable Groups analysis)

% 5+ A*-C E&M

% 3 Levels of Progress in

% 3 Levels of Progress in

KS4 Gender English Maths
Gap 2014 Diff 2014 Diff 2014 Diff
(Girls-Boys) 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from

Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013
Kent 7.9 9.2 9.0 -0.2 | 10.8 | 11,5 | 8.8 -2.7 | 3.0 5.3 5.5 0.2
National 9.6 11.0 | 101 -09 |13.0 |123 |11.6 -0.7 |44 4.7 4.7 0.0
Difference Kent | 17\ 48 |14 |07 |-22 |-08 |28 |-20 |-14 |06 |08 0.2
v Nat.

o % 3 Levels of Progress in % 3 Levels of Progress in
0 -

KS4 FSM Gap | ° >t A-CE&M English Maths
(Non FSM - 2014 Diff 2014 Diff 2014 Diff
FSM) 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from

Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013
Kent 33.0 | 34.5 | 34.3 -0.2 | 255 |24.0 |21.7 -2.3 | 27.3 | 28.3 | 28.6 0.3
National 26.3 | 26.7 | 27.0 0.3 18.3 | 18.7 | 17.0 -1.7 1222|1225 | 23.0 0.5
\?',ﬁ:trence Kent 167 |78 |73 05 |72 |53 |47 06 |51 |58 |56 0.2

Page 256 64




% 5+ A*-C E&M

% 3 Levels of Progress in

% 3 Levels of Progress in

KS4 SEN Gap English Maths
(Non SEN - 2014 | Diff 2014 | Diff 2014 | Diff
SEN) 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from

Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013
Kent 47.3 | 44.2 | 40.7 -3.5 322 | 239 |259 2.0 376 | 359 | 348 -1.1
National 471 | 47.2 | 452 -20 |30.3 | 311 [284 -2.7 |36.5 |37.2 |36.2 -1.0
Difference Kent \ oo |30 |45 |15 |19 |72 |25 |47 |11 [-13 |14 |-01
v Nat.

(s *_

KS4 12+ Month | > > A~C ESM
CIC Gap (DfE 2014 | Diff
Published) 2012 | 2013 | (First | from

Result) | 2013
Kent 459 | 48.3 | 50.0 1.7
National 445 | 43.7 (414 -2.3
Difference Kent 14 46 86 4.0

v Nat.

All of the above figures are based on DfE published data

% 5+ A*-C E&M

% 3 Levels of Progress in

% 3 Levels of Progress in

KS4 EAL Gap English Maths

(Non EAL - Diff 2014 Diff 2014 Diff

EAL) 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from
2013 Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013

Kent 49 |21 -2.6 -4.7 7.1 5.7 -14 26 |-0.7 -3.3

National

Difference Kent

v Nat.

K$4 Ethnicity |, - % 3 Levels of Progress in % 3 Levels of Progress in

Gap o S AHE B English Maths

(White British - Diff 2014 Diff 2014 Diff

Non White 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from | 2012 | 2013 | (First | from

British) 2013 Result) | 2013 Result) | 2013

Kent 33 |50 1.7 -1.1 0.2 0.9 0.7 |28 2.1

National

Difference Kent
v Nat.

The above two tables are based on provisional datasets matched to Spring/Summer School Census
(Ml Vulnerable Groups analysis)

Page 257

65




KS5 Gender Gap

APS per Entry (All L3)

APS per Student (All L3)

% 2+ A*-E (All L3) EPAS

orls.B Diff Diff Diff
(Girls-Boys) 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from

2013 2013 2013
Kent 98 |66 |56 |-10 |584 |549 |527 |22 [16 |11 |16 |05
National 77 |68 |68 |00 [391 [337 344 |07 [12 |10 |07 |-03
Bgﬁereme Kentv 21 |-02 |12 |10 [193 |212 |183 |29 |04 |01 |09 |08

APS per Entry (All L3) APS per Student (All L3) % 2+ A*-E (All L3)

KS5 FSM Gap Diff Diff Diff
(Non FSM-FSM) | 5412 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from

2013 2013 2013
Kent 134 137 |84 |-53 | 1408|1320 1216 |, , [49 |41 |49 |08
National 111 |93 |91 |-02 |1074|949 [881 |68 |41 [33 |26 |-07
Bg‘;erence Kentv. 150 |44 |07 |51 1334 |371 |335 |36 |08 |08 |23 |15

APS per Entry (All L3)

APS per Student (All L3)

% 2+ A*-E (All L3) EPAS

KSS SEN Gap Diff Diff Diff
(Non SEN -SEN) | 5512 [ 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from

2013 2013 2013
Kent 103 |92 |68 |-24 |1295[1070]991 |-79 |50 |37 |37 |00
National 120 [10.7 |81 |26 |1146| 1043|905 |1, |48 |41 |33 [-08
Bgﬁerence Kentv. | 47 |45 |13 |02 |149 |27 |86 |59 |02 |-04 |04 |08

All of the above figures are based on NCER datasets from EPAS reporting

APS per Entry (All L3)

APS per Student (All L3)

% 2+ A*-E (All L3) EPAS

KS5 EAL Gap Diff Diff Diff
(Non EAL -EAL) | 5912 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from

2013 2013 2013
Kent 38 |24 |54 |30 |-102]=22 |60 [82 [11 |28 [21 [-07
National

Difference Kent v
Nat.

KS5 Ethnicity Gap

APS per Entry (All L3)

APS per Student (All L3)

% 2+ A*-E (All L3) EPAS

(White British - Non Diff Diff Diff
White British) 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | from

2013 2013 2013
Kent -04 |11 1.5 -40.2 | -39.1 | 11 0.0 |01 0.1
National

Difference Kent v
Nat.

The above two tables are based on provisional datasets matched to Spring/Summer School Census
(Ml Vulnerable Groups analysis)

Page 258

66




PPPPPPP



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem D2

From: Roger Gough, Cabinet Member for Education and Health Reform

Patrick Leeson, Corporate Director for Education and Young People’s

Services

To: Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee — 18
September 2015

Subject: Education and Young People’s Services Directorate Scorecard

Pathway: To each Cabinet Committee meeting

Summary: The Education and Young People’s Services performance management
framework is the monitoring tool for the targets and the milestones for each year up to
2018, set out in the Strategic Priority Statement, Vision and Priorities for Improvement,
and service business plans.

Recommendations: The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is
asked to review and comment on the revised and expanded Education and Young
People’s Services performance scorecard which has been designed to reflect the
expanded scope of the work of the Directorate, including Early Help.

1. Introduction

1.1 Each Cabinet Committee receives a performance management scorecard. This is
intended to support Committee Members in reviewing performance against the
targets set out in the Strategic Priority Statement, Vision and Priorities for
Improvement, and the service business plans for the Education and Young
People’s Services Directorate.

2. Education and Young People’s Services Performance Management
Framework

2.1 The performance scorecard has been redeveloped following the formation of the
Education and Young People’s Services directorate in April 2014, with the addition
of the new Early Help and Preventative Services.

2.2  The Management Information unit has been liaising with Heads of Service to
develop service scorecards further, which are more detailed than the summary
level directorate scorecard. In addition to the directorate scorecard there is also
now an Early Help and Preventative Services monthly scorecard, and a quarterly
scorecard for School Improvement and Skills and Employability services. Monthly
scorecards for Early Years and Childcare and SEND are in development.

2.3  The indicators on the directorate scorecard have been chosen to give a broad
overview of directorate performance, and are supported by the greater detail within
the service scorecards.

2.4  District pages have now been developed to underpin the headline Kent figures.
Consideration is also being given to showing links between indicators that impact

upon each other, to aid interpretation.
Page 261



25

26

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The revised and expanded directorate scorecard is published quarterly.

The formation of a new integrated Information and Intelligence Service has led to
more joined up reporting, monitoring and evaluation across the directorate.

Current Performance

The performance scorecard highlights some notable progress and some areas for
improvement as indicated by their RAG status.

The data sources page (page 15 of the scorecard report) details the date each
indicator relates to, as the reporting period differs between measures.

There is variation in performance between the districts. This commentary is based
on the overall aggregate for Kent.

Results for pupils at the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS)
improved in 2015 by 4 percentage points, with 73% of children achieving a good
level of development compared to 69% in 2014. Early Local Authorities data,
which is indicative of national data, shows Kent is above the England average
figure of 66%. The free school meal achievement gap for 2015 is currently being
calculated and will be reported in the next quarter.

At Key Stage 2 the combined achievement at Level 4+ in Reading, Writing and
Maths increased to 80%, a 1 percentage point rise on the previous year. This was
in line with Early Local Authorities data, which is indicative of national average.
The achievement gap between FSM eligible children and their peers is currently
being calculated and will be reported in the next quarter.

In 2014 two major reforms were implemented which affected the calculation of the
Key Stage 4 GCSE measures. The Wolf reforms restricted the vocational
qualifications counted and the weightings applied to them, and the early entry
policy meant only the pupils’ first attempt at a GCSE qualification could be
counted. The impact of this was the percentage of pupils achieving 5+ A* - C
grades including English and maths declined slightly. Due to this change in
methodology a direct comparison between the outturns for 2014 to that of previous
years is not possible. However, in 2014 the outturn for Kent was 58.0% which is
well above the national figure of 53.4%. The unvalidated Kent GCSE data for 2015
will be available in late August and national data will be released in October.

The percentage of schools judged to be good or outstanding continues to increase
and was 82.4% in July 2015 with 458 schools judged to be good or outstanding.
This is in line with our target and with the national average. This figure includes
82% of Primary schools, 83% of Secondary schools, 87% of Special schools and
90% of Pupil Referral Units. The number of schools in an Ofsted category
continues to fall and currently there are 12 schools with an inadequate judgement
from Ofsted. The number of adequate schools has more than halved this academic
year, from 29 in September 2014. This is being addressed by supporting schools
to improve through an intensive programme of advice and monitoring, working to a
Local Authority Statement of Action, with reviews of progress against the
improvement plan completed every six weeks.

The number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools

has increased to 655 and remains higher than the target of 460. A new SEND
Page 262



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

Strategy was launched last year and the planned increase in SEN places in Kent
schools will support improvement in this area.

Education Health and care Plans have replaced the previous Statements of SEN
and should be completed within 20 weeks from receipt of a formal request for an
statutory needs assessment. The percentage for this quarter (June 2015) based
on the total number of EHCPs is 78%, where 123 plans out of 157 were issued
within 20 weeks. Progress has been less than expected because of the demands
of converting existing 6500 SEN Statements to EHCPs, for which only 16 weeks is
given. However, Government Ministers have recognised this is a significant
pressure nationally and the conversion timescale is being amended to 20 weeks.

The percentage of 16 — 18 year old not in education, employment or training
(NEET) increased in June 2015 to 6.1% compared to 5.7% in March 2015. There
are natural fluctuations in the NEET cohort throughout the year with the number of
NEETS rising over the summer months due to school and college leavers. The
latest national statistics report the annual NEET rate for Kent as 4.7%. This is in
line with the national average and places Kent in the 3 quintile nationally. The
percentage of 16-18 year olds who are NEET has decreased year-on-year over
the last three years when comparing the January snapshot data (from 6.6% in
January 2012). The Skills and Employability Service has been coordinating the
cross-directorate NEET strategy and it is anticipated that this will have a significant
impact on reducing Not Knowns and NEETSs, particularly within vulnerable groups.

The number of permanent exclusions from Primary schools is higher than
anticipated and has increased over the 12 month rolling period. A project is
currently underway to support groups of Primary schools with high exclusion rates
to improve approaches to behaviour management with the aim of reducing both
fixed term and permanent exclusions. The number of permanent exclusions from
Secondary schools is also higher than the target by 17 pupils although at 56 is
fewer than the previous year where 61 pupils were permanently excluded.

The percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30
days of becoming known has broadly stayed the same since last quarter at 65.2%
(based on a rolling 12 month average). This is 4.8 percentage points below the
target of 70%

The rate of re-offending by children and young people has increased slightly
(based on a 12 month cohort) to a rate of 37.0. This equates to 543 individuals.
The number of re-offenders continues to fall. The re-offending rate of young
people for England and Wales is 37.4, broadly in line with that of Kent.

The rate of Early Help notifications received per 10,000 of the 0 — 18 population
has decreased from 35.4 to 21.7. This reflects the move to ensure that referrals
relating to attendance are addressed directly by the Inclusion and Attendance
Service within Early Help. The percentage of Early Help cases closed with positive
outcomes has improved from 68.8% to 73.7%. However the percentage of plans in
place within 4 weeks of notification has fallen slightly from 58.7% to 52.2%. Work
is taking place to continue to integrate the links between the Early Help Triage
process, where notifications are assessed, and the referral process into Children’s
Social Care through the Central Referral Unit. These processes have been brought
together and staff are now co-located from June this year.

Page 263



4, Recommendations

The Education and Young People’s Services Cabinet Committee is asked to
review and comment on the revised and expanded Education and Young
People’s Services performance scorecard which has been designed to reflect the
expanded scope of the work of the Directorate, including Early Help.

Background Documents
EYPS Directorate Scorecard — April 2015 release (March 2015 data)

Contact details

Lead Officer

Name: Wendy Murray

Title: Performance and Information Manager
a 03000 419417

=Y wendy.murray@kent.gov.uk

Lead Director

Name: Florence Kroll

Title: Director of Early Help & Preventative Services
= 03000 416362

< florence.kroll@kent.gov.uk

Page 264



mailto:wendy.murray@kent.gov.uk
mailto:florence.kroll@kent.gov.uk

Education & Young People's Services Performance Management

Education & Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard

July 2015 Release (June 2015 Data)

Produced by: Management Information, KCC
Publication Date: 31st July 2015

G9g abed

Kent p

County

Council
kent.gov.uk




99¢ abed

This page is intentionally blank



Education & Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard

Guidance Notes

POLARITY
H The aim of this indicator is to achieve the highest number/percentage possible
L The aim of this indicator is to achieve the lowest nhumber/percentage possible
T The aim of this indicator is to stay close to the target that has been set

RAG (Red/Amber/Green) ratings

GREEN Green indicates that the 2013-14 outturn performance has met or exceeded the 2013-14 target
AMBER Amber indicates that the 2013-14 outturn performance has not met the 2013-14 target but is within acceptable limits*
RED Red indicates that the 2013-14 outturn performance has not met the 2013-14 target and is below an acceptable pre-defined minimum*

* For the majority of indicators a tolerance of 3% above/below the target has been applied

o
Q)
DIRE%ION OF TRAVEL (DOT)
ﬁB Performance has improved compared to previously reported data
N
@ Performance has worsened compared to previously reported data
& Performance has remained the same compared to previously reported data

Incomplete Data

Data not available
Data to be supplied

Data in italics indicates 2012-13 data period

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CONTACT DETAILS

Matt Ashman 03000 417012
Cheryl Prentice 03000 417154
Ed Lacey 03000 417113
Nas Peerbux 03000 417152

management.information@kent.gov.uk

Education & Young People's Services Scorecards

EYPS
SISE
EY
EH
SEND

Education & Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard
School Improvement and Skills & Employability Scorecard
Early Years Scorecard

Early Help Monthly Scorecard

Special Educational Needs & Disabilities Scorecard

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS

EYFS
EYFE
EY
DwWP
FF2
FSM
SEN
NEET
Cyp

=r-4d=

Early Years Foundation Stage

Early Years Free Entitlement

Early Years

Department for Work and Pensions
Free For Two

Free School Meals

Special Educational Needs

Not in Education, Employment or Training
Children and Young People
Monthly

Termly

Annually

Management Information

Page 1



89¢ abed

Education & Young People’'s Services Performance Management

Directorate Scorecard - Kent

July

2015

June 2015 Data

o .
§I| = oor e o IS s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H| A 73 1t 69 73 69 68| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap LA 120 ¢ 18 11 12 18| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H|T 559, O 56.0 83 78 79/ AMBER
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H M 889 90.4 92 89.2 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H| A 8o 1t 79 83 79 76| GREEN
SISE12 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 580 { 63.1 59 58.0 66.0 BNEI=ID)
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap LA 21 b 25 14 17.8 21.0
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap LA 343 1t 34.5 29 343 29.7
SISE31 | Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 14 1 22 12 28 14 {=p)
SISE34 Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 822 1t 78.5 82 74.6 74.0/ GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils LA 28 & 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.8/ GREEN
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M 78 @ 87 92
EYPS1  Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LI M 655 628 460 599 460 {=p)
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H| A 86.4 1t 85.1 86 86.4 87.0 AMBER
EYPS3 Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H| A 842 1t 82.8 85 84.2 84.0| GREEN
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 5.2 7.0 4 5.2 7.0
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 9.9 8.7 10 9.9 10.7
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H| A 8.7 84.9 86 82.7 83| AMBER
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap LA 241 O 23.8 16 24.1 18
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H| A 56.7 1t 55.9 58 56.7 55
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap LA 331 b 33.9 23 33.1 27
SISE58 | Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 6.1 @ 5.7 4.0 5.9 5 AMBER
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 23 1 3.1 1.5 2.3 2.0/ AMBER
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 6.2 ﬁ 6.7 5.0 6.2 6.0/ AMBER
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils LI M 44 1 39 11 26 24| AMBER
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils LM 56/ 1t 59 39 61 76| GREEN
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 72 75 72
EYPS6 |Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 65.2 1t 65.0 70 64.6 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q 370 1 35.5 30 32.2 31.0| AMBER
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 21.7 35.4
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 737 1t 68.8
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M 26 1t 22
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 522 {1 58.7
Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 2



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

69¢ abed

Directorate Scorecard - Ashford June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 732 1t 66.0 73 66.0 68.0| AMBER
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 135 1t 24.3 11 13.5 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 595, {J 61.8 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 873 90.6 92 92.9 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 778 1 77.0 83 77.0 76.0| GREEN
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 547 4 59.2 59 54.7 (X RED
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 179 ¢ 22.3 14 17.9 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 289 1 30.3 29 28.9 29.7| GREEN
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM o 2 3
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H M 89.6 1 85.4 82 78.0 74.0| GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 40 1 42 37
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 3.5 3.9 4 3.5
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 7.5 5.8 10 7.5
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 812 I 83.2 86 81.2 83.0| AMBER
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 338 { 23.2 16 33.8 18.0 [x{=s)
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 53.0 1t 51.2 58 53.0 55.0
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 301 1 37.9 23 30.1 27.0 =)
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 5.8 @ 5.6 4.0 5.3 5/ AMBER
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 1.7 1 2.9 1.5 1.7 2.0/ GREEN
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 60 1 6.9 5.0 6.0 6.0 GREEN
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 0 & 0 0
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 0 <&~ 0 0
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 671 1} 69.7 70 80.8 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 21.7 40.4
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 76.8 1 68.4
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 500 60.6

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 3



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

0.2 abed

Directorate Scorecard - Canterbury June 2015 Data
) : o
. £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L
EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 736 1 69.2 73 69.2 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 135 1t 21.1 11 13.5 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 50.1 60.6 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 908 93.7 92 93.0 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 81.8 1t 80.6 83 80.6 76.0
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 571 4 59.0 59 57.1 66.0
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 173 ¢ 25.0 14 17.3 21.0
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 332 1t 40.0 29 33.2 29.7
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 2] & 2 2
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 745 1t 69.6 82 70.8 74.0
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LI M 59 <> 59 57
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 6.3 10.7 4 6.3
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 8.4 10.7 10 8.4
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 837 84.2 86 83.7 83.0
SISE44 Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 233 1t 24.0 16 23.3 18.0
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 59.0 1t 56.0 58 59.0 55.0
SISE46 Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 347 1 36.3 23 34.7 27.0
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 6.3 @ 5.7 4.0 4.7 5
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 26 1 33 1.5 2.6 2.0
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 6.7 ﬁ 7.2 5.0 6.7 6.0
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 30 & 1 3
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 0 & 0 1
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H| M 750 ) 76.7 70 73.5 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 29.8 43.6
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 76,5 1 80.4
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 706 1 61.3

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 4



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

| LZ abed

Directorate Scorecard - Dartford June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L
EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 725 1 68.1 73 68.1 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 6.4 1t 11.6 11 6.4 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 53.4 1t 49.3 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 857 89.8 92 91.3 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 82.0 1t 80.0 83 80.0 76.0| GREEN
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 716 1 73.7 59 71.6 66.0| GREEN
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 147 1 18.1 14 14.7 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 314 1 33.0 29 314 29.7| AMBER
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM o 1 1
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H M 857 1t 80.0 82 75.0 74.0| GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 48 I 40 39
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 2.7 4.4 4 2.7
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 4.4 1.8 10 4.4
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 924 1t 90.5 86 92.4 83.0
SISE44 Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 313 4 14.0 16 31.3 18.0
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 67.4 1t 60.1 58 67.4 55.0
SISE46 Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 386 36.7 23 38.6 27.0
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 5.0 ﬁ 5.3 4.0 5.2 5
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 33 1 4.5 1.5 33 2.0
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 39 1t 4.9 5.0 3.9 6.0
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 30 & 1 0
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 9 @ 8 5
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 69.3 1 67.6 70 50.7 56.5 [Ix{=)
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 10.6 27.7
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 857 1t 59.1
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 00 & 66.7

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 5



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

¢/t sbed

Directorate Scorecard - Dover June 2015 Data

& . L

Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =

L
EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 739 1 69.7 73 69.7 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 59 1t 7.3 11 5.9 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 629 63.1 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 9.0 I 90.2 92 86.5 88.0| AMBER
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H| A 81.1 & 81.1 83 81.1 76.0| GREEN
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 547 4 54.8 59 54.7 (X RED
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 1820 O 14.7 14 18.2 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 284 1 32.4 29 28.4 29.7| GREEN
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 1 & 1 3
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H M 88.0 & 88.0 82 82.4 74.0| GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 44 I 42 40
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 9.8 13.8 4 9.8
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 10.6 11.9 10 10.6
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 825 83.0 86 82.5 83.0| AMBER
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 185 1t 23.2 16 18.5 18.0| AMBER
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 54.3 ﬁ 51.8 58 54.3 55.0| AMBER
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 288 28.3 23 28.8 27.0| AMBER
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 6.0 @ 5.7 4.0 6.4 5.0/ AMBER
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 21 b 3.2 1.5 2.1 2.0 AMBER
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 66 1 6.7 5.0 6.6 6.0/ AMBER
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 6 1 5 0
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 0 ﬁ 1 8
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H| M 647 1 61.4 70 54.0 56.5| AMBER
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 31.2 46.0
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 7320 4 81.5
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 500 81.0

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 6




Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

€.¢ sbed

Directorate Scorecard - Gravesham June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 63.9 64.7 73 64.7 68.0 =)
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 71 1t 20.7 11 7.1 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 310 O 32.6 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 929 96.4 92 96.4 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 749 1 75.3 83 75.3 76.0| AMBER
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 650 I 66.0 59 65.0 66.0 AMBER
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 215 O 21.4 14 21.5 21.0| AMBER
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 31.7 40.1 29 31.7 29.7| AMBER
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 3 4 2 2
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 727 1 74.2 82 68.8 74.0 =)
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 40 I 36 34
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 2.3 3.5 4 2.3
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 8.7 6.2 10 8.7
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 83.0 85.2 86 83.0 83.0| GREEN
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 184 1t 20.6 16 18.4 18.0| AMBER
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 58.6 1t 55.7 58 58.6 55.0| GREEN
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 31.8 1t 33.9 23 31.8 27.0 =)
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 7.0 @ 6.0 4.0 5.4 5
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 27 1 4.5 1.5 2.7 2.0 BziE)
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 60 5.5 5.0 6.0 6.0 GREEN
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 1 & 1 0
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 10 @ 9 4
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 538 ) 55.2 70 54.4 56.5| AMBER
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 18.2 32.0
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 791 1 51.7
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 267 1 64.7

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 7



¥, abed

Education & Young People’'s Services Performance Management

Directorate Scorecard - Maidstone

July

2015

June 2015 Data

& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L
EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 758 1t 70.5 73 70.5 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 156 1t 24.8 11 15.6 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 523 1t 49.7 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 90.1 1 89.0 92 86.6 88.0| AMBER
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 80.9 1t 76.4 83 76.4 76.0| GREEN
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 647 1} 70.7 59 64.7 66.0 AMBER
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 22 1 26.2 14 22.2 21.0| AMBER
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 371 1) 31.1 29 37.1 29.7 =)
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 2 1 4 5 -
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 776 1 72.4 82 61.9 74.0 =)
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 62 54 51
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 5.7 7.3 4 5.7
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 11.4 10.4 10 11.4
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 872 89.9 86 87.2 83.0| GREEN
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 206 19.4 16 20.6 18.0| AMBER
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 63.7 4 65.9 58 63.7 55.0| GREEN
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 349 1 36.5 23 34.9 27.0 =)
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 5.7 @ 5.1 4.0 4.8 5 GREEN
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 21 1 2.8 1.5 2.1 2.0 AMBER
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 50 1 6.3 5.0 5.0 6.0 GREEN
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 2l & 2 0
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 15 ﬁ 16 14
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6  Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 730 1 69.9 70 61.4 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 19.8 28.9
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 705 70.0
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 48.0 1t 35.7
Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 8



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

G/¢ abed

Directorate Scorecard - Sevenoaks June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 76.7 1 73.1 73 73.1 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 187 4 15.8 11 18.7 17.5| AMBER
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 478 1 46.8 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 8s8.0 1t 86.7 92 88.0 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 855 1t 82.4 83 82.4 76.0| GREEN
SISE12 | Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 41.0 1t 38.9 59 41.0 66.0 z{=)
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 2.4 1 26.0 14 22.4 21.0| AMBER
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 204 1) 11.5 29 20.4 29.7| GREEN
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM o 1 1
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H M 833 1 80.9 82 73.9 74.0 AMBER
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 69 62 58
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 8.0 8.4 4 8.0
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 27.4 23.6 10 27.4
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 69.7 ﬁ 67.8 86 69.7 83.0 Bzl=)
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 435 1 47.2 16 43.5 18.0 [x{=s)
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 377 1t 35.6 58 37.7 55.0 zi=)
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 223 1 329 23 22.3 27.0| GREEN
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 4.3 @ 4.0 4.0 33 5 GREEN
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 1.9 1t 2.7 1.5 1.9 2.0/ GREEN
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 67 1 8.0 5.0 6.7 6.0/ AMBER
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 3 & 3 0
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 6 @ 5 2
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 707 1t 68.1 70 66.7 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 13.6 21.6
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 63.3 4 80.0
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 100.0, 1t 30.0

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 9



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

9/ abed

Directorate Scorecard - Shepway June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 704 1 67.9 73 67.9 68.0| AMBER
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 92 1t 16.9 11 9.2 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 68.3 1 67.2 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 804 86.7 92 84.6 88.0 zi{=)
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 797 1 78.8 83 78.8 76.0
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 507 4 58.4 59 50.7 (X RED
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 141 ¢ 25.6 14 14.1 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 293 1} 26.3 29 29.3 29.7| GREEN
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 1 1 2 3
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H M 780 1 73.2 82 73.8 74.0 AMBER
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 20 1t 22 30
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 6.8 7.8 4 6.8
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 17.0 14.0 10 17.0
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 834 86.3 86 83.4 83.0| GREEN
SISE44 Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 16.5 <& 16.5 16 16.5 18.0| GREEN
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 49.6 1t 48.2 58 49.6 55.0 zi=)
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 219 ¢ 31.6 23 21.9 27.0| GREEN
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 6.8 ﬁ 6.9 4.0 6.1 5.0/ AMBER
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 24 b 3.2 1.5 2.4 2.0 AMBER
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 73 1t 8.0 5.0 7.3 6.0 =)
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 50 4 4 3
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 4 ﬁ 5 4
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 678 1} 70.3 70 59.3 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 31.1 35.1
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 746 1 61.5
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 86.4 1 41.2

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 10



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

11T sbed

Directorate Scorecard - Swale June 2015 Data
> : _
. £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 720 1 67.5 73 67.5 68.0| AMBER
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 94 1t 19.8 11 9.4 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 550 57.4 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 86.2 I} 86.4 92 84.7 88.0
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 793 1t 76.3 83 76.3 76.0
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 473 1} 59.2 59 47.3 66.0
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 146 b 21.4 14 14.6 21.0
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 357 1 34.7 29 35.7 29.7
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 2 1 3 3
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 857 1t 75.0 82 76.4 74.0/ GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 790 O 77 66
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 3.0 5.0 4 3.0
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 6.7 4.4 10 6.7
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 824 82.8 86 82.4 83.0| AMBER
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 231 1 23.9 16 23.1 18.0 [x{=s)
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 49.3 @ 52.4 58 49.3 55.0 zi=)
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 283 1 24.8 23 28.3 27.0| AMBER
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 7.8 @ 7.3 4.0 6.6 5/ AMBER
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 220 1 3.5 1.5 2.2 2.0 AMBER
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 9.1 @ 8.2 5.0 9.1 6.0 Rz}
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 5 & 5 4
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 0 & 0 11
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H| M 621 1t 56.5 70 60.6 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 20.4 41.4
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 754 1 69.2
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 409 56.1

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 11



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

8.¢ abed

Directorate Scorecard - Thanet June 2015 Data
) : o
. £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 711 1 60.0 73 60.0 68.0 =)
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 1.2 { 13.2 11 11.2 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 63.4 1 62.0 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 90.2) <~ 90.2 92 83.3 88.0 xI=)
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 779 1 76.2 83 76.2 76.0
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 450 ) 57.0 59 45.0 (X RED
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 164 1 22.8 14 16.4 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 289 I 23.3 29 28.9 29.7| GREEN
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 2] & 2 2
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 762 1t 73.8 82 76.7 74.0/ GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 74 70 63
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 2.5 3.7 4 2.5
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 7.7 6.4 10 7.7
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 68.8 81.5 86 68.8 83.0
SISE44 Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 179 1t 20.4 16 17.9 18.0
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 439 { 48.6 58 43.9 55.0
SISE46 Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 269 { 20.6 23 26.9 27.0
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 7.6 @ 6.8 4.0 7.4 5
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 220 1 33 1.5 2.2 2.0
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 6.1 ﬁ 6.7 5.0 6.1 6.0
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 10 { 12 12
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 0 ﬁ 2 3
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 646 ) 66.1 70 60.9 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 33.6 53.1
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 640 73.8
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 500 58.8

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 12



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

6.2 sbed

Directorate Scorecard - Tonbridge and Malling June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 757 1 73.7 73 73.7 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 136 1t 21.7 11 13.6 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 539 56.4 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 93.3 <~» 93.3 92 94.0 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 825 83.8 83 83.8 76.0| GREEN
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 60.4 I} 67.6 59 60.4 (X RED
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 156 b 23.2 14 15.6 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 29 1} 28.6 29 29.9 29.7| AMBER
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM 1 & 1 1
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H M 875 1t 85.7 82 80.0 74.0| GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 47, 48 51
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 6.0 8.4 4 6.0
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 8.4 5.9 10 8.4
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 858 87.6 86 85.8 83.0| GREEN
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 233 1t 29.1 16 23.3 18.0 [x{=s)
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 61.8 1b 60.0 58 61.8 55.0| GREEN
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 269 1 34.6 23 26.9 27.0| GREEN
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 5.2 @ 4.7 4.0 3.9 5 GREEN
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 1.9 1t 2.5 1.5 1.9 2.0/ GREEN
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 70 { 6.6 5.0 7.0 6.0/ AMBER
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 50 4 4 3
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 6| 1t 8 9
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 505 ) 63.6 70 77.8 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 18.8 32.6
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 67.4 1 33.3
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 500 66.7

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 13



Education & Young People's Services Performance Management July 2015

08¢ abed

Directorate Scorecard - Tunbridge Wells June 2015 Data
& . L
Indcators £ 3|l oor mgoto 1 louum T s
= | @ esu =
L

EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) H|A 783 1 74.0 73 74.0 68.0| GREEN
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap L A 141 1t 23.5 11 14.1 17.5| GREEN
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place H| T 558 60.1 83
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) H| M 908 93.8 92 91.8 88.0| GREEN
SISE4  Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) H|A 80.7 1t 79.8 83 79.8 76.0| GREEN
SISE12  Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics (First Result from 2014) H| A 732 1 74.4 59 73.2 66.0| GREEN
SISE16 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 207 1 21.1 14 20.7 21.0| GREEN
SISE19 Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap L A 379 1} 36.7 29 37.9 29.7 =)
SISE31 Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) LM o 1 2
SISE34  Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| M 83.7 1t 81.4 82 79.1 74.0/ GREEN
SEND10 Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils L A 2.7
SEND11 Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks H M
EYPS1 |Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools LM 48 I 47 46
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school H|l A 86
EYPS3 |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school H|l A 85
EYPS4  Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools T A 7.3 7.7 4 7.3
EYPS5 |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools T A 12.5 12.6 10 12.5
SISE43  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 H A 91.5 1 89.1 86 91.5 83.0| GREEN
SISE44  Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 187 b 36.9 16 18.7 18.0| AMBER
SISE45  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 H A 741 1t 70.6 58 74.1 55.0| GREEN
SISE46  Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap L A 51.7 4 49.1 23 51.7 27.0 =)
SISES58  Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) L M 4.7 @ 4.4 4.0 3.6 5 GREEN
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils LA 23 1 3.1 1.5 2.3 2.0 AMBER
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils L A 4.2 ﬁ 4.7 5.0 4.2 6.0 GREEN
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils L M 1 & 1 1
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils L M 6 4 5 0
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness H| Q 75
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known H M 6723 1} 69.8 70 70.3 56.5| GREEN
EYPS7 |Rate of re-offending by CYP L Q
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population M 11.7 19.5
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome H M 81.8 1t 60.0
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS H M
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) M 3750 { 61.5

Management Information, EYPS, KCC Page 14



Education & Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard

Data Sources for Current Report

July 2015

June 2015 Data

Code |Indicator Source Description Latest data Description ';:E:stedj;ie
EY14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional) End of year assessments based on new EYFSP framework 2014-15 data from Keypas online dataset July 2015
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap End of year assessments based on new EYFSP framework 2013-14 data from Keypas online dataset Aug 2014
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place FF2 Team in Early Years & Childcare Snapshot as at June 2015 July 2015
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) Ofsted published inspection reports (MI Database) Inspections data as at June 2015 July 2015
SISE4 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional) Test/TA results for end of academic year 2014-15 Keypas Online Dataset July 2015
SISE12 |Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics Test results for end of academic year - Based on First Result 2013-14 DfE Published (LA) EPAS (Distr) Jan 2015
SISE16 |Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap Test/TA results for end of academic year 2013-14 DfE Published (LA) Keypas (Distr)  Dec 2014
SISE19 |Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap Test results for end of academic year - Based on First Result 2013-14 DfE Published (LA) EPAS (Distr) Jan 2015
SISE31  |Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) Ofsted published inspection reports (MI Database) Inspections data as at June 2015 July 2015
SISE34 |Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness Ofsted published inspection reports (MI Database) Inspections data as at June 2015 July 2015
SEND10 |Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils DfE annual snapshot based on school census Snapshot as at January 2014 Oct 2014
SEND11 |Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks Impulse database - monthly reported data Snapshot as at June 2015 July 2015
EYPS1 Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools Impulse database - monthly reported data Snapshot as at June 2015 July 2015
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school Admissions school places offered for start of academic year Offers outturn data for 2012-13 Sept 2014
EYPS3  |Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school Admissions school places offered for start of academic year Offers outturn data for 2012-13 Sept 2014
EYPS4  |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools MI Calculations based on annual data 2013-14 Outturn Data Sept 2014
EYPS5 Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools MI Calculations based on annual data 2013-14 Outturn Data Sept 2014
S1SE43U |Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 EPAS online 14-19 annual reporting 2013-14 NCER 14-19 dataset Dec 2014
SISE% Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap EPAS online 14-19 annual reporting 2013-14 NCER 14-19 dataset Dec 2014
SISE4€D |Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 EPAS online 14-19 annual reporting 2013-14 NCER 14-19 dataset Dec 2014
SISE4§ Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap EPAS online 14-19 annual reporting 2013-14 NCER 14-19 dataset Dec 2014
SISES Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) MI monthly reporting Snapshot data at end of June 2015 July 2015
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from primary schools - all pupils MI Calculations based on Termly School Census 2013-14 annual data Jan 2015
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from secondary schools - all pupils MI Calculations based on Termly School Census 2013-14 annual data Jan 2015
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from primary schools - all pupils Impulse database - monthly reported data Rolling 12 months up to June 2015 July 2015
EH41 Number of permanent exclusions from secondary schools - all pupils Impulse database - monthly reported data Rolling 12 months up to June 2015 July 2015
EH29 Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness MI Ofsted reporting Snapshot as at December 2014 Jan 2015
EYPS6 Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known Impulse database - monthly reported data Rolling 12 months up to June 2015 July 2015
EYPS7 Rate of re-offending by CYP Information, Quality and Performance Unit Data for Oct 2012 to Sept 2013 cohort July 2015
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population SKWO monthly reporting (current v previous month) Snapshot as at June 2015 July 2015
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome SKWO monthly reporting (current v previous month) Snapshot as at June 2015 July 2015
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS SKWO monthly reporting / Liberi (current v previous month) YTD June 2015 July 2015
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) SKWO monthly reporting (current v previous month) Snapshot as at June 2015 July 2015

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 15




Education & Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard

Indicator Definitions

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Code |Indicator Definition
. Lo - Percentage of pupils assessed as achieving Expected or Exceeding in all Prime Learning Goals and all literacy and mathematics
Ev14 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development (2015 Provisional Data) Early Learning Goals at the end of reception year, based on the Early Years Foundation Stage framework.
The difference between the achievement of non-FSM ever pupils and FSM ever pupils in terms of percentage assessed as
EY15 Percentage of pupils at EYFS achieving a Good Level of Development - FSM achievement gap achieving Expected or Exceeding in all Prime Learning Goals and all literacy and mathematics Early Learning Goals at the end of
reception vear, based on the Early Years Foundation Stage framework.
EY4 Percentage of DWP and other identified eligible 2 year olds taking up a free early education place Definition to be confirmed.
EY8 Percentage of EY settings with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness (non-domestic premises) The p.ercentag.e of Kpint Barly Years S?tt'ngs (nf)n_domesuc premises only), JquEd good or OUtS.tandmg for overall effectiveness
in their latest inspection, as a proportion of all inspected Kent Early Years settings (non domestic premises only).
SISE4 Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics (2015 Provisional Data) The perc'ent.age of pupils at the end qf Key Stage 2 who achieve a level 4 or above in all of Reading, Writing & maths. Includes
Kent maintained schools and academies.
SISE12 |Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics The percgntage of pupils at the end of Kgy stage 4 who achieve at Ie{ast 5 or more GCSEs or equivalents including a GCSE in
both English & maths. Includes Kent maintained schools and academies.
" Lo . . - o . The difference between the achievement of non-FSM ever pupils and FSM ever pupils in terms of percentage achieving level 4
SISEJ‘G Percentage of pupils at KS2 achieving L4+ in Reading, writing and mathematics - FSM achievement gap or above in all of Reading, Writing & maths at KS2. Includes Kent maintained schools and academies.
QO
(@] The difference between the achievement of non-FSM pupils and FSM pupils in terms of percentage achieving 5+ A*-C including
. Lo P . . e .
SISEdI\IS) Percentage of pupils at KS4 achieving 5+ A*-C including GCSE English & mathematics - FSM achievement gap English & maths at KS4. Includes Kent maintained schools and academies,
SISEBD |Number of schools in Ofsted Category (special measures or serious weakness) :\rl:;pmet;t:iro(r)]f Kent maintained schools and academies judged inadequate for overall effectiveness by Ofsted in their latest
The percentage of Kent maintained schools and academies, judged good or outstanding for overall effectiveness in their latest
SISE34 |Percentage of all schools with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness inspection, as a proportion of all inspected Kent maintained schools and academies. Includes Primary, Secondary and Special
schools and Pupil Referral Units.
Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs as a proportion of all pupils on roll in all schools as at
SEND10 |Percentage of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs - Kent resident pupils January school census. Includes maintained schools and acedemies, Pupil Referral Units, Free schools and Independent schools
(DfE published data).
The percentage of Education and Health Care Plans that are issued within 20 weeks as a proportion of all such plans. An
SEND11 |Percentage of Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) issued within 20 weeks education, health and care plan (EHCP) replaced statements and are for children and young people aged up to 25 who need
more support than is available through special educational needs support.
EYPS1 Number of pupils being placed in independent or out-of-county special schools The number.of pupils with statements of special educational needs that are placed in independent Special schools or out-of-
county Special schools.
EYPS2 Percentage of parents getting first preference of primary school I:ielzdpercentage of parents who got their first preference of Primary school (out of their three ordered preferences) for their
EYPS3 Percentage of parents getting first preference of secondary school I:ielzdpercentage of parents who got their first preference of Secondary school (out of their three ordered preferences) for their
EYPS4  |Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Primary schools The percentage of spare school places: current Primary school rolls calculated as a proportion of Primary schools' capacities.
EYPS5 Percentage of surplus school places in Kent Secondary schools I:sagﬁ:'zsentage of spare school places: current Secondary school rolls calculated as a proportion of Secondary schools
The percentage of young people achieving the level 2 threshold by age 19. The calculation is based on the number of young
SISE43 |Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 people that were studying in the local authority at age 15, that have passed the level 2 threshold by the end of the academic
year in which they turn 19.

Page 16




Education & Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard

Indicator Definitions

Code |Indicator Definition
SISE44 |Percentage of young people with Level 2 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap This indicator repprts the gap in attainment of level 2 at age 19 between those young people who were in receipt of free school
meals at academic age 15 and those who were not.
The percentage of young people achieving the level 3 threshold by age 19. The calculation is based on the number of young
SISE45 |Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 people that were studying in the local authority at age 15, that have passed the level 3 threshold by the end of the academic
year in which they turn 19.
SISE46 |Percentage of young people with Level 3 attainment by age 19 - FSM achievement gap The gap in attainment of level 3 at age 19 between those young people who were in receipt of free school meals at academic
age 15 and those who were not.
_ . . - The percentage of young people who have left compulsory education, up until their eighteenth birthday, who have not
SISES8 | Percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) achieved a positive education, employment or training destination. Data collected under contract by CXK (Connexions).
. . . R . The percentage of pupils that have been persistently absent from a Kent maintained Primary school or a Primary academy for
EH39 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from Primary schools - all pupils 15% or more of their expected sessions over the reported time period.
EH42 Percentage of pupils who are persistently absent from Secondary schools - all pupils The percentage of pUpI!S that have bee_n persistently absent frqm a Ke_nt maintained Secondary school or a Secondary academy
for 15% or more of their expected sessions over the reported time period.
EH38 Number of permanent exclusions from Primary schools - all pupils Thg total number of pupils that have been permanently excluded from a Kent maintained Primary school or a Primary academy
Ry, during the last 12 months.
O] ! -
EH4% Number of permanent exclusions from Secondary schools - all pupils The total number of pupils that have been permanently excluded from a Kent maintained Secondary school or a Secondary
academy during the last 12 months.
EHZg Percentage of Children's Centres with Good or Outstanding Ofsted Judgements - Overall Effectiveness The per_centage of Kent (_Ihlldrfen 's Centres judged good or outstanding for overall effectiveness in their latest inspection, as a
proportion of all Kent Children's Centres.
EYPS6 |Percentage of Children Missing Education offered suitable education within 30 days of becoming known Definition to be confirmed.
The data is looking at a 12mth cohort that is tracked for 12mths to identify any further alleged offending. Tracked for a further
EYPS7 Rate of re-offending by CYP 6mths to confirm the outcome of the alleged offending behaviour. This report uses data from the Police National Computer
(PNC) published by Ministry of Justice (MoJ) and is only available at County level.
SKWO: The number of notifications received during the current month per 10,000 of the Mid Year 2013 0-18 population
EH4 Rate of notifications received per 10,000 0-18 population Estimates. The data includes all notifications received by EH&PS excluding the following Notification Types: "Existing TAF
moved", "Existing TAF moved (CDT e-mail)", "SCS open case - support", "SCS step-down". Date of birth used to calculate age.
SKWO: The percentage of all closed cases received by EH&PS at the point of data extract for the current month only. Closure
EH8 Percentage of cases closed - positive outcome Outcomes used are 'Outcomes achieved - case closed' and 'Outcomes achieved - support from partner agency'. Date of birth
used to calculate age.
EH12 Percentage of cases stepped-down from SCS The number of closed cases within thg p_erlod whe_re the referral end reason was recorded as being step down as a percentage
of the total number of cases closed within the period.
. e e e SKWO: The number of Early Help Plans for the current month only less the number of Early Help Notifications received. <28
EH16 Percentage of plans in place within 4 weeks of notification (Calendar Days) calendar days. 'First Meeting Date' field used to determine if a plan has taken place.

Management Information, EYPS, KCC

Page 17




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	A5 Minutes of the meeting held on 8 July 2015
	A6 Verbal Updates
	B1 Procurement of SEN Transport provision for Phase 1 Schools
	B2 Early Help and Preventative Services Commissioning Intentions for 2016-17
	Item B2  - Appendix 1
	Item B2 - Appendix 2
	Item B2 - Appendix 3 v4
	Diagnostic Report
	1. Introduction
	2. Background
	3. Approach to ‘Analyse’ Phase
	4. Budget Scoping
	5. Diagnostic report question summaries
	5.1 What are the challenges we are seeking to address?
	5.2 What are the needs of our residents and / or service users and how are these likely to change?
	5.3 What are practitioners and service users telling us?
	5.4 What other resources are being used to tackle similar issues and outcomes?
	5.6    How is demand for these services likely to change and what will be the impact?
	5.8 What is the state of the current market and how is this likely to change?
	5.9 How can we join up resources and activities with other partners to maximise our impact?
	5.10 What are the outcomes we are seeking to achieve through this new commissioning exercise?
	5.11 What will success look like?

	6. Detailed needs and numbers analysis
	6.1 Deprivation
	6.2 Children in Education
	6.3 NEETs
	6.4 Presenting and underlying needs
	6.5 Toxic Trio
	6.5.1 Domestic violence and abuse
	6.5.2 Parental mental ill-health
	6.5.3 Parental substance misuse

	6.6 Equality and Diversity
	6.6.1 Age and Gender
	6.6.2 Disability
	6.6.3 Race, Religion or Belief
	6.6.4 Sexual orientation

	6.7 Young Carers
	6.8 Capturing the views of Young People
	6.8.1 User engagement
	6.8.2 Practitioner consultations
	6.8.3 Practitioner and stakeholder workshops
	6.8.4 Thematic analysis
	6.8.5 Other recommendations:

	7.8 Demand for services

	7. Current Activities: In-house, externally commissioned and others
	7.1 Effectiveness and cost
	7.2 Market position
	7.4 Late Intervention Spend

	8. Conclusions

	Glossary, References and Appendices
	9. Glossary of Terms
	10. References
	Appendix 1: Questions which should be answered
	Appendix 2: Mosaic L, M. N, O profile summaries
	Appendix 3: External services referrals - EHN categories
	Appendix 4: Feedback from staff consultation events
	Appendix 5: Thematic analysis
	Appendix 6: EHPS Indicators


	Item B2 - Appendix 4

	C1 Performance of Early Help and Preventative Services
	Item C1 - Appendix 1 - Early Help  Preventative Services Monthly Scorecard 150826
	Item C1 - Appendix 2 Early Help

	C2 Teacher Recruitment and Retention Activity for 2015
	C3 Active Travel Strategy
	C4 Work Programme 2015/16
	Item C6 - Work Programme  - Appendix

	D1 Annual Equality and Diversity Report for Education and Young People's Services 2014-15
	D2 Education and Young People's Services Directorate Scorecard
	Item D2 - Education and Young People’s Services Directorate Scorecard




